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FRASERS GROUF PLC - AN

ABOUT FRASERS GROUP

Founded us q single store in 1982, Frasers Group
ple (Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the
Company) is today the UK's largest sporting goods
retailer by revenue,

The Group operates o diversified portfolio of sports, fitness, premium

lifestyle @ maore thon
Premium

Lifestyle, European Retail, Rest of World Retail and Wholesale & Licensing.

Our purpose is {o serve consumears with the world's best brands. This requires
us to have the right product, in the right place, at the right time and at the
right price. Qur strategy is aligned to this purpose and is based on three
mterconnected focus pillars - the brands we sell, our digital offering and

our physical stores. These are supported by o set of enablers, focused on our
people, systems, autemation and data.

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS
WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS,
PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

WE DO NOT RUN THE BUSINESS FOR THE SHORT-TERM
BUT WORK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER
VALUE OVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE
CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPLE.

We become o listed public company in 2007,
In the years since we flooted, the Group has greatly
ontribute: e British economy. This includes.

£250M

Approx. £250m paid
in staff share bonuses

25,000

Have a workforce of
approx. 25,000 peaple
worldwide, approx. 19,000
of which are in the UK

£2,100M

Contributed approx.
£2100m in VAT and Duty

£190M

Approx. E190m paid
in sales commission to
retail bonuses

£600M

Contributed approx.
£600m in UK
Carporation Tax

£180M

Caontributed approx.
£180m in Ni employer
contributions

"It was the Agencies we were after”...
"We had to get you in order to get to
the agencies”

‘'TUESDAY 4 OCTOBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER
{AS5ISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNIONY

Printed on Steinbais 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, nelping to create new Bntish woodland across the UK

FRASERS GROUP

QUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to invest in its
physical and digital elevation strategy
and our omni-channel offering is growing

+ in strength, Our stores in the UK have

reopened above expectations ond our
online channel continues to significantly
outperform pre-Covid-19 periods. None
the less, management remains of the view
that there is a high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be over this
Winter and maybe beyond.

The board of Frasers Group has continued
to consider the probable return of
restrictions during FY22, including within
its accounting judgements and estimates
for FY21. As the effects of the Covid-19-
pondemic continue to cause future
uncertainty, including the Delta variant
surge we are currently seeing, the board of
Frasers Group considers it cannot currently
confirm with enough material accuracy
what the outcome for F¥22 will lock like,

Based on this we will not be giving

a projection to the market for FY22
performance. Any projections produced
by third parties such as research analysts
are not produced on behalf of Frasers
Group plc and Frasers Group plc takes
no responsibility for such projections.

As a result prospective investors and
other market participants shoulid not
treat, and Frasers Group plc does not
intend to treat, the financial projections
produced by third parties as indicative
of the market expectations of Frasers
Group ple's future financial performance.
We specifically note that we are under
no cbligation to correct estimates made
by financial analysts or to inform the
market should we coma to believe that our
actual performance will differ from those
estimates,

We will review the current situation

again ot the haif year and depending on
whether there is more certainty on further
restrictions or not we may be able to give
guidance gt that point,
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GROUP AT

A GLANCE

UK SPORTS
RETAIL

54.3%

Totat Group Revenus

£1,968.5M

UK Sports Retail includes core
sports retail store operations

in the UK, plus ail the Group’s
sports retail online business
(excluding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports and Sports
Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrook campus
operations, retail store operatiens
in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and GAME UK.

Our store footprint is significant,
with 806 stores gcross the UK,
totaffing approximately 6.5m
sq.ft. of retoil space. The majority
of stores are operated under the
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans
Cycles and GAME fascias.

4 .

EUROPEAN
RETAIL

17.0%

Total Group Revanue

£615.2M

[

ﬂﬂo”O\o

European Retail includes all
the Group's sports retail stores,
management and operations
in Europe including the Group's
European distribution centres
in Belgium and Austria as well
as GAME Spain. The total

to further tailor the Group's
consumer val ropositions to
our local marke

FRASERS GROUP

20.3%

* “Total Group Revenue

PREMIUM
LIFESTYLE

The Group's Premium Lifestyle division offers u brood ronge of clothing, footwear and nccessories
from leading global contemporory and fuxury retail brands through our fascias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Sofa.com and Jack Wills along with their related websites.
The majority of these fascias operate as multi-brand premium retail destinations and are focused
on praviding fashien conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products. The segment is
supported by our Group-wide centralised commerciat and support functions, giving the benefits
of scale and operating efficiencies to each fascio. The segment is a significant part of the Group's
new generatjon retail concept and as such, in certain ocations, Premium and Lifestyle stores

are co-located alongside aur Sports retail stores to benefit from increased customer footfall and
operating synergies.

The total Premium Lifestyle store count is 179 stores and approximately 4.2m sq.kt. of retail space.

4.2%

Total Group Revanua

REST OF
THE WORLD
RETAIL

Rest of World Retail incluc

Total Group Reverue

WHOLESALE & -
LICENSING 4.3%

The Wholesale & Licensing segment operates our glohally renowned heritage Group brands
{such os Everlast, Lonsdale, Kareimor and Slazenger] and our wholesale, licensing and distribution
relationships across the world, as well as our partnerships with third porty brands that we
license-in to sell certain products. The Group's own brands are managed both individually and
centrally within this segrent, This unique, integrated dpproach to brand management feverages
the expertise of our people, encourages innovation, and ensures consistency.

: LI
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Group underlying EBITDA®

increased by 29.4% to : .
. 18.5p

g
8.4%
compared to £302.1m in the

Group revenue decreased prior period

by 8.4% R Excluding acquisitions and on o
g acq

currency neutral basis, underlying

EBITDA increased 16.9%

Excluding acquisitions and
on a currency neutral basis,
revenue decreased by 114%™

Reported basic earnings per
share fell by 189.2% to a loss

J tax wos a foss of

177.2% from a profit of
£101.0m

Reported profit after

£78.0m down 177.2%

Group gross
margin increased to 42.2%
from 42.0%

42.0%

Voodiand Trus

95.1%

£5.8M

Underlying profit before tax'?
decreased by 95.1% to £5.8m
from £117.4m

ross the LK

of 16.5p, from a profit
of 18.5p

Underlying basic earnings - per
share decreased by 204.9% to a
loss of 17.0p from a profit of 16.2p-

(16.5p)
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

£427.8M

UNDERLYING FREE CASH
FLOW (PRE-CAPEX)
INCREASED TO £427.8M
COMPARED TO £263.1M IN
THE PRIOR PERIOD

% £143.5m _
_,l\.\ul’\ ”‘L
Reported profit before tax was

£8.5m, down 94.1%
from a profit of £143.5m

Net debt decreased to £248.9m
(E£366.0m at 26 April 2020)*%

Group reported EBITDA
decreased by 2.6% to
£536.5m compeared to
£551.0m in the prior
period.

FRASERS GROUP

11.8%
1 ]

EVROPEAN RETAIL REVENUE DECREASED BY 11.8%, LARGELY DUE THE
TEMPORARY STORE CLOSURES CAUSED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Excluding acquisitiohs and on @ currency neutral bosis, revenue decreased by 20.5%™,
largely caused by temporary store closures due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 150%™

Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% largely
due to growth in our online
business, and new store
openings

10.7%

contribution wos down 2.8% "

UK Sports Retail revenue decreased by 10.7%, largely due the
temporary store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic,
offset by growth in our online business and pent up demand on
reopening stores

Excluding acquisitions, revenue decreased by 14.6% ™, largely caused by temporary
store closuras cavsed by the Covid-19 pandemic

UK Sports Retail like-far-like gross contribution wos down 13.4%

lems casbanel Lol enquraalinie bt S arthar de ol e

oy teatral prerfonanee temeees coan bie baonzs o e
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STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

“m>”—|mwm OO0 ﬂ@ 7 £1,000,000
SeHEE LAUNCHED B0) 7 £500.000

< L}
The scheme exists to reward our top 100Q performers @@ 7 h~m°-°°°
when our share price reaches £10, for 30 consecutive
h,_NMOOO
gm:no:momcmm,qo::mmawo%«jmjﬁomOc_.mno:.._coEmw, -_

trading days. These top performers will be nominated by m O
q_ _
u\J__ .
Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, and Own It. £ /u\@ i hmonooo

20721 ELEVATION
PROGRAMME S12T7S

2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon

ZcFQQ

SHARES WERE AT
36.8% CWINERERIP
AT YEAR END

BOSS

HUGO BOS S

SHARES WERE AT
18.5% CUWHNERSHIP
AT YEAR END

FRASERS GROUP

WIGAN
RETAIL
PARK

27 064 so T

£41,750,000
PURCHASE PRICE
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FRASERS GROUP

OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the health, safety
and wellbeing of our colleagues. This reflects
bath our duty to keep our people safe and

the business imperative: if we are not safe, we
cannot trade.

Qur response has been based on a number of
key principles, in particular:

» following Government guidelines and
axceeding them in certain aspects;

* completing thorough risk assessments and
regularly updating them; and

« communicating effectively, so our people
understand what we are doing and their
part in keeping themselves and their
colleagues safe.

The standards we have devetoped have been
shared and fellowed across the Group, except
where local legislation mandates o different
approach.

The Group's senior management have been
closely involved in our response, ensuring

the safety of our people is put first and that
sufficient resources and equipment are
available. We have olso been supported by an
independent health ond safety consultant, who
is helping us to drive continuous improvement,
including in relation to our response to Cavid-19.

Our Initiol Response To Covid-19

In lost year's report, we detailed the steps we
had taken across our warehouse, office and
stores in the first few months of the Covid-19
pandemic. These steps are summarised below.

Virtually ail furloughed colleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guaranteed by the Government,
and we sent home on full pay all colleagues
over 80, as well as thase categorised as
vulnerable or at risk. Other measures we have
introduced included random ternperature
checks for colteagues, strict pratocols for
self-isolation after contact with o positive case,
encouraging regular testing and providing full

g

pay for people who test positive, while they are
unable to work.

In summary, in the early stages of the Covid-1%
pondemic we:

Warehouse

= Invited the local environmental health
officer and our independent consultant to
review our controls and social distancing
measures

« Reduced the amount of traffic in and out of
the building and in key creas, for example
by staggering start, finish and break times,
moving agency staff to four-day weeks and
opening a new entrance to reduce traffic
through reception

+  Introduced seven-doy health and safety
coverage, to support the warehouse teams

*  Provided first aiders with advice and PPE
(personal protective equipment), to protect
them when first aid was needed

» Implemented hygiene stations and created -
a new rele of “Sociol Distancing Marshal”

*  Introduced 'no contact’ security checks
Qffice

- Required colleagues to work ot home
wherever possibie and where they needed
to shield

*  Communicated restart guidance through
Siack (an internal messaging service
available to all head office colleagues)

* Increased cieaning, provided hygiene
stations throughout and limited capacity in
key areos such as kitchens and lifts

¢+ Implemented protocols to ensure there was
no mixing between warehouse and office
staff in common areos such as canteens

*  Allowed only cuthorised visitors and
encouraged meetings through digital
platforms

Stores

- Created a retail restart pack for stores

reppening, inciuding signoge, PPE, increased

cleaning schedules, lower store occupancy
levels, one-way systems in-store and
training documentts for all new procedures

«  Reduced traffic in and out of the building
and in key areas by staggering start, finish
and break times

- Revised delivery and processing procedures

to maintain social distancing

»  Added sonitisation stations throughout
stores and encouraged colleagues and
customers to use them

+ Used unanncunced visits by the Heclth &

Safety team to ensure the retoil restart pack

had been correctly implemented

Qur approach was well regarded by local
authorities, with positive feedback following
unonnounced visits to our stores and
warehouse.

Adapting And Developing Qur Procedures

Throughout this financial year we have built
on our initial actions, us we have updated our
risk nssessments and adapted to changing
quidance. This has enabled us to introduce
new and stronger measures, in particular as
the Cevid-19 variant first identified in Kent

began to spread. Examples of our key activities

undertaken in the yeor ore set out below.

«  August 2020. We reviewed our warehouse
risk assessment and shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams. We started
weekly anti-viral fogging’ of offices, sorters
and other areas to supplement the regular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
plexi-screens in the office to support social
distancing and introduced maximum
capucities for meeting rooms.

= September 2020, We reviewed our
warehouse risk assessment and our first
aid guidance and introduced a screening
questionnaire for all visitars.

+  October 2020. We introduced face shields
on dll sorting machines, as an additional
loyer of protection.

«  November 2020. We reviewed and updated
our warehouse risk assessment and shared
it with the teams. Face coverings became
mandatory in the warehouse, and were
encouraged in offices (except for medical
and operational exemptions), going beyond
Government guidance. We issued guidance
to all agenicies and departments about
reporting Covid-19 cases, including follow-
up actions required. .

* December 2020. We reviewed the head
office sisk assessment and shared it with all
departments, To enhange social distencing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas and
the office workstations used by people who
could not work from home, and further
reduced meeting room capacities. We
reviewed and communicated our contacts
guidance and shielding requirermnents and
made face coverings mandatory in head
office. All head office calleagues received
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring an electronic signature of
acceptance.

+  Jonuary 2021, We reviewed the warehouse
risk assessment and issued a warehouse
warking refresh. We produced risk
assessments for security, transport and
training ond shared them with the relevant
teams. Training started for all warehouse
management and supetvisors, with
the "Covid Captain” role introduced to
monitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in all areas, over and ubove
the manufacturers’ guidelines, and jssued
guidance on pre-shift cleaning.

+  February 2021. We further enhonced the
fogging procedures and produced o risk
assessment for the Personalisation team.

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For example, infection rates at our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community. We

will continue to adapt our approach as
circumstonces chonge.

Outside of the UK we hove complied with

all local Covid-19 laws and guidance which,

at a minimum, includes the some store and
warehouse measures as implemented in the UK,

nlad on Stanbes 1N Becycled a0 Carbon Coaptured throuah the Wood
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FRASERS GROUP

CHAIR’S STATEMENT

Introduction

The Covid-19 pandemic continuesto be a
significant challenge for the country, the retail
industry and for Frasers Group. Qur stores were
ciosed again in November 2020, followed by a
significant closure in the week before Christmas
which then led to the third leckdown in January
2021. These lockdowns resulted in virtually all of
our UK stores being closed for approximately
six months in FY21. Qur European stores

were also impacted by closures although the
impact was not as punitive as it was for the UK
business.

| am proud of how our colieagues have

battled through these very difficult times to
help us achieve a solid set of financial results
on an underlying EBITDA baosis. We are a
rasilient business but the Covid-19 pandemic
has resulted in some significant non-cash
accounting impairments to our asset basa. Qur
RNS anncuncements in February and April 2021
gave warning of the situation and consequent’y
we have to repert an overall profit before tax of
£8.5m down from £143.5m in FY20.

Woe appreciate the Government support with
the furlough scheme and business rates relief.
We are predominantly a bricks and mortar
business and this support has enabled us to
keep stores open that otherwise might have
been closed, particularly loss making House

of Fraser stores, saving many jobs. We must
caution however that the return to pre Covid-13
business rates will present a threat to ¢ number
of these stores. There must be o change to the
outdated business rates system for us to justify
the survival of some of these House of Fraser
stares.

We are looking to take on a number of
ex-Debenhams stores across the country but
the excessive business rates moke the viability
of these investments, and the jobs that could
be created, less likely. Again, we ask for ¢larity
from the Government and for a new and
appropriate poficy on business rates.

I Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, hel

Elevation Without Limits

We continue to invest in all areas of the
business t6 support cur elevation strategy.

QOur flagship Sports Direct store on Oxford
Street re-opened in June 202t at o cost of
opproximately £10m to the Group and we have
received overwhelming endorsements from our
customers and our brand partners such as Nike
and Adidas.

QOur Flanneis business continues to go

from strength to strength since we took full
ownership during 2017 and has revenue CAGR
from the end of FY18 to FY21 of approximately
40%. We have an ambition to reach
approximately £2 billion in gross turnaver by the
end of FY26, with a forecast split of 60% from
physical stores and 40% from online channels.

We will continue te invest across the portfolio
of our retail fascias, always pushing the
boundaries and thinking without limits. Cur
investment in our digital copability, including
on platforms and people, will continue as will
investment in automation in our warehouse
to support our bricks and clicks fulfilment
capabilities.

The Efevation No Limits strategy is working
and we are fully supported by our third-party
brands as elevation is complimenting their own
strategies.

Results

We do not hesitate to remind our stakeholders
of our key cccounting principles, namely being
conservative, consistent, ond simple. It is with
this in mind that we present our financial results
for FY2t in a period of uncertainty, with in our
opinion, the effects of the pandemic far from
aver, and a probable risk of further restrictions.

Qur results highlights are:

* Underlying EBITDA increased to £390.8m
(FY20: £302.1m)

»  Revenue decrecsed to £3,6253m (FY20:
£3,957.4m)

1o o

o B

= Profit before tax £8.5m {F¥20: £143.5m)
* Net debt of £248.8m (FY20: £366.0m)

More underlying detail is given throughout this
Annual Report and Accounts. The highlights
and explanations of these by segment is set out
in note 4.

Our People

Our people are our finest resource and we are
committed to treating all of our colleagues with
dignity and respect. Throughout the pandemic
we have kept colleagues engaged with regular
update videos and a provision for help and
wellbeing support where people needed it.
Frasers Group collecgues are talented, loyal
and resilient. | have been very impressed how
they have found creative ways of working
through the challenges of the pandemic with
undiminished enthusiasm. The Boord are very
appreciative of the efforts of our colleagues
during these challenging times.

The Board is really pleased that The Fearless
1000 share scheme was unanimously voted
through at the AGM in October 2020 and is
now up and running. The Board is receiving
regular updates and progress reports and we
are comfortable it is running as intended. The
aim of the scheme is to pay out significant
bonuses in the form of shares if the share price
stays above £10 for 30 consecutive trading
days. This could see 1¢ celleagues receiving
shares worth £3m each if the share price is at
£10 at the vesting dates. One thousand of our
Fearless colleagues, whe live and breathe our
volues of thinking without limits, not hesitating
and owning it, will be eligible te receive share
bonuses ranging from £5C% right up to £Im if
the share price is ot £10 at the vesting dates.
There is also a cash bonus scheme which runs
cancurrently with the share scheme which will
pay out bonuses for those eligible colleagues
who do not qualify for the Feartess 1000.

The Frasers Group Elevation Progromme was
introduced in September 2020 to attract highly
talented people to Frasers Group. The quality
of the recruits frem the initial intake hos been
strong and they have impressed people across
all levels of the erganisation including the
Board. We are looking to run this programme

twoodland across the UK

again in September 2021 with a new intoke of
talent and our assessment centres are now up
and running. Our objective is to populate the
organisation with high calibre, high potential,
well trained people who we intend to be the
future leaders of the Compary.

Aczquisitions And Strategic Investments

During the year we increased our investments in
Huge Boss and Mulberry and we alse acquired
the DW Sports and Fitness business. These
investments ore consistent with our strategic
objectives.and align with our elevation strategy.

As at pariod end, we held approximately

16.4% directly and indirectly in Hugo Boss. We
consider this strategic investment in Hugo Boss
to be very successful, We have strengthened
our relationship with the company and have
regular and constructive dialogue with the
senior executive team. We have noted press
speculation about a potential acquisition of
Hugo Boss and stated we had no intention to
bid in our RNS of 26 May 2021.

We held approximately 36.8% of Mulberry
Group ple at the year end. We beidieve this is
an iconic British brand and hope that tegether
we can build o mutually beneficial partnership
going forward.

We acquired certain assets of DW Spoerts
Limited from administration for a cash
consideration of £37m. The tronsaction
complements the existing gym and fitness club
portfolic within the Group and is consistent with
the Group's elevation strategy. Frosers Group
looks forward to elevating the gym and fitness
assets and is also pleased to have saved a
number of jobs. Further detail on the trode and
assets acquired can be found in note 31°

We consider o combination of both organic
and acquisitive growth will assist in the ongoing
delivery and success of our Elevation Strategy
and we will continue to loak at potential
opportunities across a range of categories to
complement and enhance our Group offering,
in the UK, Europe and beyond if appropriate.
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FRASERS GROUP

vir tal, Social & G

We are proud of the successes we have had
with our sustainability agenda to date. For
instance the majority of our waste from our
Shirebrook delivery centre is recycled and

we are targeting zerc waste to landfill from
Shirebrook in the next few years. Excluding
acquisitions during the year, our stores and
gyms are operating on 100% renewable power
and we are targeting a reduction of 10% power
usage in our stores over the next few years.
Sustainability will continue to play o key role in
our future processes and procedures led by our
Sustainability Steering Group which is executive
sponsored by our Chief Finencial Officer.

We are proud to invest in jocal communities
and to support a key facet of British life, the
high street, We provide jobs for over 20,000
people in the UK alone and during the
pandemic we have done our utmost to retain
and support as many colleagues as possible
with very few redundancies.

Curing the year we have given approximately
£25m in discounts to NHS staff as we reopened
June 2020 in gratitude to the unkelievable
job they have done during the Covid-19
pandemic.

Cur workers representative Cally Price

is 0 shining example of good corporate
governance and we thoroughly recommend
the appointment of such o position acress the
boardrooms of corperate Britain. Cally brings
colleague queries and concerns directly to
the boardroom for action by the Board. Cally
takes a very active part in every Boord meeting,
which she attends in full, and her vote counts
for as much In a Board vote as mine or the
executive team. Alongside Cally, the rest of
our Nen-executive Directors bring their own
knowledge and eéxperience to their roles in
helping to ensure we do the right thing by our
stakeholders.

The Board

We recently went through an independent
review of the Board which is a mandatory
obligation once every three years. We are very
happy with the findings and will act on the
recommendations.

10
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whon Caprtiad throauh the Woodland Tia

We will continue to look at the construction of
the Board ensuring we have the appropriate
blend of skills and experience. We consider
diversity, and energetic and passionate
individuals to be priarities as we look to
strengthen the Board in the future.

Due to the success of the Worker's
Representative Board role we hove decided
to extend the tenure of Cally Price for a
further few years and she will be proposed for
re-election at the 2027 AGM.

Dividend And Share Buyback

Our share buy back programme has continued
which is a demonstration of our confidence

in the Company and the strategy for future
growth. Further details can be found in Note 36.

No final dividend will be payable in relation to
FY21 as we intend to make further investments
in the business to support the elevation
strategy.

Qutlook

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to create
uncertainty and we must be prepared for
mare lockdewns in the future. There must be
concerns about the stability of some retailers
as Government support schemes come to
an end, yet there still seems to be very little
tangible long-term action being taken by
the Government to sove the high street.
Notwithstanding the probable risk of further
lockdowns, which are considered and do
impact our property accounting estimates,
Frasers Group is confident in our long-term
strategy which we believe will help us to get
thraugh this difficuit period,

We will continue on the path of elevation and
to invest in our talented and loyal colieagues.
Qur business is built on rock solid foundations
and we believe we are well set for some
promising times in the future

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

OUR BUSINESS

Business Madel

Founded by Mike Ashley as a single Store in
Maidenheod in 1982, Frasers Group plc today
operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness,
prarium lifestyle and luxury store fascias. The
Group's colleagues work together with our
suppliers and our third-party brand portners

to serve customers in over 20 countries. The
Group aspires to be an internationol leader in
sports, lifestyle, and luxury retail. The Board

is cornmitted to treating all people with

dignity and respect. We value our people,

our customers and our shareholders and we
strive to adopt goed practices in our corporate
dealings. We aim to deliver shareholder value
aver the medium to leng-term, whilst adopting
aceounting principles that are conservative,
consistent and simple. Our strategy is set out in
the “Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits" section
of this report.

Cur business model remmains consistent in
providing customers with the world's best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time
and at the right price. Qur vision is to become
the elevated, multi-channet platform for our
Sports Retail and Premium Lifestyle fascias. To
this end, we are elevating across all channels to
enhance the customer journey every step of the
way.

The Group's business model is explained in
greater detail below. This includes an outline of
our fascias and retail channels, management
of our property portfolio, our people, our
third-party brand partners, our Group brands
and our centralised support functions.

Business Structure

The Group is structured across five business
segments: UK Sports Retail, Premium Lifestyle,
European Retail, Rest of Worid Retail and
Wholesale & Licensing.

in UK Sports Retail, we offer a complete range
of sporting appore], footwear and equipment
through our predominant fascia,

SPORTS DIRECT.

FOnn th

This segment includes our lifestyle fascia

USC. Qur current forward-locking view is

that the majority of our offering to customers
must inctude leading third-party brands. The
elevation of our sports retail proposition is

key ta ensure we are fully aligned with the
future direction and ambitions of these brand
partners. UX Sports Retail includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all the
Group's sports retail online business (excluding
Bob's Stores, Eastern Mountain Sports and
Sports Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the Group's
Shirebrook campus operations, retail store
operations in Northern Irelend, Evans Cycles
and the GAME UK stores and online businass,

In Premium Lifestyle, we are developing the
Group's premium and luxury offering, which
consists of the Flonnels, Frasers, House of
Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa.com fascias, along
with Cruise and van mildert. We aim to offer
fashion-conscious consurners a luxurious,
multi-brand retail destination with high-end
and en-trend products.

In European Retail, we are evolving our
customer propasition in {ine with the elevation
strategy, while also seeking to increasingly
tailor our proposition to the local merkets in
which we operate. These include the Republic
of Ireland and continental Eurcpe.

In Rest of World Retail, we operate 43 stores
trading as Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain
Sports and we also have 33 stores treding as
SPORTS DIRECT in Malaysia.

In Wholesale & Licensing, the Group retains
a portfolio of world-fameus heritcge

brands, which we offer via our fascias, and
also wholesale and license te partners
internationally. Our own brands include
Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger.
The Group is also proud to have a number of
sporting and entertainment persenalities as
ambassadors, as welt as supporting sporting
events and venues.
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Multi-Channel Elevation Strategy

Our elevation strategy continues to work
towards improving our affering to customers
across all our channels, including marketing,

.social media, product, digital and in-store. This

ajms to enable the Company, along with our
third-party brand partners, to connect with
custorners via o consistent voice across multiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and on the
high street. This strateqy enables our stores ard
aur online cperations to complement

each other,

The websites for each of ocur core fascias in
the UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC.
co.uk Flannels.com, Houseoffraserco.uk and
GAME.couk, hove undergone significant
enhancements to facilitate optimum appeal tc
consumers. Our product offering across these
core fascias, both in-store and online, aims to
create a compelling shopping experience in
key categories that include, amongst others,
football, women's, kids, running,"cycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

We offer product across a range of price points,
inciuding goad, better and best. This enables
us to offer more premium product, which is
net-new to the business. This gives consumers n
greater range of choices for those who wish to
shop far premium products, whilst still retaining
aur original entry-level and continuity product
ofterings. i

Progression Of The Elevated Store Model

The eievation of the Group'’s stores continues
to progress and evolve across fascias and
territories. As reported last year, for Sports
Direct the enhanced concept introducing

an area not just for USC, but also for Game
with o Belong Guming arena and Evans
Cycles was delivered ot the new Portsmouth
store. These combined elements develop the
destination status of our stores catering to

a wider customer hase, The Group has alse
pushed boundaries with the opening of the
game changing Sports Direct flogship store on
London's Oxford Street shottly after financial
year end. The store features world class
design incorporating new activation spaces,

il

Lerg 10696 Reoycled and Garbon Captaed throuah the Wododind [

technology and features including a first in kind
bra fitting studio.

Following the success of the Flannels regional
concept, the Group has developed o new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much larger footprint and
incorporates new categaries for the fascia
including beauty and food & beverage. The
first store to launch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to ope! the coming financiol year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpool

city centre.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton. The store
extends to ¢.34,000 sqft housing beouty,
fashion, lifestyle, kids, home and food &
beverage. This new store is a five example of
the Group's vision for the fascia focusing on
experience, brands and service.

The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
for new stores and with co-operative landlords
can offer a portfolio of new store deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. The Group
1s prepared to sign long term leases for those
landlords willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts,

Investment in Freeheld properties remains an
option to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financial years.

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are included within
the Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review section of this annual report.

na o credats tew Brish o

Qur People

The Group's policy is to treat all our peop e with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group colleagues
work together across ali areas of the business
ond we are proud that Frasers Group plc 1s one
of the first public companies in the UK to make
an elected Workers’ Representotive o Board
member. We welcome all new colleagues into
the Group following the acquisitions in the year
and those who joined us through the Frassrs
Group Elevation Programme.

R ation and R 1

QOur policy is to foster a reward-based culture
that enables our colleagues te share in the
success of the Group. !t is Company policy to
pay above the statutory National Minimum
Waoge, including rates that are obove the
statutory National Living Wage for those
over 25 years of age in the UK. In addition to
this, in current period the Group paid awards
and incentives of approximately £7.0m, from
which both permonent and casual colleagues
benefited,

We are pleased that the Fearless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our vatues, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from E50k right
up to E1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dates.

Workers' Representative

The Frasers Group Workers' Representative
is Caliy Price, @ Manager at our Cardiff Bay

stare. The Warkers' Representative has o unique

insight in to the Group and will speak on behalf
af the Group's workforce at all scheduled
meetings of the Board in order to facilitote a
healthy and constructive dialogue. Due te the
success of the Worker's Representative Board
role we have decided to extend the tenure of
Cally Price for a further few years and thus she
will be proposed for re-election at the

2021 AGM.

Colleague Engagement

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company also has an ongoing dinlogue
with colleagues via an initiative called “Your
Company, Your Voice.' This is a system whereby
colleagues are able to raise any issues of their
cheosing via a number of different routes, both
physical and digital. This feedback is passed

to senior management and the Workers'
Representative for review and appropriate
action.

Our Global Third-Party Brand Partners

We work with our leading third-party gfobol
brand partners and provide significant
prominence for them with our customers across
all our platforms.

Qur third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teams. This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group by enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier relationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory monitoring and replenishment;

and more inspited and harmenious visual
merchandising in-store.
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Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits

Qur purpose is to serve consumers with the world's best brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time and at the right price. Qur strategy is cligned to this
purpose and is based on three interconnected focus pillars — the brands we sell, our digital offering
and our physical stores. These are supported by a set of enablers, focused on our people, systems,
automation and data. By continuing to elevate our performance across all areas of our strategy, we
will achieve our vision: to become the elevated mul

channel platform for sports, premium and luxury.

Stiategy Key achisvemunts in FY21 Priarities ler FY22

Brands Dunng FY25, our gehievements included, Bunng FY22, our prionties ore to

Our custamers wont to have the choice of the "t turther grawing our relatianships with key * Gontinue to buld our successtul third-porty
warld's best brovds, whether in sporting goods or brond cwners, such os Nike for Sports Direct. brand parinerships and lurthes emprove our

tha pramiwm and luxury tagments, Bewng oble ke
ohter thess brands 15 esseatial for our success We

Burberry far Flannels, and Hugo Boss for nccess to thair bast products, ond
House of Fraser, yiving us improved oecass ko = hvest o evolving our owh brands, to ensure

tharelare tocus o bullding excellent refotansiups the praducts eur customers demand,

and truly integrated teamis with key third-porty  *  acreasing our strategic investment in Huga rasponding ta changing styles and fre
brang mwners Bass AG, raflecting aur growing relationship, and conhinue to complement the key th
This powerful brand affering s supperted by our gur canfidance in 1t future and the potential arty bronds we uffer

complementary rangs of awn brands, whiere we foi synergies between vur businesses, and
anert tor obfer unrivelled thawe s ond value, and « nCreasing our sttotegic ovestmunt in luxury
handbog fetaler Mulberry

| Helerence to PANGIDG] Hisks,

sae poga 31
% the Group

Digital DBuring FY2), aur artieverments included Buning FY22, our oricribies ara 1o

Both customers and brangs wont access to digitgl « significantly improving the customer - frarther mvest n Gur o

channels that offer an excelent experience
Thiough our digital elevorion strotegy we

expenence, customer service and the
underlymg platform for our digital busmess,

including our webs ke, Lugtomer service and

ore investing mere thon £100m te elsvate reflecung the crticul impertonce of o streng noyment plotlerms, ang
our propostion acrss our retai chonnels web presence during Covid-19 eelated © Contnue to nvest m digial market
This investnent will buld on gur care digital lockdowns, and use al socik medig, to bot ve soles

founaat.ons, to support future growth . mersdueng our first digital murketing provicde nsigh 0 Cystorm
includes continuing taimpreove the oniine custumer programme, ta suppart hranding and sales
expenence nnd cureluly torgeted investment grawth

Reference to Mrncipn! Risks,
sea puge 31

gagernent and data We are aiso Investing L
digital markating o drive sules growth

Physical During FY21, ow ocmevernents il uded. During FY22, out prionties are ta

The centnual elevation of aur ohysical store estate » cantinuing to open new canceck stores, . refl out new elevated stares, nriuding new
s 0 fundameantal part of our strategy 1o mak wnetuding u flagship mulh fostie offering cancapts such as feod ond beverage and
themn destinatens customars want 1 come ta and 1 Partsmeyth ond @ new Frasers storm beouly for Flannels,

where brand owners wunt thews products ta be Wolverhampton + develop the lotest terations of our elevarsdt

seen We de this by ralling out elevated stares ang  +
by elevating axishing stares Ta drive &f
n running our store astete, we will continue te
develap cur ocperohing madel und introduce new <
stara technology. We will plso consider strategie
acquisihons that add attractive o

cunty investng in our lg,

Spons Steve oncepts,

opened to great occlaim in Jung 2021, & stare pertfche, and

9 the biode and ossets of BW Spaits, * selectively open slevated stores in Eurcue
complemanting our exsting gym and fitness with a fous on the Spors Drect and USC
tions to the, club portla o fascios

stare estote .
Reference 1o Prncinal Risks
sue poge 31

Dwect state an Oxford Strest, LGndon which =+ Rrogress the ongang elevation of cur mxisting

Enablen Duning FY2), our uchievements incluclec) Dunng FY22, aur prortees ara ta

We need to hove tolented pecple who will < malng sigaihcont progress with how we .
2nable us ta succeed, supporled by traiming that
empowers them 1o achweve 1o attract new talenr,

our aur new perform: rev-aws 0LIDSS
atteact, engoye ond develop talaot, meludang busnwss, go live with the L M5, ond recrui
dehining aur Core vaiues, welcoming 7 ext intuke for the Elevanion Pregramme,
new paople in our carmmerciol department . Conbinue 1o ncledase tutomation, 16 sunpart
through the Frasers Group Elevabon fulfiiment in owr g
Programme, introduting the Fearless restorking out physicol stares o
MO0 bonus scheme nnd Fearless Focus effectively us possible.

performonee reviews, and developing anew = continye orboarding prackicts Bite

drve Engagement with eusting colleagues.
We will olso cont west In our systems and
outomationto enhdnce effciercy, ond in auf date

copabilities, so we can moke dato-driven decisions learning management systern [LMS), - copture custamer data ond nsights
wherever possible « further wvesting m outemation, i porticular arew
1o improve fulfiment far our digital busiess, marketing and tre roll ot of our kyoity
and Hragramme
. enhancing duta shanng wih suppbers
through elactronic data interchange (EDI), Relerence ro Princisal Risks,
improving manogemant of stock and <ee page 3

streamiining supplies payment grocesses

it

T

Key Performance Indicators

The Board manages the Group's performance by reviewing a number of key performance indicators
{KPls). The KPIs are discussed in this Chief Executive's Report and Business Review, the Financia!
Review, the Environment section and the "Our People” section. The table below summarises the
Group's KPls. . -

S2eokr andrd 52 woeks smied 53 wanks ended
25 Apsil 2620 26 April 2020 28 April 2019
Group revanur £1625 Im £3957 4m £3,401 9m
Underlying EBIT0A ! £340 8m £307 1m £2878m
Group gross nargin . 427% 42 0% A7 4%
Underlying basw edftvigs per share 11705l 63p o
Lns ng fres cash tlow £47278m £2631m [¥LEET
Net datil £eabam ra66 £378.5m
NON-FINANCIAL KPIS
Number of retail stores’ 1534 B8
Worktarce tushover M 28 6% 230%
Packeging reyging 12,156 tonnzs 12,807 tornes
athod For caledaling undertying FBITDA 15 set out in Note 4 und the Glossary
wthod dor calculating undertying bosic earimigs Ber shore 1s set out i Note 15
fre casn flow rs dal nderiying &B1F3A plus realised

e Finenon! Review

aw
Exchiding ussaciotes ond stores in the Baltic stetes thot trade under faseras ather thon SPORTLAND or SPORTSDIRECTcam and other miche
teaseios Inciudes GAME and Sofo cam cencassions

dbootd and plostie recyeling

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying basic EPS and underlying free cash
Fiow provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance has been measured internaily.
They are not recognised profit measures under
IFRS and may hot be directly comparable with
"adjusted” performance measures used by other
compuanies. See Glossary for further information - Our understonding from a number of
on the Groug's Alternative Performance financial sectors, including the banking
Measures. secter, is that IFR516 is becaming an
increasingly important considerotion.

Management has taken this decision for the
following reasons:

- With the continued significant investment
in and rolt out of our etevation strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Board and
aur stakehaolders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

Management will, from FY22, change our
main reporting, KPI from underlying EBITDA to - With this new measure, we are trying
adjusted profit before tax (PBT). From FY22, to align with the Financial Reporting

the Group will therefore no longer report Council's thematic standpeint with regard
to ‘alternative performance measures’ s
far as possible, whilst retaining a degree
of interpretation given that factors
outside of our control, such as FX and
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly menths in advance.

Adjusted PBT for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021 was a toss of £53.7m. See Glossary for
recanciliation to reported PBT.

underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT is reported
profit before tax less the effects of exceptional
items, unhedged foreign exchonge {FX), gains
and losses on strategic investments and share
scheme charges,
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Group revenue

The Board considers that this measurement is o
key indicator of the Group's growth.

Underying EBITDA

Undertying EBITDA shows how well the Group s
managing its trading and operational efficiency
and therefore the overall trading performance
of the Group.

Group gross margin

The Beard considers that this measurement is g
key indicator of the Group's troding profitability.

Undaerlying basic garnings per share {EPS)

Underlying basic EPS is a measure of adjusted
total sharehalder return and ultimately an
indicator te our shareholders of the success of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cosh flow

Underlying free cash flow is considered an
inportant indicator for the Business of the
cash available for investment in the elevation
strategy.

Met debt

Net debt is an indicator of both the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy and its
covenant headroom which is a key component
of the Group's going concern considerations.

Number of retnil stores

The Board considers that this measure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. The Group's

e evation strategy is replacing older stores and
often this can result in the closure of two or
three stores to be replaced by one larger new
ganerakion thore,

Workforce turnover

The Board considers that this measure is g key
indicator of the contentment of our people. For
more details refer to the retention section of the
“Cur People” section of this report.

13

Packuging recycling

The Board considers that this measurement is
a key indicator of our impact and commitment
to the best environmental practices. For mare
details refer to the envirenment section of

this report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT AND

BUSINESS REVIEW

Parformance Overview

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,625.3m
in the year. UK Sports Retail decreased by
10.7% to £1,968.5m, Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% ond European Retail
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152.7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decreased by 4.3%.

m__.oc.n grass margin in the year was consistent

- with the prior year with a small increase of

20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK

" - Sports Retail margin increased 110 basis points

to 42.1% [FY20: 41.0%)] largely due to the
continually improving product mix. Premium
Lifestyle's gross margin decreased by 340 basis
points from 48.3% to 44.9% largely due to a
reduction in concession sales within House of
Fraser as a percentage of total sales which
have a higher gross maergin. Eurepean Retait
gross margin increased 60 basis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continually
improving product mix, Rest of Warld Retail -
margin decreased 250 basis points from 44.4%
to 41.9%, largely due to the lower margin rate
in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Wholesale
& Licensing gross margin increased 310 basis
points to 44.0% (FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholasale.

Group operating costs decreased by 157% to
£1,140.0m {FY20: £1,353.0m), largely driven by
savings in store costs during the lockdowns as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, Government
support schemes such as CJRS {Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) and business rates relief
particubarly in House of Fraser. The amount
received by the Group in the period in regard
to the CJRS (or equivalent where received

in non-UK territories) was approx. £80m. B
The amount of business rates relief received

by the Group in the period [or equivalent
where received in non-UK territories) was
approx. £97.5m. See the Financial Review

Captued through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new Bntish woodland «across the UK

for a reconciliation of Group operating costs
to selling, distribution and administrative
expenses,

As o result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
year was up 22.4% to £390.8m [FY20: £302. .__.a
Excluding acquisitions and on a currency
neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased
16.9%. UK Sports Retail underlying EBITDA
was £279.2m up from £227.4m in FY20, while
Premium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
£53.9m, up from £4.5m in FY20. European
Retail underlying EBITDA was £4.7m, down from
E51.8m in FY20, Rest of World Retail underlying
EBITDA was £25.6m, up from a loss of £6.8m

in FY20 and Wholesale & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased to £28.0m from £25.2m.

There were property related impairments in
the period totalling £317.0m (FY20: £122.6m),
inctuding £168.2m in relotion to right of use
assets (FY20: £97.8m), £84.4m in relation to
freehold land and buildings (FY20: £nil), £63.8m
of other property, plant and equipment (FY20:
£24.8m) ond £0.6m of investment properties
Property related impairments have
been recognised following a re-assessment of
future expected cash flows largely driven by

- -anticipated future lockdowns as a result of the

Covid-19 pandemic, the change in consumer
behaviour in moving from physical to online
shopping, the impact of Direct-Te-Consumer
and increasing costs as a result of Brexit.
Further details including sensitivity u:o_<m_m is
included s_wr_: Note 2.

Umuan_on_o: and amortisation charges have
increased by 11.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3m)
largely due to an increase in freehold land and
buildings depreciation, following the change in
useful economic life estimate in the period. See
accounting policies for further details.
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Group underlying profit before tax ¥ decreased
to £5.8m (FY20: £117.4m), largely due to the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including

the closure of retail stores, the associated
provisioning and impairment and depreciation
and amortisotion charges. Underlying basic £PS
for the year decreased by 204.5% to a foss of
17.0p {FY20: profit of 16.2p).

Within other comprehensive income, the Group's
hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m [FY20:
decreased by £18.7m) as a rasuit of the fair value
movements in the period. With regard to the
Group's lang-term financial assets, fair value
mavements have resulted in @ gain of £77.3m
{FY20: loss of £19.7m} in the period.

The Group generated free cash flow during

the year of £427.8m, up from £263.7m in the
prier period, Net debt decreased by £17.1m te
£248.9m at period end. Spend on acauisitions
and capex, including Wigan Robin Retail Park
and warehouse automation, was offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core
business, Net debt currently stands at 0.5 times
reported EBITDA (FY20: 0.7 times).

4 Underlying profit befara taxaban excludes the affects of IFRS 16,
rachised forgign exchange gouns £ logses in sall

adrministrolian costs, exceptionol items, and the profit / loss on
ispastl of subsididres, stratedic vestants ard propesties.

FRASERS GROUP

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

UK Sports Retait

The UK Sports Retail segment includes all of the Group's sports retail and USC store operations in the
UK (including Northern treland), all of the Group's sports online businesses [excluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sparts, Baltics and Malaysta), the Group's gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
online operctiens and the Group’s Shirebrook campus cperations. UK Sports Retail is the main driver
of the Group and accounts for 54.3% (FY20: 55.7%) of Group revenue.

31wenks d S1wenks apded

5 April 2021 24 April 2020

fem) lem)

LK Spaets Reted Revenas 19685 24033
«ost of Sales 113421 13004
Grass Profit 6293 . 9037
Gross Maorgin % 421 Mo

Revenue decreased 10.7% to £1968.5m. Excluding acquisitions, revenue fell 14.6%. This was largely
due to the temporary store closurss in the UK caused by the Covid-19 pondemic, particlly offset by
growth in our online business and pent up demand on store recpening.

UK Sports Retail gross margin increosed to 42.1% {FY20: 41.0%), largely due to the continuatly
improving product mix. Excluding acq| ns gross margin increased to 45.0% (FY20: 43.5%).

Operoting expenses decreased by 16.8% to £548.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
the store closure periods as o result of the Covid-19 pandenic. Excluding ocquisitions, operating
expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by sovings in store costs and Government support
schemnes during lockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Underiying EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was £279.2m [FY20: £227 4m), an increase of 22.8% for the
year, largely due to the strong reopening of stores after lockdowns, growth in our online business and
improved operating efficiencies.

UK Sports Retail Store Portfolie!®

15 April 2221 28 Aprd 2030

&n 394 167
scotland EL) 37
Wales £l L
Northern Hetand 7 i
sl f Man j ' 3
USC 2% 2
Evars Cpeles 4B 50
GAME UK - 247 241
TOTAL R Ll %9
Opengtl 91 25
Clenerl . 198} 1533
& 56

appiox 6 5m approx § dm

Tublz excludes the Group's standolone Gyms.
hyde 7 Loncessians (Y20, 31 operating within Sports Cicec t fasoa stores andd does rat imcieds BELORG arenms.
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Premium Lifestyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Juck Wills and Sofa.com
fascia stores and correspending web sales.

52 washn snded 52 weeks endad

2 April 2011 26 April 2020

[3.]] 12m)

Gross Transachion Vaiue {GTV] " 68,1 . 5031
Prermum Litestyle Ravenue 1356 7220
Cost of sales 1405 3} (3234
Grasy Profit 3103 3486
Gross Moargin % 449 483

Nt GTV being gross sales net af VAT, discounts and returns and g'oss soius where the Group octs as agent

Premium Lifestyle sales increased by 1.9% to £735.6m [FY20: £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased web sales. Excluding acquisitions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestyle
gross margin for the year decreased by 340 basis points to 44.9% (FY20: 48.3%) largely due o
reduction in concession sales within House of Fraser as a percentage of total sales which have a
higher gross margin.

Fremium Lifestyle operating costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.1m (FY20: £344.1m) largely driven

by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as o result of the Covid-19 pandemic and

Government support schemes such as business rates relief particularly in House of Fraser. As a result,
. underlying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, kargely due to Flannels store

openings, growth in our online business, continued operating efficiencies and business rates relief

particularly in House of Fraser.

Pramium Lifestyle Store Portfolio

25 Apsil 2021 26 Apdl 1030
Flannals 4 n
Cruise 5 5
von mildent 1 1
Jock wills 60 it
Hause af Fraser / Frosers 43 48
Solacom™ 24 il
18Montrose 3
Garment Quarter 1
Payrhe 1
oy as
Qpened 12 o
Arguired 5 m
Cloyed 1k 43
Araa [sq ft) approx 4 Im apprax 45m

m Soba com slore numbers include 17 conressions [FY20, 12 concessions] aperagpg within House of Fraser tascia stares.

European Retuail

The European Retail division inciudes the Group's sports retail store management and operations
in Europe, including the Group's European distribution centres in Belgium and Austria, stores and

correspending web business in the Baltic regions and GAME Spain stores and corresponding web
business.

SIwasksonded 52 wirkks #hidud

15 April 1011 26 April 31010

my . fEmi

European Retail Revarnue £157 6977
Cost of Saies 1375.5) 1429 81
Gross P 239.7 2674
Gross Proit % 390 384

Revenue decreased 11.8% to £615.2m. On o currency neutral basis and excluding acquisitions,
Eurepean Retail revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

Eurcpean Retail gress margin increased to 39.0% (FY20: 38.4%] largely due to the continucily
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margin is ug 100 basis
points to 46,3%.

Operating expenses increased by 10,.2% to £238.1m (FY20: £216.1m}. Excluding ocquisitions and on a
currency neutral basis operating costs increased by 9.3% largely due to property related provisions
including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a result, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.1%
to £4.1m.

All of the following stores are operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Estonia,
Latvia and Lithuania where the Group owns 60.0%.

led on Steinbeis 100% Racyched and Carben Captured throuah the Woodiand Trust. heling o creats new British woodland across tha UK
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Europeon Retail Store Portfolio ©

25 April 2021

26 Apil 2020

GAME Spain

138

261

Repubhc of reland *

39

Belgum

Estoria

Austria

Portugat

[

Lithuppier!

Polond

Slovenin

Caech Republic

Hungary

Cyprus

Haltand

Slovokia

Fronce

Germary

Lusembourg

Span

Icminnd

TOTAL

Cpaned

Clased

ita|

Acquiredt

(381

265

Area (saft)

opprox 3 6m

Approx_4dm

o Includes oty ttores with SPORTSDIREC T.com and SPORTLAND fascias
2 Excluding Heatons fascin stares

" Panted on Stenbeis 100% Aeeyated a

Larbon Gapturad thron

the Woa

il Trost.

Rest Of World Retail

Rest of World Retail includes sports steres in Moloysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascig,
retail stores in the US trading under Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain Sports and their online
businesses. In Malaysia the Group has 33 stores which are 51.0% owned by the Group.

52 waahy andad 51 weaks sndud

25 April 2021 4 April 2010

|im] {Em)

Rest of Warld Revanue 1527 1242
Cost of sales 188 7} {569]
Gross Profit 640 373
Gross Margn % ng 442

Rest of World Retail sales were £152.7m for the year, Gross morgin wos 41.9%, down from 44.4%

.in the prior yeor, largely due to the lower maorgin rate in the US business which makes up & larger

proportion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA was £25.6m, from a loss of £6.8m in FY20. This
was largely due to operating efficiencies in the US business, -

Rest of World Retail Store Portfolio

28 ApHr a0y 36 Aprll 2020

Maloysia EEl El)
Rab's Stores b4 b
Eustern Mountomn Sports 2 an
% 3

| appine 13m approx 13m

Wholesale & Licensing

The partfolio of Group brands includes a wide variety of world-famous sport and lifestyle bronds.
The Group's Sports Retail division selis products under these bronds in its stores, ond the Wholesole
& Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing activities. The Wholesale

& Licensing division continues to sponsor a variety of prestigious events and retains a variety of
globally recognised celebrities and sporting professionals as brand ambassadors.

52 waek 52 wanls ended
2% April 2021 26 April 2020

{Em) I£m)

Wholaste s )
Licersing e 25a
Tatal Whotsale & Likanting Ravanue ) 1513 1603
Cost o Saivs 185 81 a7t
Gross Proht 675 655
Gross Morgin % 441 409

Whoclesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% to £153.3m [FY20: £160.2m).

Wholesale revenues were down 2.2% to £131.5m {FY20: £134.4m), due te reductions in UK wholesale
activity offset by an increase in the US, Total gross margin increased by 320 basis points to 44.1%
{FY20: 40.9%). Wholesale gross margins increased 430 bosis points to 33.6% (FY20: 29.5%), largely
due to UK wholesale.

Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to £21.8m (FY20: £25.8m).

QOperating costs decreased by 2.2% to £39.4m (FY20: £40.3m). As a result, underlying EBITDA
increased by 111% to £28.0m (FY20: £25.2m).
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PROPERTY REVIEW

The store elevation program remains o key
focus point for the Group across all fascias and
territories, For Sports Direct, the new stores
centinue te push boundaries as demonstrated
by the opening of the new Portsmouth Sports
Direct store incorporating a USC, Evans and
Game, as well as a Belong gaming arena.
Further to this, shortly after financial year end
the newly refurbished London, Oxford Street
fiagship opened featuring world class design
incorporating new activation spaces, technology
and features including a first in kind bra fitting
studio. In Europe, the portfolio of six Toys R Us
properties acquired during FY20 in Spain have
now been developed lounching as elevated
Sports Direct stores in the same format as the
UK.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton, ancther
example of the continued store elevation
pragramme. The opening of such stores
demonstrates the Group's commitment to

ohysical retail and ability to create gernwine retail

destinations.

rlannels remains an important fascia for the
Group. The key focus has been the development
of the Regional Flagship concept introducing
new categories for the fascia such as beauty,
food & beverage and active. Terms have

been agreed to launch this new concept at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre which is set to
open in the coming financial year. Fusther sites
for this concept are also due to open at Fosse
Park in Leicester and Liverpool city centre.

Another notable event in FY21 was the
acquisition of 42 DW Stores. The acquisition
enhanced the Group's gym and UK Sports Retcil
estate. A refurbishment and rebranding exercis:
commenced shortly after acquisition and will
continue into the coming financial year.

The primary objective for the estate continues
to be the transition to turnover based rents.
“he Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
and with co-operative landlords can offer a
portfolio of new store deals providing a variety

17
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of retail offerings. The Group is prepared to sign
long term leases for those landlords willing to
co-invest in the elevated store concepts.

With leasehold activity across the Group
expected to increase over the coming year, the
same is likety to apply with freehold acquisitions
as we capitalise on favouruble market conditions
coupled with the Group's growing requirement
for retail space.

UK RETAIL STORE PORTFOLIO

Sports Stores in the UK {including
Northern Ireland):

+ The Group is currently operating from 394
stores in Englond, 39 in Scotland, 31 in Wales
and 21in Northern lreland. There were 14
openings and 20 ¢losures for Sports Direct
fascia stores over the period. 42 stores were
acquired as part of the acquisition of DW
Sports comprising a number of ‘combined'
sites with retail and leisure. Six of the store

closures were sites acquired as part of this -

acquisition where agreements could not

be reached with londlerds resulting in 33
‘combined' and 3 stand-alene Sports Direct
stores as additions in the period. 13 of the
remaining 14 closures occurred due to
relocations into elevated multi-fascia stores.

+  Noteworthy openings include Portsmouth,
Birmingham Fort, Scunthorpe and Wrexham
where existing Sports Direct stores were
closed to relocate into an elevated multi-
format store.

+  All new store openings include a USC lifestyle
offering as part of the elevated store model
across all formats. As mentioned previously,
beth a GAME ond Evans Cycles concept has
been developed to form part of the elevated
Sports Direct format in selected locations.
Over the coming financial period there wilt
be o push towards more multi-fascia store
openings incorporating each of these fascias.

‘ Evans Cycles

¢+ There are currently 48 Evans Cycle stores
operating, a reduction of two stores over
the period. During F¥21 the Evans Cycles
concept was first introduced as a store-in-
store area in cur latest Portsmouth multi-
fascia store alongside Speorts Direct, USC,
Game & Belong. This concept will continue
to be developed to roil out into selected
future store openings.

GAME UK

¢+ Over the pericd, the relocation programme
moving Gome into selected Sports Direct
stores was acceterated. Coupled with the
new Sports Direct store openings featuring
an area for Game, the overall number of
stores for the UK estate increased to 247
having closed 67 and opening 72 {net
increase of 5 stores). .

« The Belong gaming drenas are building
their presence across the UK featuring in a
numbér of the new Sports Direct openings
such as Portsmouth.

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE STORE
PORTFOLIO

Flonnels, Cruise and Yan Mildert

«  Across Flannels, Cruise and van mildert
during FY21there were 6 openings and 2
closures, resulting in a net increase of 4
stores. Combining these fascias, the total
estate amounts to 47 stores.

+  Key openings for Flannels include Rushden
Lakes, Kingston Upon Thames and
Wolverhampton. The Glasgow Cruise
store was also extensively refurbished and
expanded.

+ A major area of development has been
the Flannels Regional Flagship concept,
incorporating new cqgtegories such as
beauty, food & beverage and active. The
first regional flagship to apen will be
Flannels Meadowhall which will extend
to approximately 55,000 sqft with further
lecations to follow over the coming financial
year including Fosse Park in Leicester and
Liverpool city centre.

st hielping to create new Brbish woodland across the UK

House of Fraser

At the end of FY21 there were 43 House of
Fraser stores trading, a net decrease of 5
stores after 6 closures and 1 opening.

A key highlight was the delivery of the new
‘Frasers’ store concept at Wolverhampton.
This new store showcases the elevated
format and what can be provided upon
agreeing appropriate new long term lease
deals.

Much of the estate continues to remain

on shott term flexible leases. Whilst
negotiations are ongoing to transition stores
to long term leases it is anticipated thot
there will be further closures, particularly

as business rates come back into effect in
FY22.

However following the demise of major
high street retail chains we envisage new
fecation opportunities to come o fruition
over the coming financiat period, albeit
again punitive business rates at many of
these focations put the viabitity of deing
these Jease deals in doubt,

Jock Wills

Qver FY21 there were 7 store closures and no
openings reducing the estate to 60 stores.
We continue to negotiate with landlords to
move to long term leases.

A new store concept is under development
with the ambition to open in new key
markets across the UK. The new concept is
intended to be finalised over FY22.

Forecast Openings UK FY22

Over FY21, despite the challenges faced
relating to the Covid-19 pandemic the
Group continued the elevated store roll

out programme. For the coming financial
year the Group's ambition is to increase
the new store activity across fascias, with

a particular focus on Sports Rirect and
Flannels, Key new stores include the new
Flannels Regional Flagships along with new
Sports Direct flagships such as Birmingham
city centre, However, it should be noted that
program risk remains relating to factors
linked to the Covid-19 pandemic.
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EUROPEAN RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO
Republic of Ireland [ROI}

Over FY21the remaining Heatons store
conversions to include Sports Direct were
completed.

There was one opening in the year, with 3¢
stores at the peried end. Shortly after the
year end a new store in Galway opened, a
first for the Group in that market.

The intention for the coming financial yeor
is to increase the store estate across RO,
this has been bolstered by the increasing
number of new location oppartunities now
being presented, In certain locations ather
Group fascias not currently trading in the
ROl are being considered.

Continental Europe

18
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The Group continues ta operate sports
stores in 18 countries in continental Europe.

211 Sports retail stores in Europe, exciuding
Republic of Ireland {plus 26 nen-core,
speciality and outlets).

Total sq.ft. of approximately 2.7m of
all sports fascias in Europe (including
Sportlang, Lillywhites, Sportsworld etc),

Closed 25 GAME stores in Spain during the
period as part of rationalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 stores.

Twelve openings in four different countries,
three of which were relocations.

10 closures in seven different countries with
a mixture of closing non-performing stores
and closures linked to relocations. The 1
Austrian store closure was due to o sale of
our freehold property in Salzburg.

During the period 8 Sports Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the period totalling 117,165 sq ft of retail
space. 5 of these were freeholds purchased
in FY20 that have been refurbished and
opened as elevoted Sports Direct stores,

A further freehold store opened in Malaga
shortly after FY21.

As is the case in the UK, the Group Is firmly
committed to the rollout of elevated stores
across Europe, Due to the aecelerated shift
to online experienced across Europe duse to
the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and a
number of retailers reducing their portfolio
size. The Group believes it can capitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently
expand our physical estate, focusing on
capital city and fiagship opportunities.

REST OF WORLD RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

33 stores in Malaysia with three openings
and one closure in FYZ1. The closure was a
Tesco based store leaving us with three as
we continue to relocate our storas to higher
performance locations.

The Malaysian elevation and expansion
drive continues, with 2 new elevated stores
opened in the period. We now have a total
of seven elevated stores in the region in line
with UK standards and four stores with o
USC retoil area.

As a major milestone our flagship ASEAN
HG opened in FY21 in the Sunway Pyramid
shapping centre with the odjoining retail
store opening shertly.

43 stores in the USA, following two closures
and one opening in FY21,

e Wor

Freehold / Long L hold Property P

QOver FY21 a total of 14 properties were
acquired across the UK totalling £84.3m,
The most significant purchase was Robin
Retail Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
properties were acquired in Europe or RoW.

Disposat of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group. During the
peniod 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 disposals completed in the EU.

For the upcoming financial period it is
anticipated that there will be an increase
in acquisition activity as we copitalise on
favourable market conditions coupled with
the groups growing requirement for retail
space. Disposals will continue as has been
the case in previous financial years.

Mike Ashley

Chief Executive

5 August 2021
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Summary Of Results
52 waekt SR wauhs wudud
5 April 201 16 Apell 2020
- Em) {Em)
Reverue 16253 39574
Reported ERITDA 5365 5510
Underlying EBITDA 3pay 3021
Reported profit belore tax gy 1435
Underlying profit befors tax 58 n4
£arrangs pur shure [ERS) b Pence per share Panca per shure
Heported basic ES 116 5) W5
Undedyng hasic EPS 1170 162

EBITDA is earnings before investment income and investment costs, finance income and finance
zosts, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impcirment. It includes the Group’s share of losses from
asseciated undertakings and joint ventures. Underlying EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA before the
=ffects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange geins / tosses in selling and administration costs, profit /
oss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic investments and properties.

Foreign Exchange And Treusury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internationally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations on currency cash flows
in various ways, These includé purchasing
inventory frem overseas suppliers, making
sales in currencies other than GBP and holding
overseas assets in other currencies. The Board
mitigate the cash flow risks associated with
these fluctuations with the careful use of
currency hedging using forward contracts and
ather derivetive financial instruments.

The Group uses forword contracts that qualify
for hedge accounting in two main ways - "o
hedge highly probable EUR sales income and

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a
level of certainty into the Group's planning and
forecasting process. Management has reviewed
detailed forecasts and the growth assumptions
within them and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly prabable
forecast transactions,

As at 25 April 2021 and os detailed in note 29¢
the Group had the following forward contracts
that qualified for hedge accounting under

IFRS 9 Financial instruments, meaning that
fluctuations in the value of the contracts before
meturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
through Other Comprehensive Income. After
maturity, the sales and purchases are then
valued at the hedge rate.

Curreney Hedging ogaimt Curtuncy vabhus Timing Restan
UsSD/GBP USE mventary purchoses USE 720m FY22 - FY23 - 136 - 141
USD/EUR USO inventory purrhases USD 120 FY22 FYia ) 121-131
EUR / GBP Euro sales EUR 240im jazs) 05g

The Group also uses currency options, swaps and spots for more flexibility against cash flows
that are less than highly probable and therefore do not quaiify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financial Instruments. The fair value movements before maturity are recognised in the Inceme

Group Operating Costs
i 4 ' Statement.
$3 weehs snded 52 weeks anded ) )
5 Apcih 203 26 Apel 3020 The Group has the following currency options and unhedged forwards:
tm m
Group operoting costs 1140 0 135340 Currancy Kxpacted ure Currency valus Timing Rates
Depreciation and omartisation 2154 1453 EUR/GRP Euro sales EUR 380m FY23 09
inangrbla | v . 53 A . N : s . )
,”xn“,“.huﬂw___h“”; po e The Group is proactive in managing its currency Given the potential impact of commodity prices
il . .

requirements. The Treasury team works closely on raw material costs, the Group may hedge
IFAS 16 dispasal end modilication/rermaasurement of [wase lhibties 214 [EE] T o . h !
1£RS. 16 reversal of rant sxpanse i h2rn 13751 with senior management to understand the certain input costs, including cotton, crude oil

, ) .

|FRS 16 revarsal of anerous [ease provis A 66 155l Group's plens and *oﬂmocmnm. azw_ discusses and and electricity.
Redlised FX lassfgany 263 2ag) understands appropriate financial products
Aperating imcame 368 325 with various financial institutions, including
SELLING, DISTRIBUTICN AND ADMINISTRATION COSTE e 0T those within the Group Revolving Credit

Group operating costs for the purposes of management reporting:

i.  Excludes depreciotion, amortisation and im3airments of property, plant and equipment,
intangible ossets and realised FX gains and losses; and

il. Includes other operating income.

19

Facility {RCF), This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products to align
with the Group's strategy.

Regular reviews of the hedging performance
are performed by the Treasury team alengside
senior management to ensure the continued
appropriateness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, exther implemerting
additional strotegies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with cur
financial institution partners.

sl woudland across the LR
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Tauxotion

The effective tax rate on profit before tax in FY21 was 1017.6% [FY20: 29.6%). This reflects the impact
of the increase in property impairments and disallowable depreciation. -

Earnings R
52 weake anded 82 waahs andud Change %]
2% Apri 2031 24 April 2820
Hepurted EPS {Basich i) 185 189 2|
Undudymng EPS [Basic] '™ 7ot 162 #0249
Weightad avarage number ol shares [actual) 5019552681 505.826,850
Basic earnings per share (EPS} is calculated by Strategic Investmenty

dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial peried. Shares held in Treasury and
the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from
this figure.

"The underlying basic EFS reflects the undertying performance

of the business compared with the poar penad end it calculated

using the weighted average number of shares, Itis not o recagnised

profit measure under FFRS und may not be directly comporabla with

"adjusted” performonce medsures used by ather companies Furtber
derails can be found 1n the Glassary

Dividends

The Board has decided not to pay a final
dividend in relation to FY21 (FY20 £nil).

The Board remains of the opinion that it is

in the best interests of the Group and its
shareholders to preserve financial flexibifity and
facilitate future investments and other growth
opportunities. The payment of dividends
remains under review.

Capital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
{excluding IFRS 16) amounted to £219 4m (FY20:
£323.5m), which included £84.3m on freehold
properties (FY20: E177.2m) and £48.5m on
warehouse automation (FY20: £31.1m),

20

The Group continues to hold various strategic
investments as detailed in Note 20. In addition
the Group also helds indirect strategic
investments within contracts for difference and
options.

The fair values of the contracts for difference
and options are racognised in Derivative
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balance Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the income Stotement.

On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired

the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed to

be the fair value of the consideration. The
acquisition complements the Group's existing
gym and fithess club portfolio and is consistent
with the Group’s elevation strategy. Goodwi
represents the premium associated with
advantageous site locations, potential growth
opportunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforce. The fair value
adjustment to praperty, plant and equipment
relates to the management's assessment of the
price that weuld be paid for the acquired ossets
in an arderly transaction between market
participants at the acquisition date. The leases
were acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease fiability
has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share copital of Psyche Haldings Limited,

the entire share copital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade ond cssets of 18 Montrose for
consideration of £2.7m. These acquisitions
wili provide increased preduct offerings in

i

o throtni the Wo

the Premium Lifestyle division. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant ond equipment
relates to the recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.

Reluted Parties

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, a company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who
is @ member of key management personnel
as per |AS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World
for both our iarger format stores and our
combined retail and gym units. It also provides
advice to the Company's in-house property
team in relation to existing sites in the UK,
Europe and Rest of the World.

In the year all properties are assessed. These
that are considered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have compieted .
development and be eligible for review at the
year-end are assessed ond if required valued by
an independent valuer who confirms the value
created by MM Prop Consultancy Limited. The
Groug's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the value created and
have full discretion to agpreve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of
the value created. There is a current pipeline of

The analysis of net debt at 25 April 2021 and ot 26 April 2020 was as follows:

properties that may be eligible to be assessed
both positively and negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years.

In the current year £2 5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through cantract exchange or completion

of sale {FY20 - £nil provided and £nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consultency Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered into an
agreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and controlled by Michael
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M_PM Elevation Limited wili be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation te the provision of the
elevation strategy services.

Other retoted parties are disclesed in note 34,
Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £117.1m from £366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021, Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
decreased to £11.2m [FY20: £17.8m) largely due
to reduced usage of the RCF in the period.

28 April 2029 34 Aprll 2020
{tmp {om) "
4570 5320
’ (7059 (yoam
NET DERT (B9} 1384.0)

The Group's Working Capital Facility is £913.5m {(FY20: £913.5m). it is available until November
2021 and is not secured against any of the Group's assets. £847.5m of the facility is due to expire in

Novermber 2022

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board rermains
comfortable with the Group's available headroom. Note: due to the timing of payrell and supplier
payments, net defst at calendar periad end 30 April 2021 was approximately £350.0m (FY20:

approximately £408.0m).

aned e roas e UK




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

CASHFLOW

Total movement is as follows:

52 waske saded 52 weakts anded
28 Al 201 26 April 1010

" my

Receivables includes a £138.3m reimbursement asset in relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK
tox enquiries (FY20: £118.3m) and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments {FY20: £71.3m) with the increase mainly relating to Hugo Boss.

Provisions have increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic.

Linderh EBITOA avoH 3021 .
Rualisud FX (luss] / guin 1263) 3 Payables have increased largely due to rent payments under negotiation as a resutt of the Covid13
Tuxes paid 155 3) {d# 5] uo:amgmn. '
Mavermer wentary 993 1120 8]
Working capital and ather 211 ys§
UNDERLYING FREE CASH FLOW AFTER WORKING CAPITAL AITE 2611 no: ‘>z< w>;znm m:mm-—-
L Significant balance sheet items are shown below:
Furchase of own shares lah 1439
Dwdend paid to non-controling nterast 4] 25 Apedl 2021 26 April 1030
Purchase of subsldares, get of casl acquired 13941 {73 {Em) . lemi
Purchase ot lstad mvestiments ey (248 Investments 14949 12358
Purchase of ,]_nﬁw,—zum "M Debtors 166 & 868
FBurchose of ossorintes - 1S &) Craditars omounts falmg due sathit one yeor 1604 0 19015]
Procasds on disposal of mvestments and dunvat 551 a9 . ) ) . . ) .
F—— g_”,_;..“, - _“aﬂ,zr, S - Investments relates to investments in subsidiaries and long-term financial assets. The majority of the
- increase relates to additions due to a reorganisation of our US businesses and purchases of physical

z 3 phy:

at copitol expenditure 1198 8] H7n 9! h in Mulb G I dH B AG
Exchange moveinent on cash bolonces 153) 50 shares in u mﬂ—.(. HOCU —u can CDQ 055 .

5 5 PO . . . .

_“Es_:_":::ﬂﬂq_fnﬂa%_mn - — . %3 ...m The majority of the movement in debtors relates to an increose in collaterol to cover margin

il i 1 3] . . . . n -

e L requirements for derivative transactions held with counterparties,
DECREASE IN NEY DEBT 71 12.5

W This tuble excludes the wnpact of IFRS18 Creditors relates to amounts owed to Group undertakings, the decrease relates to subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Significant balance sheet items are shown below:

18 April 2021 26 Aprdl 2010

{£my [£m)

Property, plunt und equipment 9152 104149
Right at uss assets 2457 3057
Long-term finaneial asets 2633 618
Ioveritory 10966 10981
Tradle and other racaivables 5465 4142
Hiovisians (38612) {3360|
Trade ond gther payables [646 1) {607 51
Leass liobillbies i (422 1 16241

The majority of the decrease in property, plant and equipment relates to the impairments of freehold
and and building and plant and equipment due to the Covid-19 pondemic and factors such as
hanges in consumer behaviour.

'FRS 16 right of use assets have decreased largely due to impairments. Lease liabilities have
ncreased largely due to remeasurements during the period.

-ong-term financial assets have increased during the period due ta the additions of Hugo Boss AG
and Mulberry Group plc.

‘nventory has decreased largely due to a reduction in inventories held within the Rest of World
segment.
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dividends declared during the period,

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer

§ August 2021
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table below sets out where the information required by sections 414CA and 414CE of the
Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Repart.

Ragquirement Lacation Helevant Policies

Envirenmental Matters ENVIRONMENT — nnu,ou Wwai Enwironmentol palicy

Staf Fondhook Employee Gota
Privacy Stutement
Acceptoble Use £

HUMAN RESGURCES - page 23

Employess. STAFF INVOLVEMENT - poge 42

Sociol Mottars® COMMUNITY :NVDLVEMENT - poge 25

SUPFLY CHAIN - page 25 Anti-Slavery and Human Teafficking

Hurmon Rights MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015 - oage 25 oy

Staft Handhaok Ant-Brbery b

ANTI-BRIGERY & CORRUPTION - poge 75

Anti-Bribery & Carruption palicy WHISTLEBLOWING - poga 25

Business Model BUSINESS MODEL - page 10

RISKS AND UINCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE Rishs Reguster and Pro
GROUPS BUSINEYS - poges 3010 36 Prafile Cus Duty Privacy
MIARILITY STATEMENT - puge 36 Data Hetention

Pincipal Riske ond Business Actwity

Non-Fonciol ey Performance indicators KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - page 12

* We rontinuatly work 1o ansure that we Improve in this sector Gur palicy s nat lormalised althaugh ewdence of what we do can be located on prges 23 tn
10 "

Further information is provided within the Group's ESG Report on page 23.
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WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

| have now been the Workers' Representative-
and Non-executive Director for over two
years, The role has been chacllenging given the
pressures of the Covid-19 panderic, However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to be representing my colleagues ot Frasers
Group.

With the continucus lockdewns and the
uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought
during the past yeor to the Group, protecting
our colleague’s wellbeing and maintaining
consistent, transparent communication have
been vital. | continue te have full contral and
ownership of a confidential whistleblowing
hatline for retcil colleagues, as well as the staff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
opportunity to anonymously raise any concerns
o queries that they may have. | operate with
complete transparency and any findings from
these platforms are shared with the rest of
Board.

As part of my role as the Workers
Representative, | have collaborated with our
Training team and the Retail Trust to safequard
the wellbeing of our colleagues. Using the
most frequently asked questions from the
staff portal, the Retail Trust’s psychologists
and counsellors have used their expertise to
answer our colleague queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financial
support, emational support and coping
mechanisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pandemic. Each webinar was
recorded and made avoilable across ail of our
communication platforms.

Furthermore, | am pleased to confirm that
despite the evident challenges that the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
currently implementing pay reviews for our
retail teams, demenstrating the value and

faith we place in our people. In addition to this,
we have launched our ‘Fearless 1000’ bonus
scheme where some of our colleagues have

the potential to be rewarded with life-changing
bonuses. | am proud to represent my colleagues
and a business that rewards its people so highly

and places its people at the forefront of any *
successes,

This year, despite the shift to working virtually,

| rermain fully involved in all Board and strategy
meetings, giving fresh insights ond perspectives
on decision making, and my relationship with
the other Beard members has gone from
strength to strength. | continue to be involved
in all decisions and correspondence regarding
safe systems of work to maintain good Covid-19
practices at aur warehouse, offices and steres,

Whilst we navigate the year ahead and the
challenges it will undoubtedty bring, | hope |
can cantinue to make a positive difference at
Board level to ensure that our pecple continue
to be at the heart of all business decisions, and
to help drive our Elevation No Limits strategy
forward.




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

ESG REPORT

Our People .

We employ more then 25,000 people across
the Group. Despite the challenges raised by the
Covid-19 pandemic, during FY21 we continued
to enhance many aspects of how we manage
our people, to ensure that those who work

hard and want to be challenged can exce} and
quickly progress within Frasers Group,

Culture And Values

Having the right culture is critical to sustainahbla
business success, We want our colleagues to
feel valued and engaged, and to have a culture
that heips us to attract, retain and develop
talent to create our future leaders.

This year, we worked with a specialist
consultancy to develop an empioyer value
propasition Tor the Group. As part of this we
looked ta understand how our people perceive
2ur culture, including our unique strengths

and where we can improve. Interviews with
aeople at all levels of the business showed

~hat we have a culture of acting fast and
without hesitation, and where people rise to the
chaollenge and are velued for their contribution.
‘We see strength in difference, offer the
potential to progress and develop strong loyalty
amaong our people.

Areas for improvement included the need for
better communication, more focus on work-life
balance and clear objectives. We have already
begun to address these matters, including
establishing an internal communications team.
Our “Your Company, Your Yoice' portal also
supports engagement and communication,
allowing our people to roise questions and
concerns with the Workers Representative, with
the responses then published. Other initiatives
this year include our new performance
management process {(see below) which
includes cbjective setting. Following a return to
the office under Covid-19 guidelines, we have
also introduced ‘Frasers Fridays', so head office
colleagues can request to work from home on
Fridays.

Prnted on Steinbas 10095 Recycled and Carbon Capturaed throuah the Woodland frust helping o crea

Drawing on our people’s responses, we have
defined the core values that underpin how we
work. These are:

*  Own it and back yourself
= Don't hesitate and act with purpose

+  Think without limits and take the team
with you

Wa have communicated these values across
the Group and use them in our recruitment,
performance management and reward
schemes (see below). We will continue to
embed them going forwards.

The project alse enabled us ta define our
employer value proposition. For our existing
talent, this is about being trusted to perform.
For future talent, Frasers Group is ‘for the
fearless’.

Retention

We aim to hire the most talented and capable
individuals across our sector, and to retain their
valuable knowledge and experience within the
Group, During FY21, 29% of our UK salaried
colleagues left the Group which is consistent
with FY20.

Store Manager stability within Sports Direct

is currently sitting at 84%, this is a decrease

of 1% compared to FY20. Assistant Manager
stability currently sits at 87%, an increase of
2% compared to FY20. Footwear Manager
stability currently sits at 94%, an increase of 6%
compared to FY20.

A significant praportion of our people have
been furloughed at various times in FY21, in
particular when store closures have been
mandated. Use of the furlough scheme has
enabled us to retain people within the business,
while accessing Government support when our
stores have not been able to trade.

Diversity And Inclusion

We believe diversity plays an important role
in a successful business. We strive to ensure
that our people reflect the diverse cultures and

FRASERS GROQUP

values of our customer base. We endeavour to
provide equal opportunities, recruit thase with
the best skilis and capabilities for the role and
to ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are available to-all.
We will not tolerate discrimination on grounds
of gender identity, sexual orientation; race,
nationality, religion, age, disability or any other
grounds. '

We endeavour to meet our responsib
train and employ disabled people. Applications

for employment by peaple with any disability
gre given full and fair consideration for all
vacancies and are ussessed in accordance with
their skills and ahilities. People who have a first
language other than English are important to
our business. We provide free English language
lessons, to help them participate and be
successful in our workpiace and more broadly
as citizens. Since their introduction in January
2017, 248 colleagues have attended these
classes,

The toble below shows the gender diversity of our workforce ot the year end. Approximately 53% of
our workforce is female, including 35% of our senior management [FY20: 32% UK workforce). We aim
to ensure that both male and fernale candidates are provided with equal opportunities to apply for

and work in afl positions across the Group.

Female Male
Directory 5% 5%
Othee semer ianugers 5% #5%
Othet emiphoyees 53% A%

Gender Pay Gap

Our gender pay gap report for 2020 was
published in August 2021. We are pleased to
report that we have maintained a 0% avesage
gender pay gap across the Group over the
past three years compared to 6.3% in 2017,
We attribute this change to a continued focus
on reviewing and applying our pay structures
consistently across the business. We recognise
there is a difference in total earnings between
female ond male colleagues. We are there‘ore
continuing to explore and implement methods
that will establish enhanced processes anc
training tools for cur employees and engaged
workers to achieve maximum earning potential
through eur various bonus and commission
schemes.

Talent And Capobility Development

We invest without limit in peopie who show the
potential to be future managers and leade-s,
and who can drive the elevation strategy.
Home-grown talent is key to us and many of
our management and senior positions are filled
through internal promoticns.

To inspire our home-grown talent, we offer
existing colleagues the chance to take
apprenticeships, including obtaining relevant

new Bntisitwoodiand across the UK

externol qualifications. Over 100 colleagues
hove started apprenticeships since May 2020,
learning about topics such as customer service,
HR, finance, IT, warehouse management and
various levels of retail monagement. We have
also recruited new people inta apprentice
positions within IT and are looking at extending
this to other areas of the business.

We ran our first early careers programme for
graduates this year, with 27 people joining

our commercial functien through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme. This twa-year
pragramme will create the future leaders for
that part of the organisation and enable the
highest performing participants to earn up to
E80,000 in their second year or to enter other
areas across the commercial team. The trainee
commercial managers (TCMs) started with an
intensive three-week orientation, covering the
Group's purpose, strategy and culture as weil
as all aspects of the commercial division and
the essentict skills required. The TCMs olso took
part in a three-day business simulation, to learn
how their decisions affect other areas of the
business.

The 2020 intake also has a dedicated Early
Careers Manager wha is responsible for their
learning and developrment, running frequent
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professional cociching and mentering sessions
to ensure they are getting the most out of the
programme and supporting them in all areas
of the role. The Early Careers Manager alse

- suppoerts the entire commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Team has been on hand to shift the structure
and scope of the pragramme to fit in with the
business's strategy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure all the relevant
learning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of people will join us in September 2021
and we wilt look to recruit for other paits of
the Group in future. We also continue to run
placement years for undergraduates, primarily
within IT.

Managing performance is essential for
identifying key talent and helping our
colleagues to achieve their growth potential.
We have therefore introduced our Fearless
Focus performance reviews which wentlive
for head office colleagues in March 2021 and
will be rolled out across the business. We have
identified competencies against which to judge
performance and wili clso assess behaviours
against the values described above. Each
function's objectives will filker down to the
objectives for individuals and provide clear
expectations about performance. We will also
generate development plans, so collecgues
can improve in their current roles ar fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planning.

Learning And Development

Ensuring our teams have the knowledge

‘they needtto perform ot the highest level is
paramount to the continued success of the
business. White we have hod to adapt our
approach te learning and development during
the Covid-19 pandemic, we are looking forward
to resuming regular in-person training when
possible, as part of a blended approach. Our
Shirebrook training centre is state of the art and
is supported by our brand partners Nike, Puma
and Adlidas who have their own environments
in the campus. The facilities offer an unrivalled
training environment, which alongside the
Shirebrook store, give colleagues the perfect
mix of classroom and on-the-job training,
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We offer a voried portfolio of training options
for our tearns. The training and development
pertfolio continues to grow and includes brand
and product knowledge, customer service,
management training and induction, as well
as our apprenticeship courses and free English
lessons.

In FY21, we started to develop a new learning
management system (LMS) on Netex's Learning
Cloud platform. This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the aim to roll cut to
all UX employees by the end of the calendar
vear. Learning Cloud is industry leading in size
and scope, showing the importance we place
on the continued learnings of our colleagues.
It contains g blend of interactive e-learning
modules, videos and documents on specific

s and capabilities, as well as allowing us

to create bespoke content and digital events,
The system will give managers the option to
recommend further training to their teams
and to report on engagement, which will

atlow us to understand the uptake of training
and to monitor completion of any mandatory
courses. Learning Cloud is easily accessible
and is compatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
and mobile phones, giving every emplayee the
option of how they wish to absorb their training.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has reduced
the opportunity for face-to-face training, we
have stepped up the use of online platforms.
This has included our Fearless Fortnights,
where we record o webinar every two weeks
on a specific topic. Examples include webinars
on perfarmance reviews and on improving
communication skilis,

Remuneration And Reward

We foster a reward-based culture that enables
our colleagues to share in the Group's success,
In the UK, our policy is te pay abeve the
National Minimum Wage, including rates that
are above the National Living Wage for peogle
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
incentives depending on the role and the fascia,
and colleagues receive discounts across all
fascias.

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme cligns the
interests of aur people and our shareholders
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by leaders across the
organisation, including for living our values. The
scheme runs for four years and if a £10 share
price torget is reached for 30 consecutive days,
it result in an award of shares or a cash
equivalent for the top 1,000 peaple, with the top
ten receiving an award equivalent to £Im ot o
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme also
includes a cash reward for all cther colleagues
outside of the top 1,000 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also introduced the Frasers
Champions recognition scheme, which allows
people to nominate colleagues for an award
for demonstrating our values. The strangest
nominations each month are chempioned
across the business and receive an additional
month's pay. As at April 2021, 72 peeple had
received an award.

In addition, the introduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described above
will support the mave to a more structured and
robust performonce-related pay review process.

Casual Workers

We strive to ensure our arrangements for casuol
staff are fair and equitable. All casual workers
are poid the same rates as full-time employees
in the same role. We promote stakility in
working hours, while our casuol workers also
benefit from the flexibility to decline shifts at
any time. This flexibility also benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cope with
peak times and quieter periods.

Casual workers are also included in the Fearless
1,000 bonus scheme.

Health And Safety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implermenting
health and safety measuras and evaluating our
safety performance. We implement our polices,
in conjunction with legal standards, to protect
our colleagues and customers.

During the year, the Group introduced a
new improvement team, responsible for
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of our operations at Shirebrook. This team

is reviewing all processes across the site and
puliing together contributions from different
teams, including health and safety. This has
the potential to further improve our sufety
performance at Shirebrook.

In FY20 we implemented a new accident

and incident reporting system, replacing
paper-based reporting with an online system
accessible from all our stores and businesses.
We are now reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated systemn, which
will link to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers.

Appropriate health and safety training is vital
and we have focused this year on training the
store management teams. This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms to carrying out evacuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pondemic has
limited the number of people who have been
able to take this training in FY21 and we are
looking to introduce a digital format to speed
up the roll-out and make the troining more
engaging.

The majority of in-store health and safety
incidents relate to customer trips and falls. The
elevation programme is helping to reduce this,
by providing more space in store aisles and an
elevated shopping experience.

Health And Safety Performance

All RIDDOR incidents are recorded and are
reportable to the local authority. The health
and sofety team meet the Derbyshire local
authority with responsibility for Shirebrook on
o quarterly basis and work closely with other
authorities when required. All accidents and
incidents are investigated in a timely manner
and warehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings.

During FY21 there were no fire, local authority
or environmental enforcement actions or
prosecutions and no work related fatalities
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Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become éven more important
during the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides

all Frasers Group colleagues with access

to free and confidential wellbeing support.
Retail Trust offers advice, finoncia! assistance,
face~to-face and telephone counseliing,
cognitive behavioural therapy, non-repaycble
grants, career development support, legal
guidance and on-site critical incident support.
The helpline is available 24 hours @ day, seven
days a week.

Ta ensure our people know what support is
available through Retail Trust, we have elevated
our communications during the Covid-19
pandemic. This has included wehinars and
education sessions for managers, so they are
aware of what is available, as well as social
media messaging and other communications
for colleagues. This has resulted in @ noticeable
uptift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modern Slavery

We arg committed to respect and equal
treatment for all people.

Woe recognise that modern slavery is an
angeing challenge for organisations, especially
hese dealing in consumer goods, and we
remain committed to addressing this rish.
Ultimaotaly, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or humen trafficking takes place within our
business or supply chain. We have policies in
place aimed at proactively identifying and
mitigating these risks. These policies aim to
send a clear message that we do not tolerate
these practices.

We have a range of tools in ploce including
videos and literature to educate colleagues
about their rights and a number of
communication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and comments boxes on site,
for reporting any feedback or concerns. Anyone
making a report can remain anenymous if they
choose. We also continue to review and develop
our colleague training, monitoring processes
and evaluation of cutcomes, and work with

our employment agencies and other relevant
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bodies, including the Gangmasters and L.abour
Abuse Authority and the police, to suppert our
training and knowledge,

If we find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals are participating in modern slavery
take immediate action. Accordingly,

we have g policy of reporting Gny suspicious
activity to the police, which has historically
assisted in successful convictions. Our s54
Medern Slavery Act statement can be found an
our website www.frasers.group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

We are investing in the structure and capability
of our HR function, to enable it to effectively
support the Group as it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way thot they govern our
people’s behaviours, as well as the appropriate
mechanisms we need to have in place to
ensure compliance. This will allow us to take

a more preventative opprooch to instances of
non-compliance.

Our main focus for policies under review
includes attendance management, maternity/
paternity/parental leave, perfarmance
capability and redundancy. A significant and
positive change will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remain
engaged with us throughout their maternity
leave period.

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities around our stores and
our offices in London and Shirebrook, and we
aim to minimise any detrimental impact on
them,

Qur Sports Directory subsidiary has been a
specialist supplier of sports equipment to the
education sector for over 25 years, and part of
the Frasers Group since 2016. Sports Directory
plays a key role in giving back to schools in
the UK and helping to keep our young people
fit and healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its
‘My School’ scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sports

O Credn neve Bn

Directory gives them the opportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
date, Sports Directory has issued over 42,000
vouchers to UK schools, which equates to
more than £3.2 million worth of free sports
equipment. Sports Directory has also, via the
Professional Footballer's Association, donated
free equipment to 72 football league clubs.

tn addition to Sports Directary, we support the
development of grass roots talent in tennis via
Slazenger. We have donated over £350,000 of
tennis equipment to schools and tennis ciubs
via the Stazenger Academy. The Academy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Club.

Claser to the Shirebrook campus, we donated
winter clothing to Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which was distributed to homeless people in
the lecal community. Stere managers also
contribute to their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
has in pfevious years worked clongside a local
hospital to donate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible
this year, so instead the store donated to a local
food bank.

Frasers has also worked on a number of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The
highlights of this include working with Women
in Sport to supply kit for their “Daughters and
Dads" programme, which encourages girls to
play more sport. The Group also sponscred
the "Driving Force” series on Sky Sports that
highlights the challenges faced by elite
sportswomen.

As discussed in the Chair's statement, on 15
June 2020, in England, we offered a 50%
discount to all NHS staff in our Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
fantastic individuals a3 our steres re-openad; it
was an overwhelming success with gross safes
of approximotely £50m before discount ond
opproximately £25m after discount,

woodiand across tha K

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy in place, which was onginally crected
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As a result of the Act, all policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure compliance
measures were put in place te mitigate staff
being offered and / or accepting bribes. We
have a zero-tolerance appreach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our people to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or fraud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud have
been reposted during FY21.

Due to the number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing poficy
to ensure that the policy remains effective.
The revised policy will be subject to Audit
Committee oversight.

Whistleblowing

The Group has an approved whistleblowing
policy and a number of processes aperate
which support our policy including Your
Company Your Voice, our Retail Support Unit
Asset Protection hotline as well os'a dedicated
whistleblowing e-mail oddress.

A policy review and revision process is ongoing.
The updated whistleblowing policy and related
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, approval and oversight on on
ongoing basis,



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that supporting and protecting
the environment is important to our
stakeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore look to be proactive

in making a positive contribution ta the
environment, including through reducing

our energy use and greenhouse gas (GHG)
ermissions, minimising waste, maximising
recycling and considering how we can make our
products mere sustainable.

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures { TCFD). We understand this is

an important step in tackling global climate
change and we lock forward to sharing our first
full disciosure in next yeor's Annual Report. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out o gap analysis to ensure
we are in o strong position to meet these
requirements. There is more to do and we have
already begun identifying opportunities and
risks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strategy.

Embedding Sustainability

During FY21, we formolised our approach

to sustainability in @ number of ways. This
included creating o dedicated sustainability
function, which has been seeking out and
.implemnenting projects that are beneficial to the
Group and the envirenment.

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
formed o network of Sustainability Champions
under the sponsorship of the CFO. This
reflected our belief that the best way to embed
sustainability across the Group is to take
everyone on the journey with us. All colleagues
were given the opportunity to take part and we
received a significant number of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
colleagues’ interest in environmental issues.

The Sustainability Champions werk within their
own departments, using their unique knowledge
of their day-to-doy roles to help make all

areas of the business more sustainable. They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group, which has representatives from senior
management and key departments, including
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experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR and finance. The Steering Group set the
Group's sustainability strategy and menitor our
progress, as part of our wider ESG approoch.
This will enable us to take o more strategic
approach to envirenmental matters in the years
ahead.

Training for our Sustainability Champions has
been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic
but will take place as soon as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in external
speakers and provide an opportunity for our
Champions to share good practice and learn
from each other.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

The sustainability tearn'’s primory focus in the
year was on reducing energy use and GHG
emissions, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice. The vast majority of
our sites have smart meters, giving us tive and
accurate dota which is fed into o monitoring
and alerts system. This allows us to take action
when usage issues are identified.

We continue to comply with the UK
Goverhment's Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR) and have identified key areas
where we can make further energy reductions,
in particular energy usage in our stores and
efficient transport and logistics.

Improving the environmental performance

of our store portfolio is @ significant focus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for
associated costs savings. For example, LED
light replacements resulted in a 52% energy
reduction and rapid poyback on their upfront
cost. All new light fittings are now LED ond we
are rolling out & programme of LED lighting
upgrades at o rate of two stores a week. We
have alse upgraded the external lighting at
Shirebrook to LED.

We have trialled replacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heaters, which
are much mare energy efficient. In our
Mansfield store trial, for example, we repiaced
three 12kw blow heaters with a single 3kw
infrared heater. However, store closures due to
the Covid-19 pandemic halted these trials and
we aré awaiting more dote and feedback fram

store colleagues on the heaters’ effectiveness,
befare planning a full rell out.

In addition, we carried out desktop studies of
the feasibility of replacing cir conditioning units
in our stores with more efficient units. While
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is not cost effective, particularly for leasehold
premises, we are using more efficient units

in new stores. We will continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, at least
annualiy.

in support of the transition to a low-carbon
economy, we have installed 18 electric vehicle
chargers at severol points around our head
office which are provided at cost to colleagues.

£xcluding acq ons during the year the
etectricity supplied to all of cur stares and
gyms is from 100% renewable sources. Our
Shirebrook distribution centre electricity is from
a loea! independent power supplier. which
supports the grid during the transition to o
green network and a zero-carban econamy.

Transport

The Group's truck fleet all meet the Euro

& standard and we use an engine fuel

additive to further reduce emissions. By using
container optimisation, which moximises the
amount we can get into a container, we save
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of carbon per
forty foot container. Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our transport impact by approximately
26,473 tonnes of carbon. That is equivalent to
31,478,002 kilometres of forry travel or 787 times
around the world.

We work with our factories and third-party
brands to optimise our container space and
reduce the number of containers shipped, to
avoid fuel waste caused by 'shipping eir. Our
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to compare the impact
of different transport modes, such as rail or
road,

All parcels we send to customers via DPD are
carbon neutral and we receive a certificate
each quarter settin~-g out the GHG emission
savings as a result. During the year we sent
56,572 porcels via DPD, saving 24,275kg of CO2,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees,

Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste and maximising recycling is
another important area of focus for us and we
have a target to send zero waste to landfill from
our UK operations by 2025. We are planning te
look ot targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste strecms are managed as efficiently as
possible.

Our approach to maneging each of our waste
streams is set out below.

Cardboard

Sorting ous recycling into different streams at
our Shirebrook warehouse allows us ta fa
the recycling of approximately 95% of our
cardboard.

We are a AAA producer of cardboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, high
density bales of o consistent quality. This
attracts a high buy-back price and ensures we
are o preferred supplier when dermand is low.
90% of our cerdboard is reprocessed in mills in
the UK by our recycling portner who we work
closely with to constantly improve recycling
rates. On average, we recycle around 900
tonnes of cardboard each month.

Paper

All office paper is made from Steinbeis recycled
paper in parinership with the Woodland

Trust and recycled efter use. From January to
December 2021, the partnership has created
3,363.36m’ of new native woodland in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide.

Plastic

We have a separate haling operation

for plastic, which eliminates end-of-bale
contamination, The plastic we produce on

site is high grade, making it very suitable for
recycling. Office plastics are also separated at
source and recycled.

We aim to reduce single-use plostic within

the business as far os possible, such as tags,
pallet straps and packaging bags. We are
working hard to identify the ‘hatspots’ we need
to address first and actively procure more-
sustainable olternatives.
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Electrical Waste

IT waste is disposed of by a speciafist
contractor who also cleans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required.

The majority of electrical waste we generate
is light bulbs and tubes which cre loaded into
waste containers provided by Electrical Waste
Ltd and exchanged as required.

Fridges and freezers are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Qccosienal appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Motal

Wa recycle scrap metal from Shirebrook and
our stores through o partnership with two local
companies. We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to focilitate a faster and more
efficient process.

General Waste

Zvery month, around 103 tonnes of dry

mixed recycling {non-sorted recyclables /
general waste) are baled from our Shirebrook
distribution centre. Once baled, the woste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost to us.
This has reduced by approximatety 45 tonnes
per month from last yecr, partly due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and partly due to better
seporotion of waste which ensures we can sell
moare of our own recycling.

Recycling Initictives In FY21

We continue to work on reducing waste and
increasing recycling. During the year, we have
communicated to all colleagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins in offices to
sort waste at source. Food waste is also now
recycled. We are triclling waste segregation in
store, to further increcse our recycling rates.

Prinied on Steinbeis 100%% Recycled and Carbon Caplured

Recycling Performaunce

In FY21, we recycled 86% of the waste we ’
generated at our Shirebrook distribution centre
(FY20: 88%), This included: ’

+ 6,418 tonnes of cardbeard [FY20: 12,358
tonnes)

+ 30 tonnes of waste paper (FY20; 27 tonnes}
+ 285 tonnes of plastic (FY20: 623 tonnes)
= 77 tonnes of metal (FY20; 778 tonnes)

* 3,227 units of electrical equipment {FY20:
5,051 units})

In FY21, we separated and directly recycled
7,558 tonnes {B6%) of materials, A further 1,241
tonnes (14%;} of mixed waste was collected by
specialised recyclers.

This compares to FY20 where we seporated
and directly recycled 10,200 tonnes (88%}) of
materials and sent away a further 1,517 tonnes
[12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers.

The recycling rote has stayed broadly
consistent year on year but the absolute
quantity of waste produced and recycled this
vear is down significantly due ta store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste coming back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Product Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the

y of our products. Carrying out a

ty check’ is now part of the design
and procurement process for all new products
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and processes for each line. We review
continuity products annually and refresh them
with a maore sustainable material or process, if o
viable option exists,

For FY22, cur biggest sustainability project w
be to improve the sustainability of the products
we offer, looking at water use, chemicals,

carbon emissions and raw material production.

As part of this, we are a founding signatory
of WRAP's {Waste and Resources Action
Programme] Textiles 2030 initiative, which

is designed to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industry's shift towards circularity and
system change. Signatories will collaborate on
carbon, water and circular textile targets, and
contribute te national policy discussions. To
help move our product improvements forward
WRAP provides a scenarie planning tool which
calculates environmental impacts such as water
and energy soving benefits from swapping
matericls or processes. We continue to look
for mare recycled content in our products and
request a recycled content or reduced impact
aption with every proposal from suppliers.

Improving Our Puckaging

We continue to wori to reduce the volume of
packaging for our products and to increase
the recycled content of the packaging that
remains. For example, we use an auto-boxing
rmachine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantiolly reducing the quantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycled card for all our own-brand shoeboxes
and all cur card for packaging or labelling

is non-laminated, for easier recycling and
plastic reduction. This required substantial
research and development to get the desired
quality and appearance, while minimising the
m3<=053m33_ impact.

The Group has joined the On-Pack Recycling
Label {OPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoption of a simple recycling symbol systemn,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since April 2020
has an OPRL symbol assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it at home within
the correct waste stream.

Our new Sports Direct bag for life which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have 85% recycled
content, up from 70% recycled content in FY20.
We are alse introducing stondard Sports Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
[80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste) later in the year and all fascias with a
plastic carrier will have at least 30% recycled
content. Our plans to roll out these recycled
in-store bags have been detayed, as we use up
old stock due to store closures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

1 through the Woodiand Trust, helping to croate new Bolish woodland across the UK

Frasers stores will have an F5C certified
recycled grass paper bag,

Qur in-store hangers are now made from more
than B0% recycled polypropylene, repfacing the
virgin plastic hangers we previousfy used.

Reducing Water Use

Reducing water usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing woter-saving
Hippo blocks in toilets in our stores and at

~the Shirebrock distribution centre. These save
around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the annual maintenance rota, meaning all
stares will be covered within 12 months,

Other Environmental Initiatives

The Group is involved in o number of other
environmental initiatives.

Group subsidiary Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup [BBOC)
to be its official partner for the next 3 years.
The BBOC mission is to drive positive change
towards clean oceans thot support all marine
wildlife and sustainable living.

The Eco boat operated by BBOC will he
conducting one of the biggest microplastic
surveys in the world by collecting vital
micropiastic data using manto nets. The
open-source dota collected will be available to
Governments and groups across the world to
use for policy change. The team will also rescue
marine animals that have become trapped in
potution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river clean ups. It proyides equipment to help
volunteers clear beaches and rivers around the
world.

For Earth Day 2023, we partnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in urban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors.

Frasers' donation allowed it to plant 3,500 trees
an owr behalf and supperted work to improve
air quality in school playgrounds, as well as
teaching children to grow vegetables whilst
fearning about where their food comes from.
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consumption is based on the amounts of
elactricity purchosed through the period, as well
as heat and steamn the Group generates for its

This excludes consurtption from refrigarants
due to the cost of data collection, although
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of commerciaj fuels, using published emission
foctors for the Well to Tank (WTT) impact

and additionally from metered electricity
consumption and published emission foctors for
the Tronsmission & Distribution {T&D) ospect of
the delivered utitities.

The Group has éngoged a third-party provider
te assess emissions gnd 2hergy consumption for
the periods reported in these resylts,

Scope 1GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels and
operation of any facility by the Group. Scope

2 GHG emissions comprise the emissians
associoted with electricity consumption by

the Group, as welj as emissions from any
generated electricity. The non-UK emission
foctors are those published by IEA and specific
to each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
calculated based on the purchased quantities

CO2 equivalent Factors are used, which ensures
we have reported on gif of the emission sources
"equired under the Companies Act 2006
Regulations. Con=~sumption considers all
Group companies and no adjustments hove
been made to comparatives for prior periods
for subsidigries newly acquired in the period.

The Group's CQO2 emissions and sUpporting metrics are detailed i the following tabjie:
[t

Vacr

Scope § CO2 emissigns ftonnes)
Scope 2 COZ emissions Imorket bosed) ftannas)

Stape 3 COZ emissians tonnas
Tektl Scopa 1, 2 and 3 amissions ronmes:

CO2 emissions [tonnes] £ (m tnover

CO2 ermissians ve Turnover Index {2020 = 100]

65.4% of Scops 1and » emmissions relate to the UK ang UK offshore greos,

The table beiow shows the Groyp's eNergy consumption, Scope 1 consumption relates to the
consumption of fuel ang consumption frem facilities aperated by the Group,
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Srane T urtption
Srope 7 consumpt
Teabel Sc rre 1 e 2 LONSLENAS IRy

95478574
205650, 44¢
130,020

2H618 984
377,956,881

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought ohout significant emission reductions.

The toble below shows énergy consumption for the UK and UK offshore areas only;

Yoor

Scope 1 consumption kwh)
Srope 2 consumgtian ki)
Totel Seope 1and 2 contumptions 1kwhy

Frasers Group is committed to responsible

SNergy management and sustainabifity, which jt

practises throughout the arganisation where it
is cost effective to do so.

During the reporting yeor the Graup has
implemented the following energy and carbon
efficiencies across the erganisation to ensyre
that energy cansumption and associated
emissions are reduced:

= Each Retuit site in the UK has been set o
weekly target for consumption. The actua)
cansumption versus the Target has beer,
reported-on a weekly basis using the haf
hourly data from the previous week, in
a league table format, Any Retail sites
consuming more than torget hove been

contacted and given guidance on actions to

take to bring consumption down, This has
been part of a wider project to influence
behaviour, by communicating the process
of controlling Retait censumption, on o
daily basis. When Frosers Greup returns to
"business as usual”, there is gn indication

and expectation that cansumption will have

reduced by 10% due to the actions taken
during the previous 12 months versus the
. ' FY20 baseline;

- We continue ta upgrade fluorescent lighting

to LED. For the Retgil sites all opportunities
to replace lighting during a refit ware taken
and the resulting consumption has reduced

by ¢. 52% for those sites suon have had o full

79.342 651
1415026724
720645215

BUREITT
195,428,533
226 443,250

refit of lighting to the latest LED technology

The number of *nnm..uc.anm.ﬂmms:wm with
colleagues and suppliers has reduced
through the increased availability of video
conferencing therehby reducing the amourt
of travel and further reducing Frasers Group
carbon footprint.

We are Implementing mini Building
Management Systems that are highly
flexibie based on CoOmmMmon industry
standards ang provide excallent energy
savings;

We are using additional submetering within
sites and properties to improve real time
energy consumptien and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy daty:

Henting and Ventilations systems are
undergoing trials that include retrofits to
improve energy efficiency; and

We are implementing voltage optimisation
Projects that provide cost effective solutions |
ond deliver optimised stipply valtage,

A number of other energy efficiency measures
ore under consideration for implementation
during the next reporting year.
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Environmental Policy

During FY21, we defined an environmental
policy for the Group, This sets out our
commitments to:

* have robust and transparent reporting and
governance of environmental issues

«  minimise our carbon dioxide emissions

+ reduce waste, so we meet our target of zerc
waste to landfill by 2025

+  consider the enviranmental impact of our
supply chain, and

= work with partners to enhance
environmental performance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers along
with our regular terms and provided to new
celleagues upon induction.

Our newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the policy is implemented as part of business
as usual. This will be supported through reqular
tracking and reporting of targets and with

the engogement of a third party energy and
carbon reduction specialist.

The policy is further supported by our
commitment to initiatives such as WRAP's
‘Textiles 2030’ which obliges us to measure and
raport our progress annually.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they
consider they have acted in good faith, and in
the way that would be most likely to promote
the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members s a whele having regard to the
stakehelders and matters set out in s172{{al-(f}
of the Companies Act 2006,

This statement sets out the matters considered
under each subsection of 5172(1) [a}-(F) and
provides cross references to where further
information can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have also
been provided.

The Likely €. q
The Long Term

Of Any Decision In

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they make now can, have possible long-
term consequences. The Directors take into
considerction the strategy, purpose, values
and culture when making decisions. During
the year the Directors have made decisions
based on Board papers, presentations from
senior executives, information documents,
and discussions with external advisors.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Board commissioned a report on the
culture of the Group. The outcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implement the
elevation strategy long term.

- Ownit and back yourself;

«  Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

= Think without limits ond take the team
with you;

c. The Interests Of The Company’'s Employees
Details of initiatives and engagement with

our colleagues is set out in the Our people
report and the Directors’ Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

ew Hotish woodland across the LK

Bonus scheme which was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the
Frasers Group Elevation Programme to
attract the best talent to the Group.

d. The Need To Foster The Company's Business
Relationships With Suppliers, Customers
And Others

Details of the Company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators and lenders are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Principol Decision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers and banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
that the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevation No Limits
strategy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retail websites to anhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for online purchases during the Covid-19
pandemic.

e. The Impact Of The Company's Operations
On The Community And The Environment

The ESG report details of the initiotives we
have undertaken in sustainability and the
community.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximately £25 million
were offered to NHS staff working in our
local communities to recognise their
contribution in the Covid-19 pandemic. A
network of sustainability champions has
been set up across the business together
with a steering group which sets the ESG
strategy and monitors progress. The Board-
has alse adopted an Envirenmental Policy
* during the year.
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f. The Desirability Of The Company g. The Need To ActFairly As Between Members
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Maintaining A Reputotion For High
Standards Of Business Cond

At all tirmes we endeavour to adhere to
strict corporate governance standards,

An externol Board evaluation was carried
out during the year covering alt aspects

of Board and committee performance.
Recommendations will be reviewed and
agpropriate action plans put in ploce. The
Non-executive Warkforce Director is another
method by which we are implementing
good corporate governance. Cally Price
brings colleague queries and concerns
directly to the boardroom for action by the
Board. Further details can be found within
the Workers Representative Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: Although an
external review is only required once every
three years, the Board has decided to
undertoke yearly external reviews. External
advisors have been appointed to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reflect best
practice. Further details can be found within
the External Board Review.

Frried on Steanbeis 10045 Becyoled and Carbon Captuted throuah the Wao

Of The Company

All members of the Company hold ordinary
shares which attach the same rights and
benefits. Shareholders are able to raise

any queries through the Investors Relations
email address, Al investor presentations are
made available on the Group website for
shareholders to access. The AGM allows an
opportunity for all shareholders to attend
and ask guestions of the Boord. Following
the Jifting of Covid-19 restrictions we intend
to revert to an in-person AGM this year. This
will aliow shareholders to meet face-to-face
with Directors. .

Principal Dacision/Steps: The re-
commencement of the share buyback
programeme has benefited alt shareholders
by increasing the percentage ownership
held by each investor by reducing the tota!
number of outstanding shares.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Qur Risk Managemant Framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk manogement
and internal control. These systems are intended to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failing
to achieve business objectives, and they provide reasonable byt not absolute assurance against the
risk of material misstatement or financial loss.

The Audit Committee supports the Board with discharging its responsibilities, under o delegated
autherity. The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for managing risks in the business,
and his direct reports are accountable to him for effectively managing those risks within their remits.

The Group's risk management framework comprises a top-down and bottom-up approoch to risk
identification, evaluation and mitigation. Principal risks are discussed and agreed by executive
management through the Compliance & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. The Beard and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk at least annually and receive
presentations and detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis. Risk owners re-evaluote
principal risks in odvance of each Compliance & Risk Group discussion, Any changes are reported to
the Audit Cammittee, as part of our Group Risks Profile reporting.

The Compliance & Risk Group provides connectivity between executive management's
respensibilities for risk manogement and internal controls and the oversight roles of the Audit

Committee and the Board. |t facilitates cross-functionat discussion and collaboration across principal
risk areas and matters of internal control. It also facilitates horizon scanning and emerging risk
discussions, challenges the approprioteness of internal controls and progresses their effectiveness.
The Compliance & Risk Group's activities are reported formally to the Audit Committee. Our Steering
Groups will also report formally to the Compliance & Risk Group, compieting our governance
structure.
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Our approach to risk management:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Bourd 1 Audit Committee | Sub-committees
Compliance & Hisk Group
Stesring Groups

THREE LINES MODEL

First lina Second line Third {ins

Managemant

othar assurance functions.

Internal Audd

CONHTROLE ASSURANCE

MONITORING &
ASSURANCE inchdas sructury,
Srpetish & watastlon

COMMUNICATION
R TRAINING

Principal risks are cascaded to operational
teams and central furictions for discussion and
action on risk mitigations, as part of operational
risk management activity. Operationot risk
management facilitates the elevation of risks
to the Comnpliance & Risk Group, for onward
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
to elevate our pperational risk activity as part
of our risk management roadmap for FY22 and
we have put plans in place to focus on this in
the next period.
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During the period, the Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, hos:

+ undertaken a full review of the Group risk
register;

+ received reports on the continued
development of the risk management
framework, including risk appetite
parameters and internal controls definitions;
and

« received risk owner presentotions, detailted
risk reporting and summary update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, fer further discussion ond challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internal control
framework are monitored throughout the year
in this way.

Board Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit & Risk team has been presented
to the Board for discussion. The Board is
satisfied thot the Group's systems of risk
management and internal control (including
financial, operational and compliance controls)
have operated effectively during the financial
period, up to ond including the date of this
report, and no significant failings of internal
centrol were identified during the period.

The Group is committed to continuously
improving its risk management framework and
methodology, in line with regulatory standards
and the Groug's elevation strategy.

ned Trust, helpng to create new B

Assessment Of Principal Risks

We have carried out a robust ossessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the period
and our principal risks profile remained largety
unchanged through the period.

We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-1%
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
economies and society at large have been more
prominent than expected, Whilst mandated
restrictions are currently easing, trovel is
opening up and the vaccination programme

in the UK continues at pace, new variants
continue to emerge. Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needed to bring
the Covid-19 pandemit under control. As a
result, this risk remains a key focus for us.

During the period, we have continued to
respond to the pandemic by:

+  prioritising the safety of our people and
customers;

+ re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are oble te serve our customers;

+ evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

- optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well placed for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result, our operating performance has
remained robust. This risk has therefore been
evalucted through the nermal course of
reporting and in our vicbility statement, rather
than through separate risk disclosure in this
period.

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Group in respect of administratien, planning
and logistics, But we do not currently consider
these to be material. Accordingly, our
evaluation of Brexit risk has reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of
our ongoing monitoring of broader global
macreeconomic conditions, events or political
factors. We will continue te monitor the full
effect of implementing the UK-EU Trade and
Co-operction Agreement and the development
of the trading relationship with the EU.

vwoodland across the LK

Envirenmental, sacial and governance

(ESGY) issues feature more prominently in

our disclosures. Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral part of

our commitment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorporated intq our broader disclosures

on cerporate and social responsibility. With
increasing regulation and in recognition of the
potential significance of this emerging risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced our
reporting and have included this as a separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The following risks and mitigations are an
extract from our principal risks profile and are
not presented in any order of pricrity. Principal
risks are those which we censider pose a threat
te our business modet, future performance,
prospects or reputation.

Reference To Strategy

Building excellent
relationships with the world's
best brands

Elevation in our digital
offering

Elevation of our physical
stores

Enablers : People, Training,
Brand, Communication,
Systems, Autemation, Data

&'t Al
R

Risk Trends

Increasing

Decreasing

=3 Unchanged
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Strategy

The Group continues to deliver its elevation strategy, which focuses on the brands we sell, our digital
offering and our physical stores. Qur vision is to become the elevated multi-channel platform for
sports, premium and luxury brands.

We continue to deliver well against all aspects of our strategy, during a challenging operating period.

PSK CONTROLS AND MI

- The Boord and senior managament set and agree tha Group strategy ond undestake Lioth regular and detorled
prnyal reviews.

- Ow Groups diverse
apportunities ond < |

tzrms of guography and product and exeeutive management 15 able to respond to stratege
to maximise achievernent of gur strategic ambitions

W fani to deliver our
strategy efficiently, - We contmue to evoluote strategic brond ocgus
effectwvely and on a timely end ottroctse localions to the stere estote,

basis. or we adopt the
wrong strateqy, which
\mpacts our lang-term - Wa momtor our performance, markets and competition on an angeing Losis
growth, perlowentinea ond - Our streag finane
ombition, flow and support

5, 10 peovirde produet and ehoice |

ne with our brand strotegy

- Effective monagement of our property portfolia suppaits ow elsvated direction

antrols, reporting and analyss help to aptimise reseurea ullacobions, moxmise profits and eash
1ent ang effechive stroteguc debvery

- ‘We perfarm ongeing research for insights into consumer rends

- Ongomyg Intemal and extarnal commumcation af aur strategic diraction supports wnderstanding, engozement anc
eltective delivery

32

Raeayahed and Carbon Copluiy

roue the Woodis

Third-porty Brand Relationships, Key Suppliers And Supply Chain In:nu.n:.o.._n

I

Key brands, brand suppliers and maojor manufacturers are central to our business and elevation
strategy. Our strategic acquisitions and business model aim to bring attractive brands into the
Group, to support customer demand and choice.

Our supply chain is international and is subject to stringent management of supply chain logistics
and working capital, to ensure the flow of product in line with our strategic ambition.

We have continued to strengthen our brand and supplier rela
demonstrating the strength of our business model and strate
product availability, in line with our elevation ambitions.

nships during the pandemic,
performance. This also supports new

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- The Group hes a policy of forging ¢lase long-tarm commercigl ralationships which ure underpinned by our
commitmant to preduct, levalion and customer exgellence
The elevution strategy targets farging stronger relationsmps
- Dethcoted ruh
v

th key brond partners and

15 an angeing prianty

vShip partaers ond procurement and corm

wreial taams support truly mtegrited Suppler

engagem:

- Tha Group uhilises two Irading supply chows Lompories Lo progure much of its awn-brond products A Group-ovned
supply chom entity further diversthes risk
Our stock -ovels supported our ability to trade tough the Cowid-19 pandemic nnd wa kove continued to secure
angoing wpplies, dus to the dapth and breadth of bur cammerzial wlotonships

s lar aur business
nght price und
quuhty. ond to meet or
exceed out Custaniers’ - Suppliers sign-up te the Group's Supplier Manual, which enables us tu mattor end benchmark suppher pedormance
aupectations Failure to

mitigate these nsks might
Impust our Blevation - Our awn-brand nvestment \argets consurmer trends and compl
rarguts, perfarmance ond choice

- Strang service ievel agieements ore m ploce, whith help to support an effectve supply cham natwork
mants th

arty bronds, supportng consumer

tong-term growth - nfluencer tups and brand provide for b 1 growtl

- Electronic Data intartace [ED) capabrbity improves our process efficiency through te cer
supplier engagement through o ded catid suppler portal

ercial Lycle ond enhances
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Brexit or Global Macro-economic Conditions, Events (Pandemic) Or Political Factors

The global pandemic and Brexit are core aspests of this risk in the period under review. We also
monitor global and national political change cn an engeing basis, for impacts on our strategy and
supplier networks. These are external events and we respond well to those foctors we can control.
The strength of our business and our perfarmance enables us te absorb the broader indirect
economic impacts associated with this risk, as we have o proven track record of responding with

agility to prio

se trade and performance and maximise opportunity.

We are committed to escalating our efevation srogramme and building on opportunities that
support product and brand availability through our digital offering and physical stores.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

Failure to onticipote,
evaluate or oppropriately
tespand to externcl avents
such os Brexit, o broader
giehal/macroeconomic |
conditions, avants
[pandamie} or palitical
factors, may risk Ine
achievernent-of ayr
perfarmance targats, -
impact our strategic -
diraction er langar-term
viabilty, or reslt in lost
oppartunities for growth,

Pandwmic.
- We have

lemented effective tesg onse proredures, with Board oversght and prontisation
- Durmandated sufe working and op 1raling standards prortise colleague ond custamer wellbaing

- We deploved new safety requiraimerts quickly, with axtamal validution and angerng evaluation, review and
morntanng

- ‘We mode an ogile switch to focus on e-commarce delivary, as u result of mundoted periods of fockdown

- lnvestments i our on:

e capebibty and Lustomer service dalivery suppart our acceleroted growth i e-cammerce

factive supgher and supply
commercia ralatanstips

management optimises working copital and leveroges aad steengthens aur

- Effective manugarment of cash ilows and committed kaclities supports our liquxdity, long-tern viobility ond trading
purtner suppart
- Wa c

uct shgoing stenario analyiis, with imaly raparting to

- Welevainge cpportunibies for investent, theouglh STrOng MURGGENANT EversighL.
Brack:

= Wecaryout yoing evaluation of Brext sk impocts with reporting to the Board

-~ We momtor UK-E
Agresinent

trude relationship developinents and the wnplementat:on af the Trude and Co-operation

.= Ourforus on tansport legrstics, new documantotion ragquiremants und the flow of goads supper s product

- Wa ensure ongoing Finance and Carrimereiol evaluation of econamic and poll
oversight oud Board reporting

al change, with seniar nanugament

- The sxeculve-led Compliance & Risk Group holds smarging nsks discussions, with oversight reporting to the Audit
Committes

Treasury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

Short, medium and long-term funding arrangements support aur business operatiens and our ability
to meet our financiol obligations and deliver our strategic ambitions.

Funding availability remains  principal risk but the overall risk level trended downwards towards the
end of the period, based on our trading performance cnd strategic delivery through the height of
the pandemic. Whilst revenue has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and prolonged periods
of mandated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trade, supporting our liquidity
position. We ore also pricritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in Nevember
2022, through strong funder dialogue and engagement, supported by the Greup's robust business
performance.

Interast rote risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk crises from international trading,
future sales and purchases in foreign currancy, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged options
to buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Wholesale ond Licensing
customers and there is some level of counter-party risk exposure, although we do not consider this to
be material,

RISK CONTROLE AND MiTIGAT IS -

- Our Board raporting on debt, cavenants, funding and cash liow positions ncludes stress tasting and sxtansive
Lusinesy risk scenario onaiysis, including Brext, Covid-19, mandated store clasures and ralated « osts

- The Group Treasury function managss lquid

! . , inkerest rate und toreign exchange risks
Foilure to appropriotety

manage cur funding - The Group lreusury palicy, with Board ovarsight, out
fiquidity pasitsans and reporting

securaoccessto funding '~ wa have a working capitol facility available until November 2022, with oagoing adrly dialogue and eigagedment with
markets right impact funders Far ranewal

our plans for growth, the
ability ts manage our
trading requiraments,

res delegated authonties for sparatian, mantaring and

- Ongong momtonng and reparting of going conceen aird wiabilty ure part of sur standard suite of internal and
uxturnal wpurting

moet longer-tens - Our hedging strategy 1s reviewsd and opproved aniually os pert of aur treasury governange, with hedging activty

liabilities and the ongaing reparted to Bourd

vinbility of our business. = lovestmenm s of surplus cash, s and d r are made under pre-uppraved Invastiient, criteno
3

. = We use forward foreign currency contracts Lo herdge against by

Iy prabinble fereign currency t
~  We have o credit pahey in plece, with aegulor monitanng of custorner and rounter-party crect nsks

See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further detail on financia! risk management.

edd on Steinbels 1007 Recycled and Carbon Captwed throuah the Woodtand Trost, helping to create now Botish wouadland across the UK
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Customer engagement and retention is vital to our Group, whether through our physical stores or
online. Harnessing customer value and loyalty across the Group is multi-faceted but underpinned by
our product offerings, price and service.

We have enhanced our e-commerce offering ond significantly improved our custormer experience
through our elevation strategy, as well s our ¢customer service and the underlying platform for our
digital business.

We continue to strengthen our elevotion through cur new concept stores and flagship muiti-foscig
offerings.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Ongong monitanng of custarmer insights and lsedback, und competitor and market rends, enables us Lo respnnd
Feulure to anbicipate ond and dnve cur custemer -1ad strotegy
respond to customer
needs or chunges In
Langumer trends ond
spending, of to dive
ond daliver customer - Wecontinue te develop and wivest in out arhing oHenng, capaty and capatility, mcluding Sur autamatian
sarvice axcellent e, moy ceipabiimes and payment platforms, for an improved customer expesience
impact our growih, voluy,
reputatiah and strotegic
ambiton

= Conbnued inyestment in our customar service afienng, systerrs ond communication enables us to understu
IMBrOYE our ruUstEMer aXpariehce, both anling nd through the develapment of our store opertting madel <
by new in-store technatogy

Targatad sociol media and diguital marketing orogn

nes support

custarmer groups and branding
- We use mfiuencer engogement ta raise brand and product GWOraNess
- Ongoing enhancement of our ESG 094Ndas SUpRoMs aur Seategy, In ine with aur custame lotus

Legal And Regulatory Compliance

Mt

The legal and regulotory landscape in which we operate is constantly changing Our commitment to
delivering robustly on our obligations is central to our culture and volues.

We have increased our assessment of this risk in the period, bosed on foctors which continue
to impact the legal and regulatory londscage in which we operate. We are conservative in our
assessments and are confident in our ability to manage these risks effectively. The trend we
are reporting recognises anticipated changes through our horizen scanning and emerging risks
evaluations, until we have implemented our response plans.

RitK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Gurexpinerced ond qualihied in-hause legal team provides core services and ndvice ns well o5 oversiyht of dew ane
emerging legislotva and regulalgry iequiremants
- External adwsers provide odditional services and treining in speciolist ocaas, ns required by thas bosinees ond legal
A0 achion o madent teqm
may occur which resiits - Kaylagishativa and regulatory comphanes nsk areas are prenhsed and inciude off Gavernment-mondated
1o legal or regulatory requirtements in respanse to the Cond-13 pondemc, the Groug's intehectugl property nghts, the Listing Rules, sata
breach gnd which protection and health and safsty .
iy s
_smnm.“__Emwﬁ_.ﬂwcgz - Our Cade of Conduct suppons aur ethics, bahaviours and culture, and ow regulatary policies include, for example,
- . Anti-Bribary & Cormuphion, Corpgrate Grits B Hospkeity and Conflicts of Interest

- We review the appeooch ant content sf mandatory -nduction policias and ongoing ¢
ai collengues

ng across relevant gros, for

- Auevew of our ramework for pngeing monitonng of comphance 1sn progress

- Thalegal

5 @ key contrbutor ond adwiser 1o the Compliance & Risk Group
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Technology Capability And Infrastructure Renewal

We operate in a competitive and challenging customer-focused market. Our systems need to be
at the forefrent-of customer service excellence and support our end-to-end supply chain logistics.
Available technology is canstontly evolving and managing changes and transformation in this
environment is o key focus.

We have invested heavily in this peried in our automation, platforms and delivery capa
support an enhanced online and in-store customer experience, and our business resilience.

Our roadmap includes improved technology and information security capabilities, aligned to our
business continuity and IT disaster recovery review, which continues to strengthen our controls,

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

ned tu

ave o Graup technclogy siealegy 0 clace, o busiriess strotegy

U5 10 ope

asturtuce renewnl anable

te our busingsses elficuenly and supports our

ability 1o compele

- Ou streamiming orid décommussioning Rrogrameme supports ooa

ty .
oyy OF to renew

Investments in aur
A ture I

end-to-gnd ¢

trmely andd effective way
may affect our ahity to - Grawth of our expenencad m-house lechaoiogy tean, iIncuding external hires, supported by ongeing skills teaining,
Leep up with the pace ol helos s 1o heep abreast of smergrg bechnokagies and custamer -lzading nsights

change and daliver gur - We hgve ah 0ngoIng Cycte of tr: pragrammes to supwart effactive use of enisl
strotegic amb technologies utross our businasses, os they ara introducad

tecnologres and new

- Strengthening our information secunty capabiiity has enhancad our trunsformatson pragtarmmeg, our st
technology delivery and the rabustness of our second-hne aversaght
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Cyber Risks, Dota Loss And Data Privacy

I -
Attempts to attack or gain unauthorised access to systems and data are becoming increasingly

sophisticated. Qur systerns are critical to our ozerations and trading. We have legal and commercial
obligations to pratect the security and privacy of the data we hold and process

Cur Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of aur third-party and extended
enterprise partners and suppliers. We are tommitted to ensuring we have the right levels of
transparency, consistency and monitoring across our Group, to enable effective oversight in line with

. . . . L . . i our values and culture.
We combine the continued investment in our gigital offering, dutomation and technological change ‘

with the strengthening of our peeple and in-hcuse capabilities, to deliver on our risk mitjgatiens. We have an appetite for acquisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Qur integration

strategy is being formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS acquisition engagement and management.

- Wuhave strategies and pol

510 5 ace to support our [T secunty

RisK COMTROLS AND MITIGATIONS
- W oo

rote closely with our adustry lzading serwce portners, who provide core sarvices beyond our
wery, secanty and sauings ore cora drivers Dur partnurs nclude Microsalt, os well o5 othar
upss for contant dellivery network suppart lor our websie and cyber mitigokons -
- Protection toals, including sacryption, and detection tools are m place to suppor
and ore reviewsd regularly

strotegic partial

Tronsparency ucross our Group and sxtunded untey,

A cyber-attack may result review and discussion ond lorms port of our risk

n dota loss end/or denic

Ise and its changas 15 an ongoing priority It 1s subsct to regular
nugement frameawsrk and reparting,

fective monteonng and reperting,

of servics, mput

our business hnuncially
thicugh fines and
penalties of lost rade, as
well os our reputation and
our obility to operate
Failura ta adaquataly

and process may result in
egal of regulntory breach,
ossal trest and hnanaal
oss

We have anhanced our information “ecurity copatnlities and strangth

ed dur secen

-ling momitenng
We canduct an annual axternal review of cur cyber posturs and penetratian testing ucrass Group

Streng iy our doln protection mandate, enhanong our policias and procedures und ongoin.
help to mitigate deata pratection and privacy 1isks and support dalvety of aur change and t
Wa have

angoung programine of - ecusty und privacy monikanng across our Group und extended e
Gur ni-house Legal leain supports second-line

g and reparting af

We moke sngoing vestments in dala peotection raning and commumcatians [and (ocal legislutive eguivnlents in
our Owarséus dperotons]

Impoel Assessmants

Qur policy framaework is subject to oryomg review und revisign, wish externgl support angd
ugendu

ne with our governonce

Banchmark standerds tar purl of aur cantrals Impravement aclrty

gemant And Incident R

L

Our Head Office and Distribution Centre at Shirzbrook and our e-commerce activity are critical to

- Owersight roles and rasponsitrlities arross our Group struckure support rsk-based functional moRitoring ond
assurance

fpartners and suppliars,
wha fgrm part of aur
extendad enterpnise, s Riskaacl controls reparting ncrass

- We maintoin strength in pur supply cham masogement und supolier ond partner relationships

Group s subject to conk L ncluding selt- 3

proveses lt conhrmation of camphance with key pohicies, controls and other Group requitements

may result in hnone al,
teputationol af legal -

campliance issues

Govemnanre and monitarng are in plo

ar new inyestments, aoquisticns and appartunities
- The Group Internsl Audit tear s developing thrd
across the Group

menitorng ta support the broader inteinak controls framawork

People, Talent Man t And S i

¥

"Our business benefits from strength and depth of knowledge, talent and experience, which has
long been pivotal to its success. Retaining ond protecting this talent, providing for succession and

on ongoing programme of attracting ond develeping new talent is core 1o our people plans and
objectives.

We have made significant progress in the period in this area and when new initiatives have time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease.

ouwr business operations. There is an ongoing and increasing reliance on the availability of technology
across cur Group, We need the ability to responid to incidents effectively and on a timely basis, to RAISK

COMTROLS

ensure continuity of operations and trade.

. RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

Out Business Continuty and IT Disaster Recovery pluns are undergong review, revision and testing with uxternal
suppan

F ilure to raspand
e feclively or on @ bimely
bsis 1o operationol or

Our goveance strlcture supports og le ncident response, with clear roles, sponsibiitias and reportuig ines

Failurs to attract, retain ar
devalep Lolunt ocross aur
business and implamant

Continued developrient of strc ng tralnee manogement and apprenticeships progrom mes supports our futurg talent
pipehme

Vit secrul externaily to Gilf capability gaps necessary for aur growth and tonstarmation

Wa priontise internal davelopr ent ond prommehion whevet possible and o
experence

vely entourage cross-furnctionol

A new apprarsal systent hus bean witroduced with chaar xpectatans tor pedarnunce, opportunies for development

uid braader successien plunning

1T Inchients or avents

Annual external review and challenge af ur processes supparnts our commitiment ko ¢ 1LOUS NPTVt . ellective Ennﬁ.m:._;
o supperts good pract ce and knowledge shanng fer continuit plaiining faght impact )
ports goor | owiedge shanng for continuity our ubiity o ochieve _
wes are integral to our incident response plans business ond stralegic
Recavery prantisahion of 1T systems ard procasses forms part of aur business mpoc anolysis review objuctives ond the
. elliciency of our growth
transtarmation. -

A si pillar Peopls Framewars supparing performance and talent recagr

- Ougai

1 now I place ucross the Group

An ntarnal recruitmant manda-a operates, with Improvements in anbenr
- Internul a1 externul communications, marketing and PR capal
o reputahenal snpoct -
based an our copability
und communcations

sur peopla, with an elevated ard re-sr

raised wabsite to attract ral
We have recovery tene targels for batls cohical and nennol serace funchions A naw 1Logmion and bots strueture has bean kunched, reco

g and mwarding e
adapt out core pnciples

le who are feariess and

- Cntenl recavery capal

195 RGN 10 ©F INSUrONCE COVer, Hppetite und cantials

~ 7 The Workars' Reprasentative 1s 2 Board Dwector who supparts cormmu

s and gwes aur pecple a yoick
ot the hughest level « ot businass

- We have o strong strategy bor diversity and inclusion ond people supparnt
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Viability has been assessed by performing

ty analysis ond stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and forecast for the
viability period prepared by management.
This comprised a recent review by the Board
of a number of scenaries in which the Group's
income statement, bolance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how much the Group's trade would need to
be affected in order to breach the Group's
covenants (being interest cover and net debt to
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

+ afurther decrease in sales of 10%, margin
remaining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with sales;

+ afurther decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

+ meximum breakpaint, _umm:m.uqmon: of
covenants per the Group's RCF (Sales
would need to reduce by o further 20%
than forecast, with na change in direct
overheads)

The Group's working copital facility is at
£913.5m [FY20: £913.5m) available until
November 2021 and is not secured against cny
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an
extension option for a further year to November
2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cash flow from underlying trading and
has an appropriate hedging strategy to meet
currency risks, There have been no post
balance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as a
result of the conservative model has been
raviewed, if required management have a
number of mitigating actions which could be
taken such as putting on held discretionary
spend, liquidating certain assets on the bofance
sheet, reduction in lebour and marketing costs.
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Based on its assessment, the Board has a
reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to continue operating and be able to
meet its libilities as they falf due for o period
of appreximately three and a haif years, to the
end of the expected minimum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and facilities {the
period of the assessment).

The Viability Statement was approved by the
Board on 5 August 2021, and signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 202t

THE BOARD

PAVID DALY

Non-Executive Chair, Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Appointed: 2 October 2017

Committees; Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

David held a number of pasitions during

a 3C-year international career with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
football. He started in a sales role in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / Ireland.
He retired in 2015 as a Senier Director for
Nike's Club and Federation business, where he
was responsible for the global merchandising
business for all of Nike's leading footbal! clubs.

Present roles: ’
David is a Non-executive Director
of Fulham Football Ciub,

Key skills, expenience and contribution:
David's career at Nike gave him significant
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
industry. He has worked in senior roles in
sales, marketing, product development and
general monagement, giving him a thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 years warking cutside
the UK and this international experience hos
proven crucial to the Board. David joined the
Boord in October 20717, allowing him to gain ¢
sound understanding of the business before
being appoeinted as Chair in Cctober 2018, His
focus has been on improving best practices,
corporate governance, promoting diversity
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Board functions effectively by facilitating
an epen and productive debate and providing
constructive challenge.

MIKE ASHLEY
Chief Executive

Appointed: 1982 {founder}

Provious roles:

Mike established the business of the Group
on leaving school in 1982 and was the scle
owner until the Group's listing in March 2007.
He was Executive Deputy Chair prior to being
appeinted Chief Executive in September 2016.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Mike was the founder of the Group and has -
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commerciat strategy of the Group. With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is invaluable to the Group.
Mike’s knowledge and experience in all areas
of retailing, buying, warehousing and logistics
ensures that he is crucial to the effective and
efficient running of operations. During the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic his decisive
teadership has meant the Group has managed
to come out of this crisis in good health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.

Prinled on Stembels 100%% Recycled a

Carbon Captured throuah the Woodland Trust. helping o ¢ ow British woodiand across the DK



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

CHRIS WOOTTON
Chiel Finoncial Officer

Appointed: 12 September 2019

Pravious role:
Chris weorked in the assurance practice ot PwC
for much of his accounting career, including

working on large corporates and listed entities.

Kay skills, experience and contribution:

Chris is o Chartered Accountant. After joining
the Group, he quickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team. He has helped the Group on its elevation
path and significantly improved the Finance
team's skills, experience and capabilities. -
Chris is a key driver of the Group's accounting
principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple.

Chris has had to play a key role as part of the
Leadership team in the Group's respanse to
the Covid-19 pandemic, including stakeholder
management, and cashflow management and
forecasting.
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CALLY PRICE

Non-E: ive Workforce Di
Representative

ond Workers'

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Previous roles:

Cally began her career with Frasers Group as
a casual sales assistant in our Sports Direct
Aberdare store in 2007.

Present roles:

the Company's Workers' Representative and
Manager of the Cardiff $t David's Sports Direct
store.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

With over 12 years' experience with Frosers
Group, starting on the shop floor working under
a zere hours contract, Caliy is ideally placed
to ensure that the voice of the workforca js ot
the forefront of the Board's discussions ond
decision-making. She has current knowledge
of every aspect of the day-to-day running

of a retail outlet and apples this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring
full transparency ocross the Group and has
control af the workforce company app and
confidential hotling, taking on the responsi
of answering every colleague personoily.
Cally reports to the Board with worker issues
raised and consistently challenges them

from her unique perspective. Alongside our
colleague development team, Cally has been
committed to ensuring that the wellbeing of
all Frasers Group caolleagques is paramount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our relationship with the Retail Trust, Cally has
presented company-wide webinars with trained
mental health advisors, to offer support and
guidance to our colleagues. When restrictions
have permitted her to do so, Cally also sits
with Senior Management at our Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensuring that she is
continuously invalved in the running of Frosers
Group. Cally has become both the voice and
face of our people, reprasenting all of our
colleagues and providing a collective voice
for all.

£y

RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE

Senior Ind: dent Now stive Director,
Chair of the Audit Committee

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Nomination
- Cornmittees

Previous roles:
Richard has aver 25 years' experience working

.with listed companies during his time as a

senior partner at KPMG, and he remains a
member of the Audit Committee Institute.

Prior to joining the Board, Richard was a
Non-executive Director of Newcastle Building
Society, where he chaired the Audit Committee.

Prasent roles:

Richard is Chair of Trystees of the Greggs plc
1978 Retirement and Dreath Benefits Scheme.
He is olso o Non-executive Director of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Packaging
Limited and Jessgrove Limited.

Key skills, experiance and contribution:
Richard has strong experience in corporote
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His experience in the audit sector has proven
peneficial. Richard has been influential in
the recruitment of a Head of internal Audiit,
ensuring that risks are properly assessed and
mitigated,

FRASERS GROUP

DAVID BRAYSHAW

stive Director, Chair of
the Remuneration Committes

Appointed: B December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Previous roles:

David is o very experienced senior investment
and commercial banker. He has over 30 years'
experience with erganisations such as Barclays
Capital, HSBC, Citigroup and Pilkingtan plc.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

David graduated from Oxford in 1975 with a

Masters of Arts in Chemistry. He has spent

a long career in corporate financing for a

number of major financial institutions, ond

was the Group Treasurer of Pilkingten ple,

David spert 15 years at Barclays Capital,

advising FTSE 350 cempanies on o}l aspects

of corporate, syndicated, and capital markets

funding, together with interest rate, foreign

exchange and balance sheet hedging. He has

funded countless public company acquisitions

ond remains involved in an advisory rale with

several corporates and banks in a private

capacity. He has @ proven track record in the

finance ond acquisitions sector, previding |
sound advice in line with the Group's elevation

strategy. i




,

Printed on Stenbeis 100% Recycled and G

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

NICOLA FRAMPTON

Ind dant N ive Direct
ve

P MNon

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Remuneration
Committees

Pravious roles:

Prior to joining Domino’s Pizza Group, Nicola
was at William Hill from April 2010. She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
working closely with the Board, Exco and
operational management. During her time at
‘William Hilk, Nicola led a number of successful
major inhovation and transformation projects.
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
working in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Present roles:

Nicola has spent most of her recent career in
senior executive management roles and has
recently been appeinted ta a new position
with Doming's Pizza Group, where she is Chief
Operations Officer,

Key skills, experi and contribution:

Micola has extensive experience in risk
rianagement, assurance and corporate
governance across a wide range of industries,
having specialised in these areas of corporate
activity at both William Hill and prior to that
whilst at Deloitte. The Board benefits from
Nicolu's current retail experience as the serving
Managing Director of a large non-competing
retail business. Nicola serves as a Trustee
Board member on a number of charities and
brings an informed perspective on corporate
ity to the Board.

39

on Gaptuied through the Woodland Trust, helping to o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair's Introduction

s Chair, | am responsible for leading the Board
to make decisions that will benefit the Group
and ultimately its stakeholders. My rele is to
ensure that we cdhere to high standards of
corporate governance and allow the Group

to thrive during these pasticularly chaltenging
times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have
remmained resilient and robust in our opproach
to corporate governance.

Our Non-executive Directors have a great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
all discussions and are rigorous in challenging
the Executives in the best interests of the Group.
Qur Executive Directors understand the Group’s
values and behaviours. They work tirelessly to
retain and grow shareholder value, engage cur
workforce and promote the Group's strategy.

The Beard and the Audit Committee held
more meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure thot matters arising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. { would like to thank Board members
for their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakeholder focus and incoming
regulation, we have increased our work on
improving our environmental impact and
sustainability. During the year, the Sustainability
Steering Group was formed under the CFQO's
leadership. Further details are included in our
ESG report.

Further information regarding our compliance
with the Code can be found in our Corporate
Governance Statement,

David Daly

Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

» now Hritish woodiand across the UK
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This Corporate Governance Report and
Statement sets out how the Company has
applied the principles in the 2018 UK Corporote
Governance Cede during its financial year
ended 25 April 2021. A copy of the Code is
available at www.fre.org.uk.

Disclosures in relation to DTR 7.2.6 (share
capital) and DTR 7.2.8 (diversity) are set out in

Pravislon Reguimmant

the Directors' Report and in the Nomination
Committee Statement.

The Board considers that it complied with the
muajority of the principles ond provisions of the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code for the
pericd ended 25 April 2021, The following table
sets out the provisions which hove not been
fully complied with during FY21: ’

36 Remuneration schemes should
promote long-term shorehold ngs
by Executive Directors that support
olignrmant with long-tarm sherahalder
infgrests Shore awards gramied far
this purpase should be raleased
for sola on a phased bass ang
ba subjact to a totul vesting and
halding perod of five years or more
The Ramuneration Committen
shauld develop g toemal palicy tor
post-employment shorehalding
tequirements encompasng both
unvested dnd vested sharas

Ths Group doas not have an LTIP
shwrg scheme for the Executiee
Directars share scheme will Lie put to

. an executive

snarehatders ot the AGM inrespect of
Chris Waattan

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE
The Baard

There were no Board changes during the
year. The Board's stability has enabled the
Company to confidently meet the challenges
of, and novigote successfully threugh, these
unprecedent times.

The Board decided to renew the appointment
of our workforce Director, Cally Price, for o
further few years, subject to AGM election

until October 2024, Cally has had o huge
impact on the Board and successfully octs as a
conduit between the workforce and Directors.
She brings new insights and perspective to

the Board and plays a key role in helping
colleagues understand the challenges and
apportunities facing the business, She has
continued to work tirelessly in briefing the
workforce on developments during the Covid-19
pandemic. | am alsc pleased to be continuing
in iy role of Chair for o further term of three
years, following its renewal by the Board in July
2020.
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Business Model

The Group's business model remains consistent
in providing customers with the world's best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time and
at the right price. In ensuring the sustainability
of this we have applied the multi~channel
elevation strategy in elevating not only our
stores and brands, but also the customer
experience. Further information on the Group
business model and strategy can be found in
the Strategic Report, Governance plays a key
role in the business model and the delivery of
strategy as the Board defines expectations and
verifies performance towards the defivery of
strategic aims ahad objectives.

i

FRASERS GROUP

Culture

During the year, the Board received an
independent report on the employee value
proposition, including the culture of the Group
which is discussed further in the Gur People ond
External Board Review section of this Annual
Report. Our culture is embedied in a strong
work ethic, creativity and risk, underpinned by
three key principles to guide our people in an
aspirational and instructive way:

- Ownit and back yourself;
- Don’t hesitate and act with purpose.

- Think without limits ond take the team with
you,

Further information on the Group's culture
15 contained within the "Culture and Values®
section of this report.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has a number of stakeholders to
consider and we use a variety of methods to
ensure that we capture their views and use
them to shape our decisions. Stakeholder
engagement is important to our performarnce,
ana we take on board both commendation and
constructive criticism. However, whiist we are
mindful of each stakehelder group, we have to
balence their views against other competing
facters and recognise that the result may not
be positive for al! stakeholder groups. During
the year, the Board has made decisions based
on Board papers, presentations from senior
executives ond discussions with and reports
from external consultants,

Employees

Please see the Directors’ Report for details of
colleague engagement.

Shareholders

Qur AGM provides an opportunity for all
shareholders to engage with the Board

and submit questions. Due to the Covid-19
pandemic, the 2020 AGM was a closed
meeting, However, shareholders were invited

to submit questions prior the meeting. All
resolutions were passed at the meeting and no
resolutions recerved an "against” vote of 20% or
more,

The views of maojor sharehalders are shared
amongst the Board when received and we
respond as necessary. The Board ensures thaot
it is available for questions at the half year
and full year results presentations, to which
major shareholders are invited. Shareholders’
opinions are closely monitored through analyst
and broker reporting and all correspondence
received from major investors is circulated to
the relevant committee chair or the Boord as
appropnate. .

Customers

We strive to continually improve customer
engugement and satisfaction, The Customer
Service function has continued with its
elevation phase, to support customers by .
offering innovative, easy to use technology
ond creating a culture of highly engaged
colleagues. A new contact management
solution has been deployed across dll fascias
within the Group, improving custamer
communication channels, allowing customers to
self-service and improving the level and speed
of response provided by the Customer Service
teams. This work continues, as we offer more
contact channels to enable customers to reach
aut to one of sur customer care team, helping
to resolve enguiries fuster than ever before,

We are committed to Jistening to our customers
and have recently engaged an independent
external partner to help us understand and act
upon custemers feedback. We have improved
our reporting, resulting in process chunges

and helping us increase our external Custorner
Satisfaction (CSAT) score. The Board approved
measures for store reopening foilowing the
Covid-19 pandemic to ensure the safety of
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customers and colleagues. The Board also
approved a 50% discount for customers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
work during the pandemic.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m to elevate

our proposition across our retail channels.

This investment will build on cur core digital
foundations and includes initictives to improve
the online customer experience by carefully
targeted investment in platforms that support
customer service, engagement end data. We
are also investing in digital marketing to drive
sales growth.

Suppliers

We aim to forge strong and transparent
relationships with all of our suppliers, to enable
us to provide customers with excellent products
and to meet the standards that our brand
partners set for their products. The Elevation No
Limits strategy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners (including our Strategic
investments) and this continues to be a priority.
Having worked with Nike for aver 30 years, the
Chair is instrumental in engaging and helping
to maintain cur redationship with one of our key
brand partners, Nike.

Dedicated relationship and procurement and
commercial teams suppart truly integrated
supplier engagement. Electronic Data Interface
{EDl} capability also improves our process
efficiency through the commercial cycle and
enhances supplier engagement, through a
dedicated supplier portal. .

We have long-standing relationships with two
+ey gateway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

Further details in relation to environmental and
ethical considerations can be found within the
Erwironment Report.

4

Regulators

The Group makes every endeavour to comply
with its legal and regulotory obligations. We
regularly ligise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCA in an open and transparent manner. The
Finance teamn and the Beord have established
regular communications with tax authorities
internationally.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, Board members
linised with the Government on a number of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
example, regarding store closures.

Lenders

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFQ is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in relation to financial lenders.
With the assistance of the Finance team, the
CFO ensures that the Group complies with

the terms and conditions in its credit focitity
agreements. The CFO regularly liaises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the
Chair of the Audit Committee, to discuss the
Group's financial performance.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the Board
discussed cash flow forecasts and the
availcbility of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Board discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Focility.

Our Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There was a particular
focus during the early peried of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, as management held
regular conference calls with lenders to say
engaged and informed.

FRASERS GROUP

Community

Details of our engagement with the community
can be found in our ESG report.

Workforce Concorns

Workforce concerns regarding the business
end its operations are taken seriously and we
provide a number of ways that colleagues can
voice their issues. When issues arise, colieagues
are encouraged to speak to their line managers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust,

If colfeagues want to express their concerns
confidentially or anenymously, they cen use the
whistleblowing hotline or "Your Company, Your
Voice'. Cally Price works with colleagues across
the business to resolve issues and she reports
issues to the Board during scheduled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

_all whistle blowing reports and has access to

independent advice as appropriate.
Director Concerns

During the year, no concerns were raised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the mancgement of the Group.

Conflicts of Interest -

Detuails of pracedures regarding Directors’
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the control ing
shareholder, can be found in the Directors'
Report.

Corporate Governance Policy Review

During the year, external advisors were
appointed to review the Group's governance
policies ond ensure they are documented and
reflect best practice. A review of these findings
will take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chair

The Chair leads the Board, ensuring
constructive communications between Board
members and that all Directors are able to play
a full part in the Board's activities. The Chair
sets Board agendas and ensures that Board
meetings are effective and that all Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear informotion.

The Chair communicates with shareholders
effectively and gnsures that the Board
understands the views of major investors. The
Chair also provides advice and support to

hoth the Executive and Non-executive Board
members. Upan his appointrment, the Chair met
the independence criteria set out in provision 10
of the Corporate Governance Code,

The Chisf Executive

The Chief Executive has a pivotal role in
formulating and implementing the Group's
strategy. He is responsible-for the day-to-day
running of the business, equipping hirmself with
a team of executives to ensure that the Beard's
decisions are implemented. The Chief Executive
is the main point of communication between
the senior executives and the Non-executive
Directors, and regularly updates the Board on
the Group's trading position.

The Senior Independent Director

Richard Bottemley, OBE, is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director. He
supports the Chair and Non-executive Directors
and is available to assist shareholders if they
have concerns.
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Role Of The Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors have broad
experience from o wide range of sectors.

Their role is to understand the Group in

its entirety, to constructively challenge

strotegy and management performance,

set executive remuneration and ensure
appropriate succession planning is in place.
The Non-executive Directers must also ensure
they are satisfied with the accuracy of financial
information and that effective risk management
and internal cantrol processes are in place.

Independence

There are currently three independent
Non-executive Directors, s well as a
Non-executive Chair, a"Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative, and two Executive Directors,

All Non-executive Directors, other than the
Mon-executive Workforce Director ond Workers'
Representative, were considered independent
upon appointment. The Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers' Representative
is not considered to be independent s she is
employed by the Group.

Delegation of Responsibilities

The Board has three sub-committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees
are governed by Terms of Reference, which
provide details of matters delegated to

them. The Terms of Reference are ovailable
on the Group's website at frasers.groupy
financials/corporate-governgnce. The roles

of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior
Independent Director are clearly defined

and set out in writing, The role profiles were
reviewed and updated during the year.
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REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Remuneration
policy

Approving strategic aims and objectivas-

. Remuneration
schemes

Service
contracts for
senior executivas

Matters Reserved For The Board

KEY BOARD
RESPONSIBILITIES

>vv3<_=m Ucn_mmnm,

Board members

a materic! level

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Composition of the Board

Suecession planning

m.m...::m the Group's valuas and stendards

Approving acquisitions and disposals

Approving the appointment or removal of

Approving foreign exchange and
cammodities transactions above

FRASERS GROUP

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

. Extarnal
audit

Financial
reparting

Intarnal
audit
Risk
‘monagement

.Wo..:v:n:nm
ond fraud

There is a formal schedule of matters that require Board approval, as they could have significant
strategic, financial or reputational impact on the Group. These matters were reviewed and updated

by the Board during the yetr.
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FRASERS GROUP

Board Performance

On an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking into account
the views of the Executive Directors. The
outcome of the review is relayed to the Chair,
with constructive comments to improve future
performance. During the peried, the Chair
reviewed the performance of all Non-executive
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed to and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
discussed with each Non-executive Director
how they can improve their knowledge,
behaviaur and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The performance of the
Executive Directors was also reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson Limited
was also carried out during the year and this is
discussed within the Board Review report.

A number of informal meetings also took
place throughout the year between various
Non-executive Directors and the Chair without
the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

.
Prior to accepting Board positions, prospective
Directors are informed that following induction,
they are required to dedicate between 15

and 20 days per annum to fulfil the role of a
Non-executive Director. Non-executive Directors
are aware that scheduled and unscheduied
meetings may take place, as well as other
events including site visits, shareholder
meetings and strategy meetings. The time
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors' letters of appointment is regularty
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate.
Regular training is offered to ali Directors

and this is further considered during Director
evaluations,

The Directors are expected to attend all
scheduled Board meetings and are usked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduled
meetings. To assist with managing their
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commitments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annual Board calendars early
in the second half of the preceding year. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

Appointment Documentation

Details of Executive Directors' service contracts,
and of the Chair's and the Non-executive
Directors’ appointment letters, are contained
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Copies of service contracts and appointment
letters are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal
business hours and ot the Annual General
Meeting. Neither of the Executive Directors hold
a directorship of another FTSE 350 company.

Meeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each
scheduled meeting and appropriate
documentation is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Board meeting agenda
iterns include reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board manitors and questions
perfermance and reviews anticipated results.
The Board also receives reports from the
Non-executive Warkforce Director and
Workers' Representative, who attends all Board
meetings.

During Board meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic issues where
appropriate, and the Board considers the
Group's strategy at least annually. Minutes of
Committee meetings are circulated to all Board
members for agreement. Copies of analysts'
reports and brokers’ notes are also provided

to Directors. Guest attendees are invited to
present at Board meetings.

Board Meeting Attendance

The Board has a formal scheduie of regular meetings, where it approves major decisions and uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business. The Board will meet on other cccasions os and when
required. .

The Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are set out in the table below. Attendance was high for
all Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented from doing so by a prior commitment.
There was a high number of unscheduled meetings during the year, te discuss the Group's response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Committee meetings alse took place. A strategy day was held in October.

Beard Baord Audit  Refipwretion  Nemdnation
Mestings: i it

Schadulad Unschadubed Mustings Mastings Mastings

Mikg ashley /6 i
Richord Bollamley ) 5/6 &/7 &/ 3
Davia Brayshow 6f6 27 &6 33 3
Dawvid Daly 6f6 Yl ElE] 73
Nicala Framptan 616 i 8/8 EIE] 3

Wiootton b6 bt

Cally Prce 676 Wi

] Ruchord was unable to ottend one Board meeting which wos schedulad at short nohce, due te beng on hal

e mestings were attendad by Board membars wiio wars not
inwitation of the Commttea Chairs. Board members utanded
| durshon af the meelings

members of the Com
these meetings for

rnation rather than influance, and may not have attended for the
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All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, and may
take independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, subject te prior notification
te the other Non-executive Directors and the
Company Secretary. The campany secretarial
team hos been strengthened during the year,

to suppert the Group's expansion ond ensure
compliance with increased regulation,

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Compuany maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He also advises the Board on corporate
governance matters, During FY21, external
training was provided to the Board on the
Market Abuse Regulation.

The Group's Position And Prospects

The Board take responsibility for the
preparation of the Annual Report and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement that
taken as a whole, they are fair, batanced and
understandable. We are confident that the
Annual Report and Accounts provide sufficient
detail and that our shareholders have been
pravided with the necessary information on
the Group's position, performarice, business
rmodel and strategy, further details of which
can be found in the Strategic Report, Detailed
information on the Group's finoncial position
and performance can also be located in the
Group Financial Statements,

* The Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting
closure of non-essential retail stores for much
of the year, has hod significant impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this period the Board has met on a number of
oceasions ta discuss the impact of the Covid-12
pandemic on trading and the Group's fong-term
future, The Covid-19 pandemic is deamed to
be a highly significant issue for the Group. The
Board is confident that the Group has adequate
resource to remain in aperational existence for
the fareseegble future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting i
preparing the financial statements, As o result
of its findings, the Board has adopted @ going
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concern statement for F¥21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Report. The
Directors have also assessed the prospects

of the Group over 3.5 years, the Viability
Statermnent can be found of pages 36 to 37,

Risk Mahagement

The Board's responsibilities and procedures

for managing risk and the supporting systems
of internal control are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic
Report and further informatien is included in
the Audit Committee Report.

Controls in respect of financial reperting and
the production of the consolidated financial
statements are well estoblished. Group
accounting policies are consistently oppliad
and review and reconciliation controls operate
effectively. Stondard reporting packages are
used by cll Group entities to ensure consistent
and standard information is available for

the production of the consolidated financial
statements. The Group Accounting Manual is
under ¢ cycle of ongoing review and forms part
of our internal contrels continuous improvement
activity during FY22.

The Board has carried out a robust assessment
of the Groups' emerging ond principal risks in
the period and further detail can be found in
the Strategic Report as noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

1 arn pleosed to present the report of the Audit
Committee [the Committee) for the 52-week
period ended 25 April 2021. The report sets out
the Committee's work and areas of focus during
this unprecedented year, which has seen the
global spread of Covid-19 ond Government-
mandated lockdowns impacting all
geographies across our Group. The-Commnittee
has therefore focused on and discussed the
Groug's performance, and the impacts of, and
response to these external factors.

We monitored the Group's engoing viability
and going concern positions, incorperating
the impaocts of the pandemic and including
the review of key cccounting judgements and
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
and had clear oversight of the activities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Group. We
have also monitored the Group's response to
opportunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
come through the peried stronger and on track
to meet our strategic targets on the return to
broader economic recovery.

On behalf of the Board, the Committes
moenitors the Group's financial reporting
processes and the integrity of its financial
statements and ensures high standards of
quolity and effectiveness in the external audit
process. The Committee also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management ond internal
control, governance and compliance.

We have built a strong and productive working
relationship with RSM since their appointment
in 2019 as our External Auditor and we value
the integrity, strength and depth of their audit
and approach.

The Committee has supported management
with the Group's RCF renewal with potentiai
new and existing lenders and is comfortable
with the strength of engagement and financial
support for the business and its strategic intent.

We have made strong progress against our
cantinuous improvement assurance agenda
across governance, risk and control and this
was noted in the Group's external Board
evalyation which is discussed in more detail
within the External Board Review report We
also continue to strengthen relationships with
our Big 4 and Top 10 co-source partners. We
have closely monitored the Government's audit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our appreach to readiness as part of aur F¥21
and FY22 agendas.

The Committee values the cngoing work of the
Group's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seek assurance that
their work remains a strength in our Greup, Qur
performance as o business hos remained strong
in these extremely chalienging circumstances.

It has been imgressive to see the continued
strength and depth of experience across

all our business teams and their ability to
withstand and manage the significant risks that
materialised.

Taking its responsi es as a whole, the
Committee is satisfied that the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriote {see further
detail ot page 64) and that the Group is viable
over its assessment period {see page 36}.

{ would like to take the opportunity to thank alf
our colleagues for their valuable commitment,
contributions and support towards our Group
performance,
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Membership

During the year, the Audit Committee
comprised three Non-executive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors’ profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annucl Report.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior
Independent Non-executive Directar, | am
satisfied that the Committee's membership
includes Directors with recent and refevant
financial experience and competence in
accounting, risk management and governance,
and that the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the retail sectorin
which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee met eight times during the
year as we have extended our agenda to
cccommodate our assurance requirements.
Non-Committee members of the Boord and
the executive management team attended
Committee meetings at my invitation to
ensure the Caommittee is kept informed of
importont developments in the business and
the risk and control environment. Attendance
by members of the executive management
team also helps to reinforce a strong culture
of risk management within the business.
Non-Committee members do net participate in
Audit Committee decision making.

Cur External Auditor attended alt Cemmittee
reetings during the year. The Committee
mreets privately with the External Auditor at
least annually. In my capacity as Chair, | have
regular meetings with the External Auditor
prior te each Committee meeting during

the audit plonning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and to avoid
any surprises. | am also in continuous contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit Lead
Partner and our Head of [nternal Audit &

Risk Management, who has an independent
reporting line to me.

_
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The Main Responsibilities Of The Audit
Committes

The Committee’s main responsi es, as
delegated by the Board, remained unchenged
during the year and are set out in the
Committee's Terms of Reference. These include
oversight, assessment and review of:

Financiol Statements And Reporti

* The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as a whole and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
financicl performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

+  The Group's ossessment of its going concern
and longer-term prospects and viobility.

External Auditor

= The effectiveness of the external audit
process taking into consideration
relevont UK professional and regulatery
requirements; and

+ Developing and implementing policy on the
~ supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and approving any such work.

Risk Management And Internal Contrels

+  The effectiveness of the Group's internal
financial controls, risk management and
internal contrel systems, including the
activities of the internal Audit function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvement;

« ldentifying and assessing principal and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

+  The effectiveness of whistlebiowing
arrangements.

nd Trust, helpinn o ce

FRASERS GROUP

in addition, the Committes: + -Monitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control
systems and received detailed reports
and presentations on principal risks
management;

= Supports the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for Corporate Governance
Code complicnce;

» Advises the Board on the outcome of the
external audit and whether it considers
the Annual Report and Accounts, when
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide information * Reviewed its Terms of Reference; and
necessary to sharehotders to assess the +  Together with the Board, considered the
Group’s position and performance, business Committee's own effectiveness.
model ond strategy;

= Continued to support the Finance
leadership and evcluated the strength and
depth of the Finance team;

+  Makes recammendations to the Board on
the appeintment, reappointment or remaoval
of the External Auditor;

= Approves the External Auditor’s fees and
terms of engagement;

= Muaintains strong relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective responsibilities; and

» Reports to the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its responsibilities during the
year.

During The Period

The Committee focused on o number of
significant areas of internal control {including
financial, operational and compliance controls).
During the period, the Committee:

» Monitored the business response, internal
controls and impact on the Group's financial
performance and reporting as the Covid-19
pandemic risk materialised;

* Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and assessed whether suitable accounting
policies have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements;

+ Reviewed the detailed scenarios and
assumptions behind the going concern basis
of accounting and longer-term vicbility;

= Assessed the effectiveness of the external
audit precess and considered the
reappointment of RSM as the External
Auditor for FY22; .

v Botish woodiond acress the UK
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Risk M. t And Internol Controk

Information on our approach ta risk
management and internat control is set out

in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
concluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30. Our plans for continuous
improvement of our risk management and
internal controf systems remained in place
during the year and establishing a Group
internal Audit & Risk Management function has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail
Suppert Unit is central to the Greup's system
of internat control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail eperational procedures and systems.

in the year, the Committes focused on a
number of significant areos of internal contrai,
inctuding:

+ Solvency and liquidity;

= Business continuity, IT disaster recovery and
incident response;

+  Key legistative and regulatory obligations,
including data protection, pandemic-related
reguiation and oversight of Government
plans for audit and governance reform
- strengthening controls over financial
reporting;

- Cyber risk and data ioss prevention,
including strengthening of our information
security capaobility;

«  Progress against business and finance
systems transfermation; -

+ Updates on the governance policies review
and reporting;

*  Reviewing significant accounting
judgements and estimates;

> The voluation of assets and stock and the
calculation of associated provisions;

+  The effectiveness of hedge accounting
and the management of foreign currency
exposures;

+  Property and the systems in place to ensure
impairments are recognised on a timely
basis;
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= Climate risk and our environmental, social
and governance agenda, supporting
Taskforce for Climate-refoted Financiol
Disclosures reparting; and

+  The Group's banking arrangements.

See further at page 39 for the Board's
statement on Corporate Governance.

Audit Quality

The Committee received comprehensive
updates from RSM and the business in response
to outlined reform proposals in the current
Government consultation: restoring trust in
audit and corporate governance.

Building on the three significant reviews in

the |ast couple of years -the Competition and
Markets Authority (CMA) Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydon Review - the
UK qudit sector, the oudit profession, audit
regulation, ond the quality of the audit product,
have never been under greater scrutiny.

The Committee will continue to oversee the
development of plans for compliance readiness
in response to the current consultation.

External Auditor

The Committee was pleased to recommend the
reappointment of RSM as External Auditor for
FY21 following @ robust external audit review of
FY2p. The length of tenure of RSM as external
auditors is 2 years.

RSM has reported to the Committee that, in its
professional judgment, it is independent within
the meaning of regulatary afd professional
requirements and the objectivity of the audit
engegement partner and cudit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee has assessed
the independence if the auditor, ond concurs
with this stetement.

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of
the externat cudit process on an ongoing basis
and makes recommendotions onnually to the
Board on the External Auditor's reappaintment.
The Externai Auditor is then proposed for
reappointment [as applicable) each year at the
AGM,

In making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers a number of factors
relating to the level of service provided by the
External Auditor, the quality of its work and its
independence. These include:

+  The quality and scope of the planning of
the externat gudit, including the External
Auditor’s assessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the audit plan to respond
to changes in the business;

«  The quality and timeliness of the External
Auditor's reports to the Committee and the
Beard during the year;

+  The level of understanding that the External
Auditor has demenstrated in relation to the
Group's businesses and the retuail sector;

+ The objectivity of the External Auditor's view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came to its attention during the course of its
audit work, and the robustness of challenge
and its findings on areas which require
management judgement;

+  The contents of any external reports or
regulatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

+  The nature and scope of non-oudit services
provided by the External Auditor and the
level of fees charged for these services.

We have a stringent policy and approval
process in place in respect of non-audit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagement minimal unless in exceptional
but recsonable circumstances, and in line with
Group policy.

Opinion On The Annual Report And Accounts

The Board has asked the Committee to advise
it on whether the Annucl Report and Aceounts,
taken as ¢ whole, are fair, bglanced and
understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's position, perfermance, business model
and strategy.

The Committee has reviewed the process
for preparing this Annug) Report in order to
assess whether other information contained
in it is consistent with the Group's financial
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021. This process has included the following
key elements:

* Reviewing new regulations and reporting
" requirements with external advisers
to identify additional infermation and
disclosures that may be appropriate;

» Preparing o detailed timetable and
allocation of drafting responsi
refevant internal teams with review by an
appropricte senicr manager;

+  Providing an explanation of the requirement
for the Annual Repert and Accounts,
taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and
understandable, to those with drafting
responsibility;

+  Monitoting the integrity of the financial
statements and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and agccurate assessment of the
Group's finoncial position and performance;

« Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained in the
financial statements;

«  Review of all sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external advisers;

*  Review by the senior manager working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and

»  Overall review of the contents of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the
period under review,

The Committee has advised the Board that

it considers the Annual Repart and Financia)
Statements for the year ended 25 April 2023,
when token as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that they provide the
necessary information to assess the Group's
position, performance, business modei ond
strategy. .
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Significant Finuncial Reporting lssues

The Committee has considered the following creas of significance during the period and held
discussions with management and the Externc! Auditor in reviewing these matters. The Committee is
satisfied with how each of these matters has been discussed and addressed.

Going concern uau viabiiity

.;u Audit Commites has hatd extensive talks wi
Committes os a whole has revawed and cl aniysis o
:o.__ these assussmants This wicludes reviawng cash Now forecdsts, sensitiaty anatysis, bnonce
faciitis and future funding plans We considared arans of angoing ungertainty in respect of the
pandemic, Brexit a1 the broader ecanomic downturn

mantgermunit on going cancern and vl

Whilst the Groupy's RCF anpires in Novernbet 2072, managerngnt and the Committee ore confident new
be aranged with the Groug's syndicate of lenders, reploong the current fouity by the
time § axpires On this bows, the Com
appraprate and ths Graup 15 wakle aver s osssssment penod, Further mlormation 5 included within
the Viabity Staternent und the Directar's Repost

Invuntery

The Comeiltes har considersd the work parlormend on inventory valugtion and provisioning and has
raviewed manogerr ent's mathedelogy he Commttee 1s sat s tonsistent wilh the
prior pariad and has approprately considered the mpact of 19 pandemic on e Groug's

IFRS 16 ucco

1y for lenses

The Commttee hos considered ol aspects of IFRSTE uccountug for leases inchuding munagement's
Stoternents The

Mew & satisfed 1t

Impuiement of nght-of-use assets, property, plent
& equiprment, Ireshold praperty and related
propesty provisions

The Cor
assump

ttae e ewed and chollenged manogement's impairment testing incbudng the key

s g nathodologies used The projected cash flows, trales and thrd porly
used 0 € e were appropriate within te ontaxt of the Cowd19

pandsmic. changes i consuma© bulhaviour and ecolome uncartuintus

Farward currency conteacts

Tha Cotrmittas revérwed and discussad with anagemant the valuotion methodalagy used and
arcounting trsotet applied to denvotae contracts The Committee also review delegated outhonties
in place For the exacution of such transactions and is satisfied thase ure oppropnate

Accounting for invastmants and assaciates

vestrments the Co nimittee 1t's wark on p and classihication risk, in
respect of investment sharehoidings in excess of 20% This work Invalves managsment udgement bn
e Group hos sigarficant mfluence over hess =
with management cnd reviawed thur n o

In ralution to associatas T
rapresemations in d ster

ng whether the Growp hus control over ts ossoriotes

The Committee s sctshad that munagament judgements cre appropniate, thot | he investiment in
MUTBSrTy in the pefiad has Desn treated oid disclosed appropnately and there 5 olherwise no matenol
<hange fram the priar year position impacting s conclusion

elated porties

The Commuttee hus avaluabed the uppropnotensss of relaled -party disclosurss thiough dscussions
with inunugernunt o review of popers o ing the valucton of the Ioan to Four Haidngs Lemted
and the £Y21 poyment and apprageh b praes i respect of MM Frop Cansultancy Limited The
Cormrrittee 15 sabished that the disclosures, payment and to PP

Govemment support {furlough

Graup hos race ed Government support in tha period in tha form of the Coronavirus Job Ret
Scheme based on mandated stora ciosures ond the Need o presevs jobs The complenties of the
scherna amd the nee i to ensure compliance wy
this o key area of facus du the year and lar externol ourdl review The Comi
conwdednng the work of ternol teams and axternal adwisers thot manogement has appropnately
aceounted tor ond recagnised the Government support recerved and that there is no matan
processes suppo ting these cloims The Commetiee also nates the transpareicy and engagement

Lagal and other provisions ond ncrrugls

respect
levels of uncertainty nd esh
challenyed managur wnt's conclusions ond raviewed iIndependent third-party «epoits where ovoilabls
As 0 nault, thu Cor d the classiication and presantatian of lagol and other provisions
<te Opproprote

we 15 5ot
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CMA Order 2014 Statement Of Compliance

Frasers Group confirms that it was in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial period ended 25 April uoﬁ The
Committee has discussed all the items above in detail with the External Auditor.

Review Of The Committee's Effactiveness

The annual review of the Committee’s effectiveness was included in the externally facilitated Board
evaluation during the pericd. The Committee is pleased to see the positive outcome of that report, as
well as its observations and recommendations,

The Committee has improved its governance and annual planning cycle in the year and wil} continue
to build on this in FY22. | menitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
and invite input from the External Auditor on this.

Key Objectives For FY22
The Cemmittee’s key objectives for F¥22 are:

+ Centinue to monitor the impacts of the pandemic on our business, its performance, its response
and its financial positien;

+  Oversee the development of plans in response to the Government's reform proposals: restoring
trust in audit and corporate governance;

»  Monitor centinuous improvement of the Group's systems of risk management and internal control;

* Maintain a strong relationship with our External Auditar and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and effective external audit; and .

+ Strengthen assurance activity across the Group based on the three lines model, (eccountability,
actions, assurance).
Richard Bottomley

Chuir of the Audit Committee and
Senior independent Non-executive Director

5 August 2021

ey Brtish woodland across i
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

To meet the Group's needs, the Nomination
Committee must ensure that the Board

remains competent, diversé, well balanced and

equipped to deal with any present or future
issues which rmay arise. it is also important

that the Nomination Committee both supports

and challenges the decisions of the Executive

Directors, which inciudes reviewing the Group's

leadership and making recommendations
regarding the appointment of new Directors
and extending the term of office of existing
Directors.

Bicgraphical details of each Committee
member are shown in the Board of Directors’
profiles on poges 37 to 39.

The Nomination Committee usually meets
formally twice @ year, aithough additional
meetings take place when appropriate, The
Committee formally met three times during

Directers and senior management,

taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
skills and expertise therefore needed on the
Board;

+  Formally documenting the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors;

«  Identifying potential candidates for senior
posts, and making recommendations to the
Board; and

* Considering the recommendations to
shareholders for re-electing the Directors,
under the annual re-election provisiens of
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

A full list of the Committee's responsib
are set out 1n its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Group Website: www frasers.
group.

What Has The Committee Dona During
The Year?

FY21, with all meetings being held virtually due
to the Covid-12 pandemic. The Committee
members alse had o number of infermal
discussions during the year, All members of
the Nomination Cormnmittee are Non-executive
Directors and, with the exception of the Chair,
are considered to be independent.

The Responsibilities Of The Nomination
Committee Include:

a8
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Reviewing the leadership needs of the
Group, locking at both Directors and senior
monagement;

Reviewing the composition, structure and
size of the Board, and recommending
adjustments to the Board, having regard to
diversity, skills, knowledge and experience;

Reviewing the time the Non-executive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their duties;

Identifying and nominating, for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise;

Considering succession plonning for

Board Nominations

The Cornmittee considered and
recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Cally Price as Non-
executive Workforce Director. In making
this recammendation, the Committee
recognised the enormous value and
contribution that Cally brings to the Board.
She provides great insight and perspective
on all important issues that affect the
performance of the workfarce across the
organisation.

The Committee considered and
recommended the election or re-election

of all Directors ot the AGM, following
consideration of their effectiveness and
commitment.

FRASERS GRQUP

Composition of the Board

The Committee has reviewed the Board's
compaositicn and we continue to look to odd
talented people to the Board, who will bring
the apprepriate skills and experience. The
restrictions as o consequence of Covid-19
lockdowns have slowed the process but we
remain committed to strangthening our
Board. We have again spoken ta Audeliss
recruitment which specialises in recruiting
diverse talent and we have also hed
discussions with a number of condidetes
with strong experience and a background in
HR. Audeliss has no other connection with
the Company or any of its Directors.

in considering new appointments te

the Board, the Committee will identify
suitable candidates to fulfil the skill-sets
requited, by taking inte account succession
planning and diversity objectives. Members
of the Committee and the executive
management teom will then meet with the
candidate before the Committee considers
recommending the appointment ta the

Board,
Board Evaluation

+  Belinde Hudsen Ltd was engaged
to conduct the FY20 external Board
evaluation. Due to restrictions caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic this was deloyed
until FY21. Neither the Campany nor any of
its Directors has any other connection with
Belinda Hudsen Ltd. The evaluation was
conducted via one-to-one interviews with
individual Birectors and key members of
senior management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report.

Annual Performance Appraisals

All Board members, both Executive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
performance review during FY21 and ¢ach
Director engaged fully in the process. This
inclkided setting objectives for each individual. |
led these appraiscls, as Chair of the Boord and
the Nomination Committee. This process will be
repeated annually. Richard Bottomley, Chair of
the Audit Committee ond Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, led my performance
appraisal and goal setting.

The Directors will take into account any
development needs identified in their apprassals
and will be challenged on how they have taken
action against these goals during their next
annual appraisal.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Board reviewed various diversity and
inclusion policies from other companies, to
enchle us to benchmark ourselves against
industry standards. As g consequence we have
now updated our Board Diversity policy, which
can be found on our website at
https:/frasers.group/

The Board has two female Directors,
representing 28% of the Board. There is
currently no representation from ethnic minority
backgrounds on the Board. However, we note
the contents of the Hampton Alexander Report
and the Parker Review for FTSE 250 companies
and we are continually seeking to increase
diversity ot Board level, os reflected in our
objectives below.

The Group's objectives in refation to Board
diversity and inclusion are:

.

To ensure that the Board has on appropriate
mix of skills, experience and knowledge,

te ensure o variety of perspectives are
represented on the Board and enable the
Board to effectively oversee and support the
Group's growth and manogement;

To maintain Board representation from
the workforee, which brings the voice of
colleagues into the boardroom, supports
our strategy of investing in our pecple and
enables the Board to effectively oversee
und support the Group's growth and
management

To incredse female representation on the

Bouard to 33%, in line with the Hampton
Alexander target; and

To strive to appoint ot least ane Director
of colour to the Board by 2024, as
recommended by the Parker Review.

The Group achieved its Diversity policy
objective in respect of gender ond age, by
having a strong gender balance in senior

mahagement and their direct reports (see
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gender diversity table of page 23, and a varied
representation of ages in middle and senior
management. When reviewing candidates

who may become potential Board membsers,
the Committee has regard to factors including
professional experience, skills, education,
gender, ethnicity and background to ensure

o variety of perspectives are represented at
3oard level. As discussed above, we have been
working with a recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates. The Board is conscious tha:
to successfully deliver the strategic goals of

the business our people, including the Beard of
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures and
values of our customer base.

The Committee recegnises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewed the composition of the senior
management team, including their direct
reports. A number of senior management

roles were held by women at period end,
including the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Management and UK Financial Controlier. Qur
senior leadership team is 27% female, whiist
the overall UK workforce is approximately 52%
female. '

We were pleased that our mast recent Gender
Fay Gap Report showed a reduction in the
median gender pay gop within our largest
relevant subsidiary (SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited) to 0%. However, we will continue to
explore ways to address other gender pay gap
differences within our business,

Further details on diversity and inclusion are set
out in the Our People Report.

Frasers Group Elevation Programme

During FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Programme.
This has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the petential to become the
future leaders of the Graup.

David Daly

Chair of the Nomination Commiltiee

5 dugust 21
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EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

are our Board, Committees and management
teams. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Board, we undertook an independent review
of our Board and Committee effectivenaess. We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity inte how our leadership team is
performing, especially when benchmarked
against other listed companies, as weli as
highlight areas of tmprovement that would
add value to the Group and ensure we become
market feaders in governance and best
practice.

In January 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudson Limited to undertake o review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness.
Belinda is a recognised expert in enhancing
beard effectiveness and has over 15 years'
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has no other connection with
the Group or any of its Directors.

The Board review was originally due to be
completed prior to the April 2020 financial

year end. However, it was deferred when the
first lockdown was initiated as there was a
strong preference for conducting face to face
interviews, As it became clear that face to face
meetings would not be an option for some
time, it was decided to proceed with remote
meetings early in 2021 to ensure thot evaluation
of the Board's performance could be conducted

. by the end of the April 2021 financiat year.

Methodology

Belinda undertook confidential one-to-one
discussions with members of the Board and

a selection of senior management who have
regular interaction with, and support the Beard
and Committees. She attended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes.
Belinda was given unfettered acceds to the
previous 12 months' Board and Committee
papers and minutes and governance
docurnents to inform her review.

thraugh the Woodland Trust, helping to create new Brtish woodland acress the UK

She compiled a comprehensive report which
covered all aspects of board and committee
performance. it was broken down into the
following categories:

-~ Board composition and dynamics
=~ The Board's role

- The Board .nn work

- Committees

The report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the April 2021 Board meeting.

Outcomes

The report highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees and contained
several recommendations for further
development. The Board accepts the
recommendations and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board Compasition ond Dynamics

The report found that “the Board at Frasers
Group has enjoyed a good period of stability
since the CFO was appointed in September
2019. The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
support from the Senior Independent Cirector
and others.”

The Board cempesition benefits significantly
from the inclusion of a fuil-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Director
and Workers' Representative. It provides the
Board with *full transparency and visibility on
the perspective of the workforce without any
fitters” and very strong insights into workforce
engagement.

Despite some previous investor oppaosition to
the Chair, the review presented a positive view
of the Chair. He brings many relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the role
well. Board members and Senior Management
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were unanimous in their agreement that he was
an excellent choice for the role. He possesses
“invaluable knowledge and experience

relating to the sector, ecosystern and brand
relationships’ and his relationship with the
Chief Executive "is bosed on openness and
transparency as well as mutual trust and
raspect. The relationship oppears rebust so
that they car challenge sach other and handle
disagreernent”. The Chair is committed to
developing his skills and addressing the gaps in
his knowledge.

The overall view of the Senjor Independent
Director and other Non-executive Directors of
the Board was positive. They are all diligent
and focused on acting in the best interests of
the Group. They bring with them a breadth
of knowledge and experience that they

are willing to share both inside and outside
the boardroom. The Senior Independent
Director plays a very useful role in developing
external relationships through networking and
promoting the Group in a positive light.

The leadership provided by the Chief

Executive was described as being inspirational,
henest, transparent and collaborative. The
Chief Executive plays a pivotai role i the
success of the Group. He adopts a positive

and constructive attitude to the Boord and
welcomes input and challenge from the
Non~executive Directors. The review highlighted
the disparity between internclily held views of
the Chief Executive and the Chief Executive's
externdl reputation, He is taking steps to
remedy the impact his external reputation

haos on the Group by stepping back from his
external facing roles - to enable the next
generation of talent within the Group to elavate
the external reputation of the Group.

The review has identified some areas of
suggested development including the
recrujtment of a Non-execytive Director

with strong listed company experience and
achieving a greater degree of diversity in Board
composition. While the Board banefits from
good gender diversity, it lacks age ond ethnic
diversity, The Nomination Committee will seek
to address these issues during the next financial
year.
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Despite the challenges identified, the overail
assessment of the Board's composition, senior
teadership and dynamics was overwhelmingly
positive. Members of the Board and Executive
Committee enjoy positive relationships and
generclly engage in positive Board behaviousrs.

The Board's Role

Board members have o good understanding of
the role of the Board, but further development
is needed to ensure that the Board fulfils all
aspects of its role and strengthens certain
aspects of the Group's corporate governance.
These issues are aiready being addressed

by the Board following « report produced by
external advisors.

Belinda noted that the Board offers a good mix
of suppont and challenge and adds value on
many fronts The Non-executive Directors make
a good contribution to the Group in ways that
go beyond the usual remit of Non-executive
Directors, The introduction of the strategy

day has been very "positive and useful” and
leaves scope for further development. The
current oversight thot the Boord exercises over
the financial and operational performance

is yound. Arecs where improvements can be
made inclucle stakehaider focus and oversight
of health and sofety. However, it has been
highlighted that the Board took great nterest
in the health and safety of the workforce during
the pandemic.

It is encouraging that the Board is increasingly
focusing on people related matters, has
employed experts to review and develop its
employer value proposition and is actively
pursuing a strategy of developing a younger
cadre of management to support the
sustainability of the Group. The intention of
communicating a positive culture from the
top appears to be effective; as Non-executive
Directors have made positive reports that
“there is g strong sense of opportunity and
trust enjoyed by employees.” The Board is

also driving the agenda of increasing diversity
and inclusion throughout the Group with the
CFO and Non-Executive Workforce Director
and Workers’ Representotive leading the
initiative. The Board is robust, has influence and

communicates a positive culture whiist ieaving
roam for further growth and development as
the business grows.

The Board at Work

The cutrent arrangements for the frequency of
farmal Board meetings have been ossessed os
appropriate and beneficial as they meet the
needs of the Non-executive Directors without
placing unnecessary burden on the Executives.
The format of the meetings has also been
commended as it gives the members ample
oppoftumity to interact outside the meetings
ond develop their relationships.

The information provided to the Board is
generally of @ good quolity and is presented in
a very open and transparent manner. However,
jmprovements can be made to the timeliness

in which it is provided. There was concern that
the Company Secretarial team was sometimes
overwhelmed but this team has recently been
strengthened with the recruitment of two new
hires and is better placed now ta provide strong
support to the Board and Committees.

Committees

The review of the Committees was equally
enceuraging. Although areas of improvement
have been identified for each of the
Cammittees, the overarching conclusion was
that they are becoming increasingly effective in
carrying out their functions.

The Audit Committee has become more
effective under the leadership of the Chair
His backgrotind as a partner in a Big Four
accounting firm means he brings useful and
relevant experience. The Chair's management
of meetings has been commended and

the Committee enjoys good support fram
management.

It hos also been recognised that the
Committee's oversight of risk governance

has seen significant improvements with the
recruitment of the new Head of Internal

Audit who has made good progress in the
further development of the risk management
framework and is "bringing increased rigour to
the work of Interncl Audit."

The Audit Committee enjoys o relaticnship with
the External Auditors thot is cellaborative and

A aCt0ny the LK
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positive but also robust and chalienging.

The review has highlighted the “very positive
ond extensive role” the Remuneration
Committee has played in the development of
the Fearless 1000 share plan which secured
strong shareholder support at the Cctober
2020 AGM. The Group is currently spearheading
numerous initiatives to overhaul policies and
processes to ensure it offers competitive
packages to employees with strong drive

and support from the Committee and input
provided by external remuneration consultants.

David Daty
Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 2021
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FRASERS GROUP

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
(the “Committee”) | am pleased to present
our Directors’ Remuneration Report for the
year ended 25 April 2021. This report is split
into three parts: this Annual Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Actions Taken In FY21 And Impacts On Pay

A key context for decisions taken by the
Committee in 2020 was the impact of Covid-19
on our business. Following the anset of the
Covid-19 pandemic in late Qi 2020, the
Committee supported the actions taken by our
Board in relation to pay and wider colleague
welfare. These actions were considered
appropriate to align to the experience and
perspective of our shareholders and other
stakehoelders, including our colleagues.

The actions taken included the folfowing:

» from Mgy 2020 due to the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic, our CFC, together
with the Chief Commercial Officer and
the Non-executive Directors agreed, in
arder to assist the Company, to make the
personal sacrifice of reducing their salary, or
respective fees, to £40,000 per anrwm. This
treatment applied until October 2020, at
which time withheld amounts were paid;

+  colleague welfare was pricritised:

» from March 2020, we sent home all
colleagues over the age of 60 or those
with underlying heaith issues which was
over and above Government guidance
whilst continuing te pay them in full;

« in the UK we paid virtually al! of our
contracted colleagues {including “casual
workers” ) in full during March, April, May
and June 2020 even though our stores
were closed for the vast majority of that
time; and
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+ although the business has accessed
Government business-support initiatives,
including furlough and business rates
relief, we used these programmes in the
way in which we understood these to
be applied, and the censequence has
been that there have been no major
redundancy rounds within our business
despite extended lockdown periods.

»  the wider societal contribution of the
business was supported:

* we offered our fleet of vehicles to the
NHS for transporting vital equipment to
whevre it was most needed; and

*  we also offered NHS staff discounts on
bikes and sporting goods equipment in
our Evons and Sports Direct stores. On
15 June 2020, in England, we offered
a 50% discount to all NHS staff in our
Sports Direct stores us o gesture of
goodwill to these fantastic individuals
as our stores re-opened. [t was an
overwhelming success with gross sales

. of approximately £50m before discount
and approximately £25m after discount.

Against this background, we were very pleased
to be able to launch the new incentive plan
for our colleagues which we are calling the
Fearless 1000 and which was approvecd by over
99.9% of our sharehclders voting at the 2020
AGM. The Fearless 100G could pay out £100m
in shares if our share price reaches £10 at any .
time during the performance period. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the vesting period which could see
10 colleagues receiving shares worth £1m if the
share price is at £1¢ ot the vesting dates. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking withaut limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eiigible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 ot the
vesting dates. L

b oreale naw Bnh

Following the successful launch of the Fearless
1000 plan in October 2020, the UK entered into
lockdown in December 2020 and a significant
portion of-our stores were temporarily closed.
This has the potential to limit our ability to

hit the share price targets thot apply to the
plan. We have therefore decided to extend

the performance period for the Fearless 1000
plan, which will now end in October 2025
(being a total performance period of five years).
As a result of this change, the performance
petiod for the Feartess 1000 and the proposed
Executive Share Scheme lexplained further
below) will be aligned.

In terms of senior executive remuneration in
Fy21.

* Mike Ashley has not received any
remuneration from the Company since
before the Public Cffering in 2007 and
continues to decline any remuneration in his
role of Chief Executive;

* as noted abave, our CFO's salary was
reduced to the equivalent of £40,000 p.a.
from May 2020 until October 2020; and

* no LTIP awerd operated for senior
executives in FY21, and the CFO and other
selectad senior executives were specifically
excluded from participation in the Fearless
1,000 plan.

Against the background of aur overall modest
positioning on executive pay and considering
the CFO's exceptional efforts in leading the
company through a period of unprecedented
challenge to produce the resilient perfformance
that is detailed elsewhere in this report, the
Committee has decided that it is eppropriate
to award our CFO a banus of £100,000 for FY
2020/2021 (67% of base salary). In awarding
this bonus, the Committee considered a range
of performance factors, including Group
financial performance, progress on strategic
initiatives and personal performance. This
award was paid as a cash sum.

The Committee exercised what it regards as
normal cammercial judgement in respect of
Directors’ remuneration throughout the year
{and in all cases in line with the Company's
Director's remuneration policy).

1woadiand across the UK

There were no other exercises of judgement or
discreticn by the Committee save as detailed in
this report.

Revised Remuneration Policy And Operation Of
Pay In FY21

At the 2021'Annual General Meeting (AGM') we
are asking shareholders to renew our 3-year
Director's remuneration policy [*pelicy”) which
was last approved at our AGM in 2018 (98.8%
approval).

Where any changes have been made to the
2018 policy, these are highlighted in the policy
report section. In particular, we are making
three changes in the operation of Executive
Directer pay.,

CFO's Salory

= Chris Wootton's salary has been increased
to £250,00C p.c. from 1st May 2021 (FY21:
£150,000 p.a.).

+ " Chris joined the Board of Directors in
September 2019, with this being his first
main Board CFO role ot a listed PLC. Since
that time Chris has grown and developed in
the role of CFQ and his strong performance,
leadership and contribution to develaping
the strategic direction of the business is
considered to merit an appropriate review
of his salary level at this time, now that he
has been in post for approximately
18 months.

*  As a Committee we are content that even
with this increase the salary level for our
CFO remains amongst the lowest in the
FTSE 250. )
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE

The table below describes each of the elemen:s of the remuneration package for the

Executive Directors.

ELEMENT OF CHANGES TO POLICY TO BE APPRQVI
REMUNERATION PURPOSE / LINK TO STRATESGY QOPERATIGN MAKIMUM FERFORMANCE MEASURES THE 2021 AGM
BASE SALRRY Fixed element of tha ramune atiun pockoge, where the  Base sulanes ure normally reviswsd annuully Altheugh satanes for Executive [iractors (other then Not applicable Ne thange
bolance of fiked and vonoble remunermtion 15 oligned to Mike Ashley, whe does not currently receive a solary) are
the commarcial stretegy of lchy-term prafiloble growth  Mika Ashiey does not currently recaive a salary forbus  sut ot levels beiow the umeunts typicolly auid dy similar
and rellacts the Company re nunertion philoiophy of  rale sized camponies, the Committes ratains discretion to
gearing teword (o performar=e with a shanng of nsk set salanes at levels considered appropuate for the
betwean Execubiva Directors 3nd shareloliers. Luswiess, considering s size und complety
BENEFITS With the exception of @ 20% colletgus discount an The current Exgcutive Dwectars do nat recawe uny Although tha Remunerabion Cammittes has not set an Mol oppliable. No ¢ hanige
products purchosed hom the Group's retail storas, winch  banafits other than the calleayue discaunt, which s nat  absolute muxmum level of benehts Executiva Qirectors
15 ovailobia Lo Execulive Dire ttors ather than Mike avallable for Mike Ashley iy Tecaive, tha Compony reloins discretion fo set
Ashley, na additional benefit: are genernily gvaibln benshies ar o level whch the Remuneration Comimittes
to Execulive Diractars. The scome laval of discaunt 18 Benefits moy be provided in lina with markel proctice considers appropriate against the imarket ahd to
- avalloble to all colleaguss to recrult o new Executive Director tokung INto Account  suppart thi on-going statagy of the Campany
indwidual ccumstances Such
benefits may mclude relocation expenses imore ulty
datuled n ‘Appront b to Recrutment Remuneration’
helow) .
RETIREMENT Provide post-employment be 1afits to recrut and ratam  The Executive Duectors are entitley ta porticpate ma The current moximum emplayer contribution o the Not apphcable. No chnnge
HENEFIT3 individuals of the calibra rage ired for the usmess stokshaldar penson scheme on the same bosis gs ather  stakehatder pension scheme 15 3% i
wnployses
The Committes may increase emplayer contribution . ' .
On request this benelit may ba paid os a salory 1utes to rellect chunges i the ayta enrgtmant emplayer
supplament i Ligu 6f pension contnbution os necegsary — contribybion rotes
ANNUAL BONUS Rewarels the Executive Chrectsr lor performones which  Executive Dwectors, other than Mike Athley, moy s The maximum bonus that on Execulive Orector may Any bonus opportunity shall be ossessed ageinst ane or  No chunge
supports the GroLp's strategy ond pertormance i role o bonus, Any bonus earned m excess of 100% of salary  wam shull be 260% of sulary i respect of any hnaneial  more metrics determined by the Cammittea and linkad
would ba defarrad into shates lor o penod of twe yeors,  yeor to tha Company's stratagy and/or the parfarmance
unless the amount 1o be defarred amount weuld be jess of the Exacutive Director in rola, with the weighting
- than 10,000 The Committes tlso retans a discretion between the metrics determinad by the Committer
not 1 operpte delecal n an exceptional case and if relgvant, Bonuses will be determined between 0%
where salury paid in the year was £250,000 or less and 100% of the muxmum opportu .
Commi of the
Any bonus paid would be subjact te clawback for o
parred of 3 years following its duterinotion i the. Tha annuol bonus plan is o discretionory afrangement -
event of grass misconduct, matenal misstolemant of the and the Committee retains a standard power to apply
Company's tmanciol statements o corporate lodyre its judgement te adjust the culcame of the annual banus
plan far dhy perfarmonte meosure {fam e o ang
cap] should i1 eansidsr “hot 1o be approprlate -
LONG TERM INCENTIVES. To motivgte and incentivese dzhvery Executiva Diractars, other than Mike Ashiuy, oy receve  For owords with a £15 share price torger, the maxmum  Awards will vast subject to on obisclute share price Intraductich of the Executive Shore Scheme, which is aur

ol sustoined perfarmance over the leng tarm, ond

1o pramole alignment with sharsholders’ interests,
tive Carnpany intends to opsrate an Executive Share
Scheme

awords undar the Exacutive Share Schema Awards
may be granted os nominol cost opkions of condibenal
share owards which vast fo the axtent the perfortmance
conditicns are sotished over o pered of four yaars

The Commutiee sholl have discretion Lo reduce the
number of Shores subjact 1o an awurd granted nder
tha Cxecutivie Shesm Scharme by un amount equol ta the
oggregtte grass solary recerved by u particigant duang
the performant e permod

Clawback and matus provisions apply to owords granted
under the Ezuculive Share Seheme Any amaunts
recenwad under the Executive Share Schume may be
subpact to clowbock for o pariod of 3 years following

the end of the perfarmance perad i the event of grass
uct, moterial misstatement of Live Company's
ranciak i Fouhur or ]
damage

As 5 normal, the Commuttee retons powar to settl
awards in cosh n exceptional cuses only

opoartunity loe on Exetutive Direclor will be un award
twer up to 6,711,409 shares

For owards with a £12 shura price target, the maxmur.
opportunity tor an Executiva Director will be an award
ovar up ta 600,000 shures

target of sither £12 or £15° Tha shore prica must be over
the turget far any period of 30 consecutive dealing days
during the four-year pe:fonmance pariod

{ong tern,

The Committes may se- additlonal perlanmonsa
conditrans an awards uder tha Executive Shure
Scheme, os 1t considers appropriate.

Iew long Lerm inceitiva pian that will reward our seniar
exocubives for achieving sustoined partarmonce over the
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The table below sets out an overview of the approach to remuneration for the Chair and

. Non-executive Directors.

PURPDSE / LINK TO STRATEGY

APPROACH OF THE COMPARY

Chair gnd Men-exacutive Directar fees

The Cormrmittes’s Remuneratian Policy IR respect of the Non-axecutive Diectars s ko pay ung

which reflect the retponsinlities ond duties placed upon them, while olse hoving regard ta morket -

Pravide an appropriote reward ts ottract and prachice
retain Qirectars of the cehbie required for the

business Non-exerutive Directers receiva a ficed onnupl lee_

Non-executive Directors iother thom the Non-executive Worklarce (irector| o not end are not e

ted

ta postcipate iy bonus o share schemas, The Non-sxacubive Worklores Drecter 15 entitled 1o
participate in employee bonus and share schemmas lar amployees including any all-employee schemes

Man-guneubive Directors may be efigible for benefits such as the use of secrataral sueport, trovel rosts

ot other bienefits that may be approprata

.The aggregate fees and any benelits of the Non-executive Diractors [including the Non-exzcutive
workiorea Director} will not exceed tha Tt from time to time set aut i the Campeny's Aricles of

shorenoldars to increase th

reflect any form af aspirction

s currently ESQ0,000 p.a 10 oggregate A resslution will be put to
it to £1.000.000 p o n vagregate This is o formal cop and wses nor

Chosen

Explunation OF Perfor M

Any bonus opportunity would be subject

to performance metrics determined by the
Committee and linked to the Company’s
strategy and/or the performance of the
Executive Directer in role. The metrics and
performance against them would be disclosed
in the Directors” Remuneration Report in which
payment of the bonus was disclosed, or if
later when they were no longer considered
commercially sensitive. Any performance
measure may be varied or substituted by the
Committee if on event occurs which causes
the Committee to determine that it would be
appropriate to do sa. The rationale for any such
variction or substitution would be given in the
next Directors' Remuneration Report.

The proposed Executive Share Scheme will be
subject to a performance measure determined
by reference to the Company share price as
well as personal performance. This metric has
been chosen as it aligns the interest of the
Executive Director with those of sharehalders.
Tha target share price required for vesting

is consiclered stretching {being either £2 or .
£5 chove the target for the Fearless 1000
plan} and will therefare reward sustained
performance over the long-term.
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In addition to the share price performance
measure, it is intended that awards under the
Executive Share Scheme will be granted subject
to two underpins requiring:

i, satisfactory performance ratings for each
participant; and

anticipated delivery of our elevation
strategy.

The purpose of the underpins is to ensure that
a minimum level of performance is achieved
before an award may vest {in addition to
achievement of the shore price performance
target).. Details of the performance measures
and underpins that apply to eoch award
granted under the Executive Share Scheme to
an Executive Director will be disclosed in the
appropriate Directors” Remuneration Report
(subject to considerations of commercial
sensitivity] '

thr

Explanation Of Differences In Remuneration
Policy For Other Colleugues

The Company has a large number of colleagues
with different responsibilities and differing levels
of seniority. Reward palicies for colleugues
other than Executive Directors are determined
by reference to grade, role, performance and
other relevant factors. The Committee engages
with the wider workforce on the remunergtion
policy through the Non-executive Workforce
Director, whose feedback and views are sought
by the Committee

The Committee has reviewed the sclaries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middle managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Executive Directors’ salaries and the
creation of new incentive schemes in order to
create a sense of common purpose and sharing
of success

in response to those considerations, the Frasers
All-Employee Omnibus Plen (known as "Fearless
1000 was launched follewing approval by
shareholders ¢t the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is intended to provide a significant
one-cff reward for eligible and qualifying
colleagues if a stretching share price growth
target is achieved within a five year period
from the 2020 AGM ). There are two related but
distinct parts to the Fearless 1000 as follows:

+  cosh bonuses to eligibte and qualifying
colleagues in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard werk;
and

»  share awards to those 1,000 efigible and

qualifying colleagues in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and

performance consistent with the Company’s -

values.

Further details regarding the Fearless 1000
are provided in the Our People section of this
Annual Report.

tots e Uk

Iiustrations OF Application Of
Remuneration Policy

The chart below sets out an illustration of the
policy for FY22 in fine with the future palicy
table above. The chart provides an illustration
of the totol remuneration epportunity that
could arise under four different jevels of
performance. No chart is included for Mike
Ashley, who does not receive any remuneration
from the Cormpeny. If Michae! Murray joins

the Board as anticipated, an updated version
of this disclosure wili be provided in the next
Directors’ Remuneration Report fellowing his |
appointment. '
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Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer
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Approach To Recruitment Remuneration

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of a new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles;

+ the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company's

strategy;

+ the Committee will seek to ensure that no more is paid than is necessary; and

* in the next Annual Report on remuneration, the Committee w

explain to shareholders the

rationale for the arrangements implemented.

The Committee will ordinarily seek to implement the remuneration package in accordance with the
elements referred to in the pelicy table on pages 53 to 54. Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Committee retains discretion to make appropriate remunerction decisions outside that poficy to
meet the individual circumstances of the recruitment, subject te the limits and parameters of this
recruitment remuneration section of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

ELEMENT APPROACH

Base solory ond bearfits

Typically atignad with the policy set auk in the policy Loble on page 53. In line with the DR Regulations,
there 15 no fannol cop on solones in relotion s a rec mant

Rebirenmnt benshts

Aligned witk the pokcy set out in tha policy loble on poge 53, punsion benufits moy be provded at
rates aligned to employsa lavels, olthou Cawntnttee moy prowide tor such amount ta be poid ta o
pension arrangement or poid as a supplemant to base salury w hieu of o pentan crangement

Vonoble eimuneration

Any vurioble remuneration granted ta o newly appainted Executive [irector would be subject to the
same taxmmum levels thal generally apply under the Directors’ Remuneratran Palicy.

Tha valus of any buy-out arrangetnents [descrbed brtow) does not count towards those maxmum
levels. The Committee may vary the application of defeat to any annual bonus opportunity to reflact
the circumstances of the recewtment

Caimpensttion fot torferted orrongements

The Commitlee may moke awards on hinng an exiecncl candidote to buy-out the remuneratian
orrungements forleited on teawng o previous amployer 11 doing 5o, the Committes wilk have regard to
refavant factors mcludng any perlormunce canditions atiached to such orrangements land whether
such condhiti 3ns were or were likely to be achieved), the form of thase arrongemants (e g cash or
shares) and tunefrome of such orrongernents

Whila such awards are wechided lom the maxmmom level of vuriahle remuneration referred to obave,
Comnutreas nteritue 1 tat the valus awarded wauld be na fughar than the expected valye of the
ted arrangements

forl

Buy-out awe s wil be subject ta farferture o clawhack an rarly departure, with 100% being subject to
forteitura if the Executwe Directar duperts w
he deporture occurs within 12 and 24 manths of joining, at tha Committee’s disciatian

Relocation costs

1t necassary, tha Campany wil pay approprate reldcution ¢osts in the yeor of oppointment und for o
turther twa finuncial yrars, as it consders appropriate The Comimittas will saek ta ensure that no mare
15 paid than 1s nacessary

Ary share awards referred to in this section will be granted as far as possible under the Company's
existing share schemes. If necessary and subject, where relevart, to the limits referred to above,
awards may be granted outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
allow far the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive

Director.

Where a position is filled internafly, any on-going remuneration ebligations or cutstanding variable
pay elements shall be aflowed to continue according to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to
reflect the new uppointment as appropriate.

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Non-executive Director would narmally be in line
with the policy set out in the future policy toble above for Non-executive Directors,
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Service Contracts And Policy On Puyments For Loss Of Office

The Company's pelicy is for Executive Directors to be employed on the terms of service contracts
which may be terminated by either the Company or the Executive Director on the giving of not more
thon 12 months' notice. All Directors are subject to anhual re-election.

Executive Directors

Details of each current service contract are set out below:

UNEXPIRED TERM /
CONTRACTOATE WGTICE PERIOD GOVERNING LAW
Mike Ashley /02,2007 12 manths* England & Weles
Chris Woatton 06/03/2017 & manths England & Wales

*The Company mady termingts Mr Asley's serace contract by gving 6 months’ notica If he 15 unabie to perfor his duties for over 120 days in any
consecutive 12 months

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are
summarised below:

Payment I 18U of notice The Company may terminote an Execulive Dirertors empiayment with immecdvate effuct b
prayment in lisu af natice consisting of basic salory {uut exeluding any borus, commissin, b

holiday entitlernent] duning the notice period

The Company may ether |1} poy the payment inhieu af fotice n o lump sum or pry
the omount In 2qual monl stalments dunng the nobce penod, with such
be reduced n the evert that the Executive Dractor sblois aiternative ncarme wil

e nctice penod

Mike Ashigy does not recewe any salary or contractuul benehits, ond his service contract goes not
prowde for @ payment i leu of notice

Annual bonus Whether o award @ bonus In full af in park in the event of & termination of employmant would be

at the discretion of the Commrtize on dual bosis and dependent 2n a aurnber of factars,
cluding tha circumstances of the Executy ector's deporture and his contnbubion te the busitess
g the bonus pariod in quastion Typically borius amaunts would onty be paid ta "gacd leavers’ and
be preerated for ima in service bo termination and dependant on performonce Any bonus in respact of
the year of Eetmnatian of prececing year which would otherwise be daferred into shores may be prid
whally In cash at the election of the Cammittea.

d

Any daferred bonus would typically continys in the event of termination {cthar thon an disemissal for
coused and be releted to Exacutive Buector at the end of the ong; al peniod
tee has discration to release the umowit soo RN uy

Exgcutive Shore Schetne tor ceusas eriployment of resigns curing the perl
award will ganerally fapse However, f the Executive Director dies or
‘good leaver’ then ownriis are retamed and may vast in the normaol cowse subpect 1o
conritians Awards vall nernally be pro=roted by referenva to the proparton of the serformance
penod for which the patticapant remained amployed i nt The
Committee has o standdrd obility b véty BMe Aro-rotng Vested bl unusertised dwerds My Aurmalty
b reloined by o purtiepant, sxcept in cases of misconduct

Other payments The Remunerotion Comrmittee raterves e nght to maoke odditional ext poyments where 1uch
paynients ore made in good laith n discharge of an exsting legal obhgetion lor by way of dormages far

breach of such an I of any cloim ausing  conmecion

b or by way al s or comp
with the termination of a Directars affce or ermployment In appropnale croUMSEanC e, payMents

may alsc be made i respect of lzgal feet ond cutplacerent services Ware the Cornpany to make

an uword on eerutmant of on Executive Director ta buy nut emuneration arrangements farfaited on
leaving a prewious employer then the lsaver provisicns for that nward wauld be determined o the time
afgrant A poyiment may olso be made in respact of nccrued but untahen holday For the avoidance of
doubd, the policy doas net include on exi @ cost of terminatian poyrments.
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Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Group for a period of three years,
other than the Chair whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The
appointments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by either party on one month’s
written notice and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Termination would
be immediate in certain circumstances (including the bankruptey of the Non-executive Director).

Mon-executive Directors {other than the Non-executive Workforce Director) do not and are not
entitled to participate in any bonus or share scheme. The Non-executive Warkforce Director is
entitled to porticipate in employee bonus and share schames for employees, including all-employee
schemes.

The approach to determining Non-executive Directors pay is to benchmark ourselves against
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Each year the remuneration of all Directors is put
far shareholder approval at the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in favour of the
remuneration report.

Non-executive Directors are subject to confidentiolity undertakings without limitation in time.
Non-executive Directors are not entitied to receive any compensation on the termination of their
appeintment,

Details of the Nen-executive Directors' letters of appeointment are set out helow:

END DATE OF
Pasition Doty of lettar af ﬂ.vn_zwxnz_. Toubjuet

the AGM}

Dovid Otly Non-exer utie Charr 16 July 2020 Ist Orlober 2021
Dowvid Brayshaw Non-emecutive Dusctor 23 April 2020 th Decemmber 2022
Nicola Frompton Non-axecutive Duector t Oclober 2018 30tk September 2021

Non-executrve Duertor 1 Octohar 2018 3Uth Septerniser 2021

Sth Orlabar 2022

Richard Bottamley

Cally Price Non-executree Duectar & Octaber 2020

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directars and of the oppointment letters of the Ch
and Mon-Executive Directors are available for inspection ot the Company’s registerad office during
normal business hours and at the AGM.

Payments Outside The Palicy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside the policy in this report:

- where the terms of the payment were agread before the policy came into effect;

= where the terms of the payment were agreed ot a time when the relevant individual was not
@ Director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the poyment was not in
considerction of the individual becoming a Director of the Company; or

+  ta satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements.

For these purposes, "payments” includes the satisfaction of awards of variable remuneration and,
in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are "agreed” ot the time the award is
granted.
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Eng t With Sharehold

The Committee consulis major shareholdess
and representative groups where appropriate
concerning remuneration matters,

General representations have been received
from investors regarding overcll FTSE
remuneration. The Committee has due regard
to the Investment Asscciation principles, and
is always happy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been no chonges

to the Remuneration Policy as a result of
shareholder engagement.

Colleague Reword

It is worth reminding shareholders that our UK
colleagues {excluding the Executive Directors)
‘who have participated in ocur share schemes
~ave received, subsequent to any IPO bonus
payments, a total value of £250m of awards
since their introduction.

In addition to share schemes, the Compony
operates other bonus arid incentive awards for
its workforce. By way of recent examgle, in FY2"
colleagues in our UK retail operations received
o total of E5.4m in benus and incentive awards.
cant proportion of these cther bonus
and incentive awards were paid to cur casual
retail workers.

During FY21, the Company lounched the
Frasers All-Employee Omnibus Plan (known

as *Fearless 1000") following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Feorless
1000 plan is available to all eligible and
qualifying Fraser Group employees [except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Commercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and is intended to provide a significant
cne-off reward for employees if o stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period,

There are two related but distinct parts to the
Fearless 1000 plen as follows:

*  Share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying employees in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Cempany’s
values; and
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+  Cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company’s group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work.

A similar incentive plan is also availabte for cur
non-employee Group workers,

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year performance period for the Feariess 1000
plan to up te five years due to continuing UK
lockdowns in FY21. As a result, the performance
periods for the Fearless 1000 plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in October 2025.

The Remuneration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remuneration for Executive Directars based ~
upon reward for significant financial and
personal performance only. The Committee
alse remains committed to appropriately
rewarding our large and loyol workforce.

Our Workforce nominoted Directos, Cally Price
engages with colleagues through regulor and
multi-channel communication mechanisms.
This enables colleagues to understand the
strategy of the Company, the vital role all
colleagues play in contributing to the overali
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
ond to raise any questions directly with a Beard
member. Cally has been directly involved in

the review of retail colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee has reviewed the salaries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middie managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Directors’ salaries. The Committee
has considered pay and employment conditions
of colleagues {other than the Directors) and has
aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the Directors with employees.

Whilst the Company has not directly consulted
with empioyees on Directors’ remuneration, the
views of colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director.

ad through the Woodiand Trust.

FRASERS GROUP

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the Directors’' Remuneration
Report sets cut the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect ta
the pericd ended 25 April 2021 and how our
Directors' Remuneration Policy will be applied
in the year commencing 26 April 2021,

implemer of our R

for FY22

n policy

The members of the Committee have no
persanal financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided, ne
actual or potenticl conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships and no day-to-day
operational responsibility within the Company.

Base Salary And Fees

Chris Wootten's salary has increased to
£250,000 per annum, with effect from 1 May
2021 (from £150,000). Whilst the Committee is
aware of sensitivities towards salary increases
for executive directors generally, the proposed
salary increase for Chris is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his role since appointment in September
2019.

Despite this increase, Chris’ base salary wiil
remain at a level well below the lower quattile
for a CFO in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive a salary far his
role.

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually.

in respect of fees for FY22, David Daly will
receive an increased annual fee of £150,000
{from £100,000) for his role as Chair. Richard
Bottomley, David Brayshaw and Nicola
Frampton will each receive a fee of £65,000
{from £50,000) for their roles as Non-executive
Directars, Cally Price will receive a fee

of £20,000 {from E15,000) for her role as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

w Brtish woodiand agtoss the UK

Pension {Audited)

The contribution rate for Chris Wootton will be
3% of salary, capped at first £50,000 of salary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate availoble under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme. No Director porticipated in o
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to receive employer.
contributicns under the Company stokeholder
pension scheme.

Annual Bonus Scheme

Chris Wootton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall

be determined by reference to one or more
performance metrics determined by the
Cornmittee and linked to the Company’s
strategy and/or Chris Wootton's performance

in role, The Committee will provide appropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of
the assessed criteria applied to the FY22 bonus.
Any such bonus shall be of up to 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of selary may be subject to deferral.

Mike Ashley shail not be eligible to eamn
bonus in respect of FY22.

Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton will be eligible to participate
in the new Executive Share Scheme (subject
to shareholder approval of at the 2021 AGM).
He will receive an award of 600,000 shares.
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to a stretching absolute shase price
performance target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be granted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Single Figure Table (Audited)

The aggregate remuneration provided to individuals who have served as Directors in the period
ended 25 April 2021 is set out below, along with the aggregate remuneration provided to individuals
who have served as Directors during the prior financial year.

Leng-term N
Salaries and Other . Total fined  Total variakle
Dirueter frons banefhs Bonus incentiva  Pensianl4) Tutol remunsretion remuneration
achsmus
FYzi FY20 Fv2 FYZq F¥2h FY20 FYh Fy20  FY21 Fr20 FYDL Syi0 FYZ)  FY20 Frnd  FYID
EODO EDDD £000 E00D EOOG £G00 EQUO (000 £DOD £000 (000 £000 FOOG  EGOC EGCO 6000
Mike Ashlay - . - . - R - B -
Chris Wootlor' 150 B - - 100 - - - i 128 @y 6 B¢ 100
Jon Kempster ' NA 63 N - NA NA - NA 1 MA b NA 64 N -
OIRECTORS
Dawid Daby 100190 - - - - - - - 100 W W -
Dawid Brayshuaw 50 50 - - - . - - 1 50 51 50 - 51 -
Nieata Framptor 50 50 - - 1 [ ] st
Richard 8atiom|ey 50 50 - - - - - 1 50 51 50 kil
Cally Prics 1510 - - - - - - - 15 w1 m
TOTAL 4B 4 - « 100 - - - 2 8 M1 a A A7 oo -
m Chris Wockten's rermuneration lar £Y20 o3 set out in the tabla 1s his remunedation bor the penod from the dote of bis oppodment on 12 Septembser
plub) -
12} Jan Kempster's tetuneratioh for FY20 ot s6t out in the above tahl remureration for the perod frem 29 Apat 2019 Wikl 12 Septamber J0g

when he ceased ta be an Exerutwe DIecior No payment wos made to Jon foilowing b resignution
{3l Furthar details of the ponus auttum for Chim Woaltan for FY21 can be found on page 55

14)  Pensinns ere provided vio a delined contnbubion te the Company stakehglder pension scheme (see puge 571

Further Informotion On The FY21 Annual Bonus

Chris Wootton received a bonus of £100,000 in respect of FY21,

In awarding this banus, the Committee considered Chris' strong leadership of the Group through a
very challenging period. While na formal criterio were set Gt the baginning of the year due to the
uncertainties of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee considered the impact of Chris' contribution
to the financial results detailed in the Financial Review and his personal leadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

ts To Former Direct

Payments For Loss Of Office And Poy {Audited}

No payments for lass of office or payments to former Directors were made in FY21,
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Stat it OF Di s’ Sh

holding And Share Interests [Audited)

The beneficial interests of the Directors who served during the year and of their conpected persons
in both cases at the beginning of the financial year, or at the dote of appointment if later, and at the
end of the financial year, or at the date of resignation if earlier, in the share capital of the Company
are shown below:

Ordinary Shares hald ot 23 Ordinary Shores hald ot 35
April 2021 of [t arflertha  April 102D of IF aariier the

durte of vasignation date of retignotian
DIRECTORS A3 AT 25 APRIL 2021
Mike Ashley 330.000.000 330090000
Cnns Wootion
Dawd Daly 24205 1007
Nirole Fromptan Lin
Uovid Brayshaw I8 361
Richard 8attomley 0000 10000

Colly Prce .

There has been no change to the interasts reported above between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021
Other than noted on page 62 the Company did not receive any notifications under DTR 5 between
25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021,

As at 5 August 2021, neither Chris Wootton nor Mike Ashley porticipote in any Company share
scheme arrangement. Therefore, there are no outstanding share scheme interests held by any
Director of the Company.
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Performance Graph And Table

The following graph shows the Company’s performance mecasured by the Total Shareholder Return
compared with the performance of the FTSE “0C and FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment trusts).

Total Cea Remuneration And Performance-Reluted Pay

The table below shows details of the total remuneration and performance-related pay for the
Company's Chief Executive over the last ten financial years.

Execwtive Share Schame

Tetal remunerstion ana % of maxipum

—&—  Framers Group pic .- FTSETOQ ——#—— FTSE 250 x Invastmant Trusts
FY21 - Mike Ashiey N NZA
450 FY70 - Mike Ashley NAA
F19 - Mike Ashley Nia
400 FY18 -"Mika Ashiey [RICY
FY17 - Mike Ashley N
350 FY7 - Dave Forsay £62500 Ni&
F¥1h - Dave Forsey £150,000 NAA
300 FY15 - Dove Fotsey £150,000 " (%
F¥14 - Dave Forsey - 3 £450.001 NAA -
250 FY1 - Dove Forsey . £150000 NAA
FY17 = Duve Forsay £150,000 N/A
200 1) Mike Ashluy was npponted as Chiel Executive with effect o 22 September 2016
(23 Dave Forsey resigned with effect from 22 September 2016 His total eamed in tha period from 25 apnl 2016 until
150 thu date his resignation took efiect
13 The figures for FY1S rellact Dave Forsey's tecision an 6 June 2016 to forego an oward aver 1 mi ras which would cliterwise huve been dug to
w0 vest on & Sepbermber 2017
50 . . . . -
Chief Executive To Employee Pay Ratio
@

in line with reporting requirements, the Company is required to disctose rotios which compare

the total remunerction of the Chief Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentile of the Group's UK employees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and associated
supperting information on the basis that Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company.

200 012 2013 20 1075 2016 Eid w8 019 2020 207
Yoar ¢
The Committee considered these as appropricte indices against which to compare the Company's

performance. They are widely accepted as national measures and include the companies that
investors are likely to consider alternative investments.
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Relative Importance Of Spend Cn Pay

The table below sets out the Group’s distributions to shareholders by way of dividends and share
buybacks, investment (calculated as sat out below) and tota! Group-wide expenditure on pay for all
colieagues (as reported in the audited financial statements for FY21 and FY20) and the Company’s
share price [calculated as at the close of business on the last day of FY21 and FY20).

o Pt
Onstrabytins to shareholders by woy ot dividend and share buyback £43 300,000 1001+
e stiment” £372600,000 78 3%
Group-wide expenditure an poy for oll employers 492,800,000 2351%
Share prce (penre)*® 2766 127 5%

“Comprises of increases = working coprtal, and capitol

snflew from operating actiitiest os the Board bekeves these to be the most relavant meqsures af e Group's mvestment in kitune gagwtl

**Far these purpases, Hie share price for FY21 o
respectnety, hemy the fast working days prier tat

year ends.

n TS .

Cash Flgw Statement oud note 32 Cagn

he share price for FY20 s caleulated of the close of busness on 13 Aprl 2021 and 24 Apnl 2020

During F¥21, the Remuneration Committee consisted of David Brayshaw and Nicola Frampton who
are cansidered independent and the Chair of the Board, David Daly. The purpose of the Committee,
as previously outlined, is to assist the Board to ensure that Executive Directors and senior executives

receive appropriate levels of pay and benefits..

Attendance at the meetings held dusing the year is detailed on page 43.

The members of the Committee have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in
the matters to be decided, no actual or potential conflicts of interest arising from other Directorships

and no day-to-day operationol respensibility within the Company.

Advisers To The C i

Mike Ashley, the Chief Executive, and Chris Woottan, the Chief Financial Officer, have advised or
mateyially assisted the Committee throughout FY21 when requested. Executive Directors are not
present during, nor do they toke part in, discussions in respect of matters reloting directly to their

own remuneration.

During the year, FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP {*FIT*} were appainted as adviser to the

Committee. FIT are a founder member of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group ond adhere to its
code of conduct. Fees totalling £127,184 plus VAT have been paid for its services during the year for
the provision of advice to the Committee on various aspects of remuneration including advice on
the remuneration poficy and the drafting of the rules of the Fearless 1,000 scheme. The Committee
hess reviewed the quality of the advice provided and whether it properly addressed the issues
under consideration and is satisfied that the advice received during the year was objective and

independent. FIT has no personal connection to the Company or its Directors.

Total Remuneration

The Committee considers that the current remuneration arrangements promote the long-term

success of the Company within an appropriate risk framework and are suitably aligned to the
Compeny's objective of delivering long term sustainable growth in Total Shareholder Returns given

bonuses are discretionary.

Remunetation Principles

A key priority is to ensure that our
Remuneration Policy is aligned with strategy
te achieve the long-term success of the Group.
The Committee ensures that it complies with
the requirements of regulatory and governance
bodies including, but not limited to, the UK
Corporate Governance Code (* the Code”),
whilst meeting stakeholder, shareholder and
workforce expectations.

The Remuneration Committee and Board
remain committed to a fully trensparent and
simple Remuneration Policy that is aligned
with the interests of all its shareholders, In the
operations of the Remuneration Committee we
reiterate our commitment to the foflowing key
principles:
+  Clarity: We provide open and transparent,
disclosures regarding our executive
remuneration.

+  Simplicity: Our Remuneration Policy for
our Executive Directors is straightforward
and understoed by both Directors and
shareholders.

«  Predictability: Most components of Director
rermuneration are either fixed or subject to
individual caps set by reference to base
solary. Through the use of a share price

measure under the Executive Share Scherne,

performance outcames are predictoble
and highly ahigned to the experience of our
shareholders.

+  Proportionality: Our Executive Director
salaries are amongst the lowest in the FTSE
250. Variable pay awards are ‘at-risk’ and
linked to delivery of aur strategy and long-
term performance, to ensure that poor
performance is not rewarded.

»  Risks and behaviours: We ensure that
in our operations we identify and
mitigate reputationa! risks arising from
our remuneration arrangements and
behavioural risks related to incentive
targets.

= Alignment to culture: Increases to pay
and bonuses are only awarded where the
Executive Director demonstrates high level
behaviours and perfarmance consistent

Responsibilities Of The Committee

+  Determining the Company's policy on
Executive Director's remuneration, including
the design of bonus schemes and targets,
share schemes when oppropriate, together
with payments under thern;

= Determining the level of remuneration of the
Chair and each of the Executive Directors;

= Setting the remuneration for the first layer
of manogement below the Board level,
inctuding the Company Secretary;

+  Monitoring the remuneration of

senior management and making
recommendations in that respect;

- Agreeing any compensation for lass of
office of any Executive Director; and

+ Ensuring that the Company's Remuneration
Policy remains fit for purpose ond tokes
note of any new regqulatory requirements.

Wheat Has The Committee Done During The
Year?

+  Reviewed and approved amendments to the
Campany's Remuneration Policy;

* Reviewed and approved the Directers'
Remuneration Report fer FY21;

* Reviewed Executive Directors’ and senior
executives’ pay {including actions taken
in response to the impact of the Covid-1%
pandemic);

«  Considered sharehaider feedback regarding
remuneration policy and implementation;

 Considered and approved the appointment
of independent remuneration consultants;

« Agreed the introduction of the Fearless
1,000 scheme;

* Reviewed gender pay gap reporting; and

+ Monitored developments in governance
and reperting requirements, relating to
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets several
times a year, with 3 formal meetings and a
number of ad hoc meetings held in FY21.
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Shureholder Voting

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the resolution to epprove the Directors'
Remunerction Report for the year ended 26 April 2020 at the 2020 AGM and the resolution to

approve the Directors' Remuneration Policy atthe 2018 AGM,

The Directors of Frasers Group plc present their
Annual Report and Accounts for the period
ended 25 Aprii 2021. The Group's Corporate
Governance Statement forms part of the

Results For The Period And Dividends

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
was E£3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m

Tatul Vi : . i
Votosfor Hior ..-.n._nu % against e Directors' Report. no_..:,wa_.ma with h,w_wmu.h:._. revenue and m._thm.B
- profit before tax in the prior period. The trading
Directars’ Rarmuneration Repark fof the yea il 28 Aprd 2020 463,415,430 9921 896,868 519 464312296 #1057 . - - r - - . | . "
resiors B ot Principal Activities And Business Review results for the period and the Group's financial
rectors’ Rermuneratian Policy 442947085 9841 7134022 159 450,081107 341

{vote to apprave at 2018 AGM|

Directors Ramuneration Paiey

{vate to omend at 2020 AGM n respect of Fearless 1,000} 464243582

99Ys

82814

464,311,396

11,957

David Brayshaw

Chwair of the Remuneration Committee on Behalf of the Board

The Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review provides a detailed review of the,
Group's current activities and potential future
developments together with matters likely to
affect future development, performance and
conditions. Principal risks and uncertcinties
likely to affect theé Group are set out within the

position as at the end of the year are shown

in the attached financial statements and
discussed further in the Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and in the Financial
Review on poages 19 to 21.

The Board has decided not to propose a final
dividend in relation to FY21(FY20: nil). The

5 August 2021 Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The Board remcins of the opinion that it is in the
financial position of the Group, its cash flow, best interests of the Group and its shareholders
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are to preserve financial flexibility, facilitating future
described in the Financial Review. The Strategic investments and other growth opportunities, °
Report covers environmental matters, including The current situation in relation to the Covid-19
the impact of the Group's businesses on the pandemic has resulted in a number of retailers
environment, the Group's workforce, customers, finding themselves in extreme financial
suppliers and en community engagement. difficulties. We therefore currently feel that

aying a final dividend at this uncertain time
.?m, principal activities of the Group during the WOH_amwn inapproprigte when facing such en
. period were: * unknown future. The payment of dividends
A = retailing of sports and leisure clothing, remains under review.
footwear and equipmaent, lifestyle and Share Capital And Control
luxury apparel; .
« retailing through department stores, shops As n..,_n 5 August 2621, __r..ﬂm. are mno.mou_wmw.
and online: ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
' ' of which 127,380,137 were held in treasury. As at
« wholesale distribution and sale of sports the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary
and leisure clothing, fcotwear and shares held in treasury.
equipment, lifestyle and luxury apparel
under Group-owned or ticensed brands; ond Further information regarding the Group's
. . issued share capital can be found in note 24, °
* licensing of Group brands. Details of our share schemes are aiso set out in
Frasers Group ple, through various subsidiaries, rote 24,
has established branches in @ number of )
different countries i which the business There are no specific restrictions on the transfer
operates. of shares, which are governed koth by the
general provisions of the Articles of Association
Further information on the Group's principat and prevailing legislation. The Directors are
activities is set out at the front of this document not aware of any agreements between holders
and in the Chief Executive's Report and of the Company's shares thot may result in
Business Review. restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
. voting rights.
- €1
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Authority Te lssue Shares

The Directors were quthorised to ailot shares
in the capital of the Group up to an cggregate
nominat amount of £17,31,406 (being
approximately. one third of the then issued
share capital} for the period expiring at the 2021
AGM,

In line with guidance from the Association of
British Insurers, the Company was also granted
quthority to issue o further third of the issued
share capital to a total nominat amourit of
£34,622,812 in connection with a rights fssue.

An authority to allot shares up to @

maximum nominal volue of £2,596,711 (being
approximately 5% of the then issued share
capital) as if statutory pre-emption rights did
not apply, was also opproved. In addition, the
Directors were granted a further authority

to aliot up to @ maximum nominal value of
£2,596,71 {being approximately 5% of the then
issued capital] as if statutory pre-emption rights
did not opply when such cllotment was for the
purposes of financing (or refinancing, if the
power is used within six months of the original
transaction) a transaction which the Board
determined to be an acquisition or other copital

Share r:ﬁuonr._uSmSE_.:m, The Company
recommenced its Share buyback programme
on 4 May 2021 and on 21st June 2021 and since
4 Moy 2021 has purchased 519,962 odditional
ardinary shares. No shares have been disposed
of by the Compeany to this date.

Sharehelders

No sharehelder enjoys any special control
rights, and, except-as set out below, there are
no restrictions in the transfer of shares or of
voting rights.

As a controlling shareholder Mike Ashley has
entered into o written and legally binding
Relationship Agreement with the Company.
This agreement ensures that the controlling
shareholder complies with the independence
provisions set out in Listing Rule 6.5.4. Under
the terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley
undertook that, for so long as he is entitled to
exercise, or to control the exercise of, 15% or
more of the rights to vote at general meetings
of the Company, he will;

+ conduct all transactions and relationships
with any member of the Group on arm's
length terms and on a normal commercial
basi

The Company has complied with this Agreement’s independence provisions during the period and.
as far as the Company is aware, the controlling shareholder and his associates have also complied
with them.

As at 25 April 2021, the Company had heen advised that the foliowing parties had an interest in 3%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules ('DTR"};

PERCENTAGE OF
NUMSER OF _.Ehmh._nu_z:-"” NATUREST
SHARES HELD WITH NG HOLDING

RIGHTS MELD
Mrie Ashley 330,000,000 63.54% Indirert
Phaenix Assat Manogement Partners Lictitad * ' 38871087 7 dA%: Qirert

UM Whke Ashley holds the shares thraugh two companes, namely MASH Beta Limuted ond MASH haldings Limuted, whuch hald 303,507,460 ordinary
shones (58 48% of the issued ordnry share copital of the Company} and 26,492 540 ordinary shares [810% of the ssued ceukniary share capital of
the Company| respectively

These ligures are as at 1 April 2021 baing the Inst dute on which the Company wos notfied of ¢ change in the parcentoge of shares

Between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021 {being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this Report) there have been no changes in the interest held by the above parties.

ADR Programmes Articles Of Association

We are aware of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt [ADR} programmes
estabiished from time to time in respect of our
shares, We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depository.

The Company's Articles of Association may only

be amendad by special resolution at a general
meeting of shareholders. Subject to applicable
laws and the Company's Articles of Association,
the Directars may exercise all powers of the
Company.

ledt an Stenbais 100% Recycled and Sarbon Capitiad through the

investrnent of a kind contemplated by the
Pre-emption Group's Statement of Principleson .+ exercise his voting rights ar other rights in
disapplying pre-emption rights. support of the Company being managed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the
principles of good governance set out in the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
not exercise any of his voting or other rights
and powers to procure any amendment to
the Articles of Asseciation of the Company;
and

The Group was authorised to make morket

purchase of ordinary shares of 10p each in

the Company of up to a maximum aggregate

number of 77,649,295 representing 14.99% of

the Company’s issued ordinary share capital ot
the 2020 AGM. The above autharity expires at
the close of the next AGM of the Company.

+  other than through his interest in the
Company, not have any interest in any
business which sells sports apparel and
equipment, subject to certain rights, after
notification to the Company, to acquire
any such interest of less than 20% of the
Husiness concerned, and certain other
limited exceptions, without receiving
the prior appraval of the Non-executive
Directors; and not solicit for employment

During the period to 25 April 2021 the Company or employ any senior employee of the

did not purchase any shares under the Comgany.

The authorities expire at the close of the

next AGM of the Company, but a contract to
allot shares under these authorities may be
made prior to the expiry of the authority and
concluded in whole or part after the AGM, and
at that meeting other authorities witl be scught
from shareholders.

Share Buyback
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yodland

Frosers Group has not and does not intend

to offer or sell its ordinary shares or other
securities (in the form of ADR or otherwise] to
the general public in the United States nor has
it listed or intend to list its Ordinary Shares

or other securities on any national securities
exchange in the United States or to encourage
the trading of its Ordinary Shares an any over

the counter market located in the United States.

The Group does not make arrangements to
permit the voting of ordinary shares held in the
form of ADRs and its publication of periodic
financial and other informaotion is not intended
to facilitate the operation of any unspensored
ADR programme under Rule 12g3-2(b) of U.S.
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or
otherwise.

Tukeovers

The Directors do not believe that there are any
significant contracts that may change in the
avent of a successful takeover of the Company.

Share Schemes

Details of the Executive share scheme are set
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Colleague Involvement

The Group currently has more than 25000
colleagues in its stores, offices and warehouses.

The workforce is notified of announcements
and mejor changes in the business via
Company emails, Siack, socicl media and

our intranet, as well as infarmation being
communicated through line managers,

The Company has elected a Workers'
Representative, Cally Price, who attends all
Board meetings end provides feedback from
colleagues to the Board and is o trusted
advocate for colleagues. The Company also has
the "Your Company, Your Voice" scheme which
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enables colleagues to raise issues of concern
vio suggestion boxes. The contributions are
read by senior management and the Workers'
Representative who provides the Boord with
an overview and replies to colleagues as
appropriate. A selection of questions received,
and answers given by management are
displayed in communal areas for colleagues.
Cally has been key in representing colleague’s
views in the Board room and has a dedicated
time slot ot every scheduled Boord meeting.
Much focus this year has been on the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic on aur employees
ond Cally has been involved in Boord decisions
and communication to staff regarding new
safe systems of work approved by the Board
to maintain gaod Covid-19 practices at our
warehouse, offices and stores and has also
provided feedback to the Board on mental
heaith webinars run in conjunction with the
Retail Trust. Cally makes weskly visits to Head
office and has werked with management on
initiatives including diversity, pay structures and
staff benefits.

Training programmes and induction courses
provide the workforce with oppeortunities to
keep up to date with the |atest developments
of the Group. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic
our annual retail conference offered attendees
an opportunity to celebrate their successes,
receive updates on how the Group's strategy
is progressing, and for them to judge how

the Group is performing via the Confident or
Concemned’ questionnaire.

There are various incentives available to cur
retail colleagues. These incentives include our 5
Sher Commission Scheme, Tuimover Bonius, PBT
Bonus, Stocktake Bonus and other commission
schemes. These schemes vary between fascias
Reteil colleagues {including casual workers) are
also eligible to participate in the Fearless 1000
bonus scheme.

Further information on engagement with our
oeople can be found in the Qur People report.
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Diversity And Equal Oppertunities

The Group's recruitment policy is to match the
capaobilities and talents of each applicant to
the appropriate job. Factors such as gender,
race, religion or belief, sexual erientation, age,
in are ignored, and
decisions are made with regard to condidates
irrespective of these factors. Discrimination in
any form is not tolerated within the Group.

Applications for employment by persons
with any disability are given full and fair
consideration for all vacancies and are
assessed in accordance with their particular
skills and abilities.

The Group endeavours to meet its
responsibilities towards the training and
employment of disabled people, ond to
ensure that training, career development and
promotien opportunities are available to cll.

The Group makes every effort to provide
continuity of employment if any of our
cofleagues become disabled. Attempts

are made in every circumstance to provide
employment, whether this involves adapting
the current job role and remaining in the same
jeb or moving to a more appropriate role.

Job retraining and job adaptation are just

two examples of how the Group works in the
interests of its workforce to promote equal
opportunities in order that on individual's
employment within the Group may continue.
The Group values the knowledge and expertise
that our people have gained throughout their
time with us, and therefore does not wish to
lose valued colleagues.

Further information on our approach to
diversity can be found in the Our People report

Business Relationships

Details of relationships with our suppliers,
customers and ather stakeholders are set out in
the 5.172 statement within the Strategic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report.

Research And Development
The Group designs some clothing and footwear

for our in-house brands for sale in stores.
External brands are purchased from third-party

suppliers although we do work with them to
agree on the specific pieces which we sell
in-store.

Charitable And Political Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable
donations of £3k [2020: £13k) in the UK. No
political denations were made (2020: nil).
Further information on our choritable donations
and community initiatives can be found in the
£SG Report,

Directors

Details of current Directors, dates of
appointment, their roles, responsil
significont external commitments are set out on
pages 37 to 39. The membership of the Baard
of Directors has remained the same throughout
Fy21.

Although the Company's Articles of Association
require retirement by rotation of one third of
Directors each year, the Group complies with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
ot each AGM al| of the Directors will retire and
stand for reappointment.

Information on service contracts and details of -
the interests of the Directors and their persons
closely associated {PCAs] in the share capita!

of the Company at 25 April 2029, and at the
date of this Report, is shown in the Directors'
Remuneration Report.

Copies of the service contracts of Executive
Directors and of the appointment letters of the
Chair and Non-executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company's registered
office during nermal business hours and at the

TAGM.

Ne Director has a directorship in common or
other significant links with-any other Director.

Director oppointments are governed by The
Compaonies Act 2006, the 2018 UK Corperate
Governance Code and the Group's Articles of
Association.

The Directors confirm that:

» 5o far as each Director is aware, there is
no relevant oudit infermation of which the
Comgpany's auditors are unaware; and

+ the Directors have taken cll steps that they
ought to have taken to moke themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information.

Directors’ Conlflicts Of Interest

The Board has formal procedures to deal with
Directors’ conflicks of interest. The appointment
tetters of Non-executive Directors state that
they agree t& consuft with the Chair prior to
accepting any directorships in publicly quoted
coempanies or any major external appointments,
Also, if any Non-executive Director becomes
aware of any potential conflicts of interest

the Chair and Company Secretary must be
notified as scon as this becomes apparent.
During the period neither the Chair or the
Company Secretary were aware of any

further appointments or potential conflicts of
interest. The independence of Non-executive
Directors is reviewed by the Board annually. All
Directors complete an annual questiornaire

to record any potential conflicts of interest .
The questionnaire for FY21 did not disclose any
conflicts of interest

The Company has entered into a Relationship
Agreement with Chief Executive, Mike Ashley,
whose wholly-owned companies, MASH
Holdings Limited and MASH Beta Limited,
currently hold appreximately 5.10% and 58.44%
respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company lexcluding treasury shares). This
agreement is described in the Directors' Report.

Prinled on Stembers 100°% Recycled and Carbon Caprurad throunh the Woodland Trust, helping to crea

new Brtish woodland across the UK
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Directors’ Indeminities

The Group has qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the meaning given
to the term by 5234 and s235 of the Companies Act 2006. This is in respect of any potential exposure
of liability in their capacity as a Director of the Company ond of any Cempany within the Group.
Such indemnities were in force throughout the financial period and will remain in force.

Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust

We note that the Trustees of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right to
receive dividends on the ordinary shares comptised in the trust fund. No dividends were paid by the
Company for the period ended 25 April 2021 {FY20: £nil}.

Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.5.4
The information required _u,“. Listing Rule 9.8.4 is set out in the table below:

APPLICABLE SUN-PARAGRAPH WITHINLR 7.0.4 DISCLOSURE PROVIDED

{1} Interest copitolised by the Graup NrA

{2] Publication of unaudited fnanciol information N/A

{34 ReQUIFAMENT deleted from the Listing Rutes

14) Detalls of long-term mcennve schames only A
invalving o Direeror

15} Waiver of emaluments by o Dirsctor NIA
{61 Waiver of fulura emoluments by o Duecter N/A
17) Nen prerraka allotments for cash fissuer) N7A
81 Nan pre-<ata allotments for cash (majar - NAA

subsidicries)

{9} Parant participation n a placng by o listed NA

subsidiary

(10} Contracts of signdicance NrA

{11] Prowision of sarvicas by o controtling poge 56
sharshalder

.

{123 Sharehalder waivers of dividends poge 61

113] Shareholder weavars of future dividends N

e} with ling sharaholders puge 62

Green House Gos Emmissons And Energy Consumption
See The Envircnment report
Annual General Meeting

Further details on the date, time and format of proceedings will follow shortly after the finalisation
of these Annual Report and Accounts, taking into account Government guidance surrounding the
Covid-19 pandemic.

Going Concern

The Group's business activities, together

with the factors likely to affect its future
development, perfermance and pesition are set
out in the Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review.

The financiol position of the Group, its cosh
flows, liquidity pesition and berrowing facilities
are des¢ribed in the Financial Review. In
addition, the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes

for managing its capital, its financial risk

exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financicl
rasources. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which

runs until Novernber 2022, and is weil placed

to take advantage of strategic opportunities

as they arise. As a consequence, the Directors
believe that the Group is able to manage its
business risks successfully despite the continued
uncertain economic outiook.

Maonagement has assessed the level of trading
to dote since the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic and has forecast and projected a
conservative base case ond also @ number

of even more conservative scenarios taking
into account @ potential further wave and
associated lockdowns over winter, Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and

cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able

to operate within the level of the current

facility and its covenant requirements (being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Management also has a number of mitigating
actions which could be taken if required such as
putting on hold discretionary spend, liquideting
certain assets on the balance sheet and paying
down the Revolving Credit Facility. See the
Vicbility Statement for further details.

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in -

operational existence for the ot least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements,
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern basis for the preparation of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
which is a pericd of at least twelve menths
from the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Accountability And Audit

A statement by the External Auditor con

be found on page 66 detailing its reporting
es. The Directors fulfil their

es, and these are set out in the
Directors' Responsibilities Statement.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed for
reappointment at the AGM. in accordance with
s489(4) of the Companies Act 2008, resolutions
to determine remuneration are to be agreed at
the AGM.

Post Balance Sheet Events

See note 36 of the _p::..E_ Accounts,

Future Developments

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report.

Fil ial Risk M.

Financial risk management is discussed in note
3 of the financial staterments.

By Order of the Board.

Tom Piper
Company Secretary
S August 2021

ted on Steintigis 100%% Recycled and Carbon Caplured twouah he Woodidod Trost
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Strategic Report and the Directors' Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the separate
Coarporate Governance Statement and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the directors to prepare
group and company financial statements for
each financial year. The directors have elected
under company law to prepare group financial
statements'in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirernents of the Companies Act 2006 and
are odditionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authority te prepare
the group financial statements in accordance

with internctional financial reporting standards -

adopted pursuant te Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.
The directors have elected under company low
to prepare the company financial statements

in accerdance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law).

The group financial statements are required
by law and international accounting stendards
in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuart
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
refation to such financial statements that
references in the relevant part of that Act to
financicl statements giving a true and fair
view are references to their achieving o fair
presentation.

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give ¢ true ond fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period.

65

nied on stembels 100% Recyclsd and Carbon Captuied throuah the Woodlond Trust. he

In preparing each of the group and company
financial statements, the directors are required
to:

a. seiect suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

c. forthe group financia! statements, state
whether they have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and international financial reporting

*standards adopted pursuant to Regulations
{EC} No 1606,/2002 as it applies in the
European Unior;

d. for the company finoncial stotements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been fotlowed, subject
to any moterial departures disclosed
and explained in the company financial
statements;

e. prepare the financial statements on
the geing concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the group's and the
company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accurocy ot any time the financial
position of the group and the company and

. enable themn to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration

¢ Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
ond, as regards the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the group and the'company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities,

i create nowy Bobs

Directors’ Statement P

To The Discl

and Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 39 confirm
thiot, to the best of each person's knowledge:

a. the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken os a whole; and

b. the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the -
business and the position of the company
and the undentakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information inciuded on the
Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legistation in other
jurisdictions.

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 2021

wosdiand actoss the UK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF FRASERS GROUP PLC

OPINION

We hove audited the financial statements of
Frasers Group PLC (the 'porent company') and
its subsidiories {the 'group’} for the period ended
25 April 2021 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cashflow
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Company Balance
Sheet, the Company Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting fromewark

that has been applied in the preparation of

the Group financial staterments is applicable
law and International Accounting Standards

in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Unicn. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the parent company financial
statements is applicoble law and United
Kingdom Acceunting Standards, including
Financial Reperting Standard 102 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Irefand’ {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

+ the finoncial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the group's and of the
parent company's affairs as at 25 April 2021
and of the group's loss for the period then
ended;

+ the group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting stondards adopted
pursuont to Regulation (EC} No 1606/2002
as it applies in the European Union;
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« the parent company financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

* the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Baosis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) {I1SAs
{UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibi
under those standards are further described

in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the group and parent
compony in accordance with the ethical
requirements thot are relevont to our audit of
the financial stotements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities and we have ful
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient ang
appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion.

Conclusi lating to going

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.
For an explanation of how we evaluated
management's assessment of the group's
and porent company's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting
and our key cbservations arising in respect to
that evaluation, please see the Impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic and Going Concern key
audit matter.

Based on the work we have performed, we

have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group's ar the parent company’s ability to
centinue as a going cencern for a period of at

least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In refation to the entities reporting on how they
have applied the UK Cerporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in relation to the directors’
statement in the finonciol statements about
whether the directors considered it appropriote

to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

the directors with respect to geing concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters

Group - Recurring risks.

»  Valuation of inventory

+ Impairment of property related assets
= Property, Legcl and Other Provisions
*  Clossification of investments

Group - event driven

+  Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
concern

Materiality

Group

+  Overall moteriolity; £111million

+ Performance materiality: E7.2million
Parent Company

= Qverall matericli am:_._‘.:_:o:

»  Performance 1.:0319__,2” £7.1 million
Scope

Our Group audit procedures covered 88% of
revenue, 88% of total assets and 78% of the
result before tax.

Key cudit matters

Key audit matters are those matters thot,

in eur professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the group and
parent company financial statéments of the
current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstaterment
{whether ar not due to froud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect
on the overal audit strategy, the allecation of
resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our
pracedures thereon, were addressed in the
context of our audit of the group and parent
company financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This is not a complete list of all risks identified
by our audit.

Inventory - valuation and existence
Key audit matter dascription

At 25 April 2021, the Group Consolidated
Balance Sheet records inventary of £1,096.6m

{2020: £1,198.3m). This amount is net of an

inventory provision of £219.8m [2020: £223m).

The Covid-19 pandemic resulted in physicat
stores being temporarily closed at various
points during the period and the resultant
reduction in the level of demand and a reduced
ability to sell through seasonal inventory may
increase the risk of inventory obsolescence.

As described in note 2 to the financial
statements, management use a forward looking
inventary provisiening medel which calculates
a provision by category of inventory based on
histarical experience, pricing and discounting
strategies and managerment's assessment of
risk.

There is significant estimation involved in the
colculation of inventory provisions ta ensure
that inventory is held at the lawer of cost and
net reaiisable value. This involves consideration
of expected future losses on sale of inventory
including assessing the likely impacts of the
Covid 19 pandemic, inventory obsolescence and
the additional costs to sell which need to be




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROU?P

included in calculating the net realisable volue
of inventory.

Due to the factors explained above, we have
identified the valuation of inventory as a key
audit matter,

How the matter was addressed in the audit

In respect of i y valuation we:

+  Assessed the appropriateness of
management's inventory provision
caleulations, including testing the accuracy
and completeness of the date used and tha
mathematical accuracy of the provisioning
model

+  Critically challenged the assumptions mada
in the inventory provision model in respect
of the expected jeve! of discounting and thz
expected costs of sale, including:

~ The basis on which expected discounts
were caiculoted ond whether calculatec
discounts were realistic bosed on
historical experience and the current
trading environment

- The assumptions regarding the
expected volurme and allocated costs of
redistributing {tunnelling) and repricing
product ’

~  Whether different assumptions and
estimates should be applied for differen:
fascias given the differentiated product
mix

= Considered management's strategic optiors
for addressing demand in the uncertain
retail economic environment present as a
result of the Covid 19 pandemic, including
discounting levels and further development
of on-line retait channels.

As a result of our findings from challenging
management's medel, we independently
developed an clternative model that applied
historic inventary loss experience to calcuiate
1 provision against eurrent out of season and
<learance inventory and inventory that would
be expected to remain unsold and fall into
those categories in future periods. In addition,
we recalculated the expected future tunnelling
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and repricing costs to take account of our

- assessment of the likely future costs of these
activities in relation to products that wouid
have a net realisable value which was below
cost.

We then formed an assessment, based on
discussions with management and available
market data, to reflect the impact of the
Covid-19 pondemic. This included consideration
of forecast future sales performance, expected
margin decline, the increased risk of inventory
becoming out of season and adjustments
considered refevant for specific fascias,

where the risk of inventory obselesence was
considered to be higher. Our alternative model
allowed us to develop an estimate of the jevei
of provision we considered appropriate and
supportable against which we were cble to
assess management's estimates.

Key observations

Our audit work on inventery valuation, and
in particular the development of our own
alternative provision model, did not identify
any material misstatement in the inventory
provisions.

Impairment of property related assets
Key audit matter description

As a result of the Covid 19 pandemic and
changing patterns of retail consumer behavicur,
particutarly in relation to physical stares, the
Group identified that there were indications

of impairment in relation to freehold property
interests, right of use assets and related PPE
["property related ossets”). As required by

IAS 36 {Impairment of Assets) the Group has
performed an impairment review of ail such
assets.

As a resuit of this review, impairments in
relation to freehold and long leasehold property
(£88.4m}, right of use assets {£168.2m) and
related PPE {£63,8m) have been made in these
financial statements.

As deseribed in note 2 to the financial
statements, the impairment review involves
management judgements and estimates in
relation to the value in use of the property
related assets (being the net present value

of the forecost related cashflows} and, in the
case of freehold property, comparison of
calculated value in use to internal and external
property valuations. The values derived are
then compared to the book value of the related
assets to determine whether impairment

is required. In making this assessment
management determined each property or
store to be a cash generating unit {CGU).

The value in use calculations involve significant
assumnptions regarding future cashflows, the
long term growth rate in like for like sales, an
assessment of the propensity for customers

to switch to anline purchases, pressure on
margins and determination of an uppropriate
discount rate as weli os considering the
possibility of future lockdowns. In the case of
freehold property, valuations are dependent
©n assumptions regarding the ability to

relet property, the length of void and rent

free periods and future rentals achievable.
Accordingly we determined that the valuation
of property related assets had o high degree of
estimotion uncertainty and this is illustrated by
the sensitivity analysis set out in note 2.

Due to the factors expiained above, we have

nd across the UK

identified completenass, valuation, presentation
and disclosure of property related assets as a
key audit motter,

How the matter was addressed in the cudit

We obtained an understanding of how
management performed their impairment
testing of property related assets and their
appreach to valuation.

We critically assessed the methodology

applied by management with reference to

the requirements of 1AS 36 and tested the
integrity of the value in use calcuiations and the
caleulated impairments by CGU.

in the case of freehold property, in addition

to assessing the value in use colculations,

we evaluated the approach to the valuation
of freehold interests with input from an
independent external retail property valuation
expert and critically challenged the underlying
assumptions.

In particular we challenged the significant
assumptions within manogement's models
through:-

*  Evaluating monagement's assumptions
through censideration of historical and
current trading performance and external
data points

+ Sensitised the assumptions in
management's impairment models and
reviewed the financial statement discilosures
documenting ossurnptions and the impacts
of applied sensitivities

« Tested the reconciliction between
the casiflows used in the value in use
calculations with those used to assess going
concern and viability to ensure they were
consistent

» Critically challenging whether it was
appropriate to exclude properties from the
impairment model and assessing whether
the reasons for exclusion were supportable -
for example where specific properties were
under redevelopment

* Comparing the discount rate used with that
independently calculated by cur internal
valuation expert
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We assessed whether the disclosures within the
financial statements are consistent with 1AS 36.

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of the impairment
of property related ossets concluded that the
related balances were not materially misstated
and the disclosures management have made
are appropriate.

Property, Legal and Other Provisions
Key oudit matter description

The Group makes provision for liabilities where
it identifies there is a present obligation as
result of a past event and where it is probable
that there will be a resultant outflow of
resources that con be reliably measured.

The Group has a significant provision in relation
to legal and reqgulatory matters and property
related provisions. As detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet includes pravisions of £215.8m
(2020: £225.4m)] relating to legal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, {2020: 107.9m] relating to
property provisions which principally comprises
provisions for dilapidations on Jeaseheold
properties.

The dilopidation provision requires significant-
judgements to be mode as to future amounts
payabte based on histerical experience,
external advice and evolving conditions within
the property sector.

Additionally, the Group faces a number of
legal, tax cnd other commercial claims and
significant judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what amount.

Due to the amounts involved and the
significant judgements required in quantifying
and assessing provisions we have identified
existence, accuracy, noa_u_m*msmmm. presentation
and disclosure of property, legal and other
provisions as a key audit matter,
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How the matter was addressed in the audit
Qur audit work included the following: -

*  Considering management’s assessment
in respect of provisions and assessing
whether the recagnition criterio of |AS
37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent ossets had been met.

* Challenging the assumptions made in the
dilapidation provision model in respect
of the expected level of dila
a store by store basis. As a result of cur
findings from challenging management's
modei, we independently developed an
aiternative model that applied historic
dilapidation costs and relevant factors
such as geography and property type as
well as considering the impacts of likely
future changes in the property market. Our
alternative mode! allowed us to develop
an estimate of the level of provision we
considered appropriate and supportable
against which we were able to ossess
management’s estimates,

+ Challenging provisions ond related
assumptions with key monagerment outside
the finance function, including members of
the property and legal teams and ohtaining
correhorative evidence from third parties in
relation to material ongoing leqal and tax
matters

+  Auditing the movement in provisions and
checking for completeness through the
review of ongoing claims for dilapidations
and through circularisation of legal advisors
in relation to other claims.

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of Property, legal and
other provisions concluded thot the related
balances were not materially misstated ond
the disclosures management have made are
appropriate.

Classification of investments
Key oudit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it helds mere than 20% but less than
50% of the voting share copital of the investee.

{AS 28 ~ Investments in essociates and Joint
Ventures - requires that where an investment
falls within this range it should be gccounted
for as an ossociate, unless management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and can ¢learly demonstrate that this is
the cose.

The Group sold its investment in'French
Connectian ple during the year but at the year
end has strotegic investments in Studio Retail
Group pic {36.9%) and Mulberry Group glc
[26.1%) and has rebutted the presumption that

* significant influence exists. These investments
have baedn accounted for at fair vaiue through
other comprehensive income as explained in
note 2 to the financial statements,

Since the judgements that the Group has made,
that it does not have significant influence over
Studio Retail Group plc and Mulberry Group
plc, hove a significant impact over the financial
statements we have identified the classification
and disclosure of investments as a key audit
matter,

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Qur audit work included. -

»  Assessing the accounting for the above
investments under 1AS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 9 -
Financial Instruments.

= Obtaining and criticelly challenging
monagement's papers addressing the
accounting for the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting
standards and the judgements made in
addressing the questions of significant
influence

= Discussing management's strategy for
holding the investments end challenging
whether this was consistent with the

accounting treatment

+ Assessing the five criteria set out in |AS 28
as suggesting whether significant influence
may exist by examining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence.

In particular we: -

+ Obtained ond examined certain
agreements and correspondence
between the Group and the investees to
corroborate managements assertion that
no significant influence exists

*  Reviewed investee financial statements,
press announcements, articles of
association, shareholder agreements and
media reports to assess whether there
was evidence of significant influence

+  Made enquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic Investments to understand
the Group's interaction with thase
investments, including in particular, the
nature and purpose of the observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group plc

+ Considereg whether transactions
between the Group and the investees
were indicative of significant influence

«  Critically challenging whether the
judgements made are clearly disclased in
the financial statements.

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the classification
of investments concluded that management's
judgements that they did not have significant
influence over Studio Retail Group ple and
Mulberry Group plc to be supportoble and the
related classification ond disclosures made in
the financial statements to be appropriate.
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Impact of the Covid 19 pondemic and going
concern

Key audit matter description

The Covid 19 pondemic ond the mandated
temporary closure of retail stores at various
times during the year, has had a significant
impact on the group's revenue and result
before tax. In addition to heightened audit
risks relating to the carrying value of property
related assets and inventory set out in the
key audit matters above, the pandemic has
implications for;-

+ The Group's considerations in relation to
going concern and viability

+  Accounting for menies received under the
UK Government's Job Retention Scheme
{CJRS)

Significant judgements are dlways required
around the assumptions underpinning future
cashflow projections. These judgements are
heightened in the current retail environment
given the uncertainties surrounding the lenger
term impact of the pandemic and structural
changes 1o the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
sales have performed well, the longer term
impacts on shopping habits and the risks of
a global recession are difficult to accurately
predict.

Taking account of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentially material variations in forecast
financiol pesformance, but concluded that

the Group has sufficient rescurces available

te meet its liabilities as and when they fall

due and that therefore there are ne material
uncertainties that cast significant doubt on the
Group's akility to continue as o going concern,

In undertaking their assessment of going
zoncern, the Directors have reviewed forecast
future performance and anticipated cashflows
for the Group, These forecasts have also been
applied in determining the need to impair
sroperty related assets as set out in the key
audit matter above. Their assessment has
zonsidered cashflow forecasts end financing
and covenants in place for the period to
November 2022, which is the date at which the
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current Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the assessment and as disclosed in
the viakility statement on page 36, the Directors
hove determined appropriate sensitivities to the
forecasts, including o reverse stress test of the
Group's ability to meet its covenants.

We have identified a key audit matter related
to going concern as a result of the judgement
required in undertaking a going cencern
assessment in the current uncertcin trading
environment, the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures and the conclusion that there is not
a material uncertainty related to going concern.

The Group has received furlough {CJR5) income
of approximately £80m in the year and has
recognised this as a reduction in payroll costs in
the incame statement. The rules that applied to
furlough claims in the year were complex and
subject to variation and there are significant
penalties for non-comptiance. Consequently

we identified o potentiai risk of misstatement
reloting to the processing end management of
claims.

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our audit work in relation to geing concern
included:

*  (Cbtaining an understanding of
management's going concern models,
discussing key assumptions with
management and assessing whather those
assumptions were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such os in relation to
inventory valuation and the assessment of
pivpeTy reluied provisions

» Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashflow models, and
agreeing opening balances to 25 April 2021
actual figures

+  Checking management's covenant
compliance calculations te determine
whether there is a risk of breach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management’s base model appeared
realistic, achievable and consistent with
other internal and external evidence

* Comparing forecast sales with recent
historical information te consider the
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accuracy of forecasting

»  Considering post year end sales patterns to
assess whether they were consistent with
thase assumed in the base model

+  Testing management's sensitivity analysis
and reverse stress test and perferming our
own analysis based on further sensitising of
the madels to take account of reasonably
possible scenarios that could arise from the
risks identified

+ Challenging management regarding their
identification of discretionary spend that
could be reduced should mitigating actions
become necessary

*  Reviewing agreements and correspondence
relating to the availability of financing
arrangements

+ Evaluating the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of IAS 1

In relation to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) we:

+ Obtained an understonding of how
management communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculated and submitted
their claims

+ Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC

+ Agreed cash received for claims made
during the year to bank statements

+  Reperformed the cakulation of o sample of
cieims including agreeing details to poyroll
records

+ Reviewed the internal audit work performed

over CJRS claim proceduyres

woodiand across the UK

FRASERS GROUP

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the Covid 19
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate and we did not
identify any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that, individually or
coliectively, may cast significant doubt on

the group's of the parent company's ability

to continue as a going concern and that the
associated disclosures are in accordance with
cccounting standards,

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on future performance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no oudit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scencrios that may have
future implications for the Group.

Our work in respect of CIRS cloims did not
identify any material misstatement.
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There are no key audit matters relating to the parent company.

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strotegy, we set certain threshalds which help us to determine
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evoluating whether the effects of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably
influence the econemic decisions of the users we take into aceount the qualitative nature ond the
size of the misstatements. Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the

financial statements as follows:

Group

Parent Company

OVERALL MATERIALITY

Enimilon {2070 £11 9millant

on (2020 EN1 grmllion;

BA3HS FOR DETERMINING OVERALL MATERIALITY

26% of Underlying ESITDA

14 of totus ossets copped at overall
Group maten

RATIONALE FOR BENCHMARK APFLIED

In determining overall matenaliy

wé guve coNideration to uiderlying
EBTDA, revenue and the average result
betore tux for the previgus three yeoss

Since the Graup uses underlying EBITDA
nit's comniymeobpns with shareholders
we have determned this to be the most
apprepnate materaily benchmark

We applied o Iowes lavel of moternlity
to the oudi of compeonents and, in
accardance with 154 320, i1 relution to
ceran closses of transoctions, ecdunt
bolances ond diclosuras.

Unoertyng EBiTDA is dafmned at note
4 and inthe g'assory to the financiol
staternants

Tne FParent Compurty does Aot trads

ond therefota total ossets s consdered
nork

te be the most oppropriate ber

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY

We set performance matenality at
a level lower than overall materiolty
for the hnoncial statements as a

low tevel the prowability thol
aggregate, uncorrected ond un
musstotemants axceed overall
matenatty

The factars we considered 1n
determning performance matenahty
secluded; out knowledge of the groug,
the pressuras within the ratal suetor
ancl the level at msstatements in prioy
panods

luw lavel the probakulty .

aggregnte, uncarrected und undeierted

rvgstaternants exceed cveell

EMATERIALITY

65% ol overgl mater
12020, 755 of guers)

65% of overglt mate,
{2000 75% of eve

REPORTING OF MISSTATEMENTS TO THE AULHT COMMITTEE

Misstatements in excess of E0 Grllion
ond misst ments belaw that threshoig
th QU Viow, warranted repating oh
qualiative grounds

Misstate:
and misstctemets below tha' th
ﬂ
Quo

tive grounds

L. 4 cur view. watanted reporting oi
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Our cudit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Group's business ond is
risk based, and in porticulor included:

- Evaluation of identified compenents to
assess the significance of eoch cormpenent
and to determine the plonned audit
response based on a measure of materiality.
This included significance as a percentage
of the Group's revenue, total assets and
result before tax;

»  For those components that were evaluated
as significant, or likely to include significant
risks, either a full-scope or targeted
appraach was taken based on their
relative materiality to the Group, and our
assessment of the audit risk. For significant
components requiring a full-scope
approach, we evaluated controls over the
financial reporting systems identified as
part of our risk assessment and addressed
critical accounting matters. Substantive
testing was performed on significont classes
of transactions and balances, and other
material balances, determined during the
Group scoping exercise;

- Full scope audit procedures have been
performed en the financial statements of
Frasers Group plc, and on the financiat
information of the main trading companies
within the UK Retail component;
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, Sports Direct Internatienal Holdings
Limited, House of Fraser Limited, The
Flanrels Group Limited, Jack Wills Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retail Limited;

» - Inrejation to overseas components we
engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
Ireland and Spain, to perform fuil scope
component audits and RSM in the United
States and Belgium to perform targeted
audit procedures. Additionolly, RSM
rmember firms attended inventory counts in
a number of locations;

EEDES AR

+ The group engagemernit team reviewed the
work performed by the component cuditors.
We determined the level of involvement
we needed to have in their audit work
at those reparting units to be able to
conclude whether sufficient, appropriate
gudit evidence hod been obtained as o
bosis for our opinion on the Group financial
staternents as a whale.

+  Further specific audit procedures over the
Group consclidation and areas of significant
Judgement including impairment of property
related assets, leases, taxation and treasury
were performed by the group engagement
teom.

The aperations that were subject to full-scope
audit procedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of total ossets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targeted
audit procedures, including specific significant
judgement areas noted above, made up 8% of
consolidated revenues, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit before tax; and

The remaining operaticns of the Group were
subject to onalyticel pracedures over the
balance sheet and income statements of the
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above. This made up 12% of
consalidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit before tax.
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The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

g Full Scope

Full scope audits were performed for 5 components (some of which included a number of legal
entities which were combined for group reperting purposes), targeted oudit procedures for 4
components and analytical procedures at group level for the remaining components.

...Fﬁaﬁnn_ oudit . Analytical procedures

n.ﬂ.zhﬂu_u Revanue Tatal ousety _:?.H:.“
FULL $COPEAVDIT 5 30% 82% 7%
TARGETED AUDIT PROCIDURES . 4 B 6% 4%
TOTAL 9 8% BE% 78%

The Group team had planned to visit component locations in Austria, Spain and the USA. However,
these visits were prevented by travel restrictions imposed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
instead the group team held videe conference calls and performed remote file reviews to assess the
audit risk and the wark planned and performed in response.

The parent compeny was subject to a full score oudit for the purposes of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements.

Other informaotion

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
informaticen included in the annual report on pages 1to 65 cther than the financial statements

and our cuditor's sepok thareom, Qur opinion on the finencio! stoternents does oA tover the othes
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connaction with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in daing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is o material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report thaot fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard,
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

tn our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration repart to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

{n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financiol
statermnents are prepared is consistent with
the financiol statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

+ the information abeut internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Conduct Authcrity
{the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

¢+ information about the company's corporate
governance code and practices and about
its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 7.2.2, 72.3 and 727 of
the FCA Rules

s British waodland acress the HK

Maotters on which we are required to report by
exception

I the hight of the knowledge and
understanding of the group ond the parent
company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we hove not identified
material misstatements in:

* the Strategic Repont or the Directors’ Report;
or

*» the information about internal control and
nisk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in retation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion;

= adequate secounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for aur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements
and the part of the directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of directors'
remunerdtion specified by low are not
made; or

+  we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, fonger-term viability and that port of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parent company's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Stutement specified for our review,
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Based on the work undertaken as port of

our audit, we have concluded thot each of

the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financicl statements or our knowledge
obtained during the cudit:

+  Directors’ statement with regards the
appropricteness of adopting the going
concern basis of accounting and any
material uncerteinties identified (set out on
page 64);

* Directors' explonation as to its assessment
of the group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why this period is
appropriate (set out on page 36);

+ Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and
understandable {set out on page 44});

* Board's confirmation that it has carried out
@ robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks [set out on page 31);

*  The section of the annucl report that '
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal contral systems
{set out on page 44); and,

«  The section describing the work of the audit
committee (set out on page 44}

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’
responsibilities stotement [set out on page
65, the directors are responsible for the
preparation cf the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give o true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group’s and the parent company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as gpplicoble, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors efther intend
to liguidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic
aiternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not o guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
{UK) will always-detect o material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements con arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the nggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these fincncial statements.

Tha axtant to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irragulorities, including
fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compiiance
with laws and regulations, The objectives of
our audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the determination of material amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements,

to perform audit procedures to help identify
instances of non-cempliance with other laws
and regulations that may have o material effect
on the finoncial stotements, and to respond
apprapriately to identified or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations

d during the audit,

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit
are to identify and assess the risk of materia!
misstatement of the financial statements

due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing appropriate
responses and to respond appropriately to
fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of ’
management, with the oversight of those
charged with governance, to ensure that
the entity's operations are conducted in
accordance with the provisions of laws
and reguiations and for the prevention and
detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material
isstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fraud, the group audit engagement
team:

« obtained an understanding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and requlatory fromeworks that the
group and parent company operates in and
how the group and parent company are
complying with the legal and reguiatery
frameworks;

= inguired of management, cnd those
charged with governance, about their own
identification ond assessment of the risks of
irreqularities, including any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

- applied analytical review procedures to
identify unusual or unexpected relationships,

+ discussed matters about non-comgliance
with laws and regulations and how fraud
might occur including assessment of how
and where the financicl statements may be
susceptible to froud

As the group is regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gatning an understanding of
the effectiveness of the controf environment
including the controls established to mitigate
the risks of fraud and the procedures for
compiying with regulatory requirements.

All relevant laws and regulations identified ata
Group level and areas susceptible to fraud that
could have a moterial effect on the financial
statements were communicated to component
auditors. Any instances of non-compliance

with laws and regulations identified and
communicated by component auditors were
considered in our cudit approach. We remained
alert to any indications of fraud throughout the
audit.

As a result of these procedures, we considered
the cpportunities and incentives that may
exist within the Group for fraud and identified
the greatest potential for froud in those areas
in which management is required to exercise
significant judgement. in common with all
audits under |SAs {UK)] we also performed
specific procedures to respond to the risk of
rmanagement override and the risk of fraudulent
revenue recognition. These procedures
included.

* testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments based on risk
criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation .

* assessing whether the judgements made
in making accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

- evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or
outside the normal course of business

* testing the operating effectiveness of
the manual controls in relation to the
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales

+  investigating transactions posted ta nominal
ledger codes outside of the nermal revenue
cycle identified through the use of data
analytics tools.

The Group is subject to laws and regulations
which directly affect the material amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements.

The most significant laws and regulations were
detertmined to be as follows:-IFRS and FRS

102, the UK Companies Act, Financial Conduct
Authority regulations, including the Listing Rules
and tax legislation.

n, the Group is subject to other

laws and regulations which da not have o
direct effect on the financial stotements but
compliance with which may be fundamental
to the Group's ability to operate or to avaid
material penalties. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: competition and anti-bribery laws, data
protection, employment, environmental and
health and safety regulations.
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in response to the above, audit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
included;

* reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation
to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described
as having a direct effect on the financial
statements

* enquiring of management, the Audit
Committee and in-house legal counsel
concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims

+ reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing internal
qudit reports and correspondence with
HMRC

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is locatec
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website a:
http:{/www frc.org.ub/ouditorsresponsibilities,
This descripticen forms part of our auditor's
report.

Cther metters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit
committes, we were appointed by the Audit
Committee and the Board on 18 November
2019 to audit the financial statements for the
year ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
financial periods,

The period of total uninterrupted consecutive
appointments is 2 years covering the years
ending 26 April 2020 to 25 April 2021.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to the
group or the parent company and we remain
:ndependent of the group and the parent
company in conducting our audit.

Jur audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee.*
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s
members, as a bady, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members
these matters we are required to state to them
in an cuditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept Or dssume responsi y to anyone other
than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit wark, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Merk Harwood
{Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit |_.LP,
Statutery Auditor

Chartered Accountants
25 Farringden Street
London

EC4A 4AB

5 August 2021

g 1o reate new Brish woodland across the UK
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprif 2021

FRASERS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

52 wesks ended 52 weshs andad "
Hete 25 April 2021 26 April 7020 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2029
) fem) e 52 waeks andpd 92 weeks anded
RAEVENUE 4 [ 157 15 Apeil 3021 24 April 2030
Cost of sales 12.094 51 12,354 B lEm} {m)
GROSS PROFIT 15103 1626 fLossifproft for tle penoa 4 Psal 1]
Selling, distrbubion ond adminstrotive expenses REDY] a7}
Other operating inceme 5 368 25 OTHER COMPREHENSIWEINGOME.
Praperty related impanments 1817 (3170 12281 ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO BROFIT OR LOSS
Exceptional tems 6 nel nin Fun valus movament an long term Inenciol assets i 773 1571
Protil on saie of propertes 7 g7 542
NTEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED 7O PROFIT OR LOSS
OPERATING [LOSS)PROFIT b 4B ] ma
Exchange aifferenres on transiation of forgign operations lag 4] 98
Investment ncome 10 1037 157
Sour vithug movernent on hedged cortraets - racognised in the pariod 25,29 04 164
+Investment casts " 177 |42 8]
- Faur uslus movement on hedyed €oMtracts « ineflactvenass 2539 B 'Y
¥nonce ncome 2 90 il
Faw value movemant on hedged contrdets - reclassified ond raported i sales 2529 17 8 n
Enonce cost 1 (362 12931
Frw value movement on hudgad contracts - reclossihed and reported in cost of sales 3579 4] 74
Shara of loss of osserinted undertakings 13 - (L))
Four volue mowement on hedgad contracts - taxation taken b reseres 3529 L 30 3R
Fair value gain on step acquisiten ) 204
PHOFIT BEFORE TAXATION (1] s OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/{LGSS) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX ny (2.8}
s 4 2
axanan 1£2% TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSSVINCOME FOR THE PERICD s 124
(LSSS|/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 4 1010
ATT ETO:
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
. p Equity holders of th group 3 652
ty hokd v 83 0
ity holders ol e 2oup 8300 ns Non-cant raling sntsrest 50 13
Non-contralling interests 50 72
£6.9) 124
{LOEL)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 4 ra.0f toro
PER SHARE ATTRIBUTASLE TO THE EQUITY SHARKHOLDERS
The accompanying accounting pelicies and notes form part of these finoncial statements.
Fence par shara Panca per share
Busic sarmings per share 15 {1651 185
[hiuted acrmings per share 1% 1% 51 iCE]
\l} Frogerty reloted impanments of £317 Dm have been separetely presented for the yeor ended 75 Aprd 2021 The not yeor compornniive o 127 fm

which was previously meluded within S
1o be esmporable,

g, distritution and adrministraxve sxpenses in ke F¥20 Annual Report hos besn reprasentes

The Consolidated Income Statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations are
continuing. The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these

finonciol statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A% 25 April 2020 For the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprit 2021
, Hate 23 April 3031 26 April 2020 Hate 52 wewky wnded 52 wweky andad
{Eml o) 5 April 2031 26 April 2030
ASSETE - HON CURRENT [&mit 1Em)
Praperty, plant and equipment 16 11649 13476 CAIH INFLOWS FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES 32 T8 4113
Inwastment proparties 17 M1 e Income taxes poid {59 3] (an 8]
Intangible assets 18 1205 1434 NET CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES F13.0 we?
Long-term financiol gsiety 20 633 EE] -
Deferred b assats 2 6a He Froceeds on disposat of property. plont and equipment ond investment proparty wé 1524
. 14284 Ledds Proceeds on disposal of ntangibles ussets Iy .
ASSETE - EURRENT Proceeds on disposel of hstad mvestrments and derivates 581 £9
Inventories n 10966 11982 Purchass af associotes -
Trade and other receivables 2 5465 LALY] Pucchase of subsidiaries, net of csh ocquired a1 {398
Dervativa hanewl assels 29 554 81 Purchusa of property, plant und equipment 1% (219.4] [33.5)
Cesh and cath equivalents n 4570 3340 Purchove of miangible assels » nal -
. 11553 Liddd
Purchase af hsted swestrmants N i 124.8]
TOTALASSETS 3,7081 10483
00Ty Investiment ncome receiverd 35 05
Shara caputol 24 641 ad1 Finunce INCOMa receved S0 Gn
Share prewumn B3 8741 MET CARH OUTFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITINS 1230.4) 119343
Treasury shores rassrve @95 12957) [ {1801 1136}
Permanant conlnbubon to cof 25 o1 01
Finanre casts poid i3tel {183}
Capital redemption reseive 25 L1 80
Foreigh curiency translotion reserve 108 s Borrowings drawn down 36 11281 5100
Revarse combmatian reserve 25 (987 3) (987 %) Borrawmgs cepoid E 13716} [436.5)
Own shote ruserve (66 1] 70 Dividends poic to nan-cantialling interests gl B
Hedgeng resarve 25 ns R0 Purchase ot awn shures 431 [439
Shore bused poyment weserve R 13 - NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (M0.5) (4013
etalned sarmings 1,554 % 15649
BIUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO GWNERS OF THE PARENT [ 12613 NET {CECREASE IN CASH AND EasH L OVIRDRAFTS mn ne
voneconteolling intarests 81 no Exchonge inovement on cash balances 1531 5q
ToTALZouITY 12110 [T CASH AND CASH AT OF PERIOD 50 400
LIARILITIES - NON CURRENT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING OVERDRAFTS AT THE FERIOD END 2 4520 3.0
Lease liobiily 6 5342 4783
orrawings 26 8% J000 . . - X .
Renrament baneht oblgations v s The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these-financial statements.
Delerred tax lal 27 270 56
Browislons 28 312 3360
1,638.3 (51X
LIABLITIES = CURRENT
Darwabwe finanual llability % 97 442
“rade and cther pnyables 30 546.3 602§
Lease hobllty 26 168 5 1475 .
. Current tax labihises 399 516
[ e
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 15043 15879
TOTAL EGUITY AND LIABLITIES s st 30682

The accompanying accounting policies and nozes form part of these Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements were appraved by the Board an § August 2021 and were sigred on s bebalf by

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

* shom capital Share premium Trosury shares Share schomereiarva TSRS Gy o reierve  Retsined samings PN Nen-somirting Tetal
. -
Em) {Em} Em} {€m} 1&mi {&m) {em) itm) &mj
AT 29 APRIL 2018 641 a3 1.7 - 641 {62.2) {932.5) 13859 12217
Purchase of own shares - - 14401 - - 02 - - 1438 - (a8
Reversal of FY15 far vatuation of shore buyback contructual oibfigotion - - 00 - - - - - 300 - 300
TRANSAZTIONS WITH OWNERS IN THEIR CAPACITY A3 OWWNERS - . (1.0} . - 0.2 - - (13.8) - n.a)
Profit for the financral pencd - - - - - - 418 538 22 g
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Cash fiow hedges - recagnised in the penod - - - - - - - 6.4 .4 - w4
Cash Row hedges - insftactivaness - - - - - - - ¥ 01 - 0.2
Cush fiow hedges - and rgoontad ot sules . - - - - - B 1l na - an
Cash Aow hedges - reclussihed and reperted in cost of sules - - - - - - 1374} 1374 - 137 4]
Cash flaw hadges - taxation . - 1A | 28 - 38
Fair volue odjustiment in faspect of lang term fnancial assts - recognised - - - - - - 197 - 197 [xA
Tronstation differences - Group - - - 98 - 28 ' - v8
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FERIOD ) - - - - 5.3 - A 85.2 .1 724
AT 26 APRIL 2020 641 Ml [295.7) - Yy (67.0) 13649 ik 1,201.3 . 1.0 1,200.3
Acquisitions tnote 31} . - - - - - - - 10 o
Shoie schems - - - 13 - 03 7 - 13 - JEX]
Dradends paid ke non-controfling interasts - - - - - - - - o9 o9
TRANSACTIONS WITH GWNERS IN THEIR CAPACITY AS OWNERS - - - 13 - 0.3 1] - na o1 {2.0)
[Lossi/pratit for the finuncial penod - - - - 1830} : 1830) 50 12804

OTHER INCOME .
Cenhilow hedges - recogaised in th paniod - - - - - - - - 04 a4 - o4
Coshilow hadgas - raclyssified and reported in sgles - - - - - - (28] 28 - 28
Cashilow hedges - raclagsiied and reported m cost of sales - . . . - - - a7 171 - (4]
Cashilow hedges - taxation - - - - - ap L) 30
__Fair value cdjustment in respect of long-term haancial assets - recogmised - - - - 773 - 273 - 33
Translation differences - Group - - - 51 - - 1491 - 149
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE |LOSS] FOR THE PERIOD - - - - LA - 157 nss) man (X3 ($4.3)
AT 25 APRIL 202t 7] "y (298.3) 12 2.4 {64} 15545 19617) 1LY 1ane

) The share prermum accaunt 1s used to record Lhe gxcess proceeds over narmnal value on the issue of shores
12 Dther reserves comprises permanent cantnbution to cop tol, copital redemplion raserve, reverse enmbination reserve and the hedging reserve Al

hovemends in the peiod reioted (0 the hedging reserve frate 250

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Group plc {Company number: 060351¢6)
is a campany incorporated and domiciled in

the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange, The registered office

is Unit A, Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20
8RY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors’ Report and
the ‘Our Business' section. -

Basis Of Preparation

The consolidated Financial Staterments have
been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with international finarciai report ng
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Eurcpean
Union. The consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified to include fair valuation
of certain financial assets and derivative
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods in these
Financial Statements and have been applied
consistently by all Group entities. Certain
subsidiaries have been conselidated based on a
calendar yeor-end dote of 30 April 2021,

The numbers presented in the Financial
Statements have been rounded to the necrest
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Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Chief
Executive's Report and Business Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the Financial Review. In addition,
the Financial Statements include the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capitol, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and
hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk
uidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within

its banking focilities and covenants, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to manage its business
risks successfully despite the continued uncertain
economic outlook.

Management have assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of Covid-19 and has
forecast and projected a conservative base case
and also a number of even more conservative
scenarios taking into account a potential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Government support, foreign exchange exposure
dnd cost saving initiotives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be dble to
operate within the level of the current facility and
its covenant requirements (being interest cover
and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Monogement
also have a number of mitigating actions which
could be taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certain
asseks on the Balance Sheet and paying down
the Revolving Credit Facility. See the Viability
Statement for further details,

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

operational existence for ot least 12 months

from the date of these Financial Staternents.
Trading would need to fail significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants,
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements which is
a period of at least twelve months from the date
of opproval of these Financicl Statements,

Basis Of Consolidation

The consclidated Financial Statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controfled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) each year. Control is
achieved when the Company:

= has the power aver the investee;

» is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; ang

»  has the ability to use its power to alfect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than o majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevent activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Company's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient o give & powes, inchadieg,

* the size of the Company's holding of vating
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

+ potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties,

» rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

+ any odditional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareheiders’ meetings.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminated on consoliddtion.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-cantrelling
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share

of net assets upon liquidation may initially be
measured at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proporticnate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice

- of measurement is made on an acquisition-

by-acquisition basis. Other non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value,
Subsequent to ocquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initia} recognition pius the
non-controlling interests' share of subsequent
changes in equity. '

Profit or loss and eacch component of ather
comprehensive income are attributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even f this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, The
carrying amount of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-contralling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit
or loss is calculated as the difference between
(i} the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i} the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill),

less liabilities of the subsidiary and any
nen-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for

as if the Group had directly dispesed of the
related assets or lichilities of the subsidiary

{i.e. reclussified to profit or loss or transferred .
to another category of equity as required/
permitted by applicable IFRS Standards}. The
fair volue of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control

is last is regarded as the fair value on initial
recoghition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 when applicable, or the cost on initiol
recognition of an investment in an asseciate or
a joint venture. .

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acq on-date fair values
of assets transferred to the Group, ligbilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for control of

the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifioble assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

+ deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recagnised and measured
in accordance with |1AS 12 and IAS 19
respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based sayment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangemerits of the acquire are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition
date (see below); and

+ assets {or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordonce
with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any nen-controlting interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previousty
held equity interest in the acquiree [if any} over

identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
as: d. If, after reassessment, the net of the

acquisition-date amounts of the identifiabie
assets acquired and liabitities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controliing interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree {if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For business combinations achieved in stages,
the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree at its acquisition date
fair value and recognises the resulting gain

or loss, if any, in the Income Statement as
appropriate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither

a subsidiary ner an interest in « joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investes but is not control or joint cantrol
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financial
staternents using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.

Under the equity method, an investment

in an associate is recognised initiclly in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost ond adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate, When
the Group's share of losses of an asscciote or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that ossociate {which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Graup has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date-on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and linb
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
ies over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately

s aoross the LK

in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of JAS 36 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary te recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
invastment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
{including goodwill) is tested for impairment

in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recaverable amount [higher of
value in use ond fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
omount of the investment subsequently
increqses,

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
rmethod from the dote when the investment
ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate

and the retained interest is @ financial asset,
the Group meosures the retained interest

at fair value ct that date and the fair

value is regarded os its faii value on initial
recogrition in accordance with IFRS 9, The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of

a part interest in the associate is included

in the determination of the gain or joss on
disposal of the assaciate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previcusly recagnised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the reloted assets or liabilities. Therefore, if

a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or 1oss on the disposal
of the related assets or jia es, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss frem equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when
the associate is disposed of.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an asseciate but the Group continues to

use the equity method, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss the proportion of the gain

or foss that had previously been recognised

in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that
gdain or loss would be reclassified te profit

or toss on the disposal of the related assets

or liabilities. When o group entity transacts
with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial stotements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue with customers is measured based on
the five-step model under IFRS 15: '‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”

1. identify the contract with the customer;

2, identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

3. determine the transaction price;

4. dllocate the transaction price to separate
performance obligations in the contract;
and

5. recognise revenues when {or as) each
performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes, Customers have a right of
return within a specified period and this gives
rise to variable consideration under IFRS 15.
The right of return asset is recognised within
inventory, with the refund liability due to
customers on return of their goods recognised
within trade and other payables.

In the case of goods sold through retail stores,
revenue is recognised when we have satisfied
the performance obligation of transferring the
goods to the customer ot the point of sale, less
provision for returns. Accumulcted experience is
used to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of the sale. Retail sales are usually in
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cash, by debit card or by credit card,

In the case of goods sold on the internet

where the customer hos opted far delivery,
ravenue is recognised when we have satisfied
the performance ebligation of transferring

the goods to the customer, which is the point
of delivery to the customer. Transactions

are settled by credit card or payment card.
Provisions are made for internet credit notes
based on the expected level of returns using the
expected value method, which in turn is based
upon the historical rate of returns. In the case
of internet click and collect orders which are
coliected in store, the performance obligation is
deemed to have been satisfied when the goods
are dispatched from the worehouse,

‘In the case of goods sold to ather businesses

via wholesale channels, revenue is recognised
when we have satisfied the performance
obligation of transferring the goods to the
customer upen delivery. Payment terms are
generally 30-60 days with no right of return.

In the case of income generated from
tradermarks and licences, revenue is recognised
based either on a fixed fee basis or based

on sales with specified minimum guarantee
ameunts in accordance with the retevant
agreements. If the sales-based royalty is not
expected to clearly exceed the minimum
guarantee threshold, revenue is recognised over
the rights period measured on the basis of the
fixed guaranteed consideration. Revenue above
the minimum guarantee threshold is recognised
as edrned based on the contractual royalty rate
applied to the sales.

Reverue from Gym membership fees is
recognised on the dccruals basis over the
related membesship period.

In the case of revenue from third party
comwnission on concession sales within the
House of Fraser department stores this

is recognised when goods are sold to the
customer. As we act as the agent this is
stated at the value of the commission that
the Group receives on the transaction rather
than the gross revenue from the sale of the
concessienaires’ goods.

The Group operates loyalty programmes
which cllow members to accumuiate points
on purchases and receive exclusive offers and
bernefits. The fair value of the points awarded
to customers is deterrmined relative to the
total transaction price and accounted for as
a separate identifiable component of a sales
transaction. Revenue is deferred to match

the estimate value of earned loyalty points.
Deferred revenue is adjusted for the value of
points that are not expected to be redeemed
by customers based on historical redemption
rates. When the points are redeemed and the
Group fulfils its obligations pursuant to the
programmes, the revenue that was deferred is
recognised. In the UK points awarded expire
following a period of 12 months of inactivity,
in Spain they are valid until the end of the
following calendar year.

Revenue from gift cards and vouchers is
recognised when the cards or vouchers are
redeemed by the customer, breakage is
recognised when the likelihoed of the card
or voucher being redeemed is remote or
has expired. For gift cards monies received
represent deferred revenue prior to the
redemption.

Governmant Grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.
Grants that are receivable as compensation_ for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial suppert
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in the Income Statement in the
period in which they become receivable.

The Group has received Government support
in the period refating to business rates relief
and the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
{CJRS) as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The amount received by the Group {including
the UK) in the period in regard to the CJRS {or
equivalent where received in non-UK territories)
was approx. £80m. The amcunt of business
rates relief received by the Group in the period
{or equivalent where received in non-UK
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territories) was approx. £97.5m. Government
grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in profit or loss as a
deduction against the related expense over

the periods necessary to match them with

the related costs. The amounts quoted have
been recognised in Selling, distribution and
administrative expenses in the period.

Exceptional [tems

The Group presents exceptional items on

the face of the Income Statement. These are
significant items of income and expense which,
because of their size, nature and infrequency
of the events giving rise to them, merit
separate presentation to allow shareholders

to better understand the elements of financial
performance in the year, so as to facilitate
comparison with prior periods and assess
trends in financial performance more readily.

Interest Income

Interest income is reported on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method,

Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,

" except to the extent it relates to itemns

recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. The income tax expense or
credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current periods toxable income, based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction,
cdjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liobilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused losses.

Deferred taxation is calculated using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consalidated Financial Statements. However,
if the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or initial recognition
of an asset or liability in o transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nar taxabie profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred tax on temporary differences
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impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried ot a re-vaiued amount, in which case
the impairment toss is treated s a revaluation
decrease to the original historic cost and then
as an expense.

Impairment losses recognised for CGU's to
which goodwill has been allocated are credited
initially to the carrying amount of gecdwill. Any
remajning impeirment Joss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the CGU.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amaunt of the asset
{CGU} excluding gooadwill, is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does no-
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had ne impairment loss been
recognised for the asset {CGU) in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the Income Staterment immediately.

Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
are presented separately and measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts immediately
prior to their classification as heid for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes the purchase
price of the manufactured products, materials,
direct labour and transport costs. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less all estimated selling
costs.

The Group receives trade discounts and rebates
from suppliers based upon the volume of
orders placed in a given time window. Typical
discounts and rebates received by the Group
include early settlement discounts, volume
rebates on inventory purchases, supplier
rebates bosed on faulty goods, and marketing
support. Where there is sufficient certainty
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that a discount or rebate be received in
the future that relates to historic purchases this
is reflected in the cost of inventories. Where
the receipt of rebates is uncertain, the cost of

.inventories is held at full cost price until the

rebate is received. Recognised rebates cre
released to the Income Statement to the extent
that the stock has been sold.

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held on call, together with
other short term highly liquid investments that
are readily corwertible to known armounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial tiabilities are
recognised in the Group's Balance Sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instriment.

Financial assets and financi
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of finoncial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial licbilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financiol
liebilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly ottributable to the
cequisition of finoncial assets or financial
lichilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financiol asset expire, or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial Assets

Classification and initial measurement of
financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component

and are measured ot the transaction price in
accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair velue adjusted for
transaction costs {where applicable),

Financial assets, other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, are
classified intc the foliowing categories:

* amortised cost

= fair value through profit or loss :u.e.q_uE

= fair value through other comprehensive
income (FYOCI)

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss
are presented within finance costs or finance
income, except for impairment of trade
receivables and amounts due from related
parties which are presented within selling
distribution and administrative expenses.

Cuh "

q t of financial ussets

Financiai assets at amortised cost

Financial assets ore measured at amortised
cost if the assets meet the following conditions
[and are not designated as FVTPLY:

« they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows

+ the contractual termns of the financial
assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured

ot amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's
cash and cash equivalents, trade and most
other receivables fall into this category of
financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within o different
business model ather than ‘held to collect’

or 'hold to collect and sell’ are categorised

at fair value through profit and loss. Further,
irrespective of business model financial
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assets whose contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for
those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting
requirements apply (see below).

Assets in this category are measured at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The fair values of financial assets in
this category are determined by reference to
active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists,

Financicl assets ot foir value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCH)

On initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made
the irrevocable election to account for long
term financial assets at fair value through other
cemprehensive income (FVYOCH) given these are
not held for trading purpases. The election has
been made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, onty qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair
value are recognised within OCI and never
reclassified to profit and loss, even if the asset is
irpaired, sold or otherwise derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9's impairment requirements use maore
forward-looking information to recognise
expected credit iosses — the ‘expected credit
loss [ECL) model’. Instruments within the
scope of the raquirements include loans and
other debt-type financial assets measured ot
amortised cost and FVY{QC, trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, contract assets recognised and
measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments
and some financial guarantee contracts {for
the issuer) that are not measured ¢t fair value
through profit or loss.

Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties

Recognition of credit losses is no lenger
dependent on the Group first identifying o
credit loss event. Instead the Group considers
a breader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring expected credit
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losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future
cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is mode between:

- financial instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quatity
since initial recognition or thet have low
credit risk (“Stage 17 and

« financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
{*Stage 2%,

»  “Stage 3" would cover finoncial assets where
the credit risk has increqgsed to a paint ot
which it is considered credit impaired

"12-month expected credit losses’ are
recognised for the first categary while lifetime
expected credit losses’ are recognised for the
second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is
determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

Trade receivables

The Group makes use of a simplified approach
in accounting for trade receivables end records
the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit
losses. These are the expected shortfalls

in contractual cash flows, considering the .
potential for default ot any point during the life
of the financial instrument. In calculating, the
Group uses its historical experience, external
indicators and ferward-looking information to
calculate the expected credit losses using a
provision matr

Financiol Liab,

les

Classification and meosurement of financiat
Habilities

The Group's financicl liabilities include
borrowings and lease liabilities, trade and other
payables and derivative financial instrgments.

an Canli

ies are initially measured at
fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated
a financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss, Subsequently, financial liabi
measured 4t amortised cost using the effective
interest method except for derivatives and
financial liahilities designated ot FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
{other thon derivative financial instruments
that are designated ond effective as hedging
instruments).

All interest-related charges and, if applicable,
fair value changes in currency derivative
instruments that are reported in profit or loss
are included within finance costs or finance
income. Fair value changes in equity derivative
financial instruments are recognised in
investrnent income or investment costs.

Derivative financial instruments ond hedge
accounting

Derivative financial instruments are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships,
which require o specific accounting treatment.
To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging
relationship must meet all of the following
requireménts:

« there is an economic relationship between
the hedged itern and the hedging
instrument

« the effect of credit risk does not dominate
the value changes that result from that
economic relationship

= the hedge ratio of the hedging relaticnship
is the same as that resulting from the
quantity of the hedged item that the entity
actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedaging instrument that the entity actually
uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Written option contracts do not qualify for
hedge accounting and fair value movements
are recognised directly in the Income
Statement,

For the reporting periods under review, the
Group has designated certain forward currency
contracts as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedge relationships. These arrangements have
been entered into to mitigate foreign currency
exchange risk arising from certain highly
probable sales and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies.

All derivative financial instrurments used far
hedge accounting are recognised initially at foir
value and reported subsequently at fair vailue in
the Bolance Sheet,

To the extent that the hedge is effective,
changes in the fair value of derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and included within the cash flow
hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness

in the hedge relatienship is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item offects profit or
less, any gain or loss praviously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and presented
as a reclassification adjustment within

other comprehensive income. However, if o
non-financial asset or liability is recognised as
a result of the hedged transaction, the gains
and losses previcusly recognised in other
comprehensive income are included in the

al measurement of the hedged item.

If o forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, any releted gain or foss recoegnised

in other comprehensive income is transferred
immediately to profit or loss. [f the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness
conditions, hedge accounting is discontinued
and the refated gain or loss is held in the equity
reserve until the forecast transaction occurs.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probabie thot an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and « reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obfigation.

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilopidation costs fellowing advice from
chortered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs. The estimated cost of fulfilling
the leasehold dilapidations abligations is
discounted to present value and analysed
between non-capital and capital comgenents.
"The capital element is depreciated over the
life of the asset. The non-capital element is
taken to the Income Statement in the first year
of the lease where the cost it represents is of
no lasting benefit to the Group or its landlord.
'Wear and tear’ costs are expensed to the
Income Staterment. Provisions for anerous lease
contracts are recognised when the Group
believes the unavoidable costs of meeting the
lease abligations exceed the economic henefits
expected to be received under the lease. Legal
provisions {including settlements and court
fees) are recegnised based on advice from the
Group's lawyers when it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made.

Other provisions include monagement's best
estimate of restructuring, employment related
costs and other claims.

Any reimbursement that the Group is virtuolly
certain to collect from a third party with respect
to the obligation is recognised as a separate
asset. However, this asset may not exceed the
amount of the related provision.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of
eronomic resources as a result of present
obligations is not probable. Such situations are
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
outfiow of resources is remote.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, ot inception of the contract.
Lease liabilities are measured ot the present
value of the contractual payments due to the
lessor over the lease term, with the discount
rate determined by reference to the rate

implicit in the lease unless {as is typically

the case) this is not readily determinable, in
which case the Group's incremental borrowing
rate on commencement of the lease is used.
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Variable lease payments are only included in
the measurement of the lease liability if they
depend on an index or rate. in such cases,

the initial measurement of the lease liobility
assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable fease payments such as revenue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liahility alsc includes:

« amounts expected to be payable under anv
residual value guarantee;

» the exercise price of any purchase option
granted in Favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised;

* any penalties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the fease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liability is presented as a separate
ine in the consclidated Bolance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease
liabilities increase as a result of interest charged
at the effective rate on the balance outstanding
and are reduced for lease payments made.

Right of use assets are initially measured at

the amount of the lease liability, reduced for
any lease incentives (payments made by a
lessor to a lessee associated with a lease, or
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor o”
costs of a lessee] received or impairment, and
increased for:

* lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

» initial direct costs incurred; and

»  the amount of any provision recognised
where the Group is contractuaily required
to dismantle, remave or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capitalisation policy.

&3

When an indication of impairment is identified,
right of use assets are tested for impairment

in accordance with 1AS 36 by comporing the
recoverable amount {higher of value in use and
-faiir value less costs of dispoesal) with its carrying
amount. The right of use assets are presented
within property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated Balance Sheet,

Subsequent to initiol measurement, right-of-use
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if thisis
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the

term of any lease {because, for example, it
re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension
or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability ta
reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted at a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease
liabilities is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is
reyised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining [revised) lease
term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease-with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

+  if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leosed for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the -
above policy

+ in cll other cases where the renegotiction
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased],
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate opplicable on the medification
date, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the same amount

+ if the renegotiation results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying
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araunt of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or joss. The lease
liability is then further adjusted to ensure
its carrying amount reflects the amount

of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicoble
on the modification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Sale and leaseback

On entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets qualifies s a sale
{satisfying o performance obligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’),
Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previous carrying amount of the underlying
asset is split between:

+ aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback (being the propeortion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset -hat
relates to the rights retained), and

+  the rights in the underlying asset retaired
by the buyer-iessor at the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recognises a portion of the totcl
gain or loss on the sale. The emount recognised
is calculated by splitting the total gain or loss
into: -

+ anunrecognised amount relating to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, and

+ arecognised amount relating to the buyer-
lessor's rights in the underlying asset ot the
end of the leaseback.

The teaseback itself is then accounted for under
IFRS 16.

Rental income from operating feases where
the Group acts as a lessor is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
{ease.
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Treasury Shares

The purchase price of the Group’s own shares
that.it acquires is recognised as Treasury
shares' within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market value and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained edrnings.

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been estcblished
for the purposes of satisfying certain
share-based awards. The Group has ‘de-facto’
control over the special purpose entity,

This Trust is fuliy censclidoted within the
accounts. The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within 'Own Share reserve’ in equity.

Share-Bosed Payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured at fair value at the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consolidated
Incorme Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the correspending
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
inte account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they are taken inte account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
loss with an adjustment to equity.
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Fair value is calculated using on adjusted farm
of the Black-Scholes modei which includes g
Monte Carlo simulation model that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution {where materiall,
the share price at grant date and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff numbers used in the model has
baen udjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferabitity,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the liability incurred ot the fair
value of the lighility. Until the liability is settled,
the Group remeagsures the fair value of the
ligbility ot the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settilement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does net equal the charge per the income
Statement as it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balance Sheet in relation to the expected
nationa! insurance contributions for the shares.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting alt of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded *
at the proceeds received, net of any direct 1ssue
costs.

Foreign Currencies

The presentational currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional curtency of the
Company is also sterling. Foreign currency
tronsactions are translated into sterling using
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. Exchange differences of
the Company arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are inciuded in the income
Statement for the period.
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Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in the Inceme
Statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains ond losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange
compoenent of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
transtated ot the rote of exchonge ruling at
the balance sheet date. Non-manetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a fareign currency are not retranslated.
Noh-monetary items that are held at valuation
ore transloted ot the foreign exchonge rote at
the date of the valuation.

On censolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional
currency other than sterling are translated
into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling
ot the balance sheet date. Tha revenues and

- expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are
translated at overage rates applicable in the
period. All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and documented in a separate component of
equity.

When a foreign operation is seld, the
cumulative exchenge differences that hove
been recognised as o separate component
of equity are reclassified from equity to the
Income Statement when the disposal is
recegnised,

In crder to mitigate its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forward contracts {see Chief Executive’s Report
and Business Review and the cash flow hedging
accounting policy).
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Dividends International Financial Reporting Stondards

("Standards”) In 1ssue But Not Yet Effective

At the date of authorisation of these
consolidated Financial Statements,

there are no standards in issue from the
Internatienal Accounting Standards Board
["IASB") or International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Cammittee {*|FRIC") whick
are effective for annual accounting periods
beginning on or after 26 April 2021 thot will
have o significant impact on these Financial
Statements.

Dividends are recognised as a liability in

the Group's Fingncial Statements and as o
deduction from equity in the period in which
the dividends are declared. Where such
dividends are proposed subject te the approval
of shareholders, the dividends are regarded

as declared once shareholder opproval has
been obtained and they are no longer at the
discretion of the Company.

Materiality

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
Boord considers both quantitative and
qualitative factars in forming its judgements,
and related disclosures, and are mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of its
stakehalders and to avoid unnecessary clutter
borne of the disclosure of immaterial items.

In making this assessment the Board considers
the nature of each itern, as well as its size, in
assessing whether any disclosure omissians or
misstatements could influence the decisions of
users of the Financial Statements.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations And
Amendments Adopted By The Group

The Group has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that
has been issued but is not effective. The Group
applies for the first time the following new
standards

»  Definition of Material - Amendments to IAS
Tand IAS 8

»  Definition of a Business ~ Amendments to
IFRS 3

= Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16

+  Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions -
Amendments to IFRS 16

«  Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

By adopting the above, there has been no
material impact on the Financial Statements.

FRASERS GROUP
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2. Ownﬂ_ﬂb_“ ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significant risk of giving rise to a material
adjustment to the carrying vaiues of assets and
liabilities within the next finuncial period are:

Key Judgements
Datermining Related Party Relationships

Management determines whether a related
perty relationship exists by assessing the
nature of the relationship by reference to
the requirements of IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a
result of control, shared directors or parent
companies, or close family relationships. The
level at which one party may be expected

to influence the other is also considered for
tronsactions involving close fomily relaticnships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

Under 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures if an entity hotds 20% ar more cf

the voting power of the investee, it is presumec
that the entity has significant influence, unless
‘t can clearly demonstrate that this is not the
zase. During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the voting rights of Studio
2etail Group Ple, French Connection Group Ple
1s0ld during the period) and Mulberry Group
3lc, whereby management consider that the
Group does not have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the following
reasons: -

»  The Group does not have any
representation on the board of directors
of the investee other than a Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studic Retoil Group Ple,
Manogement have reviewed the terms
of the observer arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give them
the right to participate in or influence the
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financial or operating decisions of Studio
Retait Growp Ple. Studio Retail Group Ple
can terminate this arrangement at any
time, and can determine which parts of
the Board meetings the representative can
be present at and what information they
are given access to. It should be noted the
Frasers Group representative did not ottend
any board meetings in full or part during the
reporting peried;

« There is no participation in decision
making and strategic processes, including
participation in decisiens about dividends
or other distributions;

= There have been no material transactions
between the entity ond these investee
companies;

* There has been no interchange of
managerial personnel; |

* No non-public essential technical
management information is provided to the
investee,

In ussessing the level of control that
management have over certain entities,
management will consider the various aspects
that allow management to influence decision
making. This includes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the ievei of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Group to influence operational and strategic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If management

were to consider that the Group does have
significant influence over these entities then the
equity method of accounting would be used
and the percentage shareholding (disclosed in
note 20] muitiplied by the resuits of the investee
in the period [as disclosed in note 34) would be
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group halds 49% of the share capital of
Four (Holdings} Limited which is accounted
for using the equity method. The Group does
not have any representetion on the board

of directors and no participation in decision
cbout relevant activities such as establishi
operating and capital decisions, including
budgets, appointing or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers

nef Trust, o

ond términating their services or employment.
However, in prior periods the Group has
provided Four {Holdings) Limited with a
significant loan. At the reporting date, the
amount owed by Four {Holdings) Limited for this
loan totadled £60.0m (£21.6m net of amounts
recognised in respect of loss allowance). The
Group is sctisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity
has significant influence over the investee but in
the absence of ony other rights, in ischation it is
insufficient to meet the control criteria of IFRS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
[Holdings) Limited and therefore Four (Holdings}
Limited is not equity accounted.

Cash Flow Hedging

The Group uses a range of forward and option
contracts that are entered into ot the same
time, they are in contemplation with one
another and have the same counterparty.

A judgement is made in determining

whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been accomplished in a single
transaction. Management are of the view that
there is o substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and a strategy for
managing the eptions independently of the
forward contracts. The forword and options
contracts gre therefore not viewed as one
instrument ond hedge accounting for the
forwards is permitted.

Under IFRS 9 in order to achieve cash flow
hedge accounting, forecast transactions
{primarily Euro denominated sales and USD
denominated purchases) must be considered
to be highly probable. The hedge must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable
to the hedgedrisk. The forecast transaction
that is the subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to
variations in cash flows that could ultimately
affect profit or loss, Management have
reviewed the detailed forecasts and growth
assumptions within them, and are satisfied
that forecasts in which the cash flow hedge
accounting has been bosed meet the criteria

na o create new Botish woodland acress the UK

per [FRS 9 os being highly probable forecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly probable test, any cumulative fair
value gains and fosses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would be taken to the Income
Statement.

Management considers various factors when
determining whether a forecast transaction is
highly probable. These factors include detailed
sales forecasts by channel, geographical area
ard seasonality, conditions in turget markets
and the impact of expansion in new areas.
Management clsc consider any change in
alternative customer sales channels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

IF the forecast transactions were determined
to be not highly probable and all hedge
accounting was discontinued, the Hedging
reserve of £11.5m would be shown in Finance
Income.

Key Estimates
Provision For Qbsolete, Slow Moving Or

Defective Inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and
experience of the retail industry in determining
the level and rates of provisioning required in
calculating the appropriate inventory carrying
volues. Specific estimates and judgements
opplied in relation to assessing the level of
inventory provisions required are considered in
relation to the foliowing areas:

c. Continuity inventory

b. Seascnal inventory lines ~ specifically
seasans thak have na finishad

c. Third party versus own brand inventory
d. Ageing of inventory
e. Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyle
f. Local economic conditions
Divisional specific factors

9
h. Increased cost of inventory and lower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

i. Over-stock and out of season inventory as a
result of Covid-19
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Pro n estimates are forward looking and
are formed using a combination of factors
including historical experience, managerment's
knowledge of the industry, group discounting,
sales pricing protocols and the overall
assessment made by management of the

risks in relation to inventory. Mohagement use
a number of internally generated reports to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
and accuracy of the inventory provision, The
additional cost of repricing inventory and
handling charges in relation to relocating
inventory (tunnelling] are considered in arriving
at the oppropriote percentage provision. The
assessment invelves significant estimation
uncertainty, therefore in order to check

that the assurmptions applied remain valid,
management produces a range of cutcomeas
and the provision is set within this range.

Key assumgptions used to create the estimates
are:

« Discounting - Based on historical
experience and manogement's anticipated
future discounting including the impact of
Covid-12

= Tunneliing - Cost of handling stock far
reworking, repacking and repricing

= Repricing - Labour cost associated with
repricing units of stock

= Shrinkage - Stock lost through damage and
theft

Total Group inventory provision at 25 April 2021
is 16.6% (FY20: 15.7%). A 1% change in the total
pro n would impact underlying EBITDA by
approx, £13.2m (FY20: £14.2m). Management
do not consider it appropriate te disclose
sensitivities for key assumptions in isolation as
in practice changes in one assumption would
lead to an offset in another.

Property Related Provisions

Property reiated estimates and judgements

are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, external advice ond other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Diteroidati
The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilapidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience

of exit costs {including strip out costs ond
professional fees). Management use a reference
estimate of £100,000 (FY20: £100,000] for large
leasehold stores, £5¢,000 (FY20: £50,000) for
smaller leasehold stores (£25,000 per store

for Game UK and"Game Spuain stores) and
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,000] for non-UK stores.
Management do not consider these costs to be
capital in nature and therefore dilapidations
are not capitalised, except far in relation to

the sale and leaseback of Shirebrook in the
prior peried in which a material dilapidations
provision was copitalised.

A 1% increase in diiopidation cost per store
would resutt in an opprox. £8.0m reduction in
underlying EBITDA.

Other Provisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as o result of a past event, it
is proboble thot an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate con be made of the amount of the
cbligation.

Lego) ond regulatory provisions relate to
management’s best estimates of provisions
required for legal and regulatory claims and
ongoing non-UK tax enquities. Other provisions
relate to management’s best estimates

of provisions required for restructuring,
employment and commercial. Where
applicable these are inclusive of any estimated
s, interest and legal costs. See note 28.

In relation to the non-UK tax enguiries
management have made a judgement to
consider ali claims collectively, applying the
following key estimates to the gross amounts
{excluding re-imbursement assets):

+  10% penalty [FY20: 10%). A 5% increqse to
15% would result in approx. £6.5m increase
in the provision {FY20: approx. £7.0m).

» 3% interest on the liability (FY20: 3%). A
1% increase to 4% would result in approx.
F£11.5m increase in the provision {FY20:
approx. £10.0m).

Maonogernent are satisfied thot the judgement
to consider all claims collectively is the only
reasonable approach because they are all
dependant on the outcome of a court ruling on
the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquiries,
Management are satisfied that with regard to
timing a reasonable range of cutcomes are cll
greater than one year and so are satisfied with
including the provisions as non-current,

Other Receivables And Amounts Owed By
Related Parties

Other receivables and amounts owed by
reloted porties ore stated net of provision for
any impairmient. Management have applied
estimates in assessing the recoverability of
working copital and loen advances made to
investee companies. Matters considered include’
the relevant financial strength of the underlying
investea cormpany to repay the loans, the
repayment period and underlying terms of the
monies advanced, forecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevant, the
Group's intentions for the companies to which
rmonies have beaen advanced.

IFRS 16

The key areas of judgement in relation to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
are below: |

= IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease together
with the options to extend or terminate o
lease, if the lessee weze reasonably certain
to exercise that option. The Greup will
assess the fikelihood of extending [ease
contracts beyond the break date by taking
into account current economic and market
conditions, current trading performance,
forecast profitability and the level of capitol
investment in the property.

+  IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall
be discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrawing rate where the rate implicit in
the lease cannot be readily determined.
Accordingly, all Jease payments have been
discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate {IBR). The IBR has been determined
by using a synthetic credit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
sarme credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the geogrophicol oreas
the Group operates within and adjusted for
the lease term.
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The weighted average discount rates based on incremental borrowing rotes used throughout the
period acrass the Group's lease portfolio are shawn below. The discount rate for each lease is
dependent on lecse start date, term and location.

Lease Tarm UK urope Rust of Werld
Up to & yeors 14% - 13% 03% - 0.8% 15% - 33%
Greatar than 5 years and up to 10 years 20% - 2% D 5% - 13% 2 5% -35%
Greater thon 10 yeors and up ta 70 yaars 22%-25% OH% - 14% 29% -3
Greater thon 20 years 15% - 2 8% 11% - 172% 5% - 3EW

= The right of use asset will be reviewed for impairment at each reparting period in line with 1AS
36 impairment to review whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amaount. For
impairment testing purposes the Group has determined that each store is a separate CGU. The

. recoverable amount is calculated bosed on the Group's latest forecast cash flows which are

then extrapolated to cover the period to the break date of the lease taking into account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gross margin rates, changes in the operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived
from the Group's weighted average cost of capital using the capital asset-pricing medel, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta). Given
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncertainty.
The assumptions used are consistent with those disclosed in the Freehold Land and Buildings
and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period have been recognised for
the amount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use asset (£114.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segmert, £31.0m European Retail segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment) and £6.7m against plant and equipment (£2.6m UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment £3.6m European Retail segment). The impairments
were due to the ongoing impact of Covid-15 and the challenges in the retail sector on the
forecast cash flows of the CGU.

The key assumptions, which are equally appliccble te each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the right of use asset are consistent with the cashflow projections for
the Freeheld land and Buildings impairment assessment.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in resoect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have

performed a sensitivity for bath ne lockdown in year 1 and o lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two manths:

Forscast: Impact of change in Impabrmant increme /
4 im

Salss year 1 - No laekdown 15% - impravement (233t
Sules year 1= 4 manths iockdown 15% - reduction 635
g Gross Murgin year 1 >40% 100bps - improvernent 14 8

g Gross Margin yeur 1 »40% 100bps - raductian 53
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Freehold Land und Buildings and Long-term leasehold

Freehold land and buildings and long-terrn leasehold ossets are assessed at each reporting period
for whether there is any indication of impairment in line with IAS 36 impairment.

An asset is impaired when the carrying omount exceeds its recoverable amount. IAS 36 defines
recoverable amount as the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs

of disposal and its value in use, the Group has determined that each store is o separate CGU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of E112.9m {(FY20: £nil} due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sectar on the forecast cash flows of

the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings (E68.7m UK Sports Retail segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment), £3.9m against long-term leasehold (£2.9m UK Sports Retail
segment and £1.0m European Retail segment), £29.0m plant & equipment {£15.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifestyle segment, £5.1m Eurcpean Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
property [all UK Sports Retail segment).

Value In Use (VIU)

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections. These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individual CGU excluding any Covid-19 impact, taking
into account histeric performance of the CGU, and then adjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitability of each CGU as a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current market. The
key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived from the Group's weighted overage cost
of capital using the capital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include g risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment [Beta). Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
involves significant estimation uncertainty.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the freehold land and buildings were as follows:

Ky msumptians ) Year1 Year2

Yeard Yaur §
Safes dechne 15 a4 -3% 1%
Emsting gross margin » d0% -100bps. 7sbps 150Lps -125hps 100bps
Operating costs increase per annum 3% % % % %
Discount rate 6% 4% 6% 6% &%

Testvimal growth 7dte of 2%

A sensitivity analysis has been perfermed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months:

" X Impalrmant increase /
Ferssat: Impart of; {decransa} &m

1533}

Sales yenr 1 - No lockdawn

Sates yeor 1 ~ 4 months lockdown 15% - caduction 576
£ mshing Gross Margin year 1 »40% 100bpss - nfirevement (24
Exthing Gruss Margin year 1 »40% 100bps - +eduction 93

helping te create ne

i woodtand across the UK
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Fair value less costs of disposal

Far those CGUs where the value in use is less than the carrying value of the asset, the fair value less
costs of dispesal has been determined using both external and internal market valuations, This fair
value is deemed to fall in to Level 3 of the fair vaiue hierarchy as per IFRS 13. The property portfolio
cansists of vacant, Frasers Group occupied and third party tenanted units, one property con include
all three types. The following valuation methodology has been adopted for each:

Scenarie Valuatian methedslegy Koy maumptins

Vacont units Estunated Reetol Valus [ERY) ond suitabla reversionary yiedd Vand period and rett ee band - o Donds npphed deper
upphed to reflect the market Lo geierate o net capioivalue A On CIrcumstonces
deduction to the capial vatue generatsd s then mode based
@n the vord penod with opplicable rates payable for the urit
und rent free incentive . 3 yaaes voud, 3 years rent frae
Yield bonds - ranging trom 7% - 15%

Syeae vaid, 2 yeors rent free, or

Frosers Group cccupied Wil be assumed the unik s vocant given there 15 no legully void penad and rent free band - twa Bands applied depending
binding Inter-campany agreement in place Thersfore a void on tIrcumstonees
and rent free incentive panad assumed, the cost armaurt then
deducted from the cupital value generated by the ERV and
reversionary yield Athough we consider the commercial rachty * 2 years woid, 3 years rent free
15 that fair volue less casts to sell will ba lugher than vacant Yield honds - ranging from 1% + 15%

this very 15 1 ine with

buth tachmicol oceaunbing ryles and that of our manogyment
exomity

1 year void, 2 yeass rent free, or

Third party tanuntad AnERV is applied 1sing o percentage bend on thegpossmg rant  ERV bands applied te pussing rent - ronging fram 0% to -50%
A opproprigte reversionary yield 1s opplied retlecting the isw  Yield bands ~ ranging hom 6 5% - 15%
of terant ond renewol to generate 4 topial value Thes will ofsa
prawide & net bl yeld based off the current passing rant

A 10% increase in the market voluation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in
a decrease in impairment of £7.5m.

The total recoverable amount of the assets that were impaired at the penod end was £170.0m, with
£87.0m of this being based on their fair volue less costs of disposal and £83.0m being based on their
value in use.

Key Estimates In Relation To Alternative
Parformance Measures

EBITDA is earnings before investment incorme,
finance income and finance costs, tax,
depreciation, amortisation end impairment.

It includes the Group's share of losses from
basic EPS provide further useful information for m”._m%““»mmm _mmﬁ_._m_wﬂ”_M”nm_”MMMH_%m:.“”:”“Mﬂ_MM._umm
shareholders on the underlying performance 16, foreign exchange gains/losses in selling and
of the Business in on_n__.n_o: to n.rm nm.uonmﬂ administration costs, exceptions) costs, and the
numbers and are consistent with how business profit / loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic
vmlo:sn:mm 15 Emo.m:-ma internally. They are investments and propetties. Underlying EBITDA
not recognised profit measures under IFRS and also excludes fair value adjustments on stap
may not be directly comporable with “odjusted” acquisitions,

profit measures used by other companies.

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying

8§

thraunh e Wood

Management will from FY22 change our main
reporting KP! from Underlying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT. Thus from FY22 the Group will no
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Before Tax less the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, ond goins ond
losses on strategic investments. Management
have taken this decision for the following
reasons:

- With the continued significant investment
in and rall out of our elevation strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation te both the Board and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

+  Qur understanding from a number of
financial sectors including the banking
sector is that IFRS16 is becoming an
incrensingly important consideration,
including on covenants in many new
financing arrangements.

= With this new measure being introduced
we are trying to align with the Financial
Reporting Council's theratic standpeint
with regard to ‘alternative performance
measures' s far as possible whilst retaining
a degree of interpretation given factors
outside of our contral, such as FX and
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly menths in advance The
following are further key estimates used
with regard to the aiternative performance
measures ysed by the group.

Onerous leata provision

Provisions for onerous leose contracts are
recognised when the unavoidable costs of
meeting lease obligatiors exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received over the term
of the lease. Where an onerous lease has been
identified, the property, plant and equipment
associated ta that store are alse reviewed for
impairment,

Management use store EBITDA in arder to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific assumptions, which involve the use of
estimates and involve significant estimation
uncertainty, that are used te determine the
appropriate Jevel of provision are consistent
with the cashflow projections for the Freehold
land and Buildings assessment except for the
foliowing:

+  Discount rate 2% (FY20: 2%) across the
Greup

» Operating costs increase 3% {FY20: 3%)
across the Group

+  Store profitability includes 100%
contribution towards central overheads

»  Assumed get out cap of 10 years (FY20: 10
yeors), being the maximum period for total
unavoidable costs

+  Planned store closures, relocations and re-
brandings

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption beiow we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months

compared to two months:

Farscost: Imvpact of: -.:_-..MHHH.-M.M."
s yeur 1 - No lockdown 15'% - rr proverms 14 4b
3 yeor 1 - 4 monthe lockdown 15% - igcuction 1510
Exsting Grass Margm: year 1240% “00hps - Improw 112 6)
Exsring Gross Morgin year 1 240% 109hps - red s

Further information on the basis of the estimation of pravisioning for dilapidations and anerous lease
contracts is detailed in the provisions accounting policy and note 28.

Impairments of plant end equipment and short-term leaseheld improvements of £24.2m have also
been recognised as a result of identified onerous lease contracts {£6.4m UK Sports Retoil segment,
£2.7m Premiurn Lifestyle segment, £15.3m European Retail segment).
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
‘ollowing financial risks and set out below are
management’s responses to those risks in orde-
to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the
Group’s financial perffermance.

Foreign Exchange Risk

“he Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally via:

c. Transactional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, where
those purchases are deneminated in a
currency other than the functional currency
of the purchasing company. Transactional
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged. These
exposures are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated
as cash flow hedges. The notional and Fair
vaolue of these contracts is shown in note 29;

b. Transactionai expeosure from the sale of
goods, where those sales are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transactional expesures that could
significantly impoct the income statement
are hedged. These exposures are hedged
via forward foreign currency contracts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The netional and fair volue of these
contracts is shown in note 29;

c. Loans to non-UK subsidiaries. These are
hedged via fareign currency transactions
and borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formelly designated as
hedges, as gains and losses on hedges and
hedged loans will naturally offset; and

d The Group uses currency options, swaps
and spots for more flexibility ogainst cash
flows that are less than highly probabte
and therefore deo not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS ¢ Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options to sell Euros or buy USD are
explained in the Financial Review, These
are not hedged and movements in fair
value could significantly impact the Income
Statement in future periods. See note 29.
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Interast Rate Risk

The Group has net borrowings, which are
principally at floating interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR, The Group uses
interest rate financial instruments te hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
interest rate swaps although hedyge accounting
is not applied. The Group regularly menitors
and reacts aecordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and liabi

Credit Risk

The Directors have a credit pelicy in place
and the expesure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongeing basis, Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The Group does not
require cotlateral in respect of financial assets.

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
rmaximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet.

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments are made through banks
and companies which must fulfil credit rating
and investment criteria approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient liquid resources to
manage the operating requirements of the
business and it does this through utilisation
of its revolving credit facilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving
continuity of funding and short-term flexi
while keeping interest to a minimum.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adequate headroom on the
facilities and to ensure the Group is operating
within its financiol covenants.

1t Credte new Br

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of its long term financict assets (in relation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how cther comprehensive income and
equity would have been affected by changes
in market risk that were reasonably possible at

the reporting date. If the quoted stock price for ~

these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income ond equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income so there would be
no effect on profit or loss.

The investments in listed equity securities
{long-term finoncial assets) ore considered
medium to iong-term strategic investments,
In accordance with the Group's policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in
relation to these investments.

Capital Manogement

A description of the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital are
included in note 29.

vwoodiang across the UK



ad on Steinbeis 100% Rocyclod and O,

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined to present

its segmental disclosures consistently with

the presentation in the 2020 Annucl Report.
Management considers operationally that

the UK Retail divisions {UK Sports Retaif and
Premium Lifestyle} are run as one business
unit in terms of allocating resources, inventory
management and assessing performance.
Under [FRS 8 we have not at this reporting
date met the required criteria with enough
certainty to aggregote these operating
segments. We will continually keep this under
review at subsequent reporting dates. We
continue to monitor the impacts of Covid-19,
Brexit, and the continued uncertainties this
has brought relating to the political and
economic environments, and market and
currency volatility in the countries we operote
in. European countries have been identified as
operating segments and hove been aggregated
into @ single operating segment as permitted
under {FRS 8. The decision to aggregate these
segments was based on the fact that they each
have similar economic characteristics, similar
long-term financial performance expectations,
and-are similar in each of the following
respects: N

+  The nature of the products;

+ The type or class of customer for the
praducts; and

+  The methods used to distribute the
products, '

20

bon Capiu

In accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
the Group's operating segments have been
aggregated inte the following reportable
segments:

1. UK Reta

i. UK Sports Retail - includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all
the Group's sports retail online business
{excluding Bob’s Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports, Malaysia and Baltics),
the gyms, the Group's Shirebrook
campus operations, GAME LIK stores
and online operations, and retail store
operations in Northern Ireland.

il Premium Lifestyle — includes the
results of the premium retail businesses
Flannels, Cruise, Van Mildert, Jock Wills,
House of Fraser and Sofa.com along
with related websites.

2. Europedn Retail - includes all the Group's
sports retail stores, management and
operations in Eurcpe including the Group's
European Distribution Centres in Belgium
and Austria, as well as GAME Spain stores
and Baftics anline.

3. Rest of World Retail - includes the results of
US based retail activities, Asia based retail
activities, along with their e-commerce
offerings.

4. Wholesale & Licensing - includes the results
of the Group's pertfolio of internaticnally
recognised brands such as Everlast,
Karrimor, Lonsdale and Slazenger.

It is management’s current intention to run the
Group us four operating segments being UK
Retail [including UK Sports Retait and Premium
Lifestylej, Eurapean Retail, Rest of World Retail”
and Wholesale & Licensing, Management is
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criterio permitted under
IFRS 8 to aggregate as one segment in due
course.

hrouoh the Woodland

Segmental informotion for the 52 weeks ended

25 April 2021:
UK Peemiwt  UKRmral Korepman Rast of Tat Broup
Sports Lifestyln Totat Hatall World Retail Astal Tetal
Em) 1Em) IEm) Emb tEm) 1Em) 1k
Soles to extarnal ¢ astomerns 1968 5 7356 17041 4151 1527 3ATLO 533 1,653
Sctes 1 other segments - - - - - - 954 195.4) -
REVENUE 19685 1356 27040 6152 R 3 21,4710 un {954} 36153
Grass protit 8773 33613 13588 197 64O 14833 675 - 1,530.0
OPERATING FROF(T/
[LC5S) BEFORE FORTIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL pLA 20 517 ne 7 202 1y
ITEMS, ISPOSAL OF
PROPERTIES AND IFRS 16
Eaceptiongt iterns 124 e (8.0} 151 - ny X
on dsposal of 5 21 - 23 - . s
Protit on sale ol properties 10 - 16 B8 L) Lh] - - 7
Foreign exchange realised 1202 102 (204} 68 4 121.0) 153 1263
IFRS 16 odustment {19 17 {19.2) 87 {3 5¢ (65.9) - [85.0)
OPERATING (LOSSVPROFIY {58.1 219 (10.4) (534} e [78.2) "y {ea.7)
Ireyg sk Come 103.7
Investment costs 1))
Fngnce ncoms .0
Finuroe costs - (3.3}
PROFIY REFORE TAMATION a5
Tasation wes)
L33 FOR THE PERIOD 78.0)
Other segment items included in the Income
Statement for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021;
‘
VK Premiom  UKRatoll  Suropsan Reutaf Total  Whelsicle
Sparts Lilartyls Tetal Ratail World Retoll Retoil & Licenting
tem temi tmi tml {tmt tem e
raperty, plant & equment depreciation 1538 204 1141 353 57 153 12
Bropeny, plant & squipment impoirment ys 6 172G 107.4 Lo - w3 -
IFRS 16 ROU dtpren 1t b 55 64 19 ny 21 n
IHRS 16 RO impomment | 141 205 16 an 16 il
mwestrment property depreciotion 19 14 - -
Investment propesty Impairment 06 - X3 - o4 - 0.4
e T o o 1200 1561 sl w0 frE ] wn
mtangible ormdtisatiom - - 05 - o5 ] m
Intungible mpairment a7 23 ot 1 * 1

v oTORG
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Information regarding segment assets and liakilities as at 28 April 2029 and copital expenditure for Information regarding segment assets and liabilities as at 26 April 2020 and cogital expenditure for

i

the 52 weeks then ended: the 52 weeks then ended:
uK Fromlum K Rl Eurepsan Raxt QI Total  Whelssls Elimingte Grevp [F. 4 Pramium UK Retal] Edropwan Rest OF Total  Whelesale Eliminatie Greup
Sperts  Liestyls Tetal Ratull Warld Rutait Retoil & Licensing i Total Spets  Litastyle Tatal Retoll Werld Retall Retail & Licarsing oo Total
(L] (£m) (Em} {Em} {Em) ) ) (Em) (&m) {Em) (Em) thm} (m} [£m} [£wm] &mil I&m) (Em}
Total assets 1535 2 4387 sy srad 1586 44033 447 P29 37851 Total assets 33745 a7 17994 4555 1286 43843 3443 (@607| 20483
Total liobilities [2.3578) (4996 {nestar 18570) 957 [s0ns) 1275} 13629 12,5149 Tatal habilities 11,986 81 15561 (38439 6270} 1951 [3,348.0] 1831 8502 (1389
Tanaible asset additions 1746 ns W45 74 in 1183 25 - 4 Tnngibte asiet addibons 2368 54 922 487 12s ms - - ms
Right of use osset additions 75 21 "a 243 24 1183 as - 1180 Right of use assat addibians 506 29 s %55 23 1013 - - 1012
. Intangible ussets acquired 27 89 16 3 - w? - - Wl
Infangrkle ussets ocquired 37 23 50 - 60 10 i)
- . ) . Geographic information
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: .
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021;
ux Premium UK Retail  Eurepaan Reit Of Tetel  Whelesale vatians Greup
sperts  Libuatyle Total Retuil Werkd Retol! Retoll & Licamstng T Total o Carope A arla Slhietions Totel
£ & 1T i £ 3 '
Em} I£m| {Em) {km) [&m) lim) {Em) (Em) {Em} [ lemi tem (tm) tem) i£ml
Salns ta external customers 220313 7230 25383 6977 743 I 02 - 19514 Segmental revane rom extarnal cusiomers amr P 7 Py - P
Sales to ather sagments - - - - - - 78 nzg) Total capital expenditura 1965 174, - a3 73 4
HEVENUE 1,201.8 riia %253 .3 1y ML mae {78 13514 Non-current segment assars’ 105223 14g 127.7 46 12198
Sross proft 5012 Ll Ll 2679 i) L L] rese Total segmantul assats 42684 580.7 2562 9 pae29 1080
OPERATING PROFIT /
{LOBS) BEFORE FOREIGH i *Excludes defurred tox ond fnamceal mstruments,
EXCHANGE, EXCETIONAL uss ) s us .8 19o5 na iy
IFRS 16 . . o
JTEME AND Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Exrepliong| tems 177 [6.9) 9.8} (35} - [A] [GR]
Froht on sole ot propurtes 32 - 312 na - a2 541 uK Nen-UK us Asia Eliminetioty Total
Toreign exchonge reghsed 295 14 10 A1 04 334 05 uy (am) . £wm] Eml 1Em) {Em) [Em]
IFRS 16 adjustrents 23 o7 4 (455 79 469 an) Segmentol cavenue fram axternal customaers 29810 72213 2352 Y 19904
OPERATING PROFIT / (LO23} 008 3.3 %7 \10.4} 33 161.0 109 . e Totol copitol expenditure - 835 368 2 23 - ms
[ — - o Non-current segmental assets® 14726 na 2104 ua - 1509
nvaskment Costs iy Tgtal segrmental assets 38515 4733 3545 5 1960.2} a6z
Smance ncome ng “Exclunles deferred lax and inancial instruments
“inance cost (224
Shara of lass of ossacited ' o Material non-current segmental assets - by a non-UK country:
T value gain on stap 204 USA  belgim  Auitis  Eebenke Ireland Spain
s (] 1€m) lEm) {Em) {Em) 1em)
Frz 277 468 .4 - 2 299
owation ) o 303 2 515 67
SROFIT FOR THE PERIGD 010 738 e 2 2 ks
: . Material segmental revenue from external customers - -UK ountry:
Cales to other segments are priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up. 9 s - by anon-UK try
. . . . T Antd ator
Other segment iters included in the Income Statement for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: USA Nelghum «  Etenladreland Spaia
iem) {Em) (Em) (Em) {Em) {Cm)
[ Premium UK Retadl Europasn Rast OFf Total  Wholmale Geoup Fri 137 931 421 967 954 2081
$party Lifestyle Tetal Retall Werdd Ratul) Ratail & Licensing Total FY10 2352 455 553 1031 1473 1841
L)
fem) {tm) L) tm) femy fem) L] L] Hate the Group has i indadual customer which accounts for mare than 10% of revanye in the currend e pnor pazael
Bapreciatian 285 207 192 394 a8 134 - 14 1648
1=RS 16 ROV dapraciatian/lipanriment nn 161 119.3 710 133 ms 2135
17RS 16 disposal of laass iabilitas 12n oz 2% T 4l 04 wn - )
Exceptipnal Impairment 27 &9 e s - 14 w1
Emortkatianfimpairment 21 0 40 EL] - 124 204
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The following table reconciles the reported aperating profit to the underlying EBITDA os it has been
one of the main measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performarnce
during the pericd.

Reconciliction of operating (loss)/profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period

ended 25 April 2021: .
Framium UK Retoil Kt piroh Rust of
Cileatyle Total Hetoll Woridague  R¥0H Torel
Em) tEml (Em) 1wl teml
OPERATING ROSS) / PROFIT s s 1534 us msa us 160.3]
IFRS 16 disposal ond mads
rémagsurament of leose 156 ] nal 07 [t2]] - tax
IFRS % ROU deprecio n 5 64 2y ne 23 24 - n1
IFRS 16 ROU imparment RiTA) ans 1246 310 26 1482 - 1482
PPE depraciation incluting invastmant
preperty) 1587 04 61 353 87 i 12
PPE impairrment |including nvestment 962 o Ty 506 ~ .
Braperty]
fRtrygubie amorfsnfion - - - 05 - a3 66 m
REPORTED EBITOA 1va n—m.r s ™3 us ns a2y
{Preft)less on sale of prapertias no - L] CE) 01 on -
Exceptonol tams 120 14 [LL]] n 16 - 16
IFRS 16 adjustments (76 2450 .61 163 9] {04 (1829} - 16319}
Realised FX 'oss / lgai) 02 02 04 08 1é ne 53 263
UNDERLYING EBITDA oe.2 0y i 41 B 828 noe igas
1] Retotes to the reversal of IFRS 16 rent ond gneouws lease provisions,

Reconcilintion of operating profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period ended 26 April 2020:

UK Premium  UMRetalt  European Rust OF Totel  Wholerale Graup

Snerts Lifystyln Tetad Retail Werld Retoil Rotoil & Licensing “Total

(Em} &m) [£m} ) {Emr Em tm! {emp

/o) 1ors 3.2 LT (90.4) nan 181.0 we e

IFKS 16 Disposal of lease gty 271 03 {2.0) (LY 04 0 [1X]

IFRS 15 ROU dapracationfimpa: 133 161 1.1 Q. 33 2194 2103

\FRS 16 PPE Impairment a2 . 32 60 . 1 [¥]

Depreciation 953 04 nsy 15 ag 1541 12 155.6

Amartisatien/impairment pal 0 41 39 [ &) 125 05

Share of lass of asseciated yndertakings 155} (59} - - s {159)

REPORTED EBITDA 403.0 52 400.2 1018 144 526.2 48 s81.0

Prafit on sale of prapertes (33.2) - 33.3) mo - isa.zj - 5.0

Exteptimnal ikems 27 (3] 6 S - LI - 5.t

IFRS 16 adjustrments ' §11s9) 1611 (20 {301 208 {n2s} - (1729}

Ruulised FX {goin) / oss 12921 [ LR (a2i 1045 (353} Gd 1.0}

UNGERLYING EBITDA 2204 45 i 518 16.8) e 232 2034
i} Relates to the reversal ol IFRS 1 reat ond onercus lease prowswons
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5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
52 weoky ondad 51 weaks endad
15 April o2t 28 Aprit 2020
(km) - (Em}
Rent recevuble 16,1 16 3
Qther W07 167
1Y) ns

5. ad hae ineorme and sundry charges 10 third porties

Other aperating me ore rélates 10 chiarges far avcraf, leass surrendet pre

6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

- §1weshs sniad 52 waohs ended

325 Apeil 1021 ) 28 April 2020

(&ml {Em)

tmposments (o1} nan
Profit on digposal af intongible assets 75 -
11.8) (L8]

The impairment, i beth the Current and pror year relates o goodwill, whereby tha decounted present value of tuture cash flows do not suppert the
vahee of the ossets The prafit on disposal of intangible nssets reiates to Lhe sole of certom 1P relating tathe BELOMG businass

PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES

52 waeka andud 52 wesks anded

28 amil 2031 6 Apl 2020

(&ml 1Em)

Pratdt on sale of praperties 97 5432

8 sale of properties in the current period inctudas gans on the sole of Cutapean properties The pnor penod largely relates to the gan on

The proht o
ook distnibuton centre s A, B, C, Dand F Brook Park East, Shirebrook NGO BRY|

tive sule ond leasehack of the Shr

8. OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
Gperating {loss)/profit for the period is stated after charging/{crediting):

52 wawks andad 32 waoht anded

23 April20n 26 april 2010

0] {Lm)

“Tormgn exchunge loss / (ganl 2613 134 9
AND AMORTISATION OF NON-CURAENT ASSETS:

-Deprecioton ol property, plunt & equipment finel nght-of-use ne 2985 2584
\maement of property, plant & squipment fingl ngh-of-use osset] Nad n26
Depreciation of investmant pioperties 19 31

- impairment of nvestrmant groperty 06
-Arnorasanion ol inliongibie pssels N 145

-Impearment of intangibe atsets a1 Y

1FRS 18 LEASES:

Prohit on ditposal and modilicatian/rerneasurement of fease liabities 217 37

Vanahile lease payments 755 158
Snort teim and low velue lense expensey e 560

dacross the UK
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SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

The remuneration of the auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, and associated firms, was as detailed belaw:

52 weoks onded 51 washs anded
25 April 2031 24 Apsl 2020
{Em) (Lt

AUDIT SERVIEES
Audrt of the Group ond <ompany - (8o 1% 16
Audit of the Group and company - Rar o1 04
Audit of sUbsidary companies - [+ 08
Audit related ossurance servicas R - a1
14 .18

There were no non-audit services provided in either the current or prior period.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, inciuding Executive Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was:

K2 wasks endad 32 wenks anded

28 Agdil 2021 24 April 2020

Retad stores 22122 25,505
Dastabubion, admanistratioh aed ather 4374 4574
4% 10,179

The decrease in empiloyees is mainly due to natural attrition, including in part, the integration of new
acquisitions.

The aggregate payroll costs of the employees, ircluding Executive Directors, net of armounts received
from Government grants, were as follows:

52 waeks snded 31 weshs ended

a5 Aprid 2021 24 Apdl 2020

‘Wages and salunas 3422 456 4
Sociul sacurity coits 293 305
Punsion costs 3 56 5%
ma 4%1 8

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the Company are summarised below:

S2wasks andud 52 weahs eded

3 Apddi 2021 16 Aprll 2020

{Em) (Lm}

Aygregote emgluments 65 o4

Further details of Directars' remuneration are givan in the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Details of
key monagement remuneration are given in note 34.
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME

S2weshs anded 51 waaks apded

25 Apeil 2021 26 Agel 2020

im . {Em)

Profit on disposal of assets and equity derlvotive financial instruments, 274 T4
Pramwm recaved on def teu hina Instruments 206

+ Fonr walue gain on equity denvihive financial instruments 553 73

Divideng income 05 05

103 7 152

The profit on disposal of financial assets mainly refates to Hugo Boss contracts for difference. The
fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments rmainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
contracts for difference. The premium received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugo Boss options.

1, INVESTMENT COSTS

52 waeks ended 52 waehs andud

25 April 1021 26 April 2020

l&m) (Zm}

Lass on dispasal of inancinl ossels und eguily denvative Tinongiol nsteurments - 140
Fa value loss an aquity denvotive inanciol mstiu 77 58
73 wa

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current period moinly relates to movements in
contracts for difference.

The loss on disposal recognised in the prior peried mainly relates to the sale of equity derivatives.
The fair value loss en equity derivatives in the prior period mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
commaodities. ’

12.  FINANCE INCOME

52 wenhs wnded 52 wenkn anded

2% april 2021 26 April 2010

Em) [Em)

Bank interest recaivable 35 1A
54 81

Fnancial - N3

9.0 nao

The fair volue adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next. Other finance income largely relates to premiums
received on option contracts,

o across
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13. FINANCE COSTS

52 weeks anded 32 wudhs anded

25 April 2021 16 Apiil 2020

itmd 1£ml

tnterest on bank loans and overatts n 19

Dthay 1nlerest L ua

Interast on rebrament benefit 01 ut

IFRS 16 laase interest : 8 Wy
Fair voiug adustrient to denvat v Hranc el instruments . 48

383 %3

The fair value adjustrent to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
dccounting from one period end to the next.

14. TAXATION
52 waaks ended 52 wesky nnded
28 Aprii 202 26 Aprd 1020
I£m} (tm}
Current tux B32 572
Adjustinient In réspect to priot penids i 138 v
TOTAL CURRENT TAX " 811
Deferred tox 1758,
Adjustment in respect of pror pergds re
TOTAL DEFERRED Tax {$KE NOTE 27) {10.8)
263 425
Profit befroe ranution 83 1435
Taxation at the stondard rate of tox in the UK of 19% (2020 19%| 16 274
Non-towable mcome 139 (224
Expenses rot deductible for tox puposes 70 wn
Other tax odjustments el 25
Adiustiments In respect of pror perisds - Cufrent fox 196 EE)

Adjustments in raspact of pror perds - deferred tax wal

Chaonges n deferred tax rote.

a5

Nen-taxable income largely relates to profits on property disposal due to differences between capita!
cllswances and depreciation, Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non-qualifying
depreciation, impairments, and fair valuotion of investments.
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ATTRIBUTAEBLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Bosic earnings per share is calcuinted by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary sharehalders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shores cutstanding during the year.

For diluted earnings per shore, the weighted average number of shares, 501,955,281 [FY20:
505,826,890), is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares under the
Group's share schemes, being 88,605 (FY20:1,239,075), to give the diluted weighted average number
of shares of 502,043,886 [FY20: 507,065,965). However, as there is a loss for the period ended 25 April
2021, the effect of potentiaily dilutive ordinary shares is anti-dilutive, and therefore the weighted
average number of shares for the Dituted EPS calculation has been kept the same as for the Basic
EPS caleulotion for the current period.

Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share

51 wenks onded 52 weuks onded
" asaprl 25 Aptil 28 Aptl 26 Apeil
2001 20 2029

Dikted Tted

Em) {Cm)

[Lass/profit for the period 183 01 {83 OF 78
mba Nup

Weighted average number af sheres 501855 501953 505827 507066

Pance porshum
Eormngs per share 1651 1% 55 185 185

Pance pur shars
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Underlying Earnings Per Share 16.° PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The underlying earnings per share reflects the underiying performance of the business compared Rightof  Freshold L Shemem Lo
with the prior period ond is calculated by dividing underiying earnings by the weighted average - : o r-n_._"_.“_n._ﬂ Lamahetd _.._._Hﬂh_ﬂ_“ squipmam Tetal
number of shares for the pericd. Underlying earnings is used by management as a measure (e el () ml e (e
of profitability within the Group. Underlying e nings is defined as [toss)/profit for the period cosT
attributable to equity holders of the parent for each finencial period but excluding the post-tax AT 23 APRIL 2019 B 1 Y Y ara | 15E
effect of certain nen-trading items. Tax has been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax Racagriset on ndoption of (FRS 16 azs . P . . .
for the mﬁcr_ﬂy 88 254 05 - 6.1 0.8
The Directers believe that the underlying earnings befare exceptional items and underlying earnings Additions 1012 72 22 154 1287 -4t
per share measures provide additional useful irformction for shareholders on the underlying Efiminated on dispasals 120.9) (315} 0.3 1631 w8 m
performance of the business and are consisten: with how business performance is measured Reclnssilications / Remedsurements™ 28 - - - 230 38
internally. Underlying earnings is not a recognized profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly Exchonge duffarancas j € 28 o2 08 28 ar
P w . .
.no—:toEEm with “adjusted” profit measures used by other compenies. AT 38 APRIL 2020 0a ey 08 e o 2
52 weaks ended S1wank endsd Acquisitions {see note 31 2 05 - - 90 ne
35 April 25 Apedh 26 Apeil 26 April Adtitian : “nse 843 20 18.8 EELRY
FLE ] 2020 2020 — ) n
Dikited Bale Dikited Eliminated an disposals. {481} 116 5) 160 157 4) iy
(Em) {Em) [ Reclassificotions / Remeosuramantst" F6.4 (794} [:5] 87 £5.0
ILOSSI/PASFIT PSR THE PIRIDE 4 ”y "e 15 4 o1 0.3 o
4 I it & ‘
Post tax sdjusiment to {lossifprefit bor the pariod for the folvwing items AT 25 APRIL 2021 5094 054 L - ard 2740
Realised loss/igan on farward luceign exchangs contracts 197 197 126:) 1261
, ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATIGN AND IMPAIRMENT
Foir volue odjustment o forward Foreign axchange contracts i4 34 s 0 116 =
Falr vallue gam on step acquisition 204 (20 4) AT28 APRE 2019 : my fuy oaa ] 9.8
Frur value adjustment to dervativa fmancal instruments (4751 (4%.5 %69 269 Recogased on ady af iFRS 16 - - - - 621 (8.2)
Dividend incame ond profit on dispasat of biaseidl oisets and equdy der vative gsl 1488 . 27 Charge far the panad '+ 196 e [2.51 7.0 {104.2) 3811}
hnance rumants -
Peofit on disposal of properties (51 197 1543 547 Eliminaed en disposols Z 28 o 100 28 #3
imparment of goodwil 51 91 a1 131 Exchange differences - oy 05 o8 28 37
Profit on disposal of intunylble assets (5 6) a6 - AT 26 AFRIL 1020 [Fat 8 (150.3] 33 15679) (10705}
IFRS 16 adjushinents 768 3] 569 569 Charge lor the period (&2l i¥4.5) maj B8 {z9as}
UNDERLYING (LOSSYPROFIT FOR THE PERKMD fx] {95.3} ny "y Impairment (168.2] (a4 41 as ., t50.81 (31644
Humber | L ke i th
Eliminated on disposals . 415 2 03 544 prob
Sharas i issue ot the peried end 501955 504555 505,827 507066 T
Femen porshove Femie pet oare Reclossilications / Rerseasurements!” - 181 L2 - a8 (]
Farnings per share - 1.0} 11704 163 Exchange diffarences 21 02 4 1 01 2.3 [
AT 15 AFRAIL 201 t_.ah_ (12T N (e (698.8) sy
NETBOOK YALUE T ]
AT 23 APRIL 2021 U492 s11.? 1046 a7 a2 13549
AT 20 AFRIL 2020 083 5.0 B w2041 13478
AT 28 APRIL 2019 : - 614.5 LN 1°®e nss 8131
¢} The £33.0m was. flerel due ta Shi k | plant ond equipment not farming part o ! sala and teaseback completed during
/ the prior year,
21 In the prior pesicd there is na sepurcte disclasura of Impairmant froim depreciation in respect of the pragerty, plant and squipient, Total
i FY20 was £127 6m of which £97 8 related to the Right-of-use assets
@ In the current penod o numbier of propedies were dentdied that were previously classifind within Freelold Lond and Buldings but management
believe i o be mare appropriote (o classiy wi Long-term Leasahold These have thetefore been ndiusted in the pepcd as raclassifications
Note 2 pravides further detail on the property related impairments (relating to ROU assets, freehobd
land and buildings and onerous lease provisions),
95
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Leases

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 29 April 2015. The Group only has property leases within the scope of
IFRS 16, including retail stores, offices and warshouses. Leases are largely for o period between 1- 15
years typically with break clauses. It is management’s intention to centinue to enter into turnaver
linked leases in the future.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’, the same line itern as it presents underlying assets of the same
nature that it owns. The carrying amount and movements in the period can be seen in the table
above.

Lease licbilities are presented separately within the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The maturity
analysis of lease liabilities is show in note 2%e, Interest expense on the lease liability is presented os a
component of finance costs as per note 13. Cash payments for the principal portion and the interest
portion of the lease tiability are presented in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement with further
details given in note 26.

The Group is party to a number of leases that are classed as short term {eases and with variable
lease poyments. These are typically property leases on turnover bosed rents. Note 8 discloses
variable lease payments and short term and low value lease expenses incurred in the period. Cash
flows in the period reloting to variable lease payments, short term lease payments, and leases for low
value assets were approx. £24m [FY20: approx. £72m). it is expected that future cash flows will not be
materially different te the FY20 cosh flows. Leases to which the Group is committed but have not yet
commenced at period end are not considered to be material.

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Frasheld land ond

Buildingr
(£m)

casT
AT 20 APRIL 2013 AND 25 APRIL 2020 458
Ehminated an disposals 1761
AT 15 APRIL 2021 e
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATKIN AKD IMPAHRMENT .
AT 18 APRIL 2019 (13-8)
Charge for the pariod 33y
AT 26 APRIL 1920 (289)
Charge for the penod a9l
Impoonent N we;
Ehrminated o0 dispossls 52
AT 25 APRIL 2021 {za0)
NET BOOK VALUE
AT 25 APRIL 2021 W
AT 26 APRIL 2020 ny
AT 22 APRIL 20%9 12

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 25 April 2021 were estimated as being
matericlly in line with carrying values. The valuations were calculated by the Group's internal
property team whe ore appropriately qualified chartered surveyors and follow the applicable
valuation methodology of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides further detail
on the property related impairments.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goedwill .q.ud_.n.u_h” Hronds Tetal
lE&m) (tm) [&m) tem)
COST

AT 28 APRIL 2013 - a1 FLt o 234.)
Acquisitions 12/ 20 - "y
Disposals o4 - {od)
Exchange odjuktments 46 L] 4 Lx]
AT 26 APRIL 2020 734 %o 9L ISTe
50 . - [
10 - 10
02 spotuls an - 113
Exchange dedpastments ) |7 ol 19 8t 50
AT 25 APRIL 2031 o7 wr we prey

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
AT 18 APRIL 1379 (L2 ]] (825} [A}% %
Amaorhsation charge 3y 172 B 7R
Impairment neo| - i1".9)
Drsposit - o4 - 0.4
Fxchonge aduntments [ - -
AT 26 APRIL 2020 9.3 et [C)] {2144y
Amortisotian chargs t021 ED {55) (i3]
Imponrmmunt [£XT - - LX)
Dhspasal iz - 13
Exchonge adjustments 47 od Q7 58
AT 25 APRIL 2021 {124.9) 1 11a.8} {1213
AT 25 APRIL 1929 a6 6.8 1208
AT 26 APRIL 3020 544 [r [ 1434
AT 28 APRIL 2019 71 2] and 520

Amortisation is charged to selling, distribution end administrative expenses in the cansolidated
Income Statement.

The majerity of the net book vaiue of intangible assets relates to the £86.5m purchase of Everlast in
2007. ’
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The carrying value of goodwill and brands tha: are considered to have an indefinite life are allocated
to the Group's operating segments before agg-egation. With the exception of Everlast, none of

the individual cash-generating units {CGUs) are considered material to goodwill or indefinite life
intangibles. The carrying value of goodwill anc brands cllocated to the Group's CGUs [as oggregated
except in the case of Everlast} is shown below:

18 apdl 2021 28 Aprl 2020
Gesdwill Srands Bosdwlll Brands
(Lm} [tm) (tm} lim]

European Retall . - 16
‘Wholesahe & Licensing (excl Evarlost] 43 - 143 -
Ewverdast 24 Lel] 362 Bd4
"7 .1 349 i

The Group tests the carrying ameunt of
goodwill and assets with an indefinite fife
annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that their carrying value
might be impaired. The carrying amounts

of other intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment if there is an indication of
Impairment. -

Eurcpecn Retail goodwill and the goodwill from
acquisitions in the period.

The Everlast brand is amortised over g 15
year period within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
income statement. The amount charged to
the income statement in the period is £5.5m
{FY20: £6.0m), the future amortisation charge
is expected to be approximately £6.0m per
annum far the remaining 13 year omortisation
period (FY20: 14 year}.

Impairment is calculated by comparing the
carrying amounts to the value in use derived
from discounted cash flow projections for
each CGU to which the intengible assets are
allocated. A CGUY is deemed to be an individual
fascia or brand and these have been grouped
together into similar classes for the purpose of
formulating operating segments as reported
in note 4. The total recoverable amount of

all CGUs in relation to the above intangible
assets was £262.3m of which £136.8m related
to Everlast. Due to the engoing impact of
Covid-19, the European Retail goodwill was
impaired to £nil with an impairment charge of
£3.4m [FY20: £nil} being recognised where the
discounted present value of future cash Flows
did not support the full value of the asset.

Value in use calculations are based on five-yea-
management forecasts with a terminal

growth rate applied thereafter, representing
management’s estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs.

Total impairments of £9.1m (FY20: £19.0m)
have been recognised in relation to goodwill
on Joss making companies and are individuaily
immaterial to each CGU that has been

written down. These impairments include the
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The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGL, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of goodwill were as follows:

nio ciedle new B

At ot 35 Aprd 2620 Eurepaan R ir-.-..“_--h..:-”“:ur._.-_ Evsrlast
Tarminal solas growth 20% 10% 70%
5 yaar Forucast growth 13 5%) 5,39 1 6051
Gross morgin 4 30%-40%

Drcount rota 53% 5.3% 21%
Anot 26 Apnil 2020 Eurepuan Hetall i_..rJ_..h_,_.hﬂd_.-_u.-u Everlart
Tarminal salas growth 20% 70% 20%
5 yaar Farecast growth' 0% 20% ou%
Grass margin 10%-20% -

Discount rate 63% B 71%

Al The 5 year grawth rates are based on the average growth over 5 years

The same pre-tax discount rate is used in European Retail and Wholesale & Licensing {excl. Everlast)
as these CGU's are considered to have similar risk profiles. A specific discount rate is used for Everlast
as this business operates in o different market and has different characteristics.

The key assumptions are based on market data and management’s historical experience and future
plans for each CGU.

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible change in any key cssumption would not cause the carrying value of the
Everlast or Wholesale & Licensing (excluding Everlast) CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,
the table below shows the amount of headroom and the revised assumption required in order to
eliminate the headroom in full.

The European Retail goodwill has been impaired in the period as ¢ result of the ongoing impact of
Covid-19. -

i__-..-.-_-unn_...hm-.-.h.ﬂ Evaflant
Recevernble amaunt of CGU [fm) 1255 1366
Current heodraom |Em) ) "2 16
Revised S-yuar lorecnst growth rate % (27%] [2 5%
Revisad terrmina| grawth rute % < (1000%] 0.5%
Revised discount 1ate % ) 52 6% 14 D%

shywoodiand across the UK
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19, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures in accordance
with 1AS 28. The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's investment in
associates and joint ventures:

Asiocioes

{Cm)

AT 21 APRIL 2019 mo
Additions . 56
Sherra cf loss far the perod {1591
Forr value adjustment 0
Dispascls T

AT 26 APRIL 1020 AND 15 APRIL 2031 -

The share of loss in the prior period relates to Game Digital plc prior to obtaining a contrelling
interest in July 2019.

The fair value adjustment in the prior year relates to the increase in the fair value of the previcusly
held 38.1% equity interest in Game Digital plc at the acquisition date on 8 July 2019.

The disposals in the prior period mainiy reiates to the de-recognition of Game Digital plc as an
associate due to obtaining a controlling interest.

The Group currently holds a 49.0% share of Four (Holdings) Limited (FY20: 49.0%), the carrying
ameount of this investment is £nil. Detailed disclosures have not been presented as the results are
immaterici. The Group is owed £64.9m from the group of companies headed by Four {Holdings}
Limited {£26.5m net of amounts recognised in respect of loss allowance} (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of loss cliowance), see note 22 for further details. The group of companies headed by Four (Holdings)
Limited made a profit of £8.1m in the period [FY20: loss of £19.8m).
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20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is nat leoking to make gains through increases in market prices of its long-term financial
assets, therefore on initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made the irrevacable election to account
for long term financial assets ot fair value through other comprehensive income {FYQCI). The
election has been made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair value are recognised within OCI and never reclassified
to profit and loss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of
long-term financial assets are recognised in the UK Sports segment.

The fair value of the long-term financial assets is based on bid quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date or where market prices are not available, ot management's estimate of fair vaiue.

The following table shows the cggregate movement in the Group's financial assets during the period:

23 aprll 2021 28 April 2030

fem) fem)

Al beginping of penod a3a 846
Additions h33 748
Prspasols ] ) 155t
Asmeunts recognised theaugh ather comprehensive incame 73 en
Exchonge dilferences 12y -
283.) 34

Inciuded within long-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the following direct
interests held by the group:

= 36.8% [FY20:12.5%) interest in Mulberry = 51% (FY20: 0.2%) interest in Hugo Boss AG
Group plc +  Various other interests, hone of which

»  35.6% {FY20: 36.9%] interest in Studio Retail represent more than 5.0% of the voting
Group pic power of the investee

During the period the Group sold its 26.1% interest in French Connection Group pic due to it na
longer being considered part of the Group's long-term strategy. The fair value at the date of
derecognition was £2.6m with the £1.7m gain on disposal being recognised in investment income.

The following table shows the fair value of each of the Group's long-term financial assets (all listed):

28 April 2038 26 Apeil 2020

. fem} tem}
Mulbreery Group ple . 520 146
Studio Retul Group plo 857 £17
Hugo Boss AG ' M n&z 24
French Connegtien Graup ple - 14
rter 25 a0
AT END GF PERIOD 13 3.8
These holdings hove been assessed under assist in building relationships with key suppliers
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and categorised and brands. )

as long-term financicl assets, as the Group
does not consider them to be associates and
therefore, they are not accounted for on an
equity basis, see note 2.

Our strategic investments are intended to allow
us to develop relationshias and cammercial
partnershigs with the relevant retailers and

ot e UE
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21.  INVENTORIES

23 Apsil 2021 4 Aptil 2020
Ifmt {Em)
Goads lar resale 10YE 6

As at 25 April 2021, goods for resale include a right of return asset totalling £4.5m :‘J.mo £2.4m).
Amounts written off in the period relating to steck was £24.3m (FY20 £39.0m).

The following inventory costs have been recognised in cost of sales:

3 April 2071 26 April 2020
&m) L}
Cost of inventanies racoginsed 5 an expense 20945 22948

The Directors have reviewed the opening and closing provisions against inventory and have
concluded that these are fairly stated. The Group has reviewed its estimates and assumptions for
caleulating inventory provisions at 25 April 2021. Overall provisions haove decreased from £223.0m in
£Y20 to £219.8m as at 25 April 2021, changes in the provision are recognised in cost of sales.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23 Apedl 20H 26 April 2020

(] [t}

rode receivadles 72 515
Deposits In tespeet of derivative fmanciat instrumants 1310 71
Ar0LNTS owed by reluted parties (ses note 341 68 347
Other receivobles 2469 967
Frepoyments A6 545
Suss 2

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables opproximates to
their fair value. The maximum exposure to credit risk ot the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of asset above, plus any cash balances. Other receivables also include unremitted sales
recaipts.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instrurrents are collateral to cover margin requirements for
derivative transactions held with counterparties, The collsterol requirement changes with the market
{which is dependent on share price, interest rates and volatility) and further purchases / sales of
underlying investments heid.

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £118.3m (FY20: E118.3m] in
relakion ta the Graup's nngaing nac-UK bax enguiies, far futher informatian see tote 28,

The majority of the Group's trode receivables are held within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
each customner's creditworthiness is assessed befcre payment terms are agreed.

Under IFRS 2, the Group has applied the simplified approach te praviding for expected credit losses
for trade receivables, using the lifetime expected loss pravision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivobles have heen grouped based on a very low credit risk
characteristic, representing manaogement's view of the risk, and the days past due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due nor impaired is conside-ed to be good. The Group considers o debt to be
defoulted at the point when no further amounts a-e expected to be recovered. Financial assets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectaticn of recovery. If recoveries are subsequently made
after receivables have been written off, they are recognised in profit or loss.
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The amounts owed by related parties mastly relates to the group headed by Four (Holdings) Limited,
for further details see note 34.

Exposure to credit risk of trade receivables:

28 April 2021 24 Aprll 020

(] (Em)

Current KL no
0-30 days past dug 12,0 130
30-6¢ doys past due 40 a2
6090 days past due 24 20
Ovar 90 doys post dus 70 - 13
57.2 515

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good.

The movement in loss cilowance relating to trade receivables and amounts owed to related parties
can be analysed as follows: )

S2waeksended 52 wweks andud

I8 Apid 2021 26 April 2020

1Em) [£mt

Opening position 462 338
Amaunts charged to tha income stotement 224 198
Amounts wntten off as uncollactubla to1) 166]
Amaunts recoverad duning the pencd 0 {06)
CLOSING POSITION [ E] a1

Included in the below table is the loss allowance movement in amounts due fram related parties as
follows:

52 waaks ended 51 wanks ended

1% April 2621 26 Aprll 2020

1Em) em

Opeamg pas 238 208
Asmounts charged o tha income statement 46 130
A 11.h

CLOSING POMTION

The gross carrying amountt of the balance due is £65.2m [FY20: £67.5m). The charge in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. £12.4m of the gress ameounts due
from related parties balance is due in less than one year with the remaining being due in more than
a one year (FY20: £7.9m due less than one year).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit zm_»_.i_,ﬁr exposure spread over a large number
of custurnets. The Yoss chowance / chorges have 'been determined by reference to pust defaut
experience, current / forecasted trading performance and future economic conditions.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments and prepayments are not considered to be
impaired.

woudland across the UK
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

5 April 2021 26 April 2020
(Emj el
Cash in bunk and in hand - Sterjing wal 452 8
Cash n bank and i hand - U$ Dellars. 974 7S
Cosh in buny and n hand - Evras 1925 552
Cash in bk and 1n frand - Othar 230 8BS
4310 .8
24, SHARE CAPITAL
25 Aprl 2021 16 Apnil 2010
ttm) )
559,863 00 ordinary shares of 0p sach W00 1040
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
646,602,365 (020 640,602,386) erdinary shares of Top aach 6 641
SHARE CAPITAL
Ar 25 April 2011 and 26 Aprit 2030 641 fdy
The Group holds 121,260,175 shares in Treasury os Contingent Share Awards

at period end [FY20: 121,260,175).

The helders of ordinary shares are entitled to

receive dividends as declared from time to time
_and are entitled to one vate per ordinary share

at general meetings of the Campary. ‘

We are aware of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt [ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers has not and does not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares or other securities (in
the form of ADR or otherwise) to the generat
public in the United States nor has it listed

or intends to list its Ordinary Shares or other
securities on any naticnal securities exchange
in the United States or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinary Shares on any aver the counter
market located in the United States. Frasers does
not make arrangements to permit the voting of
Ordinary Shares held in the form of ADRs and
its pubtication of periadic financial and other
information is hot intended to facilitate the
operation of any unsponsored ADR programme
under Rule 12g3-2(b) of U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise.
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The Executive Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scheme,
which was approved by Shareholders on 10
Septernber 2010 and is @ HMRC approved
scheme, the Board may make share awards in
respect of the ordinary shares in the Company.
Awards may be made to Executives and Persons
Discharging Managerial Responsibilities over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
conditions. Further details are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

An awaord of 8,073.036 shares was granted on
10 September 2010 at a share price of 125.5
pence, Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
1,000,000 shares sold by participants following
exercise of gwards were gcquired by Estera
Trust {Jersey} Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee), with
the acquisition funded by a loan advanced

by the Company. The shares were acquired at
374.8 pence per share. At the period end 6m
of the shares in the scheme have since vested
(FY20; 5m) and 2m have since lapsed meaning
all shores granted by the scheme have now
exercised or lapsed.

VA

Shate Schemes

The 2011 Share Scheme was a four year scheme
bosed upon achieving underlying EBITDA
{before the costs of the scheme] of £215m

n FY12, £250m in FY13, £260m in FY14 and
£300rm in FY15 coupled with the individual
porticipating employee’s satisfactory personal
performance and continued employment.

Al of the above targets have now been met
meaning that approx. 11.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx. 4m shates vested
in September 2015,

Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
150,470 shares sold by participants following
exercise of awards under the Group 2011
Share Scheme were acquired by Estera Trust
[Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust {Trustee), with the
acquisition being funded by a loan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired at
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions. The weighted
average purchase price was 365 pence per
share {FY20: 257 pence per share).

A share-based payment charge of £nil {FY20:
nil) was recognised in respect of this equity-
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director's best estimate of
the number of awards that will be made. The
charge is calculated based on the fair value on
the grant date, which is deemed to be the dote
on which the entity and counterparty reached a
shared understanding of the scheme.

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end [FY20:
17.386,913).

FRASERS GROUP

Fearless 1000 Bonus Scheme

At the annual general meeting in October
2020, our shareholders gave approval for

the Fearless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for na cash consideration, Al Groug
employees lexcluding executive directors, their
family ossociates, and the Chief Commercial
Officer) are eligible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 million shares
arg awarded to eligible employees if certain
market conditions are achieved. This would
eguate to £100m worth of fully paid ordinary
shares in Frasers Group plc that could be paid
to aligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 ony time over the next four years, The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading doys to trigger the vesting of shores at
the end of the four year vesting period. 50%

of the shares are granted ofter 4 years and the
remeining 50% after 5 years. One thousand
eligible employees will receive the shares with
a potentiaf value ranging from E50k to Elm if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates, In
all other respects the shares rank equally with
cther fully paid ardinary shares on issue,

Tha shore element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settied scherne as defined by
IFRS 2 Share-based payment, tn line with the
accounting policy in note 1, the fair value at the
date of gront is expensed to the Consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line besis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity. '

The assessed fair value ot grant date of the

- shores granted during the peried ended 25

April 202t was 165.69p per share for the 4 year
vesting peried and 165.95p per share for the 5
year vesting penod. The fair value at grant date
is independently determined using on adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes model which includes
a Monte Carlo simulation maodel that takes

into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution {where maoterial),
the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rote for the term of the scheme.
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The model inputs for shares granted during the pericd ended 25 April 2021 included:
~ exercise price; £nil

- grant date: 10 February 2021, being the date the Deed of Grant wos executed

- expiry date: 7 October 2024 and 7 October 2025

- share price at grant dote: 450p

- expected price volatility of the company's chares: 38.8%

- expected dividend yield: 0%

- risk-free interest rate: 0.1%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility {based on the remaining life of the

scheme), adjusted for any expected changes te future volatility due to publicly aveilable information.

A charge in the Consolidated Incorme Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in
relation to the equity-settled element of the scheme resulting in £0.8m now being held in equity.

The scheme also has a cash-settled bonus for all dther efigible employees wha do not qualify for
the Fearless 1000 share scheme. The cash bonus at the end of the 4 year period is based on the
employee tenure and has been accounted as an other long-term employee benefit as defined by
1AS 19 Employee Benefits. A charge in the Consalidation Income Statement of £0.5m has been
recegnised in the period along with a corresponding fiability.

1C1
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25. OTHER RESERVES

Parmagant  Caphal Reveria i Tetalother
to capital resarve — rure Ruerva
{cm) (e} Em) {Em 1em]
AT 28 APRIL 2019 o1 40 (937.7) LAl 193251
Cash flow hedges
- recogrised » penod - 14 164
- recagrised in the panad - melfsctveness - . - 0.2
- reciassihied w the petiod and reported i the sales nn
+ reclossified and reported in cost of sales - - - 1374)
- baxution - - - EL) aa
AT 24 ARRIL 2020 o1 ha (a3} 0 1951.2)
Cosh frow hedges
- recogrised in the penad . - - 04 04
- reciassifiad i the parind and reported i solas - - - 1281 128}
- raclossified and reparted 1n cost of sales ) - . - td)] 171
- texation - - - 0 30
AY 25 APRIL 20N 01 10 (] ns (9677}

The permanent contribution to capital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8
Februcry 2007 under a deed of capital contribution.

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference
sheres of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007

The reverse acquisition reserve exists as o result of the adoption of the principles of reverse .
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which occurred on 2 March

2007 ond 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sperts World Internaticnal Limited, Brands
Holdings Limited, International Brand Management Limited and CDS Holdings SA with Sports Worid
International Limited as the acquirer.

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments
deemed effective in cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the income statement only when the hedged transcction impacts the
income statement.

w Butish woodland across the UK
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Other Bulance Sheet Reserves

The foraign currency transiation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates.

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group ple
purchased in the morket and held by Frasers Group Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under
the Group's share options scheme,

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the Employee Benefit Trust as ot period end (FY20: 17,388,755)

The non-controfling interests of the Group mostly relates to Sportland Internations) Group AS and
its subsidiaries, This company is incorporated in Estonia with the principal places of business being a
number of Baltic countries in Europe. The non-controlling interests hold 40% of the share cogitel of
Sportiand International Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m) has been oliocoted
to the non-contralling interests of Sportland International Group AS, resulting in anh accumulated
non-controlling interests at the end of the period of £12.4m [FY20: £6.4m). A dividend of £0.9m was
paid to the non-controlling interest in the period (FY20: £nil). The group of comparies headed by

Spostland International Group AS has total assets of £67.8m and total liakilities of £34.6m.
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26. BORROWINGS

25 apsil 2021 26 April 2020
(Em) [Emj
CURRENT -
Lense lahilities 1885 1478
MON-CURRENT:
Bar and other louns 089 9000
Lense lighiitias 5242 277
TOTAL 14208 AEITE]

An analysis of the Group’s total borrowings other than bank overdrafts is as follows:

25 april 2031 26 April 2020
(Em) Eml
Borrowngs - sterling 7059 2000

As at period end, loans are at o rate of interest of 1.3% {FY20: 1.3%) over the interbank rate of the
country within which the borrowing entity resides,

Reconciliotion Of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from finanting activities can be classified as follows:

Honcurrent  Cwrent  Sharebuy

barrewings  bormewings hacks Total

|Em) (Em} [Em) teml

AT 28 APRIL 2013 [z - w0 e
CASHFLOWS:

Bartwings drawn down 5100 - - 510.0

- Boraswings repoid 436 5] - {42e.3)

- Shore buy bock - - (439 [CRE
LEASE LABILITY: R

- IFRS % Lease Liokdines a5 1363 ) el
- IFRS 16 Leose Linbihbies - Acqu 64 e . . wo
NON-EASH MOVEMENTS:

- Shore buy bock - - 1y 1y
AT 26 ABRIL 2020 . vitez (o2 - (LR
CASH-ELOWS:

- Bartawings drawn dawn 1128t - ()

- Borrawings repaid [ - - haay
LEASE UABILITY:

- IFR5 14 Leuse Libdities - cash-flows - 176 01 - {78.0)
QLMJW&MN.”NMMM}MJG& n_“wri.”w“ﬁ—_wwa:u:«&-mimcwcssm]ﬁ. tranciers from non-currant o current, a0 31 o8t . oe

-1FRS ¥ Lause Lighilirias « new leases ELE 205 - ke
ATISAPRILZON 13401 " 14108

The acquired borrowings {note 31 of £1.4m were repaid in full during the perind.

The Group's Working Capito) Focility is ot £913.5m [FY¥20: £913.5m) available until Novernber 2021
and is not secured against any of the Group's assets, During FY19 the Group enacted an extension
option for a further year to November 2022 for £847.5m.

~dastoss he VK
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The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking facilities and covenants. The careying
emounts and fair value of the borrowings cre not materially different.

28. PROVISIONS

Legaland  Praperty o Totat
Reconciliation of Net Debt: redtory - ralated
teml [ tEm) {em)
IS ApI 038 16 April 2020 AT 1% APRIL 2013 Mo 2] a0 w3
®ml (Emd Amounts pravidad 120 798 - :°Y ]
Barrowangs 1.426.6) 15241 Amagunts utised / revarsed el [FieX: 1} 153} 1977
ADD BACK: Acquisitions - 106 . 0e
- Locwa lig 727 f241
Cash und cash equivalents 4570 5340 AT 24 APRIL 2020 1254 1074 1y 3300
MET DEAT {2489} (384.0] Aménunts provided 73 as - A8
Ainounts Utdised / revarsed nag (33} 14] 122.8]
sn UM“M’””U qu >mmmqm >zo F->=—F-q—mm AT 25 APRIL 1021 N 215 pTTR) 13 8.1
Acteurts fei ’ . " N
(#Rs1s  duprechstion  Taxlexies Senus shore h...ﬂ._uu et O fmm._o_ G nd Emc“oﬁoi provisions .-m_n_ﬁm to management mA_um% estimate of ,rm.n.oﬁm:n_n_ _._._.__.unn" of
escandinglax rceverably  scheme  Corercd Brangs  ZnPe claims including legal, commercial, regulatory and ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of
- ..!ar.“-._ the outcome of nen-UK tax inquiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
L e} {eml {m) fom} fim| Jem) L] factors outside the Group's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain. After taking
AT 24 APRIL 2019 - i 13 %) 9.0 el 5.3 . . . . " .
2 appropriate legal advice, the outcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
C d/: ged) ta the Income v n3 | ny [EE: ] 14 28 e N .
in excess of the amounts provided.
Charged to reserves 12 - . - . - 11
Credited to hedgung rasarve - . . . 18 - - 14 A reimbursement asset of £118.3m [FY20: £118.3m) has been recognised separately within debtors
AT 26 APRIL 2020 ns s R B wol [P " 23 relating to ongoing non-UK tox enquiries.
Cradited/charged) to the incarma statement 1“6 41 : : 20 10 il 103 Included within property related previsions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
Charged to raservas : : : foal - 25 : 12 retoil stores ond warehouses. Further details of managements estimates are included in note 2,
Credited 16 hedging resecves . - - - 3o - - 1.0 .. . . .
Other previsions relate to provisions for restructuring and employment {non-retirement related).
AT IS5 APRIL 2011 414 mr - 0.3 [e2-] [47R ] i5.6) »a
During the periad, onerous lease provisions {pre-IFRS 16} were recognised due to an ongoing
25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2020 mandagement review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
L] 1Em) freehold acquisitions, resulting in overall increased provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m), with reference
Detarted tux ussets : 568 Ll to the Group's alternative performance measures. See Glossary for moere details.
Dafercad tox llubihths 127 a) 125 61
NET DEFERRED TAX RALANCE i 3

“he tox rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19%, on the basis that this
was the tax rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. ’

Deferred tax ossets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probeble
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Group has approx.
£134m of taxable losses not recognised as o deferred tax asset [approx. £25m deferred tax asset),

Included within other temporary differences is ¢ deferred tax asset in relation to the Share Scheme
cnd a deferred tax liability recognised on other intangible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and it was determined
that there was no material impact on the Group, or the fair volue of net assets acquired.
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29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a, Financial Assets And Liabilities By Category And Fair Value Hierarchy
es, which are principaily denominated in

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabi
Sterling or US Dollars, were as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 APRIL 2011 Lavel Leval 2 Leveid Othar Total
[LL0) iEm) itm} fEm Em)
cosy;
Trade and ather racevobles* - - 4351 41t
Cosh and cash squwalents 4570 isto
Amounts owed by related portas - - - 268 2848
FYoc:
Lang Term Financiol Assets {Equity Instrumants) - designater 2633 2603
ABSETS (FY}

Fuorergn forward purchase ond soles contracts - 33 - 313
Dervative financial assets - contracts for differance & equity options, - 201 209 ‘

B - 554 554
FINANCLAL LIABILITIES - 25 APRIL 2021 "
AMORTISED COST:
Non-gurrent borrowings - (7053} (ras)
Trade and other payables' - - 16201} feze.)
IFRS 16 Lease hoblities - - - w2 rad

L (FV):
Foreign torwatd and wntten sptians purchose and soles contracts - Unhedged b nst
Danvative financial [iabilities - contracts for dhllerence & equity aptions - i -
- (18.9)

Prepeyments of EBA A ara nat wcluted o5 a fingntial ussat

**Cther taxes inciuding sociml tacunty costs of £26 2m are nat meluded os a finuncal hab
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FINANCIAL ASSETS - 26 APRIL 2020 Luval 1 Leval 2 Luveld Sthar Total
Emy Em) i Eml Em)

AMORTISED COST:

M weevahies” - - - 4155 1155

Cosh ond Cosn &qipwaents - - - 5340 4.0

Arncunt owed iy retated portes - - - 3472 M2

FYoct:

| omg Tesrn Financial Assets [Equity Instruments] - dessignated a3g ns

FINANCIAL ASSETS [FY):

Foregn forward purchose ond sades cantracts - 104 - - oA

Denvative inanciol ossets - contracts for ditterance - 77 - - LAl
- T - T

FINANCIAL LIASILITIES - 26 APRIC 3920

AMORTISED COST:

Non-currant borewings ) - - - 19000} {so0.0}

Trade and other poyables™ - - - {2847) [{TR]

FRS 16 Lease [obilties ~ - - 162411 w24

DERIVATAVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (FV):

Foreign torward ond witten option purthuse and soles contract - Linkedged . [EX:] - [LX]]

Dernotiva fnanr e + cantrocts tor diference & equity options. (342} - {344}
. e - - W

*Prepoyments of £54 Sm are notincluded as @ inanc il paset

*Other taxes nchding sor 1ol secanty costs of F17 Bm are not icluded as o hinanciol labinty

b. Financiol Assets And Liabilities Sensitivities By Currency

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are fo US Doliars and Euros. The table below
lustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to @ 5% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calkculated by comparing the
fair values of outstanding forelgh currency contracts, assets and fiabilities at the current exchange
rate to those if exchange rates moved as iljustrated. The income stotement figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivatives which are not in a designated cosh flow hedge. The impact on US
Dollor and Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity.

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

1. Existing assets and habilities are held as at the period end;

2. Mo additional hedge contracts are taken out.
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SENSITIVITY
usp EUR

ars

ather usb EUR Tetal 5% +5% 5% +3%
FYh:
Trade and Other Racaivables 3701 F¥] 198 4381 18] 23 (2.0} 2.0
Cash and cash aguwvolents 3534 494 542 &80 [F17) 15 an 27
Trade and Other Payables 14890} 1245) (106 6) 16201 12 na 53 (.31
Fro:
Tretde antd Qther Receivables 2577 266 12 13y 14 21
Cosh and cash equivalents 4513 75 552 D (1] X}
Trade and Other Poyables {451.6) 1259) 110/2) LS| 11 141 £ L]

There is no difference between fair value and carrying value of the above financial instruments

{FY20: Enil).
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the fotlowing hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valugtion technique:

+  Level %: quoted [unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identicol assets or liabiiities;

*  Lavel 2: other techniques for which all
inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

+  Level 3: techniques which use inputswhich
have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Contracts fot differerce are classified as Level
2 a5 the foir value is calculoted using quoted
prices for listed shares and commedities at
contract inception and the period end.

Foreign forward purchase ond sales contracts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally finaneial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange

forward contracts and options are valued

using valuation technigues, which employ the
use of market observable inputs. The most
frequently applied valuction techniques include
forward pricing and swap models using present
value caiculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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forward rates, and yield curves of the respective
currencies.

Long-term financial assets such as equity
instruments are classified as Level 1 as the fair
value is calculated using quoted prices,

The fair value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial
assets balance of £201m and derivative
financial liabilities balance of £17m. The
derivative financial assets and derivative
financial liabilities as at 25 April 2021 relate 1o
strategic investments held of between 0.04%
and 8.41% of investee share capital.

Sold options are classified as Level 2 as the
fair vatue is calculated using other techniques,
where inputs are observable,

Trade receivables / payables, amounts owed
from related parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cash equivalents, current /
non-current borrowings, and lease lial
held at armortised cost.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 25
April 2021 is the carrying value of each closs of
asset in the Balonce Sheet, except for amounts
owed from related parties which is the gross
carrying u.:._oc:" of £65.2m.

1 Lo creals

€. Derivatives: Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts

(i HEDGING

The most significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations relates to purchases
made in foreign currencies, principally the US
Dollar and online sales in Euros. The Group's
policy is to reduce substantially the risk
associated with foreign currency spot rates

by using forward fixed rate currency purchase
contracts, toking into account any foreign
currency cash flows. The Group does not

hald ar issue derivative financiat instruments
for trading purposes, however if derivatives,
including both forwards and written options,
do net qualify for hedge accounting they are
accounted for as such and accordingly any gain
or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the opticns and a strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
contract and hedge accounting for the forwards
is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and at every reporting
period end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to
determine whether there is still an economic
relationship between the two.

The critical terms of the foreign currency
forwards entered into exactly match the terms
of the hedged item_ As such the economic
reletionship and hedge effectiveness are based
oh the gualitative factors ond the use of o -~
hypothetical derivative where appropriate.
Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
longer meet those of the hedging instrument, for
example if there was a change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
initially estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations
leading to over-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero.

w Brtish woodland across the UK

The hedged items and the hedging instrument
are denominated in the same currency and as a
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value

in the statement of financial position, To the
extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the
foir volue of derivatives designoted os hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income and included
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity.
Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity te profit or loss and presented

as @ reclassification adjustment within other
comprehensive income. If a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, any related

gain or loss recognised in ather comprehensive
income is transferred immediately to profit

or loss. If the hedging relationship cecses to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
accounting is discontinued and the reloted gain
or loss is held in tie equity reserve until the
forecast transaction occurs.
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The fair value-of hedged contracts as at 25 April 2021 was:

35 apnl 2021 26 April 2020
{ml |Em)

ASSETS
S Dollar purchases - GBP 71
US Daltor purchoses  EUR 73 1
Eura sates o7 45
TOTAL 34 188
LIABILITIES
US Belior purchoses - GBP 73
5 Doliar purchases - EUR a1
TOTAL T4 -

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase cantracts and contracted forward rates
were as follows:

25 Apell 2021 26 April 2020
irm [E£ml
. Currancy GBp Currancy aBp
U5 Dolior purehases 700 5231
Caontracted rates USD / GBP 136141
US Dellar purchases 200 B3y 290 9
Contiactad mtes USD £ EUR 120133 132
Euro sales ) i2800) (242 &) 1540 ) 1519 8)
Contracted rotes EUR / GBP 09y 0§% - 104
The timing of the contracts is as follows;
Currency Hudying againit Currmuey value Timing Rates
USDIGaP USG inventory punchosss USD 20 D Frz7-FYa3 136
- USD/ELR UST inuertory pun higsas SD 120 Dy FY22 F¥24 12113
EURAGBP Eura snles EUR 2400 [afk] k]

Y

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the critical terms of the forecast transaction no longer meet
those of the hedging instrument, for example if there was a change in the timing of the forecost soles
transactions from what was initially estimated or if the volume of currency in the hedged item was

below expectations leading to over-hedging.

25 april 2021 2¢ April 2020

{Em) (Em)

Change in dreountad spot value of outstanding hedging Instruments since meepbon of e hedge nds {3561
Change in volue of hedged item used to determine hedge ineffectiverass 1281 1599]

106

ted on Steinbers 100% Reuycied and Garbon Cop

i

i thrae

FRASERS GROUP

25 Aprid 2091 26 Aprid 20
) ttm)
Chonge Change Change
lethale  inthefair ThTR IR g pg)
vakwolthe  valuwel NI valuy ot
cumaney  the hwdged _.:_..u the hedged
Torward Hem Hom
S Dallars purchoses - GBR 148} 1481
us Dollors purchases - EUR Pal it 67 &7
Euru sabes n 31 98 g%

At 25 April 2021 £242.4m of forward sales contracts and £607.0m of purchase contracts qualified
for hedge aceounting and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
recognised in other comprehensive income.

At 25 April 2021, £210.5m hedged purchase contracts had a maturity of greater than 12 months (FY20°
£ni} of purchase contracts) ang £242.4m of hedged sales had a maturity of greater than 12 months
{FY20: £242.4m of sales contracts|.

The movements through the Hedging reserve are:

Total
USD/GER  EUR/GER  ALD/GEP  uspgup [oi0iMadse Deferred Hedging
Hevamant Tax
Radsryn
A3 AT 34 APRIL 2019 349 L] 0.3 1.1 543 4} 447
Recogmsed %4 - O LT LY
fectivanass oz . 02 01
Reclossihed In salas - (14} o3 - na - L3/
Reclassihed i inventary / eost of soles - {254 137 4) {304)
Detered fax - - EL} LE
AS AT 26 APRIL 2030 - 164 . AL ma 54} o
Recogmised 149§ 31 n o4 - 04
Rerlassified in soles 1281 - - (78] - {v.8]
Reclassihed ninventary / east of sales - nrn nr (m1
Deferrad Tax - - g 1.0
AS AT IS APRIL 2031 [[E}] mne - a2 143 12.8) ns
(i} The sterling principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option
contracts and contracted rates were as follows:
% April 2021 16 April 2024
{Em) lem)
1S Dullar purchases 13
Controcted 13t8s USD/ EUR Rkl
Euro soles 1363 A}
Cantructed rates LUR / GBP 093 QY% -109
Eura puschuses 20

Cuntracted rates ELR / GHP
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The lass on fair value of the written options and swaps of £4.6m has been

income (FY20: gain £21.3m).

iy

(3

included within finance
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At 25 April 2025, Enil of unhedged purchase contracts had a maturity at inception of greater than 12
months {FY20: £nil purchase contracts) and £335.4m of unhedged sales had a maturity at inception
of greater than 12 menths {FY2C: £240.0m of sales contracts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury management activities, which incorporates the risk
management strategy for areas that are not rzliable enough in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting, This includes acquisitions, disposals of overseas subsidiaries, related waorking
capital requirements, dividends and lean repayments from overseas subsidiaries and purchase and
sale of averseas property, Written options carry additional risk as the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The options invelve the Group receiving a premium on inception in exchange for
accepting thot risk and the cutcome is that the bank may require the Group to sell Euras. However,
the Group js sctisfied that the use of options ¢s a Treasury management tool is appropriate.

In FY21 there are nil short term swaps at period end. FY20 value excludes short term swaps of USD/
GBP of USD 190.0m and EUR/GBP of EUR 75.C and EUR/USD of EUR 80.0m which were required for
cash management purposes only.

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
iliustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Eiro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,

assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing
the fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Incoma Equity

25 april 28 Aprii 28 Aprl 286 Aprl

w 010 mH ELEL]

{Lm) (Em) Ew) (Lm)

Interest rate ncrease af 4 5% |30t 141 138} 141
Inkerest rate decrease af O 3% ) a0 a1 30 41

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of price risk in relation to long term investments held by
the Group:

25 April 20211

Equity

ttw

Share price mcrease of 109, 8
Share price decrease of 10% (258

e. Liguidity Ri

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of
the Group’s non derivative lia es and foreign currency derivative financial instruments:

. " - - L 1 1o 2 yeors s OverS Tatal
exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit effect of any Laesthen H“ - _..onnia " _...n““ .n.“_
relevant derivatives which are not in a designeted cash flow hedge. The impact on US Dollar and pom =
Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity. v -
Pesitive figures represent an increase in profit or equity: Bank leons nd overdralts X 7059 - - 1058
Bank koons ond overdiafts mterest - g9 - - s
Ineoma Stetement Eaity Trude and other payobles 6463 - - - (713}
25 April 26 April 2% Aprli 26 Aprik
103 010 1031 3030 IFRS 16 Lease lia 1966 w7 1968 6709 14710
{Em) ttm) it [ R FINANCIAL
Sterling steengthens by 0% Cash llaws (3ue 5) (166 9) (80 8| - {1,244.0)
U5 Daliar at e 17 4| 132 Cash outllows 3R91 gy Bi% - 12695
Eura 34 151 s n ) ass 160.5 "7 [~['E ] 25648
Stathng wenkens by t0% 2030
Us Dollar T (340} M3 (16 4] NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Euro ) (508 N3 N34l (45 4] Book loons ond overdiafts - 900 0 - - 900.0
PP - Bank leans and gresdeafts interest - 132 - - "2
Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis Trade ord ather paysbles 025 - - - s018
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 0.5% {FRS 16 Laasa lobltes 167 w2, 1982 2571 7041
.ncrease or decrease in interest rates, assuming ali other variables were unchanged.
h ysis has b d usi he foliowi X Cash nliaws (1185 %) (462 8) - - {16493}
L] :
e analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions: P p— P - - P
+  For flocting rate assets and liabilities, the a nount of asset or liability outstanding at the balance s 10073 1902 [La] 223404

sheet date is assumed to have been outstanding for the whole year. .

+  Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried ot amortised cost are not subject to interest rate
risk for the purpose of this analysis.

Q7

“Excludes cantingent cash Haws

d Garbon Captarad thaouah the Woodbssd Trost neipmg to create new Brtish wooudfand across the UK
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Capital Management

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity halders of the
parent company, comprising issued share capital
fiess treasury shares), share premium, retained
earnings and cash and borrewings.

It is the Group's policy to maintain a strong
capital base so as to mainkain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain the
development of the business.

in respect of equity, the Board has decided thot,
in order to maximise flexibility in the near term
with regards to a number of inorganic growth
opportunities under review, not to return any
cash by way of a final dividend at this time.

The Board is committed to keeping this palicy
under review and to looking to evaluate
methads of returning cash to sharehalders when
appropriate.

The objective of the Share Scheme is to

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

encourage employee share awnership and to link
employee’s remuneration to the performance of
the Company. It is not designed as a means of
managing capital.

in respect of cash and borrowings, the Baard
regularly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported EBITDA {Pre-1FRS 16), the working
capital requirermnents ond forecasted cash flows,
however no minimum or maximum ratios are set.
The ratio for net debt to Reported EBITDA (pre
IFRS 16} is 0.5 (FY20: £.7). The obiective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 (FY20: 3.6},

Based on this analysis, the Board determines
the appropriate return to equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient capitaj is retained within the
Group to meet its strategic objectives, inciuding
but not limited to, acguisition oppartun

These capital management policies have
remained unchanged from the prior year.

52 waeks sndsd 52 wanks anded

25 Apeil 1021 26 April 2020

(Ensy lem)

Trads payables W3 026
Arnounts owed (G reldted undedakengs 26 44
Other toxes meluding social secunty gasts 762 176
Dther payobles 20 105 %
Accruals 2452 14
4461 025

Included within other payables are amounts outstanding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of

£28.Bm [FY20: £40.6m).

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their

fair value.,
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31.  ACQUISITIONS

i. On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired
the trade ond assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed
to be the fair value of the consideration.

The acquisition complements the Graup's i,

existing gym and fitness club portfolio and is
consistent with the Group's elevation strategy.
Gaodwill represents the premium associcted
with advantageous site focations, potential
growth opportunities offered by econamies
of scale, and the assembled workforce. The
fair value adjustment to property, plant

and equipment relates to management's
assessment of the price that would be

paid for the acquired assets in an orderly

transaction between market participants
at the acquisition date. The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease
liability has been recognised on acyuisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited, the
entire share capital of GRMNT Limited, and
the trade and assets of 18 Montrose (51%
owned} for consideration of £2.7m. These
acquisitions will provide increased product
afferings in the ‘Premium Lifestyle’ division.
The fair vaiue adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relates to the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The asset and liability values at acquisition are detciled below. We have reviewed the fair value of
the assets and liahilities acquired. The following table summarises the fair values of

consideration paid:

DW Sperts Othar

Em} l£m)

Cash convideration Ao 27
DW Sperts Gthar

Scok Valus suun“_uﬂu Falr Valus  eek Vohee .-unrchu.._.. Faic Valua

iEm) iEm| Em) {Lm) tm} [Em}

Property, plant and equipment e 1421 230 " 15 18

Intangible Tssts 29 (291 - - -

Inventones 31 ny 40 52 ar . X

Cuosh aad cash aguivalents - 03 (2]

Borrdwings - 04y - {14l

Wovkrng cotet Q3 . 03 (08 lo.a)

Lanse hability - - 2 18]

Gondwll 37 13 i3 23

Bargon purchuse - - 31 i3]

Non-e interests . o 119

Net emssets acguired 74 {40 4) o 44 21

The bargain purchase of £3.1m from the Other acquisitions has been recognised within cost of sales
withtn the period. The Goedwill arising on all acquisitions of £6.0m hos been impaired to £nil as at
period end with the impairment being recognised in Exceptionat [tems, see note 6.

M RTULY
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Since the date of control, the following amour ts have been included within the Group's Financial
Statements for the period:

Acquisitions DW Sports Other Total

(Em) IEm) Em
Revenua 29 is 16 4
Operatmg {Losslfroht nsa 03 49
{KQUSI/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 115.2) 01 My

Haod the acquisitions been included from the s:art of the period the following amounts would have
been included within the Group's Financial Stctements for the period:

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments of £87.Im as at 25 April 2021 (26 April 2020: £31.8m) refating to
warehouse development.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS .

The Group has taken cdvantage of the exemptions contained within [AS 24 - "Related Party
Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group companies as these have
been eliminated on consoclidation.

The Group entered inte the following moteriol transactions with related parties:

Acquishtions DW Sperts Othar Tatal
1Lmy lim) {Em) 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Ravanue § 160 a3 243
Operating loss 47 02 [149) Trade Teade
. Rsintisnship Soles  Purchates  andether  andether
LOSS BEFORKTAX (142 a9 i recabvobles  payables
. . . £ £ £ £
There were no contingent tiabilities acquired as ¢ result of the above transaction. (Em] {Em) 1Em) l£m)
RELATED PARTY
“ Four Holdings} Limitad & subsidionas ! Assotiate 22 a1 5 o
32, CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
- Mash Holdings Lirited - - vz -
company
52 wanke endad 82 whalis endud
28 agril 2021 26 ApHi 2020 Mika Ashisy Pic Diractar 13 . - .
£
fiml el N M Design Londan Limited Connected R o1 - B
Prolt before taxatign a5 1435 parsons
Nat finance costélincamet , 72 e MM Brap Consullaney Limited Connected : 25 X a5
Nut mvestmant fincomeleast (9401 ) prarschs
Share of losses of associatad undertukings - L) Newtastle United Football Club Linuted & St Jarnes Holdings Limuted(3} Co umr.ﬂ.”.“ az RE] ut
Farr value gain on srep acquisiion . 120 4)
QPERATING LOSSUPROFFT ; PP e Rungers Retail Lirited Associate - - - o
Daprecintion ef property, plont and equigmant 985 3810
Degracigtion on investment propertias L 33 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Gern on disposal and moditicaon/remensurement of leass lubiltias 2z sn .
Amortisotien of intong bl assets 71 145 Trode Trade
i
Impaitnent of tanglble an ngible assets and investmant properhes 1261 150 Relotlonship Sales Furchases Iln...“.“w_ﬂ-- nv-..““—r_ﬂ--
Praht an disposal af praperty, ot and egquipment 97 (54.2) ) (tm lem &l
Srcilt an disposal af i ossats 75 RELATED PARTY
San on bargoun purchase BY Four {Holdings| Limitad § subsidianes Associate 2 s 8 24
SPERATING CASH INFLOW REFORE ® CAPITAL 525 s154
Forent
Increase) / dacrease in racawables 136 &1 s Mash Holdings Limited cempany - ) 02
Secrease / incrense 593 208 e Aabiy - o Dt . i
Inereas: poyabiles 549 &8
Increase / (decraose] in provisions 254 ms 1 Nawcostla United Footbol Club Limited & St tomes Holdings Limitzd nuw.._“”nm a? 20 o1 20
SASH INFLOWS PROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . ma 4182
Rongers Retall Lirited Associate - - - gl
1 The outstandiog balance with Fous (Hoidings] Limited ratiscts tha funding alated to Agent Pravotateur Monagement cansider that the underying
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results of Four [Holdngs] Limited support: ) Limited are not material on
the brsis of net assets and profit before tax, subsequentry dotared disclosures Rave not bedn presented under IFRS 12

{21 Use of the Campnny jet and helcapies ore charger ot commercial rates

{3 The sules relute 1o inventory ond puichases includs the «rversal of the FY20 advartising charge
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An agreement has heen entered inta with
Double Take Limited, o campa ny owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashiey's daughter, is a director. Under

the agreernent, Double Take Limited licenses
the Group the exciusive rights to the cosmetic
brand SPORT Fx. During the period q review
has been undertaken and no royalties or other
fees are expacted to be payable to [auble Take
Limited for these rights until at leqst Septernber
2021, the fee arangement will cantinue to be
reviewed on an ongaing basis, no provision s
required in the financia) stotements. it shoyld
be noted that the Group {rather than Doyble
Take Limited) owns the rights to SPORT FX for
clothing, footwear gng sparts equipment,

N M Design Longon Limited o company in
which Nicola Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is a director, perfarm design wark for the Groyp
in relation to some of the Group’s sites,

A provision was made in FY20 for £2.0m
Poyable to Newcastle United Football Club, this
Was reversed in Fy29,

The trade and other receivobles botance with
Four (Holdings) Limited includes an unsecured
lean balance of £60.0m {gross of amounts

Shura Capitol

Share Prermurn

Other Raservas

Reteined aarmings

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

recognised in respect of oss allowance)

which attracts interest at g fate of 3% within
current assets. This has been accounted for

ot amortised cast in accordance with IFRS 9.
The corrying value hgs been determined by
assessing the recoverobility of the receivable
balance, discounted at an appropriate market
rote of interest. £4.7m was fecognised in the
vear in respect of doubtfy) debts, Further
disclosure can be found in note 22,

The sales amount in relation to Four (Holdings)
Limited relates to the interest chorge on the
loan end the purchases refate to the purchase
of clething products.

At the period end the Group does not have
significant influence over but holds greater than
20% of the voling rights of Studio Retqil Group
pic and Mutberry Group ple. Studio Retail Group
plc have disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related porty within their most recent
Financial Statements. Transoctions between
Studia Retail Group plc and the Group related
to normal commercial trading arrangernents
and are not considered material to the resufts
of the Group. The lotest equity smounts and
results are shown below:

MubeityGronprle _studio Rutuilroup pic

Period anded 27 Marh Period shdud 36 Morch
100 201

The Group does not consider it has the pawer to participate in the financia| and operating policy
decisions of the entities and so management do not consider the Group to be ghle to exert
significont influence over these entities as per [AS 28 investments in Associates and Jaint Ventures

aid 1AS 24 Reloted Party Disclosures,
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3 Aprit 3020 26 Al 2020

[Em)

Shore-scheme pavirents
ithar paymerity - 4
TOTAL

Key management personnel are considerad to It the cuerent year £2.5m has been gecrued
be the directors and members of management based on 25% of the value created on bwa
who play a key part in the long term strategy Properties where the gain has crystallised
and cperations of the Group. through contract axchange or completion
L. of sale (FY20 - pril rovided and £nii paid,
MM Prap Consultancy Limi ted a company MM Prop Oo:mc_»nhm_\ Limited wos lost paid
.oésmn_ and controlied by Michaef Murray, who in relation to FY19), This s payable to MM

3 © member of key managerment personnef Prop Consultaney Limited and agreed by the
s per IAS 24, continues to provide properny independent Nori-Executive Directors,
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultoncy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and hegotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the Worid for
both our larger format stores and our combined
retail and gym units byt jt olso pravides advice
to the Company's in-bouse property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World.

During the period the Group entered into an
agreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, a
company swned and controlled by Michae|
Murray in refation to eievotion strotegy services,
MPM Elevotion Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services [Fy20: Enil).

In the year g)) Braperties are assessed gnd
those that are considerad by the Group's
independent nan-executive directors to have
completed development and be eligible for
review at the year-end ara assassed and if
required valued by on independent vafuer
who canfirms the value created by MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, The Group's independent
nen~executive directors then review and agree
the value created and have full discretion to
approve o payment to MM vqotdo:mc_nosg
Limited of up to 25% of the value created.
There is a current Pipeline of properties that
may be eligible to be assessed both posttively
and negatively by the Groyp's Nom-executive
directors in future years.

1004 ther
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35. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley through
his 100% shareholding in Mash Beta Limited cnd
Mash Holdings Limited, which own 303,507.460
{58.44% of the issued ordinary share capitel

of the Company) and 26,492,540 {5.10% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company]
ordinary shares respectively at the period

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the smaltest

ond largest company to consalidate these
accounts. MASH Holdings Limited is registerec in
England and Wales and a copy of their financ al
statements can be obtained from Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced o share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares cequired under the
programme to be no greater than £66m and tie
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value o
10p each. The purpose of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme.

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 2%
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were ne greater than E60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchosed were 10m
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpese of the programme was to

reduce the share capital of the Company. In total

to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
considerction of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

m

Printed on Stanbeis 1002, Recycled and Carbon Cap urad through the Woodland fr

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEO role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray

wilt assume the role of CEO on 1 May 2022.

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assurnption Michoel
Murray will assume the CEQ role. Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
tihe business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brend partrers,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021,

The Board consider it appropriote that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

5hould Michael Murray assume the CEQ role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEQ role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.
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37. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Parc Indigtnel, Avenue Ernest,

Cos e sa Solwsy 29 1480 Samtes, Belgum 405461077 00
NAME EGISTERTD OFFICE COMPANY  PERCENTAGE OF I35UED SHANE Cirp Citveny Brands tumited Shursbraak 11690670 kY
ADORESS MUMBER CAPITAL HELD
Community Bug Limded ' Sturebrook 6260240 100
18 Montrose Retod Limied Shuabrook” N577636 EL]
Crwrnitt Clothing Limited Sherebrogk 4184750 100
Fourth Floor Torento Square ;
5 Paintz Limited {in hqwdstion] Toranta Street Laads LS1 2Hd on 6350214 w0 Martin House, 184 Ingram Street,
23 April 2020 Cruise Clothing tuned lomaa Seatlonet 01100 Seazent o
Activater Brands Lmited Shireirook * 5344658 00 €4 Puerto Veneai, local 64,
- Canline Investrments 51 Teawv Jardines Reates, 7, 50071 88H415169 100
Athvator Products Limited . Shirsbrok: 4204631 100 Zaragqora, Spain
Cogency Glabal tnc 850 Naw Daved Geallrey & ASsatralas UK Lirmead Shuebrock £70530 1080
Actwva Apporel New Corp Burton oo Sune 201 Daver 3270168 0o
- Delowore 19904; UISA Deagn Saurce Supply Limited Shuebraak’ 9616568 100
Alpha Developmants Stockport Ltd Shirebrack 12662564 100 Dink Digital Holdings Limited Shirebrook’ 23016 100
12th Fluor, Menara Synphany [hnk Digital wtec Shirebrogk” TI0IIGES 50
Ne 5, Jalun Samangat {Jalan £ L d Shirebraak 8203469 00
Pro Direct Frshing Limite: bk’
AP Brands Holdings Ltd rofessor Khoo Koy Kimt, 49214 0o
Seksyan 13, 46200 46200 | Golf 1P Limled Shirebraok’ 911088 100
Petaking Jaya, Selangor Derul Dweet Golf [P bimite o
Ehsan, Maloysia Dwect Golf Retail Lumvted Shirebrcol 58758689 100
c 1 Howse, Lord Street, Lacpeldstroat wr F9, 2800
Ballatrix Assoctates Limited Douglos. Hle of Man, M3 1RZ nerc 100 Cantity Intermnatioial Ny Matherem, Beio 435392270 00
Iste of Man
. Unit 19038 & 190%, Exchange
Chinchs Bouse, Lord Strest, ] fostchrnce Lomtted Tawer, 31 Wang & i oad, s wo
Bellatnix Ovarseas Limited Douglas, lsle of Man, M99 1R2, 8E27C 00 ostehance Livite Kewloon Bay, Kowlaw, 5
e of Man . Hang Kang
Clinch's House, Lord Street, First Floor Lo Chasse Chombers
Bellatnx Unhmited Douglas, Isle of Man, iM93 1RZ, meFec w0 Epoch Propefties Litntad St Helier JE2 4UE Jersey 753 L)
isle of Mart
Etad Services Limuted Shirebroak' 5146597 100
Blue Square Sales Limited Shirebrock! 1BOABY? ) =
B £vons Cycles Brands Limited Shirebrank 614915 100
The Corporatean Trust Company, =
Coiporatian Trust Center, 1209 Evans Cycles Limited Shirebicak 1522650 100
Bob's Stores USA LLC Oronge Street, Wilmington, New 639085 100
Castle County DE 19801, Evans Cycles Praparty Limied Shirebrack " 614309 00
Urited Stotes
Lverlost Australra Limitad Shirebrogk” 8103917 . 100
L 79,7800
Brands & Fashon NV . mucaam.n.m__ﬂw_“h w.m_.“_:.s 0477-995-412 98 Everlast 42 West 33th 5t 3rd
- - Everlnst Sparts [nternatonol ng, Corp Floor New York, Mew Yark, 10418, 132811380 100
Brands 001 Limited Shirabraok: 5347540 0o United States
Bronds Africo Lurated Shirebrook LLEC R A Corparation Service Campany
B0 State Street, Abany, .
Brands Holdings Lmited® Shurabrook 4CE7AS 00 Everlast Sparts Mtg Carn New York, 122207-2543, 131804772 00
United Stotes
Brands Haldings Sponsorship Limited Shirebronk 10375418 o
N - Corperation Servica Company
rands Inc Limited Shurabraok 3585719 oo Everiast World Soxng Heodquartars Corporat B0 Stute Street, Albony, New 131864773 0o
Brasher Lewure Limited Stuebrook” 999421 0o York. 123207-2543, Unireet Stoer :
BSL intarnctianat Limited Sturebrook ! 2800425 100 The Cotparahian Trust Company,
Corpoiathion Trust Center, 1209
io Central de Miheirgs no 121, Everlost Worldwide Ing Orange Street, Wilmingtan, New 13267276 . 100
) 4475-334, Frguasia de Milhanas, . Castle County DE 19601,
. \ A o
Gatico - Carmarcla de Arbigas de Desportos 5 A Cantaho.da Mara, Porto, 50375304 100 Linstad Stotes
Portugal
ki Exspotts Limited Shwebtoo 2715040 00
Carmpn Lisited Shrebrook " 539861/ 100
men L e Fervgae And Rlackburn Leted Shivalsraon 630594 100
- CC Putrto veneow, iocal 84, .
Cordmal Investments 51 Teav Jardines Reales, 7 50021 BBASAZTES w0 TG tAF roliings) Limited Shusbraok 13281983 190
Zarogor, Spuin G USA Trade Group Limited Shitabraool_ 13216390 10
Crrlton Shuttiecocks Limited Shirebrack: 280382 100 £/ Dt & Pheks Lig
Cntlton Sports Company Limned Shirebreak 467685 200 ) the Chancary 58 Sprng
Frgld & Frek {UK) Ltd in liquidation) Gardeos, Manchaster, Greqter 5622577 100
. C € Puertg Vangem, lacal 84, Monchester, M2 1EW,
Catrinono Investments 5.L Trav. Jardines Reates, 7. 50621 888547683 00 United Kingdom
Zaragara, Spam Fuetror Lurated Shurebraok 5034684 100

rinled on Steinbeis 100 Recycled and Carben Captuied theauah b Yiao shianvt aoruss the UK :
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Forever Medlo Lmited

Shrebrook! B245185 00 Internubional Brand Manugement Limited® Shirebrogk' ' 5142123 100
Foravar Sports Limited Shirebroak’ 948581 00 invashng Business Limited Shirgbroak' 178004 100
Frasers Group [Eurepean Hoklings) Limited Shirebrack 12903845 100 Jark Wibs [1P] Limited Shirebroak" 1725495 100
Frasers Group Financial Services Lusited Shirelrook 1INIEY 100 Juck Wills Property Limited Shirebroak" 725643 100
Frasers Group Loyoity Services Limited Shirebrook 13340837 100 Hauton House, DA Businuss
Jack Walls Retail firalond | Lunitard Pack, Whitestown, Tolloght, 456208 100
Frasshiald Limited Shirshrock " 6330785 100 Duksin, ireland, D24£922,
Gome AR Limited Basingstoke: Toldzas2 106 Jack Wills Reta Limiteu Shuebrook ' 11624810 100
Game Belong Limited Shirebronk: 12994477 100 James Lillywhites Limited Shirebraok'* LEETL) 100
Gome Digital Hatdings Li Basingstoks 7893832 100 Kangol Holdings Limited Shwebrack’ 1MTI38 100
Game Digital Lirmited Basingstoke' 9040213 1o Kango! Lirmtad Shirebiraok” 334393 180
Gama Dighal Solutlans Limited Batingstoka: 9476209 100 Kongat Trustaes Limited Shirebrook: 505517 00
Garma Esports and Events Limited Basngstoke © 9454730 100 Aok Kudan Burlding 6/F,
i 14- - - o1
Game Retan Limitad R ﬁnw:..mwwn_;‘ 7837246 100 Karnmaor internattonal Limited 114-77 Kudank te, Chiyodo-ku, DIG0-01-012128 35
Tokyo, W02-0073, Jepan
Game Spain Holdings Lemiled Bastngstoke * W0RAET0Z 100 Kommor Lumted Shrabrmk’ [ 00
Game Spain nvastmants Limived Bosingstoke* 16863881 00 Kensinglon Heolth Clubs Limited Shwrabrook’ 6021459 100
€/ Virgio 7 - §, Parcalas 12 - 13, '
Game Stores Ineng SLU Pazuelc de Alarcon, Madeid, BB12G9751 100 KoaGu 1P Linted Shwrebrool 2402087 9
Span La salla JUKI Limited Shrabrook™ 5737550 100
Gelert 1P Limited Shurebrook! 8576185 100 Lanesthit Livited Shirebrook ' B146743 00
Gelert Limited Shirehroak 8576204 100 ywhites Limited . Sturehrook ! 2905939 100
Unit 19038 & 1905, Exchonge Litesame Spartswear Limitad Shirebrook! 207867 100
: f Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road,
" 3 0
Giabut Apparel (HKT Limited Kewlgan Bery, Kowinon, 1aa0e2 00 Lansdale Australi Limited | Shurebraok” 7665885 100
Hang Kang
Lensdale Banng Limited Shirabrook™ 3512303 00
Galddigya Brands Linited Shhabrook™ 663617 100
Lensdale Sports Linwled Shirehrook! 4430781 100
€ C.Pusrta Veneaio, local B4,
Gotay Ivestments 5L Trav Jarcines Reales, 7. 50021 288543709 00 Lovall Sports Holdings] Limited Shirebraok” 96068595 100
Zaragoza. Spuin Lovell Sports Limited Shrrabrook" 4184358 100
Sraduate Clothing Limited Shirebraok 25038 il Lavetls 5 Limited Shirghrook 8907509 166
GRMNT Ltd Shirebrook" 1144039 100
T irebrag Masters Halrders Shirebroak” 4787118 100
Bert Haunstrakade 2, 10870N, S
GT-Lines BY Aemstardern. Netheriands 17117820 100 wellawn Lid ShirebrodK 5252997 100
The Carporalion Trust Company.
1 g 124, 1
Gul i@ Limitad Shirebeook BeIz47E 00 Covparatyen Trust Centen, 120
Gul Watarsports Luvsted Shirstrook’ 7589716 00 Mississiops Manufacturing LLE Qrungs Street, Wihmington, New 34703 00
> Castle County DE 19801,
PO Box BTSEX, 5th Floar Lesley Urnted Stutes
Heatans [N 11 Lenited Buldings, 61-65 Fauntan Street, NIO355%9 100 3
Beltust, Narthern lraland The Corporalion Trust Company,
Carporanon Trust Ceater, 1209
Haaton House. DA Business Mouniain Sports LG Orange Streat, Wilniagton, New 6386224 100
Heutons Stores Limirad Purk, Whitestown, Tallzght, 309525 100 Castle County DE 13801,
Dublw, Irelang, DFAEF2, Lnited Stotes
Heaton House, IDA Business The Carparatian Trust Company,
Heatons Unlimitad Cempany Pork, Whitestown, Taltaght, naz9 o Carparabicn Trust Canter, 1209
Dubilin, Ireland, D24ES32, Mauntain Sparts USA LLC Orangs Streat, Wilmington, New 24259 100
Cast & County DE 1980,
Heavah or Hell Limited Shrebrook 5899287 100 \deesd Seatiess
HK Sports & Golf Aktibolag . Eskicistarpsvogen 7,264 95, 556510-8189 100 Muddylon (P Limitet Shirebrook! 10248764 Wo
Bostad, Swedan
Muddyfox Limited Shirebraek" 418350 W00
Heaton House, iRA Business
HOF Wreland Steras Limitad Park, Whitestown, Talloght, 626384 oo Newvied IP Linited Shirabrook™ 6836278 100
Gulzhn, drelond, D24E932 .
o Feor Brand Limited Shirabrgak! 5568043 100
Hat Tuna IP Lamilad Shirebrook £B36792 100
Na Fear Inlernationn| Lmited Shirebrook® 5532482 100
House of Froser Bronds Lirmited Shirgbrook * 10687367 100
Na Fear USA Limited Shirabraak” TH2470 b
Wouse of Froser Limitad - Shirebrock: 0686651 100
OKE-NI Lirmited Shirebrack” 11635034 100
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Olympus Ventures Lirmited Shirebrook! 3945752 100 Sth Floor, Lesiey Buildings,
0! {Rallymenal Limited 61-65 Fountam Strest, Belfast, NIBS383% 100
P W P Sportbase Limted Shirebrack 1923891 - 0o Northarh Irsland, BT1 SEX
Paddle Spart Linted Shirabrock” 6836690 100 S0 | Bangor Lumted: Shirsbroak 5529705 100
Acodemy House, 36 Poland SDI (Barraw in Furnasst Limied Shirebrook ! 7851504 o0
POD Collection Sennices Limited Street, Londun, WIF LU 9918495
United Kingdam SO (Beltast! Lamited Shirebiaok " 9672471 100
Propeller (UK. Limitad b Shiebrook’ rrozo? an 50 Berwick; Lemited Shirebrook! FF19957 00
Psycha Haldings Lrmited Shirebrook 03428665 0t S04 {Batws -p-Coed) Lrmsed Shirebrook 6EI667D 0yt
Psyehe Limitzd Shirabrook 0284401 o 301 {Berkenhead; Limitect Shuebraok 7849198 60
Puffa IP Lirmited Shirebaok 10910124 100 SDI [Bishinp Auckland) Limited Shirebroak Juddzae 00
Queansberry Boxing P Limited Shuebraok 7929363 160 SOI (Brancs 1] Limited Shirebrook 1795958 100
Queensberty Rules Limited Shirebroak 6723660 100 SOF (Brands 21 Limited Shuretrash * 12299584 100
€€ Puarts Vangcin, locol 84, S0 {Brands 3t Limited Shurebrook 52299567 100
Quentn ivestiments § 1 Trav. Jordines #eoles, 7, 50021 88542733 0o
Iorageze, Spow SG1HBeands 4] Limitad Shatebrook 12295515 0o
Quickreply Limited . Shirebrock' 5904737 100 SO | Brcigwotert Limited Shirgbroak ' 7852061 100
Reprublic IP Lrited Shirehrook’ 5635015 100 SDI [Brighton) Limmed Shirsbraok : 12579780 100
Republic.com Retail Linitad Shiabraak . azame97 00 SO (Broxtari} Larmited Sturebrook ! ST27209 ao
Rhapsedy Invastmants (Europe| SA 1 Cole arﬂ”.hﬂu‘wﬂ 21,608 on SD1(Brook EU) Lumited Shirelrook QIICBAD gn
500 {Braox ROW) Limitet Shwrebrook LERLT:il oo
Robinsons Cauntry Leisure Limited Shirebrook 1208723 we SO14Brock LK Limited Shieebraok 9340179 00
S&B Brands Lrmitedl Shwebrook * 5615585 100 1 (Rartand Lieted Shirsbroak 495632 100
SC Sparts (561 PTE LTD mmvcwwmmwﬂwnﬂmmxﬂw.wm_ 198203096N ‘oo SD1 (Carehif Flannefs) Limited Shireprook 10177358 il
Odpely 5D {Gordsf OS) Lmited Shirebrack 12578645 100
50 (Retall Co 10) Limited Shirebroak neEsIY 00 04 tearhe] Lmited Shurebrook [ 100
S0 {Retant Co 1] Limited Shirebrask 12296852 1o [ —— Shurebrook £33867F 100
58 iRata Co 12) Lot Shrebrosk 12238197 100 SDI IChushunt 2) Limated Shrabrook * n7IsHT 100
SO [Reta Ca 13) Limuted Shirebrook' 12298767 100 SDI [Cheshunt) Limted ] Shurebraok * 1716599 160
S0 [Ratail Co 4) Limited Shirabrack’ 535011 100 SDI [Ching] Onhine Limted Shirgbrook” . 100
SO (Ratail Ca 7) Liriled * Shirebraak 100 04 (Clacton] Limited Shurebrook! 1852078 100
S0 {Rutalt Co B] Lirmued Shirebrook MBB7ITE 100 stn Floor, Luskey Bulldings,
30 IRetait Ca 914 Shirabraok” Weas077 100 S feanwrret Limited O e e Ni6s3Is7 00
5D Equestnan L Shirebrook" 8657 100 S0 ol bt Lamated Shirebroak [ 100
S0 Qudaor |P Limited Shirebrack’ 8560252 oo SOI ICarby) Limted Shirshroak 10885672 o
S0 Outdoor Limited Shirehraak B560260 0o E—— ’ [E—— 1225783 6o
5DBzSA mnﬂ“ﬂ ﬁmﬂwﬁhﬁwwﬁ”ﬁ 0848 964 188 190 SOt (Cowantry] tiritadd Strebrack SRBDUE 100
SO1((Propea 1351 Limvted Srirebrook 221937 o 501 {Barington) Limitert Shirsbrack 1091543 00
SDI(SP Holdings) Linitett Shirabrook: 10882050 100 501 {berby) Limted Shiebraok a0 lea
SO (Aberdeen 2t Lrited Shrebrook? 1878971 120 501 Darry} Limeud 2.Mm_ﬂ”,ow_m,_mmm_,wwq.w.chu_.ﬂmﬂ 1653140 100
SDI (Abardzan| Lirmited Shwrebrook * 8512592 160 Narthern Ireland, BT1 SEX
SDI [Aberwystwyth] Limited Shirebrogk 2789996 00 S [Doncuster) Limier Shirebrook - SB886 10 g
SO fAcqes §) Limited Shirehragk 10162504 0o SN [Dundex] Lamited Shirsbrook * 5702004 o
SDI [Aintree] Limited Shiwebiradk 3352462 ) S04 tDunferrmiline] Limited Shirebrook 8483679 w00
S04 (Ashfore] Limiteu Shirabrook 1848460 00 SDEEost Ham} amited. Sturebrool 9610378 09
DI {Ashingtont Limited Shirebrook! 7849231 100 S04 (East Kilbndal Umited Shraraok 6456368 w00
S01§Ay] Limitec: Sturenrook” 5520067 100 SO {Edaiburght Lirmited Shrehrook 10100950 . 00
SO {Entieid) Lomted Shirbroak 100856208 100
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3D [Yoekl Lrmtad Shirebrook 1331391 0o SD1 Fitnass (Northiald) Limited Shuebrook 9019412 100
The Carporanion Jrust Company, SO1 Fitnass [Rugby) Limtac Shirehrack 9039408 100
Corporaten Trust Center, 1209
5012300 Colms LLC Orange Streat, Wiknmaton, New sa70D 100 SDI Fitnass (Sale] Livwted Shirebrook 2039405 100
' Castle Couitry DE "980, mﬁ.ﬂ SDI Fitnuass [Sohsburyl Lvuted Shirnbrock: 9039479 00
The Corporahion Teust Carapany, SDI Fitness 1 Limited Shirabirooh' 12371921 100
Corporation Trust Centar. 1203 S0t Fitness 10 Limited Shwehrook’ 12372368 w00
3DI1735 Calling LLC Qrange Street, Winmmkgion, Naw - EHI0012H lvle)
Custle County DE T980%, United DI Fitness 11 Lunded Shirabircoh' 12520382 100
. Statey O
S0 Fitness 12 Liomted Shwrabirook' 12821058 100
SDI Aviation Limitad® Shushrack ! 9533151 0o
SDI Fitness 13 Limited Shwretrock” 12820588 100
5D Fitnass (Birmingham)] & Shirebrook 9038582 100
S Fitness 14 Limilad Stratiinck' 12R20516 100
5B Fitness (Bury $1 Edmunds) Limited Shurehrock 9036349 100
SO Fitness 15 Limited Shiretiiack? 12622245 00
01 Fitivess {Cheltenhomt Limited Sinrelrook' 039540 wo
501 Fitness 16 Lomited Strabrask” 12822564 100
SDI Fitness {Colchaster) Limited Siurebrook: 5033011 woe
5DI Fitness 17 Lamited Shirurock” 12822692 100
5D Fitness {Croydant Limited Shurebrook” 9039243 100
SBI Fitness 18 Limired Shirubronk 12622794 100
SDI Fitaess {DW] Limited Slursbrook” 12298794 100
5D Fitnest 19 Lirmnted Shirebrogk™ 12821855 10
DI Fitness (Epsom) Limitad Shirebrook 3035043 00
501 Fitness 7 Limited Shirshiook™ 12372465 100
y Fourth Floor Taranto Square, 8
SDI Fitness {Farsham] Limited {in hguidution) Teronta swreet, Leeds, L51 M 9035057 Wk SO Fitness 20 Limded Shurabrook 12523728 100
D1 Ftness (Formbyl Limited Shurebrook 9039895 100 DI Fitruss 21 Lunited Shirebrook” 17873572 W00
551 Fatmess (Glasgow] Limited Shiebrook” 9063881 o SBI Fatness 22 Larated Shirelrook * 12H73810 00
5D Fatness {Guldiord] Lumited Shitebrook ' IBIN 100 SBI Fitness 73 tunied Shirebroak” 12823786 1oa
504 Fibnass fHovel Linutad Sturebrook 5019030 o0 SO Fitnass 24 Limited Shutebrook ! 12823966 00
SD# Fibiess {Huntwgdon| Limited Shirebrook! 3039881 00 SOI Fitiess 25 Luvitadd Shirgbrook 12623926 a
SO Fitrs {K Huati) Limited N Shirebrook' Elak-Te1 00 SDI Frtness 26 Lunitad Shirebirook: . 12625248 100
%01 Fitness {X Lynnj Limited shirebrook 039847 w0 501 Fitness 77 Limited Shirabroak'* 12830411 100
SO Fitness {ettening} Limnted Shirebraok J— 100 SDI Fitness 26 Limited Shirebrook 12025356 . 100
50 Fitness {Lincoin Cityl Limited Shirehrook 9039331 100 S0l Fitness 2 Limited Shirabironk' * 12825263 100
501 Fitness (Lincotn South Westh Limited Shirebrook 9039319 100 SPI Fitness 3 Limited Shirebroak - 12n2164 100
5D Fitnass [Liverpooi} Limmed . Shrebrook' 9039347 00 S04 Pitness 30 Lirruted Shirebroak' 1282571 1o
5Di Fitness [Manchestert Limited Shretinok $033335 1060 SDI Fitness 31 Linnted! Shirebrook” 12930743 100
5D Fitness [Milngovie} Limited Shirgbiook: Y0390 W00 SDi Fitness 32 Lirmiked Shirsbroak 12930838 100
SO Fitness [Newark) Limsted Shirabrach $03u6.80 00 SDI Fitness 33 tirmstend . Shirabroak! 12530626 100
/o Keonedys, 1011 Floar, River SDI Fitness 3d Limed Shirebrook' 1793082% 100
) Huuse, 48-60 High 3 .
S Fitnass [N 1] Lanted wm:n“n&“a;:ms:wu_.,m.hﬂwu_"_ NIB72034 100 SDI Fitness 35 Limted Shiebrook: 12930538 100
2BE, Yaited Kingdam SOI Fitness 36 Lumited Shirebrock!* 12930954 100
to xn::ma(wnmu._ﬂjom "x,.aﬂ‘ DI Fitness 37 Limitesd Shirebrack” 17930944 100
ousE, 46-60 High Street,
il NIAT
D+ Fibness 181 2] Limitad Balfost, Nohern lrelond, 871 672033 o0 Db Fitness 38 Lieed Shiabrosk’ 05036724 100
2BE, Unit2d Kingdlom -
504 Fitness 3% Limted Shirabrook' 09038768 00
/o Kennedys, 10U Floor, River .
. House, 4-60 High Street, SO Fenegs 4 Limded Shirebrook' 237274 o
DI Ftness NI 3 Limited R Beffast, Mertharn lnafand, 811 NI§72015 00
2BE, Uritact Kinadam 5DI Fitness 40 Lanitud Shuabrook” 05038881 wo
o/ Rennedys, 10t Floor, Fiver 501 Fitness 41 Limitad Shiretirock” 09038839 100
House, 48-60 High Street, ,
. R} ‘ I F A '
S0l Fitivass (NI d) Liritad Beitast, Northern freland, BT1 Ni672885 100 501 Fitness 42 Lirmitad Shiretirciok, 0913Hy43 100
2BE. Unitsd Kingdom SOI Fitness 43 Limited Shirsbrock " 9039023 00
/o Kanadys, 10th Flacr, River SO Fitrets 44 Lumted Shirebrook 09039343 00
Houise, 48-60 High Strast,
EDI Frtriess (N1 5) Limutecd Belksst, Northium lrsksncl, BT1 nIsT280e 00 SOI Fitness 45 Lirmitedt Shirebiock' Q9039481 “an

2BE, Unitad Kingdom

501 Fitness 46

mited Shirsbrock * 131030438 an

n7

Frinted on Ste nbets 100 Recycled and Carhon Caplured throuah the Woodinnd Trust. helping o creab: new Brtish woodland across the UK
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SO Fitness 47 Lirmited Shirebrook 3030364 0o
S0 Fitness 48 Limited Shirebroch. 13030107 w00
S[H Frtness 43 Lunited Shwebroak 13030473 oo
SO Fitness 5 Lirnited Shirebrack 12372193 ‘00
SBI Fitness 50 Limted Shirghrack 130IHTS 00
S Fitness & Limited Shurebraak 12372224 00
SDI Fitivots 7 muted Shirehroak 1237208
SDi Finess 4 Limited Shirebrogk 12372305 100
SDH Fitnass § Lumted Shirebraok ©372303 w040
SD1 Four Limited Shirebrook 71979 Lkl
The Corporation Trust Company,
Carporaten Trust Center, 1209
S Gt Card LT Drange Street, Wilmingtan, New S6773735 an
Costle County DE 19801,
United States
S0I GoM Lemited Shirebrook” S0B3512 e
The Carporation Trust Company,
Covporation Trust Canter, 1209
o Orange Streat, Wilmmgtan, New 6661201 0o
Castle County DE 19801,
United Stotes
501 Lestyle Lirmted Shirebiook © B2936H4 w0
Corperation Service Company,
SO Properties |USA] Inc. 2 Office Purk Court, Sute 103 533872 0o
Columbia
Van Konnenbuigweg 45,
SDI Propesty [Europe) BY 4K72FL Bergen op Zoam 69042594 0o
Netherloneds
51 Property [Evans Cycles) Limiled Shireliach V6619 00
S[M Property Lirmited” Shrebrook - 767451 100
The Corporation Trust Compony,
Corporation Trust Center. 1209
SO Property US Inc Orange Stvest, Wilmington, New 68700074 0o
Castle County GE 13601,
Unnad States
. SDI Property US Limited Shirsbrook ) 1322420 0o
SDI Retail Services Limited Sturebrook: H143303 w0
SH Sport tondan Limited Shirebrook 5846747 00
5D Sports ISC 2016) Ltd Shirebrook' 429750 wo
5DI Sports [Stowe] Limed Shirshrock: 1093722 e
The Corporation Trust Company,
Corparation Trust Caner, 1209
SDI Sports Group Amencas LLC Oronge Street, Whimington, New 2047353 wo
Cotiy Couwsty OF 9854
United States
The Corporatian Trust Company,
Corparntion Trust Center, 1209
SDIStoras LLG . Drange Street, Wilmington, New 1240332 100
Castle County BE 19803,
Urnted States
The Corporatian Trust Company,
* Corporation Irust Canter, 1209
SDIUSALLC Qrange Streat, Wilimington, New 4385155 100

Castle Counly DE 19803,
Untted States

18

lect on Steanbheis 100% Reoyeled

o Caply

e theonah the Waoalk

4y

The Corparetion Trust Comporty,
Corperation Trust Center, 1309

551 Ventures 41 € Dronge Street, Wilmington, New 2870023 100
Castie County DE 14801,
United S1ates
SOI Praperty |Bthurg) 8V Netherinns B7475807 100
551 com Ftness Parent Limited Shirgbroo! 9082454 w00
Pan Industael, Avenae Emest,
SOl A Salvoy 79 1280 Samtes, Balgum HI018.636 100
Sawan Strong Limited Sturebiook 756386 o
Shelicn A3 Limited Smirebrosk 10687408 100
SI4 5IG Logistics # Deglova sir 50 E‘Zw Riga 4020311076 €0
atvio
SIa Sgortland A Deginva sir 56 1¥-1-39 ”.w” 40003530561 %0
SIA Sportsdiract.com A Deglova st 50 :I.uw Rya 20103937873 %0
atvia
Ski and Duldas Worehouse Linited Sharehrook 291223 00
Skins 1P Limitad Shireliiaok 12168568 100
Slozengsr Cortton fHoldings) Lealed Shirahigok 10483054 wo
Slazengers Austrolia Limien Shurehiraok 921431 00
I::m:mm: Lunded Shirebrosh TIADIHY 0o
Srmuth & Brooks Limited Shirhragk 073720 wo
Sreuth And Brooks Group Limited Shireliroak 40793N Rls[s)
Strvith And Brooks Holdings Limited Shieabroak 4943573 100
SNG Spett Vertnebs GmbH Flugrlatzstrfie 30 4600, Wels 2267 m 100
Austnio
The Black Churely , 5t barys
ol Mandluctura refond Lmitea Glae, Dt D07 mAAX Iretomed &y923 100
Sofacom Bidro Lamted Shiretirock!t] 3341955 100
Fiaos 4 V &, Den Dungen,
. 100
SofacomBY 52/5HH, Nethenons TgaraG
Sotn cam | 1d Shurebroak 5222498 160
Sendico P Lirmitey Shirebrook 6546121 100
SGunsort Limitad Sturehrook : ALI98EH 100
FlugnlatzstraBe 30, 4600, wel
span Eybl & Sports Experts Logistikbetrisbs Grmb ugpiatzstrotie S8, b.::w_w_ TN G804 m 10
" 4600, Wl
Spor Eybl Holdig GmbH FluopltzstraBe 30, 4600, Wels BOOYS * 100
Austng
€35, It Flocr, ASEAN Buiiding,
90 Minzhi Avanue, Xinniu
Spartchract com China Pe Limitad Community, Minzhr Street, $14403005759875030 100
Longhua District, Shenzhen,
China
Parnu smnt 139¢ Kasklnna,
spartland Eestiz AS ol st 11918 10677712 50
Parmu mnt 13%c Kesklinna
sportiand Intemotional Group A S T 10993195 50
y 6 Eu Tong Sen Street, #11-09,
15 Diract o] Ple Ltd o - "
Spors Diract [Singapors] Pla L Ti Cantrel, Q59817 Swgupore 2020045422 51
Level 152, Bangunan Fuber
Soorts Direct A Retatl Scn 8ho Impseral Court, Talan Sultars [ «
wacts Direct Asia Retal s, 0250 Kuot Lumpur W P ¥
Mulaysio
Sports Durect Holdings Limited® Shirebrack 6464317 100

arthalrons fhe LK
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FRASERS GROUP

Sports Direct intoinotionu! Haldings Shualirack® 607701 100 Spastydusct com Vienna North GmbH Wals, Flugplatastbu 30 FNI044B6G 100
g .
Sports Direct Intemotionad Limitud Shirebroak WITSISY 00 S50 Sport Gmbk 1$50] Varaholzstt. “P,EBM w__ﬂ_.._..,.,. HRE 734 100
Luoval 15-2. Bengunan Fober -
pariol Caurt Jolon Sultan ! Sterling Resources {Hald) ok 4651701 100
Sports Direct MST Sdn Bhd srvend 52700 Kol Lutmedr 9251164 5
‘Malerytin riing Rusources Limited Shirelireol 1413254 00
Sports World international Limiled Shiralradk®™ 6531266 Martin House, 184 IGram Streat,
porl internatianal L Stirdngs [Argyle Street} Limitae Glasgaw. Scotland, G1IBN SCoBBI0B oo
. Vo Konljanburgwug 45, 4512 PL
Sparts World The Notherlonds B m.a..._ ap ..hcﬂ..,az._":....g_ar 34056291 104 Stroub Corporation Limitad Shirebrook 2003584 100
p Stedes Suecuss L - Shirbrookt NS 100
Sportseliract ficeland) aht . Bkogertingd 2,200, xnn”_ﬁmﬂw sa0NnTse . w Syccuys Lid =
e CC.Puarto Venegin, lacnl B4,
Unit 19038 & 1905, Exchangu Traav. Surdings Reabes, 7, 50021 BE85 42691 190
Towsr. 33 Wang Chiu Rond, 2orageza, Spain
Spartsdrect.com {Asla) Ltd Kawleon Buy, Kowlean, Hong 1216335, 100 T vae Ervat
Xog Swimmo Eugon SPRL Salvury 29 1480 Saintus, Betglum BTAS139GE 198
o330 G ol Crre Tobla Tenuvs Pro Ewrope L T Sooresa o
Sportsdirecteom (Shanghall L Tehanghon Mot Frua 7 FIONSMATKAEIASE 90
gl n_m_. .2.. H. 3777 Hrwond Hoges Pawoy, STE
anghai, Chine. Tha Anhgun Group Inc 5005 Las vages, Navada, USA 0734679-4 100
4F.-85-Y, No. 213, Chaolu Rd,, A9169-6014 :
Spoctsdirct.com {Tolwan) Limiled Xitun i, teichung n.ﬁ.“”” 82770619 95 The Flannels Graup Limited irabrogk!? 48510 e
an
Tha Trademork Licansing C Shurabroak® AdTIeI9 4]
Sportsdract.com Avstria Gt Flugplut zsteafle 10, 4600, Wels ooy ‘o i s
atrla Austria Total Estates Lunited Shirals ookt 4758214 100
Spartsdirectcom Belgium 5.4 wo._.“ﬂ. _u;_w_ﬂ.mw._u. ,,_, s mﬂﬂﬂ_ 16368 40 100 Tu Yeoull UK Limited Shirohrook” 106H0650 w00
UAB SDI {Gathrrino] LT . 135039876 51
wmikiaces Stylionou 248, Shep 7 0
Sportsdiract.cam Cyprus Limited U3 Tale, Paphos, Cyprus HE 230140 wo
UAB Sportiand LT W 135039836 51
Progun 1 - Nove Mesta, No Porta Lithunnla
Spartsdirect cormn Crach Rapublic sro, 107930, 100 00, C2uch Republic 24266933 100 v
Selmynisidu g 3, Vilniug,
Sportsdieet.com Fltnoas Lirhed Shirobroak® 9026577 100 UAR Sporlsdhntom. LiMiwonle, 304155613 51
Sporisdirett.com Fronca mshuu_“_u” awm:«.__.ﬂ”rzn.”_ ._“H f——— . Univarsal Cyclus Lunituct Shirshrool 1339667 100
— - USA Ben (P Lirniteet Shirehivok" L4FT9U Wwo
1051 Budopest, Karalyl Mikaly -
Sportadiract.com Hungary Kit \icu 12, Hungary 01-09-986824 100 USC I Limited Shiibrooikt 5936808 100
Usadd Tack of Shi g
Sportsdirect.com Immohillan GinbH Frugplatzstrafly 30, .Swri-_. 1085 p 100 sed Tockla Limite Mlrabirook! 7983154 100
5 Van Mildert [Lifgstyia] Limited Shirabrooke * B319959 100
Brawry Strest, Zone 3 Contral
spartsdiract.com Malta Limited Butiniss Dishrict Birkirkuta CAD cavre w0 Vinecomb investinents Holdings Lumitud Shirabrack 1e161918 w0
040 Wata Vinscomb Investmants Limitad Shirshrook™ 7206022 100
Spantsdleact caw QU Par _a... wam ,_H,mr___“._.p ey 10 “oodon Dolls Brand Lintert Shireltogh™ 5323305 100
s
[ Woreshap? Lirmitad wbronie: YBTOND 100
Sporisdiract com Polund $.82.00 Paraod,, Poland , 00-872, 452650 100 Henton House , IDA Business
warsaw Warmambon! * Park, Whitasrawn, Tallaght, 387014 100
in 24, tral
c> Marton Rose Fulbright, LYY, Dyblin2 and
Sponsdirect.com Pty Lid 485 mﬂ_._.a. w:..._ Fellouthe 403167 19 100 Watarinw Anghng Products Limnad Shiralrook'™ 696374 o
IC 3000, Austealiu
15 Atholl Crescutt, Edinburgh,
. West Coost Gopital (HOFCO) Uimited 5C43761 100
spontsdirect.com Ratall (Eurape) SA™ mn_,_ﬂm _usan:_mn_ﬁ haﬁ_:.wn, QH”, ASBBRIOAG 00 EM3 BHA
. 1 Othicm Park Court, Suite 103,
Sportsdirect.com Rutal| Limitad® Shirsbraok” 1408347 100 Weshminatar Monulacturing LLC N Cocmsie SC 29733 USA 44358 100
Centro Comerciod Punita Wldiow Limited Shirubroak A5nera 100
Venecia, Locel 84, Trovaesio de N
Sportsdirect.com S.L.U. Spain . I, Jowdings Raoles n* 1 SO071, B-B6567880 100 William Sykes. Limited Shirabrock® 123229 W
Zaroqoea, Spoin
World of Sernict internatlanal Limited Shirebrooki 1702485 wo
WVisoko /B, B1CS, Bratisiov:
Spottsdiact.com Slovakia s e. aoka 28, i 7240 458 00 Workd of Servica Limite Shirebroo 020729 100
Sportsdirect.com SLVN doo war 4, 1236 Trzln, Sloveri 1158157000 100 Yeomans Oulaor Limitad . Shiabrook™ 8086714 to0
o Swil UL 2arnicka 22, Robokowo,
Son com AG. um m_n.ﬁ u“_ﬂ. 331 882,991 100 Zopuroh SP1a o t2-073 Gk, Feirmd HS 0000453435 100
Unit A, Brook Park Eost, Shirsbrook, NG2G 8RY
"Diract sharaholdings hald by Frosers Group plc
._._O Unity House, Tellord Rood, Basingstaks, Hompshire, RG12 6Y)

ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured throuah the Woodland Trust, heiping to create new British woodiand across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

Frasers Group plc intends to provide a parental guarantee for the following United Kingdom
incorporated subsidiaries thus entitling them to exemption frem statutory audit under section 479A

of the Companies Act 2006.

SDI {Gainshorcughl Lirmited 06338907 301 {Streotham) Linvted » 10066235
SDI [Galashwels) Lumited 07857091 SOH {5troad) Lanited 07852251
DI (Glasgow Fort) Limited 09861504 31 {Sundurlund High Street) Limited 10107775
5DI [Glasgow Frasers) Limited 11531596 SDI {Sundekand) Lirted OA755347
501 [Glasgow Ingram Streat) Linuted 09975519 1122801
501 [Gloucester) Limuted 07852067 07088662
501{Greal Yormouthi Lirnited 732687 501 (Tallaght) Lirmted 10H5203
S01 (Honley} Limited n22801% S (Taunton Limited 07852171
SDI {Hastings) Limited DB625893 SO {Thurtesk) Limited 10089743
SDi {Haralord) Limited OFBERE42 SOl {Uxbridue 2} Limitad 09127316
S0 (Hotcol Limited 0BNTIE0 SOI{Uxhndge} Limited 10177278
S0l fHoh Heldngs} Limited - 10151592 401 {Waokehatd} L rmited 0848371
5D} {Hounslow] Limited 0eEea 501 {woisall) Limitecl 07652205
SDI {Hull} Lumite] 09638564 SDI {wottare) Linuted (06328505
SDI {Ipswsch) Limited 0978841 SDI{Weymonth) Limtat D6TE652
501 fsle OF Man) Limitecl 055245 501 {Widnes) Lunited DE5P8472
S0 K Lynn) Lmided 0013076 SDIiwigan) Limated - 12579287
5B {Kelghiey} Lunited 06240239 SDIfwishaw) Linuted DAH56365
50| iKendol) Lymiterd 06328918 SDBI {Wolverhampton) Limited 09788173
8D (Kenush Town) Limited 09501702 SDIiWythenshawa) Liruted 09659156
SDI {Kidlerminster) Limeed 09203731 SDI{Yark) Limited 133139
S0 (Kilmarnock) Limitad 02853433 SDIFour Lunited oMY
5B (Kingston} Lrmited 10915209 S0 Golf Limited 09083512
S04 (Karkcaldy) Lirmuted O7R52097 5D Properties [Wigan) Lirmitad 06816522
SO (Leeds) Lumnted 09293515 SDI Proparty Limited 02767493
SOt iLercester) Lates! 091271170 S04 Sport London Lunted 09848767
SO Lwarpacl) Limited 09888734 SDISports [East Harm) Limted 10259103
S0 (Lowestofts Limited OTRE2265 SDb Sports [Stoke) Limitad 0163777
SO {L sl Holdings) Limited 10181824 Stirlings [Argyle Straet) Lunited SC088108
501 {Luton) Lunited 09880625 Vinecoimnb investments Holehngs Limited 0161816
SO {Munchester Cheetham Hill] Livited 10100968 Wareshopl Limited 09870849
50) (Manchester Denton) Limited 91725 Wareshop] Limbted, 09870808
Alpha Developrents Stockport Limited 12652564 SDI{Propeo 75) Limikecl ) 11577256
SO {Steckport) Luntad 06372181 501 {Propce 119} Limited 12332862
SO (The House Yenm) Linied 123387

COMPANY HAME NUMBER HAHE COMPANY HUMBER
Direet Fishing Limited DE03469 SDI (Markel Rend) Linited 0789247
Hot Tuna P Limited 06836792 SDI {Middlasbrough) Limited 10081909
SD Equesttan ited DB&92780 50 (Nossou Street) Limwed N227964
SD Outdoor Limited 0B560260 5D {Neoth) Limted 07853548
SO {Aberdeen) Limited 08512592 SDI {New Cavendish Straet) Limited 06306917
SO (Aberwystwyth] Limited G789996 SDI {Newark) Linited 07853470
SOH (AIntres) Uimited 03352462 S {Newvcaost|e) Limeted 09127286
501 {Ashford) Limited 07348460 S {Newpart) Limlted use?NIE
SDI {Achungtan) Limited 07849231 SOt {Newguay) Limited 10089800
SD# lAyr) Limitec . 05528267 50| {Nawton Abbot} Limited 06B366EA
SOt (Bangor} Limited 05529105 50t {Northamplon) Limited 07852277
SOt (Bacrow In Furness) Limited 07851574 SDI (Northwich) Limited 05656295
50! {Baddgeiert) Lirmjted DAs77551 SD| (Nottinghom) Lirmted 00609
5Di (Belfast} Limited 09872471 5D (Nuneaton) Linited 07852249
SDI {Berwick) Limited 0739957 3D {Oswestry) Liniled 07852361
SDI {Betws-Y-Coad) Lnitad 06BIEED SDI Oxtord Street) Limitad 10046080
SDI (Bex|eyheath Limited 09788272 S (Passley) Limited 03933408
5D {Birkanhead) Limited D7849198 $D1 {Penzance} Limited © 07852297
D} (Bishop Aucklond) Linnted 03004246 SDI {Peterlse] Limited 07852401
5D (Bridgwater) Lintad 07857061 &DI {Plymnuth Flannels} Limitac 0912738}
SDI (Brixton) Limitex 09i2/300 501 (Plymouth} Lntted 03470668
SDI Burtan Limited 08495632 5D {Praston) Lanited 10515139
SD {Cardilf Flannels) timted 10177359 501 (Ramisgate] Limited 07852250
&0 (Carlista) Limited DIR51959 N SDI (Reoding) Limited 10472164
SDI (Chothom) Limited 06836679 SDI (Redear) Lumited 02121452
50 (Chashunt ) Limited 775717 501 [Rotle St Lnnitad 07852649
SDI (Cheshunt} Lirmtad 773599 SDI {Rom¥ara) Lumited W0OT547
DI {Clacton) Linted G7B52078 DI {Salisbury} Limtet! 007572
5D/ [Colchastar) Limited US632790 501 (Searbaraugh) Limiterd 06328463
SDI (Cork} Limlted nI563 SDI (Scuhthorpe) Lirmited 07852055
5D Darlington) Limited 10915193 DI {Sloughl Limited 07852417
DI (Datby} Limited 09310031 ] SDH (Satibull} Limuted CALI2EA7
501 {Derry) Limitad NI653340 501 (Sauthampton 2) Limited 03665889
5D! (Doncaster) Linited 09688670 SDI [Southamptond Liited DB512430
SDI {Dundee) Limted 09703004 501 [Sauthport) Limited 09888805 .
5Dl {Dunfermling) F.E_pwn 08483679 301 (3t Austell} Limited 07852284
SDI {East Hum) Limited Q983328 5D ISt Helens] Limited 7852281
3Dl {Enst Kilbride) Lumited Q6656168 5D (Statford) Lunited 0A568681
S0l {Edinburghy Limited 10100590 SO {Stoke t ongton) Limited O78B53R17
501 .m::mEf_. Limitad . 10086204 . SO {Stoke Z,mcs:mE:. Limited 07857207
5D {Futham) Limited 07852037 SDI {Steabane) Limitecl 0R890243
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FRASERS GROUP PLC
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

at 25 April 2021
Netes A ot s ot
25 Aprit 2021 26 April 2020
fCmd 1em)
FLOLD ASTEYL j
tnvestments . 2 14949 12358
CURRENT ASSETS
Deblars 4 167 % 868
Cosh gt bank ond in hand 1%1 3336
me 4104
Creditars' amaunts folling due wikhin one year 5 (602 0] 1501 5
HET CURRENT LIARILITIES 100 4811}
NET ASSETS 10649 54T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Colied up share capital H 441 641
Shore prennm ' 8743 8743
Treasury share rasarve (295 7} (2957
Permanant contribution to copital a1 o1
Capital rademption reserve a0 80
Own shore reserve 166 71 1670}
Share based PAYiTnt Fesitm oY
Proht and Loss account 2400 70
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 10648 747

Frasers Group plc reported a profit after taxation for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 of £231.8m

(FY20: a loss of £47.7m).

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statermnents,

The Financiol Statemerits were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its

behelf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF O__._>zmmm

IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks endaed 25 April 2021

Colled  Shoe  Towny  Benn  Cophal o S pp,
up shars  premivn share contnie mdemption rersrve  payment ELomn Total
coptel  uscoual  reseve  capital  rsare T, hccaunt
m) Ikm) tEm) {Em) (Emj m} iLm} Em} (Em}
AS AT 2% APRIL 201% P 543 {27 a1 0 (o2 - 2413 [T
ILass] lar the financial period . 7 1473)
Farr velue adjustment i respect of long- i
term fnancial nssets - racogmised 227 (123
Share purchosa i . 02 . WL
Rewarsal of prior year tor walugtian of
share buyback contractual ohhgatian - o - - ne
A3 AT 36 APRIL 2030 w1 el e 01 50 162) - 47
Froft far the hnancial periud - - a1
e volus adjustinsnt i respect of long - . . 1 na
tesim Antancial t4sats - ecogrsed
Shara scherma - u3 0 . u
AS AT 13 APRIL 2021 s wia e 01 w0 s3] ' oo 1osiy

The share premium account is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the issue of
shares. The permanent contribution to capital relates to o cash payment of £50,000 to the Company
on 8 February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution. The capital redemption reserve arase on
the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007.
The own shares and treasury reserves represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc purchased in
the market and held by Frasers Group ple Employee Benefit Trust to sctisfy options under the Group's
Share Scheme. For further information see note 25 in the Group Notes to the finoncial staterments.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies

Frasers Group plc (the "Company”} {(Company
number: 06035106} is a company incorporated
and domiciled in the United Kingdom, its shares
are listed on the London Stock Exchange, The
registered office is Unit A, Brook Park East,
Shirebrook, NGZ0 8RY.

These financial statements have been prepared
in compliance with FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK

and Republic of Ireland” [*FRS 102"} and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial staternents are prepared in
sterling, which is the functional currency of the
Company. Monetary amounts in these financial
statements are rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

These accounts have been prepared in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting stondards. A summary of the
material accounting policies adopted are
described below.

Bosis Of Accounting

The accounts have been prepored under the
historical cast basis except for the modification
to a fair value basis for certain financial
instruments as specified in the accounting
policies below.

These financial statements for the period ended
25 April 2021 are prepared in accordance with
FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of treland.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006, o profit and loss account of the
Company is not presented. The Company's
profit after taxation for the 52-week period
ended 25 April 2021 was £231.8m (FY20: lass of
£47.7m),

122
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As permitted by FRS 102 the Compony has
taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions
available under that standard in relation to
financial instruments, presentation of ¢ cash
flow statement, share-based payments, the
aggregate remuneration of key management
personnel and related party transoctions with
other wholly-owned members of the Group.
Where required, equivalent disclosures are given
in the Group accounts of Frasers Group nlc.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of Frasers Group plc is
that of an investment holding company.

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less provision for
impairment. In the Group accounts associates
are accounted for under the equity method

by which the Group's investment is initially
recorded ot cost and subsequently adjusted

to reflect the Group's share of the net assets
of the associate. As this is not permitted under
FRS 102 associotes are accounted for at cost
less provision for impairment. An assessment is
made at each reporting date of whether there
are indications that the Company's investrent
in subsidiaries or associates may be impaired or
that an impairment loss previously recognised
has fully or partially reversed. If such indicotions
exist, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of the investment and their
recoverable omounts, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value-in-use, are
recognised as impairment losses. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company has followed the requirements
of IFRS @ for listed investments, as permitted
by FRS 102 Section 12. The Company has made
the irrevecable election available under IFRS

9 to account for the investments at fair value
through the other comprehensive income
[FvaC),

i Crende neve Bt v

Fair value movements through other
comprehensive income

Elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to account for movements
in selected instruments through other
comprehensive income. The Company has
elected to aeeeunt for movements in its listed
investmenits through other comprehensive
income. These investments are not subject

to impairment and gains and losses are not
recycled to the profit and loss account on the
disposal of listed investments. Dividend income
is recognised in the profit and loss account.

This treatment does not apgly to investments

in the Company’s subsidiaries and associates

where movements are recognised in the profit
and loss account and investments are subject
to impairment.

Associates

An entity is treated as an associated
undertaking where the Company exercises
significant influence in that it has the power to
participate in the operating and financial policy
decisions.

Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than investments

and derivatives, are initially measured at
transaction price {including transaction
costs) and subsequently held ot cast, less
any impairment. Provision for impairment is
established when there is objective evidence
that the Company not be able to collect
amounts due according to the eriginal terms
of the receivable, The Company applies a
consistent accounting policy os the Group in
terms of impairment of financial ossets ond the
recognition of expected credit losses.

Financial Liahilities

Financiaf liabilities are classified according

to the substance of the finoncial instrument's
controctual obligations, rather than the
financial instrument's legal form. Financial
liabilities, excluding convertible debt and
derivotives, are initiolly measured at transaction
price [after deducting transaction costs) and
subsequently heid at amortised cost.

wl across the LIK

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain share
based awards. The Group has 'de facto’ control
over the special purpose entity.

The cast of shares acquired by the Sports Direct
Employes Benefit Trust is recognised within
‘Own share reserve’ in equity.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is provided for on a full provision
basis on all timing differences, which have
arisen but not reversed at the balance sheet
date. A defarred tox asset is not recognised to
the extent that the transfer of economic benefit
in the future is more unlikely than not.

Deferred tax is calculoted on a non-discounted
basis at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the periods in which timing differences
reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
dote,

Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the Company's functional currency
by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets

s denominated in foretgn currencies
are retransioted at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences

are taken to the profit and loss account.
Mon-monetary items thot are measured in
terms of histericai cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Dividends

Dividends on the Compony's ordinary shores
are recognised as a liability in the Company's
Financial Statements, and as a deduction from
equity, in the period in which the dividends

are declared. Where such fingl dividends

are proposed subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders, the final dividends are
only declared once shareholder opproval has
been obtained.




FRASERS GROUF PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company,
with the exception of those accounted for via
merger relief available under Section 612 of

the Companies Act 2006, are recorded at the
proceeds recaived, net of any direct issue costs.

Income Fram Group Undertakings

Income from Group undertakings is recognised
when qualifying consideration is received from
the Group undertaking.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 and has
therefore not disclosed transactions or balances
with wholly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group. 5ee note 34 of the Group Financial
Statements for further details of related party
transactions,

Shore-Based Payments

The Company issues from time to time
equity-settled share-bosed payments to certain
Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. These are measured at fair vajuz
at the dote of grant, which is expensed to profit
and toss on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with the corresponding credit gaing to
equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments ta
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Company revises its estimotes of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and loss
with an adjustment to equity.

Fair value is calculated using an adjusted form of
the Black-Scholes model which includes a Monte
Carlo simulation model that takes into account
the exercise price, the tarm of the option, the
impact of dilution (where material, the share

123
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price ot grant date and the expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected
dividend vield, and the risk-free interest rate

for the term of the scheme, The expected staff
numbers used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioural considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Company measures the services
received and the liabitity incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Company remeasures the fair value of the
liability at the end of each reparting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the profit ond loss
as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance
sheet in relation to the expected nationat
insurance contributions for the shares.

Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

in the application of the Company's accounting
policies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent fram other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and cther factors that
are considered to be relevant, Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

to dceounting estimates ere recognised in the
peried in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
are outlined below.

Control and Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

" The Company holds greater than 20% of the

voting rights of Studio Retail Group plc and
Mulberry Group ple. The Company exercises the
same judgements as per Note 2 of the Group
financial statements on assessing whether it has
control ond significant influence over associates
and joint ventures.

Impairment of Investments

At each period end management assess the
future performance of entities with which the
Company holds an investment in to ascertain
the future economic volue of its investments.
Judgement is involved in the assessment of
future performance and this involves an element
of estimation uncertainty. As at the period end
the directors have reviewed the carrying value
of its investments and has made impairments .
as disclosed in Note 2 of the Company financial
statements. ,

hwoodiand across the LK
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INVESTMENTS
Ineestmentin  Investments  Cpl T Yotal
aubsidiories  in oisociotes assnts

{Em} 1Em) {Em) (Em)
AY AT 28 APRIL 2019 11242 no 0y 1,2161
Additions 315 48 241 883

Transfar . 5.4 15 B
Impairment churge (220} - (12.0)
Dispasals - - 18
Amounts recogmsed thiough other comprehensive neoma - (127
AL AT 26 APRIL 2020 14855 - 12358
Additions 7y - 33 i
Imeawment charge an - - it
Disposals - - 158] 3.8}
Amaunts through ather comp ncome - - 3
Exchangs dilfarences - i3]
AS AT 13 APRIL 202V ) LR - 1494

The fair value of the long~term financioj assets
is based on bid quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date or where market prices are
not available, ot management's best estimate.

Long-term financial assets include various
holdings including @ 35.6% stake in Studio
Retail Group plc and a 36.9% stake in Mulberry
Group plc for further details refer to Note 20 of
the Group Finoncial Statements.

For further disclosures in relation to investments
in associates and long term financial assets

see note 19, 20 and 34 of the Group Financicl
Staternents.

The Directors assess the value of the
investments in subsidiaries at each period

end for indicators of impairment. For the

period ended 25 April 2021 an impairment
loss-of £1.7m has been recognised within the
income statement for loss making companies
where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value {FY20: £22.0m}. The additions to
investments in subsidiaries in the period are due
te d reorganisation of the US subsidiaries.

124

The Company is the principal holding company
of the Group. The principal subsidiary
undertakings of the Company are set out in
note 37 of the Group Financial Statements

The Group's policies Tor financial risk
management are set out in Note 3 and Note 29
of the Group Financiol Statements.

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financiul Assets And Liabilities By Category

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities, which are principally denominated in
Sterling or US Dellars, were as follows:

15 April 301 24 Apsil 2020
(k) {eml
FINANCIAL ASSETS
AMORTISED COST:
Trade and Sther recenables* . 381 3
Fvoc:
Lang Term Financial Assets ([Equity Instrumems 2616 LK
FINANCIAL ASSETS (FV):
Drivative fnancual ossets - contracts for difference T 7!
Ane 1623
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
AMORTISED COST:
Trode ond other payables £073 8671
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (F¥):
Bervative financiol Linhiitres - Lontraets for diference 17 344
608.0 9015 .
. Prepayments of {37 (FY20 £071mi, corporation tox of £ 0m (FY20 £10m) ond deferred tax assets of £l {FY20 £3 7m] ore not ncluded os o
fmancial psset
4. DEBTORS .
8 April 201 26 Aprit 2020
(Eem) {Em}
Amounts ower by Group undentakings a8
Derrvotive hnane ol assers 01 77
Giier deblon 313 743
Comperntion tos 10 10
Prapayments az o1
Deferred 10x ossers note 6) ! 37
' 1529 [13]

Other debtors includes £131.0m {FY20: £71.3m) of deposits in respect of derivative financial
instrurnents which are colloteral to cover margin requirements for derivative transactions held with
counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market (which is dependent on share
price, interest rotes and voletility) and further purchases / sales of underlying investments held.

Further information on derivative financial assets can be found in the Group consolidated accounts
in the financial instruments note 2% and the financial risk management disclosure note 3. -

Versadiond aoross e UK
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5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

15 Apel 2021 26 ApHl 2020

{Cm) (L}

Trade craditars 13 bH
Ampunts owed to Group undertakings 5024 8658
Derivativa Hnoncial fabllites 17 344
Olher craditors s 3]
4430 m1s

The amounted owed to Group undertakings mainly relates to an unsecured interest free loan with
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited which is repayable on demand.

Further information on derivative financial liabi ities can be found in the Group conselidated
aceounts in the financial instruments note 29 and the financial risk management disciosure note 3.

Other creditors at 25 April 2021 mostly relate to the accrual for costs payable to MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, see note 34 of the Group tinoncial statements.

6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Othertemparary

differencas

AT I8 AFRIL 1019 31
Credited to the proft and loss accgunt a4
AT 26 APRIL 7030 ¥
Charged 1o the proht gnd loss account 27)

AT 28 AFRIL 2021 -

The tax rote used to measure the deferred tax cssets and liabilities was 9% [FY20: 199%) on the
basis that these were the tax rates that were susstantively enacted ot the balence sheet date for the
periods when the assets and liobilities are expezted to reverse.

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

28 Aprl 2011 26 Apsl 2020
T i lem)
¥99,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p sach Qi1 0o

499,990 redeemnable preferanca shares of 10p each -
190.9 won

CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID

640,602,305 {FY20 440,602,364 ordinary share of 10p sach TR LT}
SHARK CAP{TAL ! 7B 441

The company holds 121,260,175 ordinary shares n treasury as at the period end date
{FY20: 121,260,175).
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8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
raximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a neminal value of
10p each, The purposes of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme.

On 21 June 2021the Group commenced on
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
Jure 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m and the maximum
nurnber of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to

reduce the share capital of the Company. In total

to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEQ role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray
will assume the role of CEO on 1 May 2022.

A reward and remunerction package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEQ role. Any reward

and remuneration package will be subject 7o any

requisite shareholder approval,

The Group's efevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021.

The Boaord consider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward an this increasingly successful
elevation journey,

i across tha LK

Should Michael Murray assume the CEQ role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEQ role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

Frasers Group ple has ne direct employees, the
Directors are remunerated through Sportsdirect.
com Retail Limited. Details of the Directors’
remuneration con be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report. -

10. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions with the Compuany

are disclosed within note 34 in the Group
Financial Staterments.
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Reconciliation of excluding acquisitions ond currency neutral perfarmance measures:
CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD UKSports  Feemium  Eurepean  RestQf  Whelevals
Retuil  Lifwstyls Ratuil Wodld Retoll & Licsnsing_ 0P Tote!
Unaudited lncome statement FVEHUE
kY21 Reponed 19585 Fx1YY 6152 1527 1533 3,628.3
mw._..-ﬂh .u.»:..n.u_n H.__.n.-._n m..- ._.u.._.“u. Adjustments or azquistions und currancy newteal 130741 38l 207 5t . . [5¥3.41
i April 2000 "
Aprilioll  Apil2020  April 2013 _.u....s:a . Aprit 207 FY2 IXCLUDING NEUTRAL 16611 LT dtey 1517 53 EX2 18
(am) (Cm} tem) Em] L) EY20 Reported 23013 o 8917 1742 1602 19574
CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Achuptments for atquitions and currency neutzal 125771 7934 (1785 LE w3 (834.3)
REVENVE 14253 39574 378 32595 32453
FY20 EXELUDING ACGUISITIONS AND CURRENCY MEUTRAL 18458 [ sS4 ne was 14219
Cost of sales (%,094.5} {4,294 8t 123 4 202441 31471
GROSS PROMIT 15103 18626 15635 13361 1,330 6 % VARIANCE (4.6%) TN {20.5%) (8.2%] 0.5% {11.4%)
Selling, distributian and odrmimsirative expenses L0} (15643 11413 8) nuzel masaal UNDERLYING ERITOA
Other aparabing mcome %4 375 34 65 25 FI21 Repa 797 519 a1 356 N 280 a8
Excentional tems [iTo] " B lagl n7at Adpstinants for acquisitians and currency newtral T na 138 174) - 2048)
Profit on dispasal of property (3] 542 A4 163 FY21 EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURRENCY KEUTRAL e F18] na =6 20 e
Profit on disposal of subs - LAk FY20 Reported e 45 518 6 Bt 512 3021
OPERATING [LOSSYPROFIT [} e 1605 005 1601 Adjustrments for acgu & and currency nevtral A1 a9 50 02 07 us
lavestmant income/(costs) %0 (a6) 67 w32, ma FY20 EXCLUDING ACGUISITIONS AND CURREHCY NEUTRAL ms a4 [ (] us 66
Finance income bl Mo 400 34 ae % VARIANGE. ’ 1% Wha%  (105.%)  [48T9%) Ha% %
Finance cost 1362 123 3 N9 4 4091 (2 H
Share of [loss] / preht of associated undertakings and jeint ventures - 5% B&) L] a8
Fane value gown on stap aequistien B P . ‘ Movement in provisions pre-IFRS 16:
.
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4.5 1435 1792 atl me - Lagal snd Proparty Othe Total
latery relted "
Taxation #4.5 (4350 1832) 379 1499 B
(LOSS)/PROFIT FORTHR PERIOD [ 0o 5y 1 a7 tim) Em) \tm
AT 2B APRIL 209 pizi.) "y 4403
Equity holders of the Group (83.0) G3n no wn FryE
Amounts provided 10 maz . 1242
Neon-contiolling interests 50 72 40 I 18
Amounts utilised / reversed 216 1708) 153) 2.1
{LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 78.0) 1010 1160 237 mz
ACquisitions - 06 1.6
Notes to the consolidoted Income Statement Five year record: . AT 16 APRIL 1070 st wos e e
1. Allinformction is presented under IFRS, - Amounts providad T4 ne2 - el
, " . . A ts url :] 170 45 B} 141 6. 1]
2. Yhe five year record hos been prepared on the same basis as the Financial Statements for the 52 maunts e ] everiee il 28 ! o)
weeks ended 25 April 2021, as set out in note 1, basis of preparation, of the Consolidated Financial AT 28 APRIL 2021 e hid had me
Statements, During the period, onerous lease provisions {Pre-IFRS 16} were recognised due to an ongoing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy inciuding current and anticipated
freehold acqu ns, resulting in overall additional onerous provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26 9m) in
the period, with reference to the Groups alternative performance measures,
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Recorgciliation of underlying performance measures (EBITDA and PBT): Reconciliation of Adjusted _u_.o:ww:ommu before Tax performance measure:
Sweaks updad 52 waaks onded ! Stweeks anded ST waaks snded
15 April 2011 16 April 2020 1% April 2021 28 Aprll 2020
E8ITDA PAT  EMITOA by var ear
1w ttm) itm} Hml : [Em) [
GPERATING {LOSS) / PROFIT [(T3)] - ma . REPORTED AL uis
Dapracistion of property, plant pnd equipment and investment properies ’ th 131
lexciuding nght-of-use asset] 283 ) 1508
mpawrment of property. plant and equiprment and mvest properties e8 . 248 . Fear volue goun on step ocauation _ 204
texciuding nght-of-use asset] acustrment to foreign currency contracks 46 PR
Amartisation of intang ble ossets kil - bkl et nvastrnant {incomel / casts 196 0) e
Impairment of ntangible assats inon-sxceptionutt - - . 59 teahised EX loss £ tgan] 263 248
IFRS 16 nght-ol-use assat depreciotion 521 226 Shara schatme 13
IFRS 16 nght-ol-use asset impaiment 1662 - 1061 ADJUSTED 1532 17
IFRS 18 disposal and madificntonrerneasurement of lease labdities (227 - 87 B
5285 - LX) - )
Shara of lloss) / prafil and impaimants of nusarlates - - 1159
REPORTID [0 ] Y] 10 w1y
Exceptional iterms 16 16 m m
e 16 w 1
IFRS 18 Reversol af rept axpense nizal 4 1378 (134.5)
IFRS 16 Revatsal of onuraus [Base prow 136 6} 436 8] 13551 135 5)
IFRS ¥ nght-cl-use asset deprecatian . 821 - 228 .
IFRS ¥ nght-ol-use nssel impaiment - 168 2 1061
IFRS 16 disposot and medihestionfremeasurernent of leasa linhl 2xn - on
Interest Poyable - IFRS 16 - na - 05
183 ol 1173.8) L 1% )
Frofit on sole of properties
Proft on sole of proparties - pra-IFRS 16 basis 187 ILp] 1093 (104 % .
IFRS t sole and leasaback - odjustmant 1o post-{FRS 16 basis . - s51 551
1821 1842) i
{Prohit] £ less gn dispesol of finoncial instruments - (4B 5] . 77
Reullsed FX Ipss / [yoin) 2623 261 134 8)
Faur value adpustmait an equty denvalives - {475) - 269
Four value adjustiment an foreign currency contragts - 46 213
Feur valye gen on step ocquistion . f - 1204} -
UNDERLYING s i3 W 4
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FRASERS GROUP

COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Investor Services plc
The Pav
Bridgwater Rood
Bristol

BS99 622

Telephone:
0370 707 4030

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
REGISTERED OFFICE

Frasers Group plc
Unit A, Brook Park Eost
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

Telephone:
0344 245 9200

_ Frasers Group plc is registered in England and
Wales (No. 06035106}

SOLICITORS

Reynolds Porter Chamberlain LLP
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

ETW 1AA

Dentons UK and Middle East LLP
One Fleet Place

London

ECaM TWS

BROKERS

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropemaker Place, Level 12
25 Ropemaker Street
London

ECZY 9LY
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Barciays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London

E14 488

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London

E1sHQ

AUDITORS

RSM UK Audit LLP
25 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB -

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The date, time ond format of the Annual
General Meeting to be announcead in line with
Covid-19 gquidance. Each shareholder is entitled
to attend {subject to Covid-19 guidance} and
vate at the meeting, the arrangements for
which are described in a separate notice.

RESULTS .
For the year to 24 Aprit 2022:

+  Half year results announced:
tbec December 2021

= Preliminary announcement of full year
results: the

«  Annual Report circulated: the

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Frasers Group shareholder register is
mainteinad by Computershare whe are
responsible for making dividend payments

and updating the register, including details

of changes to shareholders’ addresses. if you
have a query about your sharehoiding in Sports
Direct, you should contact Computershare’s
Frasers Group Shareholder Helpline on:

G370 767 4030, Calis are charged ot standard
geographic rates, although network charges
may vary.

Address:

The Pa
Bridgwater Rood

Bristol
BS99 627

Website:

www.computershare.com

WEBSITE

The Group website at www frosers.group
provides news and details of the Company's

" activities plus information for sharehelders and

contains real time share price data os well as
the Jotest results and announcements.

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Company is obliged by law to make its
share register publicly available and as a
consequence some shareholders may receive
unsolicited mail, including from unauthorised
investrment firms.

For more infarmation on unauthorised
investment firms targeting UK investors,
website of the Financial Conduct Authority at
www.fca.org.uk

If you wish ta limit the amount of unsalicited
mail you receive contact:

The Mailing Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaret Street

London

WIW 855

Telephone:
02072913310
Email:
Evm@mBqum,:r

or register online at
www.mpsonline.org.uk

Frasers Group pic

Unit A, Brook Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

0344 245 9200

www.frasers.group
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